Nonlinear Systems and Complexity Series Editor: Albert C.J. Luo

Albert C.J. Luo

Dynamical System Synchronization



Nonlinear Systems and Complexity

Series Editor Albert C. J. Luo Southern Illinois University Edwardsville, IL, USA

For further volumes: http://www.springer.com/series/11433

the way and and S. ma may Les 2 good 1str low for when The set why set the 1- ma den all

Albert C. J. Luo

Dynamical System Synchronization



Albert C. J. Luo School of Engineering Southern Illinois University Edwardsville Edwardsville, IL, USA

ISBN 978-1-4614-5096-2 ISBN 978-1-4614-5097-9 (eBook) DOI 10.1007/978-1-4614-5097-9 Springer New York Heidelberg Dordrecht London

Library of Congress Control Number: 2012950414

© Springer Science+Business Media, LLC 2013

This work is subject to copyright. All rights are reserved by the Publisher, whether the whole or part of the material is concerned, specifically the rights of translation, reprinting, reuse of illustrations, recitation, broadcasting, reproduction on microfilms or in any other physical way, and transmission or information storage and retrieval, electronic adaptation, computer software, or by similar or dissimilar methodology now known or hereafter developed. Exempted from this legal reservation are brief excerpts in connection with reviews or scholarly analysis or material supplied specifically for the purpose of being entered and executed on a computer system, for exclusive use by the purchaser of the work. Duplication of this publication or parts thereof is permitted only under the provisions of the Copyright Law of the Publisher's location, in its current version, and permission for use must always be obtained from Springer. Permissions for use may be obtained through RightsLink at the Copyright Clearance Center. Violations are liable to prosecution under the respective Copyright Law.

The use of general descriptive names, registered names, trademarks, service marks, etc. in this publication does not imply, even in the absence of a specific statement, that such names are exempt from the relevant protective laws and regulations and therefore free for general use.

While the advice and information in this book are believed to be true and accurate at the date of publication, neither the authors nor the editors nor the publisher can accept any legal responsibility for any errors or omissions that may be made. The publisher makes no warranty, express or implied, with respect to the material contained herein.

Printed on acid-free paper

Springer is part of Springer Science+Business Media (www.springer.com)

Preface

This book presented a theory of dynamical systems synchronization from a different point of view. Such synchronization theory is based on the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems. The synchronization of discrete dynamical systems is based on the Ying-Yang theory of discrete dynamical systems. The objective of this book is to throw out the different points of view to look into dynamical systems synchronization without the Lyapunov stability method.

This book consists of six chapters. In Chap. 1, a brief history of dynamical systems synchronizations is presented. The current methods for dynamical systems synchronization are mainly based on the Lyapunov stability theory. Thus, the dynamical systems for synchronization should be similar systems, which is far away for practical applications. To solve such difficulty, a theory of dynamical systems synchronization with specific constraints is presented in this book from the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems. In Chap. 2, the switchability of a flow to the boundary in discontinuous dynamical systems is presented in order to help one understand the synchronization theory of two dynamical systems with specific constraints. In Chap. 3, the basic concepts of dynamical systems synchronization are presented first, and the theory of dynamical systems synchronization with a specific constraint is presented. For a further development of dynamical systems synchronization, the theory of two dynamical systems with multiple constraints is discussed in Chap. 4. In Chap. 5, the function synchronization of two distinct dynamical systems is discussed to show how to apply the theory of dynamical systems synchronization to practical problems. In Chap. 6, the theory for discrete dynamical systems synchronization is presented from the Ying-Yang theory of discrete dynamical systems.

Finally, I would like to appreciate my students (Yu Guo and Fuhong Min) for completing numerical computations. Herein, I thank my wife (Sherry X. Huang) and my children (Yanyi Luo, Robin Ruo-Bing Luo, and Robert Zong-Yuan Luo) for tolerance, patience, understanding, and support. This is what I can bring them for happiness.

Edwardsville, IL, USA

Albert C. J. Luo

Contents

2	1.1 1.2 Refe 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4	A Brief History Book Layout rences ontinuity and Local Singularity Discontinuous Dynamical Systems G-Functions Passable Flows	2 5 6 11 11 15
2	1.2 Refe 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4	Book Layout	5 6 11 11 15
2	Refe 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4	ontinuity and Local Singularity Discontinuous Dynamical Systems G-Functions Passable Flows	6 11 11 15
2	Disc 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4	ontinuity and Local Singularity Discontinuous Dynamical Systems G-Functions Passable Flows	11 11 15
	2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4	Discontinuous Dynamical Systems	11 15
	2.2 2.3 2.4	G-Functions	15
	2.3 2.4	Passable Flows	
	2.4		- 19
		Non-passable Flows	26
	2.5	Grazing Flows	40
	2.6	Flow Switching Bifurcations	53
	Refe	rences	69
3	Sing	le Constraint Synchronization	71
	3.1	Introduction to Synchronization	71
		3.1.1 Generalized Synchronization	77
		3.1.2 Resultant Dynamical Systems	79
	3.2	Synchronization with a Single Constraint	83
		3.2.1 Synchronicity	83
		3.2.2 Singularity to Constraint	87
	3.3	Synchronicity with Singularity	91
	3.4	Higher Order Singularity	92
	3.5	Synchronization to Constraint	96
	3.6	Desynchronization to Constraint	111
	3.7	Penetration to Constraint	117
	Refe	rences	120
4	Mul	tiple Constraints Synchronization	121
	4.1	Synchronicity to Multiple Constraints	121
	4.2	Singularity to Constraints	124
	4.3	Synchronicity with Singularity to Constraints	127

	4.4	Higher-Order Singularity to Constraints	130	
	4.5	Synchronization to All Constraints	133	
	4.6	Desynchronization to All Constraints	138	
	4.7	Penetration to All Constraints	142	
	4.8	Synchronization–Desynchronization–Penetration	145	
	4.9	Complexity by System Synchronization	151	
	Refe	prences	155	
5	Fun	ction Synchronizations	157	
	5.1	Synchronization Constraints	157	
	5.2	Synchronization Mechanism	159	
	5.3	Sinusoidal Synchronization	166	
		5.3.1 Synchronization Dynamics	171	
		5.3.2 Sinusoidal Synchronization of Chaotic Motions	178	
		5.3.3 Sinusoidal Synchronizations of Periodic Motions	182	
	Refe	erences	194	
6	Disc	rete Systems Synchronization	197	
	6.1	Discrete Systems with a Single Nonlinear Map	197	
	6.2	Discrete Systems with Multiple Maps	203	
	6.3	Complete Dynamics of a Henon Map System	207	
	6.4	Companion and Synchronization	213	
	6.5	An Application of Discrete Systems Synchronization	229	
	Refe	erences	236	
Index				
			257	

Chapter 1 Introduction

With human-being development and progress, coordinate systems are used in order that the characteristics and behaviors of everything in nature can be described quantitatively. In other words, because the coordinates systems are used extensively, one gradually understands and improves the objective world. Similarly, to describe the complexity of a changing process of a thing with time, one often adopts a given or known process to compare with such a changing process with time. Further, one obtains the similarity, instantaneous similarity and differences between the two dynamical processes for a time interval, and one determines the complexity of a dynamical system to another known dynamical system. Such similarity in a certain time interval is a kind of synchronization. In addition, the synchronization of two or more dynamical systems is a basis to understand an unknown dynamical system from one or more well-known dynamical systems. In other words, the response complexity of an unknown system to one or more wellknown systems can be measured and compared through such synchronicity. Thus, the synchronization in dynamical systems should be treated as an important concept, and the concept of "synchronization" is also a universal concept for dynamical systems. Based on the aforesaid reasons, in this book, a theory of synchronization of dynamical systems will be presented as a theoretic frame work.

A theory for synchronization of multiple dynamical systems under specific constraints was developed from a theory of discontinuous dynamical systems in Luo [1]. The concepts on synchronization of two or more dynamical systems to specific constraints were given. The synchronization, desynchronization and penetration of multiple dynamical systems to multiple specified constraints were discussed, and the necessary and sufficient conditions for such synchronizity were developed. The synchronicity of two dynamical systems to a single specific constraint and to multiple specific constraints was discussed, and the synchronization and the corresponding complexity for multiple slave systems with multiple master systems were presented. The meaning of synchronization for dynamical systems with constraints is extended as a generalized, universal concept. The theory presented in this book may be as a universal theory for dynamical systems. The book provides a theoretic frame work in order to control the slave systems which

can be synchronized with master systems through specific constraints in a general sense. The theory of dynamical systems synchronization will be presented in this book, which is not relative to the Lyapunov stability theory, and the corresponding conditions for synchronicity are necessary and sufficient conditions for synchronicity of dynamical systems with specific constraints.

1.1 A Brief History

The investigation on synchronization should return back to the seventeenth century. Huygens [2] gave a detailed description of the synchronization of two pendulum clocks with a weak interaction. In fact, Huygens looked into two modal shapes of vibration. If the coupled pendulums possess small oscillations with the same initial conditions or the initial phase difference is zero, the two pendulums will be synchronized. If the initial phase difference is 180°, observed is the antisynchronization of two pendulums. For a general case, the motion of the two pendulums will be combined by the synchronization and anti-synchronization modes of vibration. So far, one focuses on four classes of synchronizations of two or more dynamical systems (1) identical or complete synchronization, (2) generalized synchronization, (3) phase synchronization, (4) anticipated and lag synchronizations and amplitude envelope synchronization. All the synchronizations of two or more systems at least possess one constraint for synchronicity, and such synchronizations experience the characteristics of asymptotic stability. Once the two or more systems form a state of synchronization for a specific constraint, such a state should be stable. The detailed discussion on such issue can be referred to Pikovsky et al. [3] and Boccaletti [4].

After the Huygens's investigation, Rayleigh worked on the theory of sound, which describes synchronization in acoustic systems in Rayleigh [5]. In 1920s, the synchronization was stimulated by the development of electrical and radio wave propagations. For an early investigation on synchronizations, one focused on the limit cycles in self-excited dynamical systems, resonance phenomena in multiple-degrees of freedom systems and, steady-state motion in forced vibration. The limit cycle in self-excited dynamical systems was discussed (e.g., [6]), which is a kind of synchronization and such synchronization can be stabilized. The other discussions on steady-state motion and resonance in nonlinear oscillations can be referred in many books (e.g., [7, 8]). Recently, one tried to control a flow of dynamical systems with attractors. Such an investigation is actually to look into a dynamical system synchronized with a goal dynamics, as discussed in Jackson [9].

For identical or complete synchronization of two systems, Pecora and Carroll [10] presented a criterion of the sub-Lyapunov exponents to determine the synchronization of two systems connected with common signals. The common signals are as constraints for such two systems. Based on this idea, the synchronized circuits for chaos were presented by Carroll and Pecaora [11]. Since then, one focused on developing the corresponding control methods and schemes to achieve the

synchronization of two dynamical systems with constraints. Pyragas [12] presented two methods for chaos control with a small time continuous perturbation, which can achieve a synchronization of two chaotic dynamical systems. Kapitaniak [13] used such a continuous control to present the synchronization of two chaotic systems. Ding and Ott [14] pointed out a slave system (receiver system) is not necessary to be a replica of part of master systems. Rulkov et al. [15] discussed a generalized synchronization of chaos in directionally coupled chaotic systems. Kocarev and Parlitz [16] developed a general method to construct chaotic synchronized systems, which decomposes the given systems into the active and passive systems. Peng et al. [17] presented the chaotic synchronization of *n*-dimensional systems, and Pyragas [18] discussed the weak and strong synchronizations of chaos by the coupling strength of two dynamical systems. Ding et al. [19] provided a review on the control and synchronization of chaos in high-dimensional dynamical systems. In addition, Boccaletti et al. [20] presented an adaptive synchronization of chaos for secure communication. Abarbanel et al. [21] used a small force to control a dynamical system to given orbits. Pyragas [22] systematically introduced some basic ideas about the generalized synchronization of chaos. Yang and Chua [23] used linear transformations to investigate generalized synchronization. Zhan et al. [24] investigated the complete and generalized synchronizations of coupled time-delay systems. Campos and Urias [25] presented a mathematical description of multi-modal synchronization with chaos. The definition of master-slave synchronization was given and a multivalued, synchronized function was introduced. Koronovskii et al. [26] discussed the duration of a process of complete synchronization of two coupled, identical chaotic systems. The other investigations and applications on synchronization can be found in laser systems (e.g., [27-30]), human cardiorespiratory system (e.g., [31]). Mosekilde et al. [32] discussed chaotic synchronization and applied such concepts to living systems, and recent contributions on synchronization in biosystems can be found (e.g., [33-36]). Kocarev and Parlitz [37] investigated synchronizing spatiotemporal chaos in coupled nonlinear oscillators. Teufel et al. [38] presented the synchronization of two flow-excited pendula, which can recall Huygens' work [2]. Yamapi and Woafo [39] investigated synchronizations in a ring of four mutually coupled self-sustained electromechanical devices. Recently, other investigations on synchronization of coupled dynamical systems can be found (e.g., [40–43]). Newell et al. [44] investigated synchronization in chaotic diode resonator. Mbouna Ngueuteu et al. [40] investigated higher order nonlinearity on the dynamics and synchronization of two coupled electromechanical devices. Boccaletti et al. [45] gave a systematical review about the synchronization of chaotic systems. The definitions and concepts were further clarified. Chen et al. [46] gave a review on stability of synchronized dynamics and pattern formation in coupled systems. The dynamics and synchronization of coupled systems were investigated via control schemes (e.g., [47-50]). In addition to focusing on chaotic synchronization of continuous dynamical systems, one also has been interested in the synchronization of discrete systems with mappings. Pecora et al. [51] discussed the volumepreserving and volume-expanding synchronized chaotic systems through discrete maps. Stojanovski et al. [52] used the symbolic dynamics to investigate chaos synchronization, and information entropy was introduced to the synchronization of chaotic systems through discrete maps. Rulkov [53] discussed a regularization of synchronized chaotic bursts. Further, Afraimovich et al. [54] gave a mathematical investigation on the generalized synchronization of chaos in noninvertible maps. Barreto et al. [55] discussed the geometrical behavior of chaos synchronization through discrete maps. Hu et al. [56] investigated the hybrid projective synchronization of a general class of chaotic maps. Except for the complete and generalized synchronization of dynamical systems, another important synchronization is phase synchronization. As mentioned before, the phase synchronization exists in selfexcited vibration systems, forced nonlinear vibrating systems and coupled nonlinear systems. For such investigation, the perturbation techniques were used (e.g., [7, 8]). Kuramoto [57] used the concept of phase synchronization (or entertainments) to investigate the waves and turbulence in chemical oscillations. Based on this concept, Zaks et al. [58] investigated imperfect phase synchronization through the alternative locking ratios. Feng and Shen [59] investigated phase synchronization and antiphase synchronization of chaos in degenerate optical parametric oscillator. Pareek et al. [60] used multiple one-dimensional chaotic maps to investigate cryptography, and the extension of such a research can be found in Xiang et al. [61]. Bowong et al. [62] used the parameter modulation of a chaotic system for secure communications. Fallahi et al. [63] adopted the extended Kalman filter and multi-shift cipher algorithm for secure chaotic communication, and Kiani-B et al. [64] used fractional chaotic systems to secure communication through an extended fractional Kalman filter. Wang and Yu [65] used multiple-chaotic systems to develop a block encryption algorithm with a dynamical sequence. Soto-Crespo and Akhmediev [66] showed nonlinear synchronization and chaos through solitons as strange attractors. Hung et al. [67] discussed chaos synchronization of two stochastically coupled random Boolean networks. The more discussion about phase synchronization in oscillatory networks was presented in Osipov et al. [68]. The investigations on synchronization on the dynamical systems with time-delay were very active and the recent results can be found (e.g., [24, 33, 34, 62, 69–72]).

From the above-mentioned brief discussions of systems synchronization, it can be concluded that the synchronization of two or more dynamical systems is that the corresponding flows of the two or more dynamical systems are constrained under specific constraint conditions for a time interval. If the constraint conditions are considered as constraint boundaries, the synchronization of the two or more dynamical systems can be investigated by the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems. Luo [73] developed a theory for discontinuous dynamical systems, and the more detailed discussion was presented in Luo [1, 74–76]. In Luo [77], the theory for discontinuous dynamical systems was adopted to develop a theory for synchronization of dynamical systems with specific constraints. The concepts of dynamical systems synchronization with specific constraints were introduced. The necessary and sufficient conditions for the synchronization, desynchronization and penetration were developed. The synchronization complexity for multiple slave systems with multiple master systems was discussed under specific constraints. Using such a synchronization theory of two dynamical systems, in 2011, the synchronization dynamics of two distinct dynamical systems were presented without the Lyapunov method (e.g., [78–81]). The periodic and chaotic synchronizations of two distinct dynamical systems were presented. Recently, the function synchronization of two distinct dynamical systems was investigated from the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems (e.g., [82, 83]).

1.2 Book Layout

The main body in this book will discuss the synchronization of two dynamical systems from the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems, including four chapters, and the complete dynamics and synchronization of discrete dynamical systems will be presented in last chapter.

In Chap. 2, a general theory for the passability of a flow to a specific boundary in discontinuous dynamical systems will be presented. The concepts of real and imaginary flows will be presented. The *G*-functions for discontinuous dynamical systems will be presented to describe the general theory of the passability of a flow to the boundary. Based on the *G*-function, the passability of a flow from a domain to an adjacent one will be discussed. With the concepts of real and imaginary flows, the full and half, sink and source flows to the boundary will be discussed in detail. A flow to the boundary in a discontinuous dynamical system is either passable or non-passable. Thus, the switching bifurcations between the passable and non-passable flows will be presented.

In Chap. 3, the concepts on synchronization of two or multiple dynamical systems to specific constraints are presented, which is different from the idea of traditional synchronization of two dynamical systems. For such synchronization, Lyapunov stability method cannot be adopted. The synchronization, desynchronization and penetration of two or multiple dynamical systems to a specific constraint are discussed from the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems, and the necessary and sufficient conditions for such synchronicity will be investigated.

In Chap. 4, the synchronization for two dynamical systems to multiple constraints will be discussed, and the synchronization and the corresponding complexity for multiple slave systems with multiple master systems will be discussed briefly. As in Luo [77], the synchronicity of two dynamical systems with multiple constraints will be presented. The mathematical description of the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints will be given, and the corresponding necessary and sufficient conditions for the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to the constraints are presented.

In Chap. 5, the synchronization of two dynamical systems will be treated as a boundary in discontinuous dynamical systems, and such a boundary is time-varying. The boundary and domains for one of two dynamical systems are constrained by the other. The corresponding conditions for such synchronization will be presented via the theory for the switchability and attractivity of edge flows to the specific edges. The synchronization of two totally different dynamical systems will be presented as an application.

In Chap. 6, a set of concepts on "Ying" and "Yang" in discrete dynamical systems will be presented. Based on the Ying-Yang theory, the complete dynamics of discrete dynamical systems will be discussed for an understanding of dynamical behaviors. From the ideas of the Ying-Yang theory of discrete dynamical systems, the companion and synchronization of discrete dynamical systems will be presented herein, and the corresponding conditions are presented as an integrity part of dynamical system synchronization. The synchronization dynamics of Duffing and Henon maps will be discussed.

References

- 1. Luo ACJ (2009) Discontinuous dynamical systems on time-varying domains. HEP-Springer, Heidelberg
- Huygens (Hugenii) C (1673) *Horologium Oscillatorium*. Apud F. Muguet, Parisiis, France, 1673 (English Translation (1986) The pendulum clock. Iowa State University, Ames)
- 3. Pikovsky A, Rosenblum M, Kurths J (2001) Synchronization: a universal concept in nonlinear science. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge
- 4. Boccaletti S (2008) The synchronized dynamics of complex systems. Elsevier, Amsterdam
- 5. Rayleigh J (1945) The theory of sound. Dover, New York
- 6. van der Pol B (1927) Forced oscillations in a circuit with resistance. Philos Mag 3:64-80
- 7. Stocker JJ (1950) Nonlinear vibrations. Interscience, New York
- 8. Hayashi C (1964) Nonlinear oscillations in physical systems. McGraw-Hill, New York
- 9. Jackson EA (1991) Controls of dynamic flows with attractors. Phys Rev E 44:4839-4853
- 10. Pecora LM, Carroll TL (1990) Synchronization in chaotic systems. Phys Rev Lett 64(8):821-824
- 11. Carroll TL, Pecaora LM (1991) Synchronized chaotic circuit. IEEE Trans Circuit Syst 38 (4):453–456
- 12. Pyragas K (1992) Continuous control of chaos by self-controlling feedback. Phys Lett A 170:421–428
- 13. Kapitaniak T (1994) Synchronization of chaos using continuous control. Phys Rev E 50:1642–1644
- 14. Ding M, Ott E (1994) Enhancing synchronization of chaotic systems. Phys Rev E 49: R945–R948
- 15. Rulkov NF, Sushchik MM, Tsimring LS, Abarbanel HD (1995) Generalized synchronization of chaos in directionally coupled chaotic systems. Phys Rev E 50:1642–1644
- Kocarev L, Parlitz U (1995) General approach for chaotic synchronization with application to communication. Phys Rev Lett 74:1642–1644
- Peng JH, Ding EJ, Ding M, Yang W (1996) Synchronizing hyperchaos with a scalar transmitted signal. Phys Rev Lett 76:904–907
- 18. Pyragas K (1996) Weak and strong synchronization of chaos. Phys Rev E 54:R4508-R4511
- Ding M, Ding E-J, Ditto WL, Gluckman B, In V, Peng J-H, Spano ML, Yang W (1997) Control and synchronization of chaos in high dimensional systems: review of some recent results. Chaos 7:644–652
- Boccaletti S, Farini A, Arecchi FT (1997) Adaptive synchronization of chaos for secure communication. Phys Rev E 55:4979–4981
- Abarbanel HDI, Korzinov L, Mees AI, Rulkov NF (1997) Small force control of nonlinear systems to given orbits. IEEE Trans Circuits Syst I Fundam Theory Appl 44:1018–1023
- Pyragas K (1998) Properties of generalized synchronization of chaos. Nonlinear Anal Modell Control Vilnius IMI 3:1–28

- Yang T, Chua LO (1999) Generalized synchronization of chaos via linear transformations. Int J Bifurcat Chaos 9:215–219
- 24. Zhan M, Wang X, Gong X, Wei GW, Lai C-H (2003) Complete synchronization and generalized synchronization of one way coupled time-delay systems. Phys Rev E 68:0362081–0362085
- 25. Campos E, Urias J (2004) Multimodal synchronization of chaos. Chaos 14:48-53
- 26. Koronovskii AA, Hramov AE, Khromova IA (2006) Duration of the process of complete synchronization of two completed identical chaotic systems. Tech Phys Lett 30:291–294
- 27. Terry JR, Thornburg KS Jr, DeShazer DJ, VanWiggeren GD, Zhu S, Ashwin P, Roy R (1999) Synchronization of chaos in an array of three lasers. Phys Rev E 59:4036–4043
- 28. Kurtsevich BF, Pisarchik AN (2001) Synchronization effects in a dual-wavelength class-B laser with modulated losses. Phys Rev E 64(046221–1):046221–6
- Poinkam Meffo L, Woafo P, Domngang S (2007) Cluster states in a ring of four coupled semiconductor lasers. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 12:942–952
- Posadas-Castillo C, López-Gutiérrez RM, Cruz-Hernández C (2008) Synchronization of chaotic solid-state Nd:YAG lasers: application to secure communication. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1655–1667
- Schafer C, Rosenblum MG, Abel H-H, Kurths J (1999) Synchronization in the human cardiorespiratory system. Phys Rev E 60:857–870
- 32. Mosekilde E, Maistrenko Y, Postnov D (2001) Chaotic synchronization: applications to living systems. World Scientific, New Jersey
- 33. Wang D, Zhong Y, Chen S (2008) Lag synchronizing chaotic system based on a single controller. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:637–644
- 34. Wang H, Lu Q, Wang Q (2008) Bursting and synchronization transition in the coupled modified ML neurons. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1668–1675
- 35. Enjieu Kadji HG, Chabi Orou JB, Woafo P (2008) Synchronization dynamics in a ring of four mutually coupled biological systems. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1361–1372
- 36. Peng Y, Wang J, Jian Z (2009) Synchrony of two uncoupled neurons under half wave sine current stimulation. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:1570–1575
- Kocarev L, Parlitz U (1996) Synchronizing spatiotemporal chaos in coupled nonlinear oscillators. Phys Rev Lett 77:2206–2209
- Teufel A, Steindl A, Troger H (2006) Synchronization of two flow-excited pendula. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 11:577–594
- Yamapi R, Woafo P (2006) Synchronized states in a ring of four mutually coupled selfsustained electromechanical devices. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 11:186–202
- 40. Mbouna Ngueuteu GS, Yamapi R, Woafo P (2008) Effects of higher nonlinearity on the dynamics and synchronization of two coupled electromechanical devices. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1213–1240
- 41. Yamapi R, Filatrella G (2008) Strange attractors and synchronization dynamics of coupled Van der Pol–Duffing oscillators. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1121–1130
- 42. Ghosh D, Roy Chowdhury A, Saha P (2008) On the various kinds of synchronization in delayed Duffing-Van der Pol system. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:790–803
- 43. Tafo Wembe E, Yamapi R (2009) Chaos synchronization of resistively coupled Duffing systems: numerical and experimental investigations. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:1439–1453
- 44. Newell TC, Alsing PS, Gavrielides A, Kovanis V (1994) Synchronization of chaotic Diode resonators by occasional proportional feedback. Phys Rev Lett 72:1647–1650
- 45. Boccaletti S, Kurhts J, Osipov G, Valladars DL, Zhou CS (2002) The synchronization of chaotic systems. Phys Rep 366:1–101
- 46. Chen Y, Rangarajan G, Ding M (2006) Stability of synchronized dynamics and pattern formation in coupled systems: review of some recent results. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 11:934–960

- 47. Yamapi RM, Kakmeni FM, Chabi Orou JB (2007) Nonlinear dynamics and synchronization of coupled electromechanical systems with multiple functions. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 12:543–567
- Lazzouni SA, Bowong S, Moukam Kakmeni FM, Cherki B (2007) An adaptive feedback control for chaos synchronization of nonlinear systems with different order. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 12:568–583
- 49. Zhao Q, Zhou S, Li X (2008) Synchronization slaved by partial-states in lattices of nonautonomous coupled Lorenz equation. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:928–938
- Rafikov M, Balthazar JM (2008) On control and synchronization in chaotic and hyperchaotic systems via linear feedback control. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1246–1255
- Pecora LM, Carrol TL, Jonson G, Mar D (1997) Volume-preserving and volume-expansion synchronized chaotic systems. Phys Rev E 56:5090–5100
- 52. Stojanovski T, Kocarev L, Harris R (1979) Application of symbolic dynamics in chaos synchronization. IEEE Trans Circuits Syst I Fundam Theory Appl 44:1014–1018
- 53. Rulkov NF (2001) Regularization of synchronized chaotic bursts. Phys Rev Lett 86:183-186
- Afraimovich V, Cordonet A, Rulkov NF (2002) Generalized synchronization of chaos in noninvertible maps. Phys Rev E 66(016208–1):016208–6
- 55. Barreto E, Josic K, Morales C, Sander E, So P (2003) The geometry of chaos synchronization. Chaos 13:151–164
- Hu M, Xu Z, Zhang R (2008) Full state hybrid projective synchronization of a general class of chaotic maps. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:782–789
- 57. Kuramoto Y (1984) Chemical oscillations, waves, and turbulence. Springer, Berlin
- Zaks MA, Park E-H, Rosenblum MG, Kurths J (1999) Alternating locking ratio in imperfect phase synchronization. Phys Rev Lett 82:4228–4231
- Feng X-Q, Shen K (2005) Phase synchronization and anti-phase synchronization of chaos for degenerate optical parametric oscillator. Chin Phys 14:1526–1532
- Pareek NK, Patidar V, Sud KK (2005) Cryptography using multiple one-dimensional chaotic maps. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 10:715–723
- Xiang T, Wong K, Liao X (2008) An improved chaotic cryptosystem with external key. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1879–1887
- 62. Bowong, S, Moukam Kakmeni, FM and Siewe, M (2007) Secure communication via parameter modulation in a class of chaotic systems, *Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation*, 12:397–410
- 63. Fallahi K, Raoufi R, Khoshbin H (2008) An application of Chen system for secure chaotic communication based on extended Kalman filter and multi-shift cipher algorithm. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:763–781
- 64. Kiani-B A, Fallahi K, Pariz N, Leung H (2008) A chaotic secure communication scheme using fractional chaotic systems based on an extended fractional Kalman filter. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:863–879
- 65. Wang X-Y, Yu Q (2009) A block encryption algorithm based on dynamic sequences of multiple chaotic systems. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:1502–1508
- 66. Soto-Crespo JM, Akhmediev N (2005) Soliton as strange attractor: nonlinear synchronization and chaos. Phys Rev Lett 95:024101–1–024101–4
- Hung Y-C, Ho M-C, Lih J-S, Jiang I-M (2006) Chaos synchronization of two stochastically coupled random Booleen network. Phys Lett A 356:35–43
- 68. Osipov GV, Kurths J, Zhou CS (2007) Synchronization in oscillatory networks. Springer, Berlin
- 69. Ghosh D, Saha P, Roy Chowdhury A (2007) On synchronization of a forced delay dynamical system via the Galerkin approximation. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 12:928–941
- 70. Cruz-Hernández C, Romero-Haros N (2008) Communicating via synchronized time-delay Chua's circuits. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:645–659
- Lu J (2008) Generalized (complete, lag, anticipated) synchronization of discrete-time chaotic systems. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 13:1851–1859

- 72. Bowong, S, Moukam Kakmeni, FM, Dimi, JL and Koina, R (2006) Synchronizing chaotic dynamics with uncertainties using a predictable synchronization delay design, *Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation*, 11:973–987
- Luo ACJ (2005) A theory for non-smooth dynamical systems on the connectable domains. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 10:1–55
- 74. Luo ACJ (2006) Singularity and dynamics on discontinuous vector fields. Elsevier, Amsterdam
- 75. Luo ACJ (2008) Global transversality, resonance and chaotic dynamics. World Scientific, New Jersey
- 76. Luo ACJ (2011) Discontinuous dynamical systems. HEP-Springer, Heidelberg
- 17. Luo ACJ (2009) A theory for synchronization of dynamical systems. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:1901–1951
- Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) Synchronization of a periodically forced Duffing oscillator with a periodically excited pendulum. Nonlinear Anal Real World Appl 12:1810–1827
- 79. Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) The mechanism of a controlled pendulum synchronizing with periodic motions in a periodically forced, damped Duffing oscillator. Int J Bifurcat Chaos 21:1813–1829
- 80. Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) The chaotic synchronization of a controlled pendulum with a periodically forced, damped Duffing oscillator. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 16:4704–4717
- Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) Synchronization dynamics of two different dynamical systems. Chaos Solitons Fractals 44:362–380
- Min FH, Luo ACJ (2011) Sinusoidal synchronization of a Duffing oscillator with a chaotic pendulum. Phys Lett A 375:3080–3089
- Min FH, Luo ACJ (2012) Periodic and chaotic synchronization of two distinct dynamical systems under sinusoidal constraints. Chaos Solitons Fractals 45:998–1011

Chapter 2 Discontinuity and Local Singularity

In this chapter, a general theory for the passability of a flow to a specific boundary in discontinuous dynamical systems will be discussed. The concepts of real and imaginary flows will be introduced. The *G*-functions for discontinuous dynamical systems will be presented to describe the passability of a flow to the boundary. Based on the *G*-function, the passability of a flow from a domain to an adjacent one will be discussed. With the concepts of real and imaginary flows, the full- and halfsink and source flows to the boundary will be discussed as well. A flow to the boundary in a discontinuous dynamical system can be passable or non-passable. Thus, all possible switching bifurcations between the passable and non-passable flows will be presented.

2.1 Discontinuous Dynamical Systems

For any discontinuous dynamical system, there are many vector fields defined on different domains in phase space, and such differences between two vector fields in two adjacent domains cause flows to be non-smooth or discontinuous at the boundary of the domains. To investigate the dynamics of discontinuous dynamical systems, consider a discontinuous dynamical system on a universal domain $\mathfrak{V} \subset \mathscr{R}^n$, and the passability of a flow from one domain to its adjacent domains will be discussed first. Thus, subdomains Ω_{α} ($\alpha \in I$, $I = \{1, 2, \dots, N\}$) of the universal domain \mathfrak{V} will be introduced and the vector fields on the subdomains may be defined differently. If there is a vector field on a subdomain, this subdomain is said to be an accessible domain. Otherwise, such a domain is said to be an inaccessible domain. Thus, the domain accessibility can provide a design possibility for discontinuous dynamical systems. The corresponding definitions of the domain accessibility are given as follows.

Definition 2.1 A subdomain of a universal domain \mho in a discontinuous dynamical system is termed an *accessible* subdomain if at least a specific, continuous vector field can be defined on such a subdomain.

Definition 2.2 A subdomain of a universal domain \mho in a discontinuous dynamical system is termed an *inaccessible* subdomain if no any vector fields can be defined on such a subdomain.

Since the accessible and inaccessible subdomains exist in discontinuous dynamical systems, the universal domain σ is classified into the connectable and separable domains. The connectable domain is defined as follows.

Definition 2.3 A domain \mathcal{T} in phase space is termed *a connectable domain* if all the accessible subdomains of the universal domain can be connected without any inaccessible subdomain.

Similarly, a definition of the separable domain is given.

Definition 2.4 A domain is termed a *separable domain* if the accessible subdomains in the universal domain are separated by inaccessible domains.

Since any discontinuous dynamical system possesses different vector fields defined on each accessible subdomain, the corresponding dynamical behaviors in those accessible subdomains Ω_{α} are distinguishing. The different behaviors in distinct subdomains cause flow complexity in the domain \mathbf{U} of discontinuous dynamical systems. The boundary between two adjacent, accessible subdomains is a bridge of dynamical behaviors in two domains for flow continuity. Any connectable domain is bounded by the universal boundary $S \subseteq \mathscr{R}^r$ (r = n - 1), and each subdomain is bounded by the subdomain boundary surface $S_{\alpha\beta} \subset \mathscr{R}^r$ ($\alpha, \beta \in I$) with or without the partial universal boundary. For instance, consider an *n*-dimensional connectable domain in phase space, as shown in Fig. 2.1a through an n_1 -dimensional, subvector \mathbf{x}_{n_1} and an n_2 -dimensional, subvector \mathbf{x}_{n_2} $(n_1 + n_2 = n)$. The hatched area Ω_{α} is a specific subdomain, and the other subdomains are white. The dark, solid, closed curve represents the original boundary of the domain \mathbf{U} . For the separable domain, there is at least an inaccessible subdomain to separate the accessible subdomains. The union of inaccessible subdomains is also called the "inaccessible sea." The inaccessible sea is the complement of the accessible subdomains to the universal (original) domain \mho . That is determined by $\Omega_0 = \mho \setminus \bigcup_{\alpha \in I} \Omega_\alpha$. The accessible subdomains in the domain \mho are also called the "islands." For illustration of such a definition, a separable domain is shown in Fig. 2.1b. The thick curve is the boundary of the universal domain, and the gray area is the inaccessible sea. The white regions are the accessible domains (or islands). The hatched region represents a specific accessible subdomain (island). From one accessible island to another, the transport laws are needed for motion continuity, which can be referred to Luo [1]. The passability of flow from the accessible to inaccessible domains will be discussed later also.

Consider a dynamic system consisting of *N* subdynamic systems in a universal domain $\mathfrak{V} \subset \mathscr{R}^n$. The universal domain is divided into *N* accessible subdomains $\Omega_{\alpha} (\alpha \in I)$ and the union of inaccessible domain Ω_0 . The union of all the accessible subdomains $\bigcup_{\alpha \in I} \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathfrak{V} = \bigcup_{\alpha \in I} \Omega_{\alpha} \cup \Omega_0$ is the universal domain, as shown



in Fig. 2.1 by an n_1 -dimensional, subvector \mathbf{x}_{n_1} and an n_2 -dimensional, subvector \mathbf{x}_{n_2} $(n_1 + n_2 = n)$. For the connectable domain in Fig. 2.1a, $\Omega_0 = \emptyset$. In Fig. 2.1b, the union of the inaccessible subdomains is the sea, and $\Omega_0 = \mathbf{U} \setminus \bigcup_{\alpha \in I} \Omega_{\alpha}$ is the complement of the union of the accessible subdomain. On the α th open subdomain Ω_{α} , there is a $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous system $(r_{\alpha} \ge 1)$ in form of

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)} \equiv \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}) \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, \ \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)} = (x_{1}^{(\alpha)}, x_{2}^{(\alpha)}, \cdots, x_{n}^{(\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \Omega_{\alpha}.$$
(2.1)

The time is t and $\dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)} = d\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt$. In an accessible subdomain Ω_{α} , the vector field $\mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha})$ with parameter vector $\mathbf{p}_{\alpha} = (p_{\alpha}^{(1)}, p_{\alpha}^{(2)}, \cdots, p_{\alpha}^{(l)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^{l}$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 1)$ in $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and for all time t; the continuous flow in Eq. (2.1) $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t) = \mathbf{\Phi}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_0), t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha})$ with $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_0) = \mathbf{\Phi}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_0), t_0, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha})$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}+1}$ continuous for time t.

For discontinuous dynamical systems, the following assumptions will be adopted herein.

- H2.1 The flow switching between two adjacent subsystems is time continuous.
- H2.2 For an unbounded, accessible subdomain Ω_{α} , there is a bounded domain $D_{\alpha} \subset \Omega_{\alpha}$ and the corresponding vector field and its flow are bounded, i.e.,

$$||\mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}|| \le K_1(\text{const}) \text{ and } ||\Phi^{(\alpha)}|| \le K_2(\text{const}) \text{ on } D_\alpha \text{ for } t \in [0,\infty).$$
(2.2)

Fig. 2.2 Subdomains Ω_i and Ω_j , and the corresponding boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$



H2.3 For a bounded, accessible subdomain Ω_{α} , there is a bounded domain $D_{\alpha} \subseteq \Omega_{\alpha}$ and the corresponding vector field is bounded, but the flow may be unbounded, i.e.,

$$||\mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}|| \le K_1(\text{const}) \text{ and } ||\Phi^{(\alpha)}|| \le \infty \text{ on } D_\alpha \text{ for } t \in [0,\infty).$$
(2.3)

Since dynamical systems on different accessible subdomains are distinguishing, the relation between flows in the two subdomains should be developed herein for flow continuity. For a subdomain Ω_{α} , there are k_{α} -adjacent subdomains with k_{α} -pieces of boundaries. Consider a boundary of any two adjacent subdomains, formed by the intersection of the two closed subdomains (i.e., $\partial \Omega_{ij} = \overline{\Omega}_i \cap \overline{\Omega}_j$) $(i, j \in I, j \neq i)$, as shown in Fig. 2.2.

Definition 2.5 The boundary in *n*-dimensional phase space is defined as

$$S_{ij} \equiv \partial \Omega_{ij} = \bar{\Omega}_i \cap \bar{\Omega}_j$$

= {**x**| φ_{ij} (**x**, *t*, λ) = 0, φ_{ij} is *C*^{*r*}-continuous (*r* ≥ 1)} ⊂ \mathscr{R}^{n-1} . (2.4)

From the definition, $\partial \Omega_{ij} = \partial \Omega_{ji}$. The flow on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ can be defined by

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(0)} = \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t) \text{ with } \varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \lambda) = 0$$
 (2.5)

where $\mathbf{x}^{(0)} = (x_1^{(0)}, x_2^{(0)}, \dots, x_n^{(0)})^{\mathrm{T}}$. With specific initial conditions, one always obtains different flows on $\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}_0^{(0)}, t_0, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$.

Definition 2.6 The two subdomains Ω_i and Ω_j are *disjoint* if the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is an empty set (i.e., $\partial \Omega_{ij} = \emptyset$).

Definition 2.7 If the intersection of three or more subdomains,

$$\Gamma_{\alpha_1\alpha_2\cdots\alpha_k} \equiv \bigcap_{\alpha=\alpha_1}^{\alpha_k} \bar{\Omega}_{\alpha} \subset \mathscr{R}^r, (r=0,1,\cdots,n-2)$$
(2.6)

where $\alpha_k \in I$ and $k \ge 3$ is nonempty, and the subdomain intersection is termed the *singular* set.

As stated before, a flow $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}$ in Ω_i is governed by a dynamical system defined on the *j*th subdomain Ω_j . This kind of flow is called the *imaginary flow* because the flow is not determined by the dynamical system on its own domain. To further understand dynamical behaviors of discontinuous dynamical systems, it is necessary to introduce imaginary flows. Consider the *j*th imaginary flow in the *i*th domain Ω_i is a flow in Ω_i governed by the dynamical system defined on the *j*th subdomain Ω_j . The two subdomains can be either adjacent or separable. Thus, the mathematical definition of imaginary flows is as follows.

Definition 2.8 The C^{r_j+1} $(r_j \ge 1)$ -continuous flow $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ is termed the *j*th imaginary flow in the *i*th open subdomain Ω_i if the flow $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ is determined by an application of a C^{r_j} -continuous system on the *j*th open subdomain Ω_j to the *i*th open subdomain Ω_i , i.e.,

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}}_{i}^{(j)} = \mathbf{F}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{i}^{(j)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{j}) \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, \mathbf{x}_{i}^{(j)} = (x_{i1}^{(j)}, x_{i2}^{(j)}, \cdots, x_{in}^{(j)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \Omega_{i},$$
(2.7)

with the initial condition $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t_0) = \mathbf{\Phi}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t_0), t_0, \mathbf{p}_j).$

2.2 G-Functions

Before the general theory for flow passability to a specific boundary in a discontinuous dynamical system is discussed, a concept of G-function will be introduced to measure behaviors of discontinuous dynamical systems in the normal direction of the boundary. The real flow is used to define the G-functions, and such G-functions are also applicable to the imaginary flows. For simplicity, as in Luo [2, 3], consider two infinitesimal time intervals $[t - \varepsilon, t)$ and $(t, t + \varepsilon]$. There are two flows in domain Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$) and on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ determined by Eqs. (2.1) and (2.5), respectively. As in Luo [2, 3], the vector difference between two flows for three time instants is given by $\mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(0)}$. The normal vectors of boundary relative to the corresponding flow $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$ are expressed by $t-\varepsilon \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$, and $t+\varepsilon \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and the corresponding tangential vectors of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$ on the boundary are expressed $t-\varepsilon \mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$, $t_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$, and $t+\varepsilon \mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$, respectively. From the normal vector and the position vector difference between the two flows in domain and on the boundary are defined by

$$d_{t-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} = {}^{t-\varepsilon} \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{\mathbf{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(0)}), \\ d_{t}^{(\alpha)} = {}^{t} \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{\mathbf{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}), \\ d_{t+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} = {}^{t+\varepsilon} \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{\mathbf{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(0)})$$

$$(2.8)$$

where the normal vector of the boundary surface $\partial \Omega_{ii}$ at point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$ is

$${}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \equiv \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \nabla\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \left(\frac{\partial\varphi_{ij}}{\partial x_{1}^{(0)}}, \frac{\partial\varphi_{ij}}{\partial x_{2}^{(0)}}, \cdots, \frac{\partial\varphi_{ij}}{\partial x_{n}^{(0)}}\right)^{\mathrm{T}}.$$
 (2.9)

If ${}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ is a unit vector, the dot product is the normal component which is the distance of the two points of two flows in the normal direction of the boundary surface.

Definition 2.9 Consider a dynamic system in Eq. (2.1) in domain Ω_{α} ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$) which has a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{\Phi}(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, t)$ with an initial condition $(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(\alpha)})$, and on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$, there is an enough smooth flow $\mathbf{x}^{(0)} = \mathbf{\Phi}(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(0)}, \lambda, t)$ with an initial condition $(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(0)})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t - \varepsilon, t)$ or $(t, t + \varepsilon]$ for flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). The G-functions $(G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)})$ of the domain flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}$ to the boundary flow $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}$ on the boundary in the normal direction of the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ are defined as

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{-}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{-}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \frac{1}{\varepsilon} [{}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t_{-}}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}) - {}^{t-\varepsilon}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(0)})],$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{+}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{+}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \frac{1}{\varepsilon} [{}^{t+\varepsilon}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) - {}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)})].$$

$$(2.10)$$

From Eq. (2.10), since $\mathbf{x}_{t\pm}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{x}_t^{(0)}$ are the solutions of Eqs. (2.1) and (2.5), their derivatives exist and $t_{m\pm} \equiv t_m \pm 0$ is to represent the quantity in the domain rather than on the boundary. Further, by use of the Taylor series expansion, Eq. (2.10) gives

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{t\pm}, \mathbf{x}_{t\pm}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \lambda) = D_{0}^{t} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t\pm}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}) + {}^{t} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot (\dot{\mathbf{x}}_{t\pm}^{(\alpha)} - \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{t}^{(0)})$$
(2.11)

where the total derivative operators are defined as

$$D_0(\cdot) \equiv \frac{\partial(\cdot)}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(0)}} \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(0)} + \frac{\partial(\cdot)}{\partial t} \text{ and } D_{\alpha}(\cdot) \equiv \frac{\partial(\cdot)}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}} \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)} + \frac{\partial(\cdot)}{\partial t}.$$
 (2.12)

(2.13)

Using Eqs. (2.1) and (2.5), the *G*-function in Eq. (2.11) becomes

$$\begin{aligned} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)},t_{\pm},\mathbf{x}_{t\pm}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= D_{0}{}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}\cdot(\mathbf{x}_{t\pm}^{(\alpha)}-\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}) + {}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}\cdot[\mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t\pm}^{(\alpha)},t_{\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha}) \\ &-\mathbf{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda})]. \end{aligned}$$

2.2 G-Functions

Consider the flow contacting with the boundary at time t_m (i.e., $\mathbf{x}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_m^{(0)}$). Because a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ approaches the separation boundary with the zero-order contact (i.e., $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m)$), the G-function is defined as

$$\begin{aligned} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{\pm}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{\pm}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \cdot \left[\dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}(t) - \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(0)}(t)\right]|_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})} \\ &= \left[\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \cdot \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}(t) + \frac{\partial\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})}{\partial t}\right]\Big|_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})} \end{aligned}$$
(2.14)
$$&= \left[\nabla\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \cdot \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}(t) + \frac{\partial\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})}{\partial t}\right]\Big|_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})} \end{aligned}$$

With Eqs. (2.1) and (2.5), equation (2.13) can be rewritten as

$$\begin{aligned} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{\pm}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{\pm}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \cdot \left[\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}) - \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})\right] |_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})} \\ &= \left[\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \cdot \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}) + \frac{\partial\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})}{\partial t} \right] \Big|_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})} \\ &= \left[\nabla\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \cdot \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}) + \frac{\partial\varphi_{ij}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})}{\partial t} \right] \Big|_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})}. \end{aligned}$$
(2.15)

Note that $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \lambda)$ is a time rate of the inner product of displacement vector difference and the normal direction $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \lambda)$. If a flow in a discontinuous system crosses over the boundary $\partial\Omega_{ij}$, $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)} \neq G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}$. However, without the boundary, the dynamical system is continuous. Thus, $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)} = G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}$. Because the corresponding imaginary flow is the extension of a real flow to the boundary, the real and corresponding imaginary flows are continuous. Therefore, the G-functions to both the real and imaginary flows on the boundary $\partial\Omega_{ij}$ are same.

Definition 2.10 Consider a dynamic system in Eq. (2.1) in domain Ω_{α} ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$) which has the flow $\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{\Phi}(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, t)$ with an initial condition $(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(\alpha)})$, and on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$, there is an enough smooth flow $\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)} = \mathbf{\Phi}(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(0)}, \lambda, t)$ with an initial condition $(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(\alpha)})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t - \varepsilon, t)$ and $(t, t + \varepsilon]$ for a domain flow $\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(\alpha)}$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). The vector fields $\mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha})$ and $\mathbf{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ are $C_{[t-\varepsilon,t+\varepsilon]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge k)$ for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$

and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The *k*th-order, *G*-functions of the domain flow $\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(\alpha)}$ to the boundary flow $\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}$ in the normal direction of $\partial \Omega_{ii}$ are defined as

$$\begin{aligned}
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(k,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{-}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{-}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\
&= (k+1)! \lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \frac{(-1)^{k+2}}{\varepsilon^{k+1}} [{}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t_{-}}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}) - {}^{t-\varepsilon}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \\
&+ \sum_{s=0}^{k-1} \frac{1}{(s+1)!} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t, \mathbf{x}_{t_{-}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})(-\varepsilon)^{s+1}], \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(k,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{+}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{+}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\
&= (k+1)! \lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \frac{1}{\varepsilon^{k+1}} [{}^{t+\varepsilon}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) - {}^{t}\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t_{+}}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}) \\
&- \sum_{s=0}^{k-1} \frac{1}{(s+1)!} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t, \mathbf{x}_{t_{+}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})\varepsilon^{s+1}].
\end{aligned} \tag{2.16}$$

Again, the Taylor series expansion applying to Eq. (2.16) yields

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(k,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{\pm}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{\pm}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \sum_{s=0}^{k+1} C_{k+1}^{s} D_{0}^{k+1-s \ t} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot \left(\frac{d^{s} \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}}{dt^{s}} - \frac{d^{s} \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^{s}} \right) |_{(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{\pm}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\pm})}.$$
(2.17)

Using Eqs. (2.1) and (2.5), the *k*th-order *G*-function of the flow $\mathbf{x}_t^{(\alpha)}$ to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is computed by

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(k,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, t_{+}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{+}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \sum_{s=1}^{k+1} C_{k+1}^{s} D_{0}^{k+1-s t} \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{T} \cdot \left[D_{\alpha}^{s-1} \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}) - D_{0}^{s-1} \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \right] \Big|_{(\mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{t_{\pm}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\pm})} + D_{0}^{k+1 t} \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{T} \cdot (\mathbf{x}_{t_{\pm}}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{t}^{(0)}),$$

$$(2.18)$$

where

$$C_{k+1}^{s} = \frac{(k+1)!}{s!(k+1-s)!}$$
(2.19)

with $C_{k+1}^0 = 1$ and $s! = 1 \times 2 \times \cdots \times s$. The *G*-function $G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(k,\alpha)}$ is the time rate of $G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(k-1,\alpha)}$. If a flow contacting with $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m (i.e., $\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_m^{(0)}$) and ${}^t \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}} \equiv \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}$, the kth-order G-function is

$$\begin{aligned} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(k,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &= \sum_{r=1}^{k+1} C_{k+1}^{r} D_{0}^{k+1-r} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot \left[\frac{d^{r} \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}}{dt^{r}} - \frac{d^{r} \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^{r}} \right] \Big|_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})} \\ &= \sum_{r=1}^{k+1} C_{k+1}^{r} D_{0}^{k+1-r} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot \left[D_{\alpha}^{r-1} \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}, t, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}) - D_{0}^{r-1} \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \right] \Big|_{(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm})} \end{aligned}$$
(2.20)

For k = 0, one obtains

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(k,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}).$$
(2.21)

From now on, $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}) \equiv \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}).$

2.3 Passable Flows

Compared to the continuous dynamical systems, discontinuous dynamical systems possess many passable flows to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ because $G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(i)} \neq G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}$. A passable flow to a specific boundary is discussed first, as sketched in Fig. 2.3. $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent the *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively. They are depicted by thin solid curves. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ are the *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields on Ω_j and Ω_i . Such imaginary flows are depicted by dashed curves. The hollow circles are switching points, and filled circles are starting points. The detail discussion of the real and imaginary flows can be found from Luo [4, 5]. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $t_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ on the boundary are depicted. The passable flow to a specific boundary is defined as follows.

Definition 2.11 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is *semi-passable* from domain Ω_i to Ω_j if

$$\begin{array}{c} \operatorname{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0 \\ \operatorname{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0 \\ \operatorname{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}.$$

$$(2.22)$$



Fig. 2.3 Passable flows: (a) from Ω_i to Ω_j with the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -order and (b) from Ω_j to Ω_i with the $(2k_j : 2k_i)$ -order. *Real* flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ in domains Ω_i and Ω_j are depicted by *thin solid curves*, respectively. *Imaginary* flows $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , which are defined by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i are depicted by *dashed curves*, respectively. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for switching points on the boundary and *filled circles* are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

Since flow properties in domains Ω_i and Ω_j are different at point (t_m, \mathbf{x}_m) , $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)} \neq G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}$ to $\partial\Omega_{ij}$. The necessary and sufficient conditions for such a passable flow on $\partial\Omega_{ij}$ from domain Ω_i to Ω_j are given as follows.

Theorem 2.1 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an

arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. Two flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ are $C^{r_i}_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m]}$ and $C^{r_j}_{(t_m,t_{m+\varepsilon}]}$ continuous for time t, respectively, and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha} \ge 1, \alpha = i, j)$.
The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is semi-passable from domain Ω_i to Ω_j if and only if

either
$$\begin{cases}
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0
\end{cases} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j},$$
or
$$\begin{cases}
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0
\end{cases} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}.$$
(2.23)

Proof For a point $\mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$, suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. Two flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ are $C^{r_i}_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m]}$ and $C^{r_j}_{(t_m,t_{m+\varepsilon}]}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 1, \alpha = i,j)$ for time t. $||\ddot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}(t)|| < \infty$ for $0 < \varepsilon << 1$. For $a \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $a \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the Taylor series expansions of $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm\varepsilon})$ with $t_{m\pm\varepsilon} = t_m \pm \varepsilon$ ($\alpha \in \{i,j\}$) to $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(a)$ give

$$\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} \equiv \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon) = \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(a) + \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}(a)(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a) + o(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a),$$

As $a \rightarrow t_{m\pm}$, taking the limit of the foregoing equation leads to

$$\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} \equiv \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon) = \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) + \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm})(\pm\varepsilon) + o(\pm\varepsilon),$$

With Eq. (2.1), one obtains

$$\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) + \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm})(\pm\varepsilon) + o(\pm\varepsilon),$$

In a similar fashion, the flow on the boundary is expressed by

$$\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)} \equiv \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon) = \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_{m\pm}) + \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(0)}(t_{m\pm})(\pm\varepsilon) + o(\pm\varepsilon),$$

$$= \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_{m\pm}) + \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(t_{m\pm})(\pm\varepsilon) + o(\pm\varepsilon),$$

$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) + D_0\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)})(\pm\varepsilon) + o(\pm\varepsilon).$$

The ignorance of the ε^2 -term and high order terms, the deformation of the above equation and left multiplication of $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ gives

$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}] = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}] - \varepsilon G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}),$$

$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}] + \varepsilon G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}).$$

Because of $\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{x}_m$, the foregoing equation becomes

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] &= \varepsilon G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}), \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] &= \varepsilon G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}). \end{split}$$

With Eq. (2.23), the foregoing equation gives Eq. (2.22). Using Eq. (2.22), Eq. (2.23) can be obtained. This theorem is proved. \Box

In general, the G-function in Section 2.2 is used to describe the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -semipassable flow and the $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -semi-passable flow to the boundary. Without any switching law or transport law on the boundary, the two semi-passable flow can be described by the $(2k_i : m_j)$ -semi-passable flow $(k_i, m_j \in \mathbb{N})$. However, in Luo [5, 6], the semi-passable flow with the higher order singularity to the boundary was discussed only for either the *plane* boundary surface or the higher order contact of the flow and the boundary surface.

Definition 2.12 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m)}^{r_i}$ continuous for time t with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_i \ge 2k_i + 1$), and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m,t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_j \ge m_j + 1$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the m_j th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(2k_i : m_j)$ -semi-passable from domain Ω_i to Ω_j if

 $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)})\cdot[\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}-\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}]>0$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 1$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0,$$
(2.24)

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, m_j - 1 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(m_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0, \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.25)

either

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \begin{array}{c} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0 \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \begin{array}{c} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.26)$$

or



Fig. 2.4 Passable flows: (a) from Ω_i to Ω_j with $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -order and (b) from Ω_j to Ω_i with $(2k_j : 2k_j - 1)$ -order. *Real* flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ in Ω_i and Ω_j are depicted by *thin solid curves*, respectively. *Imaginary* flows $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ in Ω_i and Ω_j , which are defined by vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , are depicted by the *dashed curves*, respectively. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Dotted curves* represent tangential flows before time t_{m+} . *Hollow circles* are for switching points on the boundary, and *filled circles* are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

If $m_j = 2k_j$, the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -passable flow can be sketched as in Fig. 2.3. However, for $m_j = 2k_j - 1$, the $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -passable flow from domain Ω_i to Ω_j is sketched in Fig. 2.4a. The tangential flow of the $(2k_j - 1)$ th-order exists in domain Ω_j .

The dotted curves represent the tangential curves to the boundary for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$. The starting point of the flow is $(t_{m-\varepsilon}, \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)})$ in domain Ω_i . If the flow arrives to the point (t_m, \mathbf{x}_m) of the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$, the flow will follow the tangential flow in domain Ω_j . The $(2k_j : 2k_i - 1)$ -passable flow from domain Ω_j to Ω_i is presented in Fig. 2.4b with the same behavior as in Fig. 2.4a. So, a new semi-passable flow is formed as the post-transversal, tangential flow discussed in Luo [5, 6]. From the definition of the $(2k_i : m_j)$ -passable flow, the corresponding necessary and sufficient conditions can be given by the following theorem.

Theorem 2.2 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m)}^r$ continuous for time t with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_i \ge 2k_i + 1$), and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_m,t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^r$ -continuous with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_j \ge m_j + 1$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the (2 k_i) th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the m_j th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is (2 $k_i : m_j$)-semi-passable from domain Ω_i to Ω_j if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 1;$$
(2.27)

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, m_j - 1;$$
(2.28)

$$\begin{array}{c} \text{either} \quad \left. \begin{array}{c} G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\ G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_i,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_j \\ \\ \left. \begin{array}{c} G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\ G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_i,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_i. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.29)$$

Proof For a point $\mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$, suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ for time t and $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_m,t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous for time t, and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_j \ge m_j + 1$). Equations (2.27) and (2.28) are identical to the first equations of Eqs. (2.24) and (2.25), respectively. Equation (2.29) implies the second equations of Eqs. (2.24) and (2.25). For $a \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $b \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the Taylor series of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-\varepsilon})$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+\varepsilon})$ at $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(a)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(b)$ up to the ε^{2k_i+1} and ε^{m_j+1} -terms give

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}-\varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(i)}(a) + \sum_{s=1}^{2k_i} \frac{1}{s!} \frac{d^s \mathbf{x}^{(i)}}{dt^s} \Big|_{t=a} (t_{m-}-\varepsilon-a)^s \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_i+1)!} \frac{d^{2k_i+1} \mathbf{x}^{(i)}}{dt^{2k_i+1}} \Big|_{t=a} (t_{m-}-\varepsilon-a)^{2k_i+1} + o((t_{m-}-\varepsilon-a)^{2k_i+1}), \end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+}+\varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(b) + \sum_{s=1}^{m_j} \frac{1}{s!} \frac{d^s \mathbf{x}^{(j)}}{dt^s} \Big|_{t=b} (t_{m+}+\varepsilon-b)^s \\ &+ \frac{1}{m_j!} \frac{d^{m_j+1} \mathbf{x}^{(j)}}{dt^{m_j+1}} \Big|_{t=b} (t_{m+}+\varepsilon-b)^{m_j+1} + o((t_{m+}+\varepsilon-b)^{m_j+1}), \end{aligned}$$

As $a \to t_{m-}$ and $b \to t_{m+}$, taking the limit of the foregoing equations leads to

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}-\varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) + \sum_{s=1}^{2k_i} \frac{1}{s!} \frac{d^s \mathbf{x}^{(i)}}{dt^s} \Big|_{t=t_{m-}} (-\varepsilon)^s + \frac{1}{(2k_i+1)!} \frac{d^{2k_i+1} \mathbf{x}^{(i)}}{dt^{2k_i+1}} \Big|_{t=t_{m-}} (-\varepsilon)^{2k_i+1} \\ &+ o((-\varepsilon)^{2k_i+1}) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) + \sum_{s=1}^{2k_i} \frac{1}{s!} D_i^{s-1} \mathbf{F}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) (-\varepsilon)^s + \frac{1}{(2k_i+1)!} D_i^{2k_i} \mathbf{F}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) (-\varepsilon)^{2k_i+1} \\ &+ o((-\varepsilon)^{2k_i+1}), \end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} &= \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+} + \varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+}) + \sum_{s=1}^{m_j} \frac{1}{m_j!} \frac{d^s \mathbf{x}^{(j)}}{dt^s} \bigg|_{t=t_{m+}} \varepsilon^s + \frac{1}{(m_j+1)!} \frac{d^{m_j+1} \mathbf{x}^{(i)}}{dt^{m_j+1}} \bigg|_{t=t_{m+}} \varepsilon^{m_j+1} + o(\varepsilon^{m_j+1}) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+}) + \sum_{s=1}^{m_j} \frac{1}{m_j!} D_j^{s-1} \mathbf{F}^{(j)}(t_{m+}) \varepsilon^s + \frac{1}{(m_j+1)!} D_j^{m_j} \mathbf{F}^{(j)}(t_{m+}) \varepsilon^{m_j+1} + o(\varepsilon^{m_j+1}) . \end{aligned}$$

In a similar fashion, one obtains

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m - \varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) + \sum_{s=1}^{2k_i} \frac{1}{s!} \frac{d^s \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^s} \Big|_{t=t_m} (-\varepsilon)^s + \frac{1}{(2k_i + 1)!} \frac{d^{2k_i + 1} \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^{2k_{i+1}}} \Big|_{t=t_m} (-\varepsilon)^{2k_i + 1} \\ &+ o((-\varepsilon)^{2k_i + 1}) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) + \sum_{s=1}^{2k_i} \frac{1}{s!} D_0^{s-1} \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(t_m) (-\varepsilon)^s + \frac{1}{(2k_i + 1)!} D_0^{2k_i} \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(t_m) (-\varepsilon)^{2k_i + 1} \\ &+ o((-\varepsilon)^{2k_i + 1}), \end{split}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m + \varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) + \sum_{s=1}^{m_j} \frac{1}{s!} \frac{d^s \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^s} \Big|_{t=t_m} \varepsilon^s + \frac{1}{(m_j+1)!} \frac{d^{m_j+1} \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^{m_{j+1}}} \Big|_{t=t_m} \varepsilon^{m_j+1} + o(\varepsilon^{m_j+1}) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) + \sum_{s=1}^{m_j} \frac{1}{s!} D_0^{s-1} \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(t_m) \varepsilon^s + \frac{1}{(m_j+1)!} D_0^{m_j} \mathbf{F}^{(0)}(t_m) \varepsilon^{m_j+1} + o(\varepsilon^{m_j+1}) \end{aligned}$$

and

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) + \sum_{s=1}^{2k_{i}} \frac{1}{s!} D_{0}^{s} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) (-\varepsilon)^{s} \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_{i}+1)!} D_{0}^{2k_{i}+1} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) (-\varepsilon)^{2k_{i}+1} + o((-\varepsilon)^{2k_{i}+1}), \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) + \sum_{s=1}^{m_{j}} \frac{1}{s!} D_{0}^{s} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \varepsilon^{s} \\ &+ \frac{1}{(m_{i}+1)!} D_{0}^{m_{j}+1} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \varepsilon^{m_{j}+1} + o(\varepsilon^{m_{j}+1}). \end{split}$$

The ignorance of the ε^{2k_i+2} and ε^{m_j+2} -terms and high order terms, the deformation of the above equation and left multiplication of $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ gives

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}] \\ &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}] + \sum_{s=0}^{2k_{i}} \frac{1}{s!} (-\varepsilon)^{s} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s-1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_{i}+1)!} (-\varepsilon)^{2k_{i}+1} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i},i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}), \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] \\ &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}] + \sum_{s=1}^{m_{j}} \frac{1}{s!} \varepsilon^{s} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s-1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &+ \frac{1}{(m_{i}+1)!} \varepsilon^{m_{j}+1} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(m_{j},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}). \end{split}$$

$$(m_j + 1)!$$
 (2.25) (2.25)

Because of $\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{x}_m$, with Eqs. (3.35) and (3.36), one obtains

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] &= \frac{1}{(2k_{i}+1)!} (-1)^{2k_{i}+2} \varepsilon^{2k_{i}+1} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i},i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}), \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] &= \frac{1}{(m_{j}+1)!} \varepsilon^{m_{j}+1} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(m_{j},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}). \end{split}$$

With Eq. (2.29), the foregoing equation gives Eq. (2.26). On the other hand, using Eq. (2.26), the foregoing equation gives Eq. (2.29). The proof is completed. \Box

2.4 Non-passable Flows

In this section, non-passable flows to a specific boundary will be discussed as in Luo [3, 7]. The initial discussion on such an issue can be found in Luo [5, 6]. The $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flows are sketched in Fig. 2.5 for a better understanding of



Fig. 2.5 The $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flows: (a) the first kind (sink flows) and (b) the second kind (source flows). $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by *thin solid curves*. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for sink and source points on the boundary, and *filled circles* are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

non-passable flows. The non-passable flows are called the *full non-passable flows* because the flows on both sides of the boundary will approach or leave the boundary. If a flow only on one side of the boundary approaches or leaves the boundary, but the flow on the other side does not exist or is not defined, this

flow to the boundary is called the *half-non-passable flow*. The full non-passable flow of the first kind (sink flows) and the full non-passable flow of the second kind (source flows) are sketched in Fig. 2.5a and b, respectively. The half-sink and half-source flow to the boundary will be discussed later.

Definition 2.13 For a discontinuous dynamic system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha = i, j$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is *non-passable* of the first kind (or called a sink flow) if

$$\begin{array}{l} \text{either} \quad \frac{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0}{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] < 0} \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \text{or} \quad \frac{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0}{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0} \Biggr\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.30)

From the foregoing definition, the sufficient and necessary conditions for the sink flow in Eq. (2.1) can be developed through the following theorem.

Theorem 2.3 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha = i, j$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ are $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_\alpha}$ -continuous ($r_\alpha \ge 1, \alpha = i, j$) for time t with $||d^{r_\alpha+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_\alpha+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is non-passable of the first kind (or a sink flow) if and only if

either
$$\begin{cases}
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0
\end{cases}$$
for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j}$,
or
$$\begin{cases}
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0
\end{cases}$$
for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}$.
(2.31)

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.1.

If the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is independent of time, using Eq. (2.14), the above theorem is identical to results in Luo [5, 6] owing to the zero-order contact between the flow and boundary. However, in Luo [5, 6], a theory for the non-passable flow with the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ higher order singularity $(k_{\alpha} \in \mathbf{N}, \alpha = i, j)$ is only valid for the *plane* boundary and the $(2k_{\alpha})$ th-*contact* between the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ and the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}$ in
the domain Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$), which will be discussed later. As in Luo [3, 7], with the higher order singularity of a flow to the boundary, a generalized theory for the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow will be discussed herein.

Definition 2.14 For a discontinuous dynamic system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha = i, j$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1, \alpha = i, j$) for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the $(2k_j)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable of the first kind (or called a $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -sink flow) if

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m-},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 1 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m-},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0 \ (\alpha = i,j), \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.32)

$$\begin{array}{c} \left. \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0 \\ \text{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \text{or} & \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.33)$$

Theorem 2.4 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha = i, j$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1$, $\alpha = i, j$) for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ th order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable of the first kind (or a $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -sink flow) if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m-},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 1 \text{ and } \alpha = i,j;$$
(2.34)

$$\begin{array}{l} \text{either} & G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\ \text{either} & \\ & G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_j \\ \text{or} & \\ & G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\ & G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_i.$$

$$(2.35)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

Definition 2.15 For a discontinuous dynamic system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha = i, j$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is *non-passable* of the second kind (or called a source flow) if

$$\begin{array}{c} \operatorname{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \text{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \\ \text{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}.$$

$$(2.36)$$

Theorem 2.5 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha = i, j$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 1$) for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is non-passable of the second kind (or a source flow) if and only if

$$\begin{array}{c} \text{either} & G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\ \\ \text{either} & \\ & G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j}, \\ \\ \\ \text{ or } & \\ & G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.37)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.1.

Definition 2.16 For a discontinuous dynamic system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m \ (\alpha = i, j)$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge m_{\alpha} + 1, \alpha = i, j$) for time *t* with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the m_i th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the m_j th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(m_i : m_j)$ -non-passable of the second kind (or called an $(m_i : m_j)$ -source flow) if

$$\left. \left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_i = 0, 1, \cdots, m_i - 1 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0, \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.38)

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(s_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_j = 0, 1, \cdots, m_j - 1 \\G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0,$$

$$(2.39)$$

either

 $\langle \mathbf{0} \rangle$

1.

$$\left. \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}.$$

$$\left. \left. \begin{array}{c} (2.40) \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array} \right\}$$

or

Note that for $m_{\alpha} = 2k_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha = i, j$), the $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -source flow is obtained, which corresponds to the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -sink flow. If $m_{\alpha} = 2k_{\alpha} - 1$ and $m_{\beta} = 2k_{\beta}$ ($\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\}$ and $\beta \neq \alpha$) or $m_{\beta} = 2k_{\beta} - 1$ ($\beta \in \{i, j\}$), because the source flow is from the boundary, three $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1), (2k_i - 1 : 2k_j)$, and $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ source flows exist. However, the corresponding sink flows cannot be formed. Such source flows are relative to tangential flows, which will be discussed later. The question is which domain the flow will go into. If a source flow is exactly on the boundary, the source flow will keep on the boundary. However, if the flow just has a little bit perturbation on one of two domains (e.g., domain Ω_{α} , $\alpha \in \{i, j\}$), the source flow will get into the domain Ω_{α} with the corresponding flow of the m_{α} th-order. In fact, such a perturbed source flow is independent of the order of flow singularity to the boundary in another domain. One may say that the behavior of source flow is sensitive to the small perturbation in the vicinity of the boundary. Such a property is similar to the saddle or source points in continuous dynamical systems. However, the sink flow to the boundary is stabilized to the small perturbation to the boundary, which means the sink flow will be on the boundary whatever the perturbation of the sink flow is on the boundary or one of two domains. For a better explanation of the source flow, the four source flows are sketched in Figs. 2.6 and 2.7. Solid and dashed curves are for real and imaginary source flows. Dotted curves represent coming flows relative to the corresponding source flows to the boundary. In Fig. 2.6, $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ and $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_i - 1)$ source flows are presented. In fact, the source flow does not have any coming flow except for the source flow existing on the boundary. For a $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -source flow, the incoming flow is the imaginary flow, and for a $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_i - 1)$ -source flow, the imagined, coming flow relative to the source flow is in the same domain. As in the $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -sink flow, the $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -source flow does not have any grazing properties to the boundary. However, the $(2k_i - 1)$: $2k_i - 1$)-source flow possesses the grazing characteristics. Because the grazing source flows are not important for the flow passability to the boundary, the properties of grazing source flows will not be discussed in this section. In Fig. 2.7, the $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ and $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j)$ -source flows are presented. From the foregoing definition, the sufficient and necessary conditions for the $(m_i : m_i)$ source flow in Eq. (2.1) can be developed as follows.



Fig. 2.6 Source flows: (a) the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -source flows and (b) the $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ -source flows. $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by *thin solid curves*. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for source points on the boundary $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

Theorem 2.6 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha = i, j$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_\alpha}$ -continuous for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty (r_{\alpha} \ge m_{\alpha} + 1, \alpha = i, j)$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the m_i th-order and



Fig. 2.7 Source flows: (a) the $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j)$ source flows and (b) the $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -source flows. $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by *thin solid curves*. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for source points on the boundary $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

 $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the m_j th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(m_i : m_j)$ -non-passable of the second kind (or $(m_i : m_j)$ -source flow) if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_i = 0, 1, \cdots, m_i - 1;$$
(2.41)

$$G_{\partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{ij}}^{(s_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_j = 0, 1, \cdots, m_j - 1;$$
(2.42)

$$\begin{array}{l} \text{either} & \left\{ \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_{i},i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0\\ G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_{j},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \text{or} & \left\{ \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_{i},i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0\\ G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_{j},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array}$$

$$(2.43)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

Next, half-non-passable flows to the boundary will be discussed. The half-non-passable flow of the first kind is termed *a half-sink flow*. A half-sink flow to the boundary is sketched in Fig. 2.8. Such a half-sink flow in Ω_i is shown in Fig. 2.8a. Only $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ is a real flow, and imaginary flows $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ for time $t \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ are represented by dashed curves. To the same boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$, a half-sink flow in Ω_j is sketched in Fig. 2.8b. The coming flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, \varepsilon)$ is only a real flow. The strict mathematical description is given as follows.

Definition 2.17 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains $\Omega_{\alpha}(\alpha = i, j)$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j)$ and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ thorder and $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ of the $(2k_j - 1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -half-non-passable of the first kind in domain Ω_i (or called a $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -half-sink flow) if

$$\left. \left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_i = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 1 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0, \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.44)

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_j = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 2 \\G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j - 1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0,$$

$$(2.45)$$

either
$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0$$
 for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j}$
or $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0$ for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}$, $\}$ (2.46)



Fig. 2.8 The half-sink flows: (a) $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -order in Ω_i and (b) $(2k_j : 2k_i - 1)$ -order in Ω_j . $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by *thin solid curves*. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ on the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for sink points on the boundary and *filled circles* are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

$$\begin{array}{c} \left. \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{i(m-\varepsilon)}^{(j)}] > 0 \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{i(m+\varepsilon)}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \\ \\ \\ \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{i(m-\varepsilon)}^{(j)}] < 0 \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{i(m+\varepsilon)}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.47)$$

Theorem 2.7 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j)$ with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ of the $(2k_j - 1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -half-non-passable of the first kind in domain Ω_i (or a $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -half-sink flow) if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad \text{for } s_i = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 1;$$
(2.48)

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(s_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad \text{for } s_j = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 2;$$
(2.49)

$$\begin{array}{c} \text{either} \quad \left. \begin{array}{c} G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\ G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j-1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_j \\ \text{or} \quad \left. \begin{array}{c} G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\ G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j-1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_i. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.50)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

Before the half-non-passable flow of the second kind is discussed, the intuitive illustration of the half-non-passable flow is sketched in Figs. 2.9 and 2.10 for a better understanding of this concept. The half-non-passable flow of the second kind is termed *a half-source flow*. The half-source flows in Ω_i are presented in Fig. 2.9a. $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ for time $t \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ is only a real flow. The imaginary flows $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ are represented by dashed curves. To the same boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$, a half-source flow in Ω_j is sketched in Fig. 2.9b. The leaving flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ for $t \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ is a real flow. Similarly, the $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ -half-source flow in domain Ω_i and Ω_j will be presented in Fig. 2.10a and b, respectively.



Fig. 2.9 Half-source flows: (a) $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -order in Ω_i and (b) $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j)$ -order in Ω_j , $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by *thin* solid curves. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for source points on the boundary $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

Definition 2.18 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains $\Omega_{\alpha}(\alpha = i, j)$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t_{m\pm})$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous for time *t* with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha} \ge m_{\alpha} + 1$), and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is



Fig. 2.10 $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ -half-source flows in: (a) domain Ω_i and (b) domain Ω_j . $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by *thin solid curves*. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for source points on the boundary $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

 $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\beta}}$ -continuous with $||d^{r_{\beta}+1}\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_{\beta}+1}|| < \infty$ $(r_{\beta} \ge 2k_{\beta}, \beta = i, j \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha)$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the m_{α} th-order and $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\beta}-1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is $(m_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ -half-*non-passable* of the second kind in domain Ω_{α} (or called an $(m_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ -half-source flow) if

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, m_{\alpha} - 1 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0, \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.51)

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\beta}-1,\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0, \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.52)

either
$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0$$
 for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\beta}$
or $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0$ for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}$, $\left.\right\}$ (2.53)

$$\begin{array}{c} \operatorname{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)}] > 0 \\ \operatorname{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{\beta} \\ \operatorname{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)}] < 0 \\ \operatorname{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

$$(2.54)$$

From the above definition, the necessary and sufficient conditions for such a $(m_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ half-non-passable flow of the second kind (or $(m_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ half-source flow) are stated in the following theorem.

Theorem 2.8 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t_{m\pm})$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m)}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha} \ge m_{\alpha} + 1$), and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\beta}}$ -continuous with $||d^{r_{\beta}+1}\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_{\beta}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\beta} \ge 2k_{\beta}$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the m_{α} th-order and $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the ($2k_{\beta} - 1$)th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is ($m_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta} - 1$)-half-non-passable of the second kind in domain Ω_{α} (or an ($m_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta} - 1$)-half-source flow) if and only if

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, m_{\alpha} - 1;$$
(2.55)

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2$$
(2.56)

$$\begin{array}{c} \text{either} & G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\ \text{either} & \\ & G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\beta}-1,\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ & \\ & G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\ \text{ or } & \\ & G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

$$(2.57)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

2.5 Grazing Flows

The tangency of a flow to the boundary in a discontinuous dynamical system is called the grazing, which also includes the imaginary flows tangential to the boundary.

Definition 2.19 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2$) for time *t*. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ in domain Ω_{α} is *tangential* to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$
(2.58)

$$\begin{array}{l} \text{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ \text{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

$$(2.59)$$

Theorem 2.9 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point
$$\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$$
 at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C^r_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}$ -continuous ($r \ge 2$) for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ in domain Ω_{α} is tangential to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(0,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha \in \{i, j\};$$
(2.60)

either
$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \lambda) < 0$$
 for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\beta}$
or $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \lambda) > 0$ for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}$. (2.61)

Proof Equation (2.60) is identical to Eq. (2.58), thus the condition in Eq. (2.58) is satisfied, and vice versa. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$) and $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ are $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2$) for time t and $||d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}}|| < \infty$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For $a \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $a \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the Taylor series expansion of $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm\varepsilon})$ to $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(a)$ up to the third-order term gives

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}|_{t=a} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}|_{t=a}(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a) + \frac{1}{2!}\ddot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)}|_{t=a}(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a)^2 \\ &+ o((t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a)^2). \end{aligned}$$

As $a \rightarrow t_{m\pm}$, taking the limit of the foregoing equation leads to

$$\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} \equiv \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_m\pm\varepsilon) = \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}\pm\dot{\mathbf{x}}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}\varepsilon + \frac{1}{2!}\ddot{\mathbf{x}}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}\varepsilon^2 + o(\varepsilon^2).$$

In a similar fashion, we have

$$\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)} \equiv \mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m \pm \varepsilon) = \mathbf{x}_m^{(0)} \pm \dot{\mathbf{x}}_m^{(0)}\varepsilon + \frac{1}{2!}\ddot{\mathbf{x}}_m^{(0)}\varepsilon^2 + o(\varepsilon^2),$$
$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \equiv \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}|_{\mathbf{x}_m^{(0)}} \pm D_0\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}|_{\mathbf{x}_m^{(0)}}\varepsilon + \frac{1}{2!}D_0^2\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}|_{\mathbf{x}_m^{(0)}}\varepsilon^2 + o(\varepsilon^2)$$

The ignorance of the ε^3 and high order terms, the deformation of the above equation and left multiplication of $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ii}}$ gives

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)}] &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}] \\ &\pm \varepsilon G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(0,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &+ \frac{1}{2!} \varepsilon^2 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}). \end{split}$$

Due to $\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{x}_m$ and $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(0,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \lambda) \equiv G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(0,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \lambda) = 0$, the foregoing equation becomes

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] &= -\frac{1}{2!} \varepsilon^2 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_\alpha, \boldsymbol{\lambda}), \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] &= \frac{1}{2!} \varepsilon^2 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_\alpha, \boldsymbol{\lambda}). \end{split}$$

Using Eq. (2.61), Eq. (2.59) is obtained. On the other hand, using Eq. (2.59), Eq. (2.61) is achieved. Therefore, this theorem is proved. \Box

Definition 2.20 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge k_{\alpha} + 1$) with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ for time *t*. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ in Ω_{α} is *tangential* to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ of the $(2k_{\alpha} - 1)$ th-order if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2,$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \qquad (2.62)$$

$$\begin{array}{l} \text{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ \text{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

$$(2.63)$$

Theorem 2.10 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge k_{\alpha} + 1$) for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ in Ω_{α} is tangential to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ of the $(2k_{\alpha} - 1)$ th-order if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \lambda) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2,$$
(2.64)

either
$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\lambda) < 0$$
 for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\beta}$
or $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\lambda) > 0$ for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}$. (2.65)

Proof Equation (2.64) is identical to Eq. (2.62), thus the condition in Eq. (2.64) is satisfied, and vice versa. Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$) and $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ are $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1$) for time *t* and $||d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}}|| < \infty$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For $a \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $a \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the Taylor series expansion of $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm\varepsilon})$ to $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(a)$ up to the $(2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ th-order term gives

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(a) + \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}-1} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \frac{d^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}}{dt^{s_{\alpha}}} \Big|_{t=a} \cdot (t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a)^{s_{\alpha}} + \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha})!} \frac{d^{2k_{\alpha}} \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}}{dt^{2k_{\alpha}}} \Big|_{t=a} \\ &\times (t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a)^{2k_{\alpha}} + o((t_{m\pm}\pm\varepsilon-a)^{2k_{\alpha}}). \end{split}$$

As $a \rightarrow t_{m\pm}$, taking the limit of the foregoing equation leads to

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_m\pm\varepsilon) \\ &= \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} + \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}-1} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \frac{d^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}}{dt^{s_{\alpha}}} \bigg|_{\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}} \cdot (\pm\varepsilon)^{s_{\alpha}} + \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha})!} \frac{d^{2k_{\alpha}} \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}}{dt^{2k_{\alpha}}} \bigg|_{\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}} \cdot (\pm\varepsilon)^{2k_{\alpha}} + o(\varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}}). \end{aligned}$$

In a similar fashion, one obtains

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)} &\equiv \mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)} + \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}-1} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \frac{d^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^{s_{\alpha}}} \Big|_{\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}} \cdot (\pm\varepsilon)^{s_{\alpha}} + \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha})!} \frac{d^{2k_{\alpha}} \mathbf{x}^{(0)}}{dt^{2k_{\alpha}}} \Big|_{\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}} \cdot \varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}} + o(\varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}}), \end{aligned}$$

$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}) = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_{m\pm\varepsilon}))$$

$$= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) + \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}-1} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} D_{\mathbf{x}^{(0)}}^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \Big|_{\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}} (\pm\varepsilon)^{s_{\alpha}}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha})!} D_{\mathbf{x}^{(0)}}^{2k_{\alpha}} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \Big|_{\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}} \varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}} + o(\varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}}).$$

The ignorance of the ε^{2k_2+1} and high order terms, the deformation of the above equation and left multiplication of $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ gives

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(0)}] &= \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}] \\ &+ \sum_{s_{z}=1}^{2k_{z}-1} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} (\pm\varepsilon)^{s_{z}} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{z}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha})!} \varepsilon^{2k_{z}} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{z}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}). \end{split}$$

Due to $\mathbf{x}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{x}_m$ and $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m^{(0)}, \mathbf{x}_m^{(\alpha)}, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \equiv G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$ for $s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \dots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2$, the foregoing equation becomes

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] &= -\frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha})!} \varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}), \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] &= \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha})!} \varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}). \end{split}$$

Using Eq. (2.63), Eq. (2.65) is obtained. However, using Eq. (2.65), equation (2.63) is obtained. Therefore, this theorem is proved. \Box

The flow grazing bifurcation to the boundary can be determined by the *G*-function $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$. In other words, the conditions for a flow tangential to the boundary are $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$ $(s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \dots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2)$ and $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0$ (or $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0$) for the boundary $\partial\Omega_{ij}$ with $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j}$ (or $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}$). To develop a uniform theory of the tangential flow with the passable and non-passable flow, the imaginary flow tangency will be introduced. To distinguish a real tangential flow from an imaginary tangential flow, the tangency of a real flow to the boundary can be restated as follows.

Definition 2.21 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time

intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ for time t and $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)}^{r_j}$ or $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_j}$ continuous with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$ $(r_j \ge 2k_j)$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i - 1)$ th-order with $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ii}$ is a $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_i)$ -tangential flow in domain Ω_i if

$$\left. \left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_i = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 2 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0, \end{array} \right\}$$
(2.66)

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_j = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 1 \\G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j-1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0,$$

$$(2.67)$$

or

0

 $\left. \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \longrightarrow \Omega_{j} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \longrightarrow \Omega_{i},$ (2.68)

$$\begin{array}{l} \text{either} \quad \left. \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] < 0 \text{ or} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{j} \\ \text{or} \quad \left. \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0 \text{ or} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \text{ or} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}. \end{array}$$

$$(2.69)$$

To explain the foregoing definition, such a $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_i)$ -tangential flow to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ in domain Ω_i is sketched in Fig. 2.11a with source in domain Ω_j and (b) with sink in domain Ω_i . The $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_i)$ -tangential flow in domain Ω_i is sketched in Fig. 2.12a with source in domain Ω_i and (b) with sink in domain Ω_i . The sink and source flows are represented by the dotted curves. The tangential flows are presented by solid curves. The dashed curves denote the imaginary flows. If the starting point is on the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ (or $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$) in Fig. 2.11b (or Fig. 2.12a), the passable flow from domain Ω_i to Ω_i (or Ω_i to Ω_i) is formed. Such passable flows possess the post-higher-order singularity. From the above definition, the necessary and sufficient conditions for the tangential flow are given in the following theorem.



Fig. 2.11 The $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j)$ -tangential flows in Ω_i : (a) with source in Ω_j and (b) with sink in Ω_j . $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , depicted by *thin solid* and *dotted curves*, respectively. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ represents *imaginary* flows in domain Ω_i , controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ on the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for grazing points on the boundary and filled circles are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

Theorem 2.11 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m+}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ for time t



Fig. 2.12 The $(2k_j - 1 : 2k_i)$ -tangential flows in Ω_j : (**a**) with sink in Ω_i and (**b**) with source in Ω_i . $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent the *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , depicted by *dotted* and *thin solid curves*, respectively, and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represents *imaginary* flows in domain Ω_j , controlled by the vector fields in Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ on the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for grazing points on the boundary and *filled circles* are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

and $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-e},t_m)}^{r_j}$ or $C_{(t_m,t_{m+e}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous with $||d^{r_{j+1}}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_{j+1}}|| < \infty (r_{j} \ge 2k_{j})$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{i}-1)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ii}$ is $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_i)$ -tangential flow in domain Ω_i if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_i = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 2;$$
(2.70)

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_j = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 1;$$
(2.71)

$$\left.\begin{array}{c}
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}-1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\
\text{either} \quad G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{j},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m-},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ or} \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{j},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}-1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\
\text{or} \quad G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{j},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m-},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ or} \end{array}\right\} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}.$$

$$(2.72)$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \qquad \begin{cases} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}, \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{cases}$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

(21 1 :)

The $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -tangential flows in domain Ω_{α} and Ω_{β} $(\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$) are sketched in Fig. 2.13 with the corresponding imaginary tangential flows. The real tangential flows are presented by solid curves. Dashed curves denote the imaginary tangential flows. The corresponding definition is given as follows.

Definition 2.22 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}_{\alpha}(t_{m\pm})$ ($\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\}$ and $\beta \neq \alpha$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha})$ and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ for time *t*, and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\beta}}$ -continuous with $||d_{\alpha}^{r_{\beta}+1}\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_{\beta}+1}|| < \infty \ (r_{\beta} \ge 2k_{\beta})$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\alpha}-1)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\beta}-1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is a $(2k_{\alpha}-1:2k_{\beta}-1)$ -tangential flow in domain Ω_{α} if

$$G^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2,$$

$$G^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$

$$G^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2,$$

$$G^{(2k_{\beta}-1,\beta)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$
(2.73)
$$(2.74)$$



Fig. 2.13 $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ real and imaginary tangential flows in: (a) Ω_i and (b) Ω_j . $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent the *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by the *thin* solid curves. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent the *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for grazing points on the boundary, and *filled circles* are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

$$\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{2\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{2\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha},$$

$$(2.75)$$

either

or

given by the following theorem.

or

$$\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

$$(2.76)$$

The corresponding necessary and sufficient conditions for the tangential flow are

Theorem 2.12 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t_{m\pm})$ ($\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_\alpha}$ -continuous ($r_\alpha \geq 2k_\alpha$) with $||d^{r_\alpha+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_\alpha+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_\beta}$ -continuous with $||d^{r_\beta+1}\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_\beta+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_\beta \geq 2k_\beta$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the $(2k_\alpha - 1)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the $(2k_\beta - 1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is a $(2k_\alpha - 1: 2k_\beta - 1)$ -tangential flow in domain Ω_α if and only if

$$G^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2;$$
(2.77)

$$G^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha_{\beta}}}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2;$$
(2.78)

either

or

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0\\ G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(2k_{\beta}-1,\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \end{array}\right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0\\ G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(2k_{\beta}-1,\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \end{array}\right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

$$(2.79)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

The $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -double tangential flows are sketched in Fig. 2.14a by the solid curves. The double tangential flow is formed by the two real tangential flows

 \Box



Fig. 2.14 (a) $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ -double tangential flow in both Ω_i and Ω_j and (b) $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ -double inaccessible tangential flow in both Ω_i and Ω_j . $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ represent the *real* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, which are depicted by *thin solid curves*. $\mathbf{x}_i^{(j)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}_j^{(i)}(t)$ represent the *imaginary* flows in domains Ω_i and Ω_j , respectively, controlled by the vector fields in Ω_j and Ω_i , which are depicted by *dashed curves*. The flow on the boundary is described by $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t)$. The normal and tangential vectors $\mathbf{n}_{\partial \Omega_j}$ and $\mathbf{t}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}$ of the boundary are depicted. *Hollow circles* are for grazing points on the boundary and *filled circles* are for starting points $(n_1 + n_2 + 1 = n)$

in both domains. The $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -double inaccessible tangential flows are sketched in Fig. 2.14b by the dashed curves. Such a double inaccessible flow is formed by two imaginary tangential flows to the boundary. No any flows in the two domains can access the boundary.

Definition 2.23 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}(t_{m\pm}) \ (\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta).$ For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha})$ for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$, and the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\beta}}$ -continuous $(r_{\beta} \geq 2k_{\beta})$ with $||d^{r_{\beta}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_{\beta}+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\alpha}-1)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\beta}-1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ is a $(2k_{\alpha}-1:2k_{\beta}-1)$ double tangential flow if

$$G^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2,$$

$$G^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$
(2.80)

$$G^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2,$$

$$G^{(2k_{\beta}-1,\beta)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$
(2.81)

either

$$\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha};$$

$$(2.82)$$

or

or

$$\begin{array}{ll} \text{either} & \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}] < 0 \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ \\ \text{or} & \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}] > 0 \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}. \end{array}$$

$$(2.83)$$

The corresponding necessary and sufficient conditions for the tangential flows are given through the following theorem.

Theorem 2.13 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}(t_{m\pm}) \ (\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\} \ and \ \beta \neq \alpha).$ For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha})$ and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is $C^{r_{\beta}}_{[t_{n-\varepsilon},t_{m+\varepsilon}]}$ -continuous $(r_{\beta} > 2k_{\beta})$ and $||d^{r_{\beta}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_{\beta}+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\alpha}-1)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\beta}-1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ is a $(2k_{\alpha}-1:2k_{\beta}-1)$ -double tangential flow if and only if

$$G^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2;$$
(2.84)

$$G^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2;$$
(2.85)

eit

or

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

Definition 2.24 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ii}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains $\Omega_{\alpha}(\alpha = i, j)$. Suppose $\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_{m} = \mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t_{m\pm}) \ (\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha).$ For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. An imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha})$ for time t and $||d^{r_{\alpha}-1}\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$, and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\beta}}$ -continuous $(r_{\beta} \ge 2k_{\beta})$ for time t with $||d^{r_{\beta}+1}\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_{\beta}+1}|| < \infty$. The imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\alpha}-1)$ th-order and the imaginary $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\beta}-1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial\Omega_{ij}$ is a $(2k_{\alpha}-1:2k_{\beta}-1)$ -double inaccessible tangential flow if

T = (0) = (0) = (0)

$$G^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 2,$$

$$G^{(2k_{\alpha}-1,\alpha)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \qquad (2.87)$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2,$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(2k_{\beta}-1,\beta)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \qquad (2.88)$$

either

$$\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{\beta(m-\varepsilon)}^{(m-\varepsilon)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\beta(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{\beta(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\alpha)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\beta(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha},$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{c} (2.89) \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\beta(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\alpha)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha},$$

or

either

or

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m-\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

$$\begin{array}{c} (2.90) \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{\alpha(m+\varepsilon)}^{(\beta)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$

The necessary and sufficient conditions for the tangential flows are given.

Theorem 2.14 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t_{m\pm})$ ($\alpha, \beta \in \{i, j\}$ and $\beta \neq \alpha$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. An imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha})$ for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$, and an imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\beta}}$ -continuous $(r_{\beta} \ge 2k_{\beta})$ for time t with $||d^{r_{\beta}+1}\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}/dt^{r_{\beta}+1}|| < \infty$. The imaginary flow $\mathbf{x}_{\beta}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\alpha} - 1)$ th-order and the imaginary $\mathbf{x}_{\alpha}^{(\beta)}(t)$ of the $(2k_{\beta} - 1)$ th-order to the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is a $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -double inaccessible tangential flow if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(s_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\alpha},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha}=0,1,\cdots,2k_{\alpha}-2;$$
(2.91)

$$G^{(s_{\beta},\beta)}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} - 2;$$
(2.92)

either

or

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 2.2.

2.6 Flow Switching Bifurcations

In this section, the flow switching bifurcations from the passable to non-passable flow and the sliding fragmentation bifurcation from the non-passable to passable flow will be discussed. Before discussion of switching bifurcations, the $(m_i : m_j)$ product of the G-functions on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is introduced. **Definition 2.25** For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\mp})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ -continuous time t with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_i \ge m_i + 1$), and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous ($r_j \ge m_j + 1$) with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The $(m_i : m_j)$ -product of G-functions on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ is defined as

$$L_{ij}^{(m_i:m_j)}(t_m) \equiv L_{ij}^{(m_i:m_j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$$

= $G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \times G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(m_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ (2.94)

and for $m_i = m_j = 0$, we have $L_{ij}^{(0:0)} = L_{ij}$

$$L_{ij}(t_m) \equiv L_{ij}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$$

= $G^{(i)}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \times G^{(j)}_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}).$ (2.95)

From the foregoing definition, the products of G-functions for the full passable, sink, and source on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ are

$$L^{(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})}_{\alpha\beta}(t_{m}) > 0 \text{ on } \overrightarrow{\partial\Omega}_{\alpha\beta}; L^{(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})}_{\alpha\beta}(t_{m}) < 0 \text{ on } \overline{\partial\Omega}_{\alpha\beta} = \widetilde{\partial\Omega}_{\alpha\beta} \cup \widehat{\partial\Omega}_{\alpha\beta}.$$

$$(2.96)$$

where $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$, $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ and $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ are passable, sink, and source boundaries, respectively. $\partial \overline{\Omega}_{\alpha\beta}$ is the non-passable boundary, including sink and source boundaries. Such boundaries are relative to the passable, sink, and source flows at the boundaries in discontinuous dynamical systems. The switching bifurcation of a flow at (t_m, \mathbf{x}_m) on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ requires

$$L_{\alpha\beta}^{(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})}(t_{m}) = 0.$$
 (2.97)

For a passable flow at $\mathbf{x}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in [\mathbf{x}_{m_1}, \mathbf{x}_{m_2}] \subset \overrightarrow{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$, consider a time interval $[t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ for $[\mathbf{x}_{m_1}, \mathbf{x}_{m_2}]$ on the boundary and the product of G-functions for $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ and $\mathbf{x}_m \in [\mathbf{x}_{m_1}, \mathbf{x}_{m_2}]$ is positive, i.e., $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) > 0$. To determine the switching bifurcation, the global minimum of such a product of G-functions should be determined. Because \mathbf{x}_m is a function of t_m , the two total derivatives of $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$ are introduced by

$$DL_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)} = \nabla L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \cdot \mathbf{F}_{ij}^{(0)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) + \partial_{t_m} L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}),$$
(2.98)
$$D^r L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)} = D^{r-1} \{ DL_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \}$$

for $r = 1, 2, \cdots$. Thus, the local minimum of $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$ is determined by

$$D^{r}L_{ij}^{(2k_{i}:2k_{j})}(t_{m}) = 0, (r = 1, 2, \cdots, 2l - 1)$$
(2.99)

$$D^{2l}L_{ij}^{(2k_j:2k_j)}(t_m) > 0. (2.100)$$

Definition 2.26 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\mp})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals (i.e., $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time *t*, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j + 1)$ with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The local minimum value set of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -product of G-functions (i.e., $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$) is defined by

$$\min_{k=1} L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) = \begin{cases} L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) \\ D^r L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)} = 0 \text{ for } r = \{1, 2, \dots 2l-1\}, \\ \text{and } D^{2l} L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)} > 0. \end{cases}$$

$$(2.101)$$

From the local minimum set of $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$, the global minimum values of $L_{ii}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$ is defined as follows.

Definition 2.27 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\mp})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals (i.e., $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon})$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time *t*, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j + 1)$ with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The global minimum value of *the* $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -product of G-functions (i.e., $L_{ij}^{(2k_i: 2k_j)}(t_m)$) is defined by

$$_{G\min}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) = \min_{t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]} \{ \min_{ij} L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m), L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_{m_1}), L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_{m_2}) \}$$
(2.102)

To consider the switching bifurcation varying with the system parameter $\mathbf{q} \in {\{\mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \lambda\}}, D^r L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}$ in Eq. (2.98) is replaced by $d^r L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}/d\mathbf{q}^r$. Similarly, the maximum set of the $(2k_i:2k_j)$ -product of G-functions (i.e., $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$) can be developed as follows.

Definition 2.28 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$).

Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $([t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)}^{r_i}$ or $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ for time t and $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous for time t and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous for time t and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_j \ge 2k_j + 1$). The local maximum set of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ product of G-functions (i.e., $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$) is defined by

$$\max_{max} L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) = \left\{ L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) \middle| \begin{array}{l} \text{for } t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}] \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_m \in [\mathbf{x}_{m_1}, \mathbf{x}_{m_2}], \\ D^r L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)} = 0 \text{ for } r = \{1, 2, \cdots 2l\}, \\ \text{and } D^{2l+1} L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)} < 0. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.103)$$

From the local maximum set of $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$, the global maximum value of $L_{ii}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$ is defined as follows.

Definition 2.29 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m$ ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$). For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval ($[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$). The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)}^{r_i}$ or $C_{[t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ -continuous ($r_i \ge 2k_i + 1$) for time t and $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)}^{r_j}$ or $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous ($r_j \ge 2k_j + 1$) and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$ for time t. The global maximum of the ($2k_i : 2k_j$) product of G-functions (i.e., $L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$) is defined by

$$_{G\max}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) = \max_{t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]} \{\max_{\max}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m), L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_{m_1}), L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_{m_2})\}.$$
(2.104)

Definition 2.30 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Both flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ are $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2$ and $\alpha = i, j$) for time t, respectively, and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ is termed *the switching bifurcation of the first kind of the non-passable flow* (or called *the sliding bifurcation*) if

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0,$$

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0,$$

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$
(2.105)

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0; \\ \text{either} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] < 0, \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j} \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0; \\ \text{or} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0, \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0, \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}.$$

Theorem 2.15 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ are $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ and $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous for time t and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha} \ge 3$ and $\alpha = i, j$). The sliding bifurcation of the passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) switching to the non-passable flow of the first kind on the boundary $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ occurs if and only if

$$\begin{array}{c}
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ or} \\
 L_{ij}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ or} \\
 G_{\min}L_{ij}(t_{m}) = 0; \\
\end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.107)$$

$$\begin{array}{c}
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j} \\
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}, \\
\end{array} \right\}$$

$$\begin{array}{c}
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j} \\
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}. \\
\end{array}$$

$$(2.108)$$

Proof The proof is the same as in the proof of Theorem 2.1 and Theorem 2.2. This theorem can be proved. \Box

Definition 2.31 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals (i.e., $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$). A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous

 $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ and $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time *t*, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-e},t_{m+e}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j + 1)$ and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\partial \vec{\Omega}_{ij}$ is termed *the switching bifurcation of the first kind of the* $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow (or called *the* $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -sliding bifurcation) if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{i},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{j} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{j},$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_{i},i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{i} = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{i} - 1,$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i},i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0 \text{ and } G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{j}+1, j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \qquad (2.109)$$

$$\stackrel{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(j)}] < 0,$$
either
$$\stackrel{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}] > 0;$$

$$\stackrel{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(j)}] > 0,$$
or
$$\stackrel{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(j)}] > 0,$$
or
$$\stackrel{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}] < 0;$$

$$\stackrel{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}}{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}} \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(j)}] < 0;$$

$$\stackrel{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}}{\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}.$$

Theorem 2.16 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ and $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m+\varepsilon]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j + 1)$ and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The sliding bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) switching to the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the first kind on the boundary $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ (a $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -sliding bifurcation) occurs if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_j = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 1;$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_i = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 1;$$

$$(2.111)$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or}$$

$$L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or}$$

$$G \min L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) = 0,$$

$$(2.112)$$

Proof The proof is the same as in the proof of Theorem 2.1 and Theorem 2.2. This theorem can be proved. \Box

Definition 2.32 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Both flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ are $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ and $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_j}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2$ and $\alpha = i, j$) for time t, respectively, and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$. The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\overrightarrow{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ is termed *a switching bifurcation of the non-passable flow of the second kind* (or called *a source bifurcation*) if

$$\left. \left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0, \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.114)$$

either

$$\left. \begin{array}{ccc} & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0, \\ & \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j}$$

 $\mathbf{n}_{20}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{20}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{20}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{20}^{(i)}] > 0,$

or

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0, \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0, \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}. \quad (2.115)$$

Theorem 2.17 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. Both flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ are $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ and

 $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m)}^{r_j}$ -continuous for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2$, $\alpha = i, j$). The source bifurcation of the passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) switching to the non-passable flow of the second kind on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ occurs if and only if

$$\begin{array}{c}
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or } \\
\left. L_{ij}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or } \\
\left. G_{\min}L_{ij}(t_{m}) = 0, \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(2.116)$$

$$\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j}, \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}; \right\}$$

$$\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j} \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}. \right\}$$

$$(2.117)$$

Proof The proof is the same as in the proof of Theorem 2.1 and Theorem 2.2. This theorem can be proved. \Box

Definition 2.33 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 2)$ with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous for time t and $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_j \ge 2k_j + 1$). The tangential bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ is termed a switching bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$, non-passable flow of the second kind (or called a $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -source bifurcation) if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(r_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } r_i = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i;$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(r_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } r_j = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 1;$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i+1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0;$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0 \\ \text{either} \quad \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j},$$

$$\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] > 0 \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0 \end{array} \right\}$$
for $\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}.$ (2.119)

Theorem 2.18 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\mp}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 2)$ with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j + 1)$ with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The source bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) switching to the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the second kind on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (or the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -source bifurcation) occurs if and only if

$$G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(r_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } r_i = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 1; \\G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(r_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } r_j = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 1; \end{cases}$$

$$(2.120)$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l}
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i},i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\mp},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or } \\
 L_{ij}^{(2k_{i}:2k_{j})}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m},\mathbf{p}_{i},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or } \\
 G \min L_{ij}^{(2k_{i}:2k_{j})}(t_{m}) = 0; \end{array} \right\}$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l}
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}:2k_{j})}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j}, \\
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i},j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m+},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}; \end{array} \right\}$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l}
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}+1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\mp},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j} \\
 G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}+1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\mp},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l}
 (2.122) \\
 \end{array} \right\}$$

Proof The proof is the same as in the proof of Theorem 2.1 and Theorem 2.2. This theorem can be proved. \Box

Definition 2.34 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous for time *t*, and $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2, \alpha = i, j$). The tangential bifurcations of

two flows $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ are termed *a* switching bifurcation of the flow from $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ to $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0 \text{ and } G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \end{cases}$$

$$(2.123)$$
either
$$\begin{cases}
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m,\epsilon}^{(0)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0 \text{ and } G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(i)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(j)}] < 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(i)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(i)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(i)}] < 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(i)}] > 0; \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(i)}] > 0; \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(i)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\epsilon}^{(0)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}] > 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}] < 0, \\
\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{T}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\epsilon}^{(0)}$$

Theorem 2.19 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha} \geq 3, \alpha = i, j$). The tangential bifurcations of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\overrightarrow{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ (or the switching bifurcation of the flow from $\overrightarrow{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ to $\overleftarrow{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$) occur if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or} L_{ij}(\mathbf{x}_{m_2}, t_{m_2}, \mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or} G \min L_{ij}(t_m) = 0;$$

$$\left. \right\}$$

$$(2.125)$$

$$\begin{cases}
G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0, \\
G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0
\end{cases} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j} \\
G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0, \\
G_{\partial \Omega_{ij}}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0
\end{cases} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}.$$

$$(2.126)$$

Proof The proof is the same as in the proof of Theorem 2.1 and Theorem 2.2. This theorem can be proved. \Box

Definition 2.35 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m\pm})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous for time t with $||d^{r_{\alpha}+1}\mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}+1}|| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1$, $\alpha = i, j$). The tangential bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ is termed a switching bifurcation of the $(2k_j : 2k_i)$ -passable flow from $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ to $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{i}$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_{j}$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}+1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_{i}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0,$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{j}+1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{j}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0$$

$$(2.127)$$

$$\text{either} \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0, \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(i)} - \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}] < 0; \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0, \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0, \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] > 0, \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(i)}] < 0, \\ \\ \text{or} \quad \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0; \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] > 0; \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(0)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] < 0, \\ \\ \\ \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}}(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(0)}) \cdot [\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(j)} - \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(j)}] < 0, \\ \end{array} \right\} \text{for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \to \Omega_{i}.$$

Theorem 2.20 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$). Suppose $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t_{m-}) = \mathbf{x}_m = \mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t_{m+})$. For an arbitrarily small $\varepsilon > 0$, there are two time intervals $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ is $C_{[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m]}^{r_i}$ -continuous $(r_i \ge 2k_i + 1)$ with $||d^{r_i+1}\mathbf{x}^{(i)}/dt^{r_i+1}|| < \infty$ for time t, and a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ is $C_{(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]}^{r_j}$ -continuous $(r_j \ge 2k_j + 2)$ with $||d^{r_j+1}\mathbf{x}^{(j)}/dt^{r_j+1}|| < \infty$. The bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -passable flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) switching to the

 $(2k_i:2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the second kind on the boundary $\overline{\partial \Omega}_{ij}$ (or the switching bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -passable flow from $\overrightarrow{\partial \Omega}_{ii}$ to $\overleftarrow{\partial \Omega}_{ii}$) occurs if and only if

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_j - 1; \\G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(s,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 0, 1, \cdots, 2k_i - 1; \end{cases}$$

$$(2.129)$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_i,i)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\mp}, \mathbf{p}_i, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_j,j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or}$$

$$L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(\mathbf{x}_m, t_m, \mathbf{p}_i, \mathbf{p}_j, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ or}$$

$$G\min L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m) = 0; \qquad (2.130)$$

$$\begin{cases}
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}+1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\mp},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}+1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0
\end{cases} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{j} \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}+1,i)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\mp},\mathbf{p}_{i},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \\
G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(2k_{i}+1,j)}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}_{j},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0
\end{cases} \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}} \rightarrow \Omega_{i}.$$

$$(2.131)$$

Proof The proof is the same as in the proof of Theorem 2.1 and Theorem 2.2. This theorem can be proved.

Following the definitions in Definitions 2.28–2.35, the sliding and source fragmentation bifurcations can be similarly defined.

Definition 2.36 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$).

- (i) The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\partial \widetilde{\Omega}_{ii}$ is termed a fragmentation bifurcation of the non-passable flow of the first kind (or called *a sliding fragmentation bifurcation*) if Eqs. (2.105) and (2.106) hold.
- (ii) The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ with the $(2k_i)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the $(2k_i)$ th order at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\partial \widetilde{\Omega}_{ii}$ is termed a fragmentation bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the first kind (or called a $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -sliding fragmentation bifurcation) if Eqs. (2.109) and (2.110) hold.

The necessary and sufficient conditions for the sliding fragmentation bifurcation of the non-passable flow of the first kind are given by Eqs. (2.107) and (2.108) with $_{G \max} L_{ii}(t_m)$ replacing $_{G \min} L_{ii}(t_m)$. Similarly, the necessary and sufficient conditions for the sliding fragmentation bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the first kind are presented by Eqs. (2.111)–(2.113) with $_{G \max} L_{ii}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$ replacing

$$_{G\min}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m).$$
Definition 2.37 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$).

- (i) The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\partial \widehat{\Omega}_{ij}$ is termed *a fragmentation bifurcation of the non-passable flow of the second kind* (or called *a source fragmentation bifurcation*) if Eqs. (2.114) and (2.115) hold.
- (ii) The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ with the $(2k_i)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ of the $(2k_j)$ th-order at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\partial \widehat{\Omega}_{ij}$ is termed the fragmentation bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the second kind (or called a $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -source fragmentation bifurcation) if Eqs. (2.118) and (2.119) hold.

The necessary and sufficient conditions for the source fragmentation bifurcation of the non-passable flow of the second kind are given by Eqs. (2.116) and (2.117) with $_{G\max}L_{ij}(t_m)$ replacing $_{G\min}L_{ij}(t_m)$. Similarly, the necessary and sufficient conditions for the sliding fragmentation bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the second kind are presented by Eqs. (2.120)–(2.122) with $_{G\max}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$ replacing $_{G\min}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$.

Definition 2.38 For a discontinuous dynamical system in Eq. (2.1), there is a point $\mathbf{x}^{(0)}(t_m) \equiv \mathbf{x}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at time t_m between two adjacent domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = i, j$).

- (i) The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\partial \widetilde{\Omega}_{ij}$ (or $\partial \widehat{\Omega}_{ij}$) is termed *a switching bifurcation of the non-passable flow from* $\partial \widetilde{\Omega}_{ij}$ to $\partial \widehat{\Omega}_{ij}$ (or *from* $\partial \widehat{\Omega}_{ij}$ to $\partial \widetilde{\Omega}_{ij}$) if Eqs. (2.123) and (2.124) hold.
- (ii) The tangential bifurcation of the flow $\mathbf{x}^{(i)}(t)$ with the $(2k_i)$ th-order and $\mathbf{x}^{(j)}(t)$ with the $(2k_j)$ th-order at point (\mathbf{x}_m, t_m) on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (or $\partial \Omega_{ij}$) is termed *a switching bifurcation of the* $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -*non-passable flow from* $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ to $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (or from $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ to $\partial \Omega_{ij}$) if Eqs. (2.127) and (2.128) hold.

The necessary and sufficient conditions for the switching bifurcation of a nonpassable flow from $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ to $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (or from $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ to $\partial \Omega_{ij}$) are from Eqs. (2.125) and (2.126) with $_{G\max}L_{ij}(t_m)$ replacing $_{G\min}L_{ij}(t_m)$. However, the conditions for the switching bifurcation of the $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow from $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ to $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (or from $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ to $\partial \Omega_{ij}$) the second kind are presented by Eqs. (2.129)–(2.131) with $_{G\max}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$ replacing $_{G\min}L_{ij}^{(2k_i:2k_j)}(t_m)$. The above conditions for the switching bifurcations of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -flows are summarized in Table 2.1. In addition, the conditions for $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$, $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$, and $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ -flows are presented in Tables 2.2–2.6, respectively. The following notations are used for simplicity.

$$L_{\alpha\beta}^{(m_{\alpha}:m_{\beta})} \equiv L_{\alpha\beta}^{(m_{\alpha}:m_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \mathbf{p}_{\beta}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$$
(2.132)

rusie 201 Sumerem a	The necessary containens for $(2n_{\mu} + 2n_{\mu})$ suffering	onureunono
$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})$ passable flows	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0, \text{ or } L_{z_{\beta}}^{(2k_{2}:2k_{\beta})} = 0 \\ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} > 0 \end{array} \end{array} & \begin{array}{c} G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0, \text{ or } L_{z_{\beta}}^{(2k_{2}:2k_{\beta})} = 0 \\ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} > 0, \text{ or } n_{\partial}\Omega_{\alpha\beta} \rightarrow \Omega_{\beta}; \\ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0 \text{ for } n_{\partial}\Omega_{\alpha\beta} \rightarrow \Omega_{\alpha}. \end{array} \right\}$	$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})$ full-sink flows
$\overline{G^{(2k_{lpha})}_{-}\!>\!0,G^{(2k_{eta})}_{+}\!>\!0}_{L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta})}_{lphaeta}\!>\!0}$		$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! > \! 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{eta})} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! < \! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})$ passable flows	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2})}=0, \text{ or } L_{\alpha\beta}^{(2k_{2}\cdot2k_{\beta})}=0$ $G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2})}=0, \text{ or } L_{\alpha\beta}^{(2k_{2}\cdot2k_{\beta})}=0$ $G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2}+1)}<0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta};$ $G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2}+1)}>0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}$	$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})$ full-source flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! > \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta})} \! > 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! > 0$		$G_{+}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! > \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta})} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! < \! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})$ passable flows	$ \begin{array}{c} G_{-}^{(2k_{2})} = 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; \text{ or } L_{\alpha\beta}^{(2k_{2}:2k_{\beta})} = 0, \\ \hline G_{+}^{(2k_{2})} = 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; \text{ or } L_{\alpha\beta}^{(2k_{2}:2k_{\beta})} = 0 \\ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2}+1)} < 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta}; \\ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2}+1)} > 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha} \end{array} \right\} $	$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})$ passable flows
$egin{aligned} G^{(2k_{lpha})}_{-} > 0, G^{(2k_{eta})}_{+} > 0 \ L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta})}_{lphaeta} > 0 \end{aligned}$		$G^{(2k_{lpha})}_{+} \! > \! 0, G^{(2k_{eta})}_{-} \! > \! 0 \ L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta})}_{lphaeta} \! > \! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta})$ full-sink flows	$G_{-}^{(2k_{\mathcal{X}})} = 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; \text{ or } L_{2}^{(2k_{\mathcal{X}}:2k_{\beta})} = 0,$	$\frac{(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}) \text{ full-source}}{\text{flows}}$
$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} > 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{eta})} < 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha})} < 0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2})} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; \text{ or } L_{z\beta}^{(2k_{2}:2k_{\beta})} = 0$ $G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)} < 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} > 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{z\beta}} \to \Omega_{\beta};$ $G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)} > 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{z\beta}} \to \Omega_{\alpha}$	$G_+^{(2k_{lpha})} \! > \! 0, G_+^{(2k_{eta})} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! < \! 0$

Table 2.1 Sufficient and necessary conditions for $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -switching bifurcations

Table 2.2 Sufficient and necessary conditions for $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -switching bifurcations

$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ passable flows	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)} \!= 0, \! G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} \! < \! 0$	$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-sink flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{x})} \! > \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{x}:2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0$	$\overline{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{eta}-1)}=0,\ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{eta})}>0} \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{eta}-1)}=0$	$G_{-}^{(2k_x)} \! > \! 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_eta - 1)} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_x:2k_eta - 1)} \! < \! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ passable flows	$G_{-}^{(2k_{\alpha})}\!=0,\ G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)}\!=0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})}\!<\!0$	$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-source flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{2})} \! > \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{eta}:2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0$	$\overline{\begin{matrix} G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} > 0 \\ L_{\alpha\beta}^{(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)} < 0 \end{matrix}$	$egin{aligned} G_+^{(2k_{lpha})} \! < \! 0, G_\pm^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)} \! < \! 0 \end{aligned}$
$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}-1)$ passable flows	$G_{-}^{(2k_{\mathcal{X}})} = 0$	$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ tangential flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! > \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)} \! > \! 0$	$G^{(2k_{lpha})}_{\pm}=0 onumber \ L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)}_{lphaeta}=0, G^{(2k_{lpha}+1)}_{\pm}{<}0$	$G_+^{(2k_{\mathrm{x}})} \! < \! 0, G_\pm^{(2k_{\mathrm{g}}-1)} \! > \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{\mathrm{x}}:2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-sink flows	$G_{-}^{(2k_{\mathcal{X}})} = 0$	$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-source flows
$G_{}^{(2k_{x})} \! > \! 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! < \! 0 \ L_{_{lphaeta}}^{(2k_{x}:2k_{eta}-1)} \! < \! 0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\mathrm{z}})}=0 onumber \\ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{\mathrm{z}}:2k_{eta})}=0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\mathrm{z}}+1)}\!<\!0$	$G_{+}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! < \! 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{eta}-2k_{eta}-1)} \! < \! 0$

Tuble Le Buillelent and neees		i) swittening entireations
$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ passable flows	$G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)} \!= 0, \! G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} \!> \! 0$	$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-sink flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})}\!<\!0,G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)}\!<\!0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{eta})} < 0$	$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! < \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0$
$L^{(2k_lpha:2k_eta-1)}_{lphaeta}\!>\!0$	$L^{(2k_lpha:2k_eta-1)}_{lphaeta}=0$	$L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)}_{lphaeta}\!<\!0$
$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ passable flows	$G_{-}^{(2k_{\alpha})} \!= 0, \; G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)} \!= 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} \!> \! 0$	$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-source flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} < 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} < 0$	$\overbrace{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\alpha})}=0,G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)}=0,G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})}<0}$	$G_{+}^{(2k_{lpha})}\!>\!0,G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)}\!>\!0$
$L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)}_{lphaeta}\!>\!0$	$L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)}_{lphaeta}=0, G^{(2k_{lpha}+1)}_{\pm}\!>\!0$	$L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)}_{lphaeta}\!>\!0$
$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}-1)$ passable flows	$\underbrace{G_{-}^{(2k_{\mathcal{X}})}=0,}_{-}$	$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}-1)$ tangential flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} < 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} < 0$	$G_+^{(2k_\chi)} = 0,$	$G_{+}^{(2k_{lpha})}\!>\!0,G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)}\!<\!0$
$L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)}_{lphaeta}\!>\!0$	$L_{\alpha\beta}^{(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)} > 0$	$L^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)}_{lphaeta}\!<\!0$
$(2k_{\alpha}:2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-sink flows	$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} = 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{eta})} = 0$	$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta}-1)$ half-source flows
$G_{-}^{(2k_{lpha})} \! < \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \! > \! 0$	$\widetilde{G_+^{(2k_{m{\chi}})}}=0, G_+^{(2k_{m{eta}})}=0,$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{lpha})} \!>\! 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{eta}-1)} \!>\! 0$
$L^{(2k_lpha:2k_eta-1)}_{lphaeta}\!<\!0$	$L^{(2k_lpha:2k_eta)}_{lphaeta}=0, G^{(2k_lpha+1)}_{\pm}\!>\!0$	$L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)} > 0$

Table 2.3 Sufficient and necessary conditions for $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -switching bifurcations

Table 2.4 Sufficient and necessary conditions for $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ -switching bifurcations

$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows	$\underbrace{G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0}_{= (2k_{\beta}-1) - c} = \underbrace{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0}_{= (2k_{\beta}-1) - c}$	$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_x-1)} < 0, G_{+}^{(2k_eta)} > 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_x-1)} < 0 \ < 0$	$G_{\pm}^{\mu} = 0, G_{\pm}^{\mu} = 0, G_{\pm}^{\mu} = 0$ $L_{\chi\beta}^{(2k_{\chi}-1:2k_{\beta})} = 0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_x-1)} < 0, G_{-}^{(2k_eta)} < 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_x-1)} > 0$
$(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows	$\underbrace{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)} = 0, \ G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta})} > 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0}_{= \underbrace{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)} = 0, \ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} = 0}_{= \underbrace{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}-1)} = 0, \ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}$	$(2k_{\alpha}-1:2k_{\beta})$ half-sink flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_x-1)} < 0, G_{+}^{(2k_eta)} > 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_x-1)} < 0 \ < 0$	$G_{\pm}^{-} = 0, G_{-}^{-} = 0, G_{-}^{-} = 0, G_{\pm}^{-} = 0, \ L_{x\beta}^{(2k_x - 1:2k_\beta)} = 0,$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_x-1)} \!\!>\! 0, G_{-}^{(2k_eta)} \!<\! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_x-1)} \!\!<\! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows	$\underbrace{\frac{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{x}-1)}=0,\ G_{+}^{(2k_{x})}>0}{G^{(2k_{x}-1)}=0.G^{(2k_{x})}<0}}$	$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ half-source flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_x-1)} \!\!<\! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_eta)} \!\!>\! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_x-1)} \!\!<\! 0 \ $	$L^{(2k_{lpha}-1:2k_{eta})}_{lphaeta}=0$	$G^{(2k_{lpha}-1)}_{\pm}\!\!>\!0,G^{(2k_{eta})}_{+}\!\!>\!0 \ L^{(2k_{lpha}-1:2k_{eta})}_{lphaeta}\!\!>\!0$
$(2k_{\alpha}-1:2k_{\beta})$ half-sink flows	$\frac{G_{-}^{(2k_{\beta})}=0; \ G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}>0}{G_{-}^{(2k_{\beta})}=0: G_{-}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}<0}$	$(2k_{\alpha}-1:2k_{\beta})$ half-source flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_x-1)} \! > \! 0, \overline{G_{-}^{(2k_eta)}} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_x-1)} \! < \! 0$	$L^{(2k_x:2k_eta)}_{lphaeta}=0,$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_x-1)} \!$

Tuble 2.5 Sufficient and new	$(2\kappa_{\alpha} - 1, 2\kappa_{\beta})$ sv	vitening birdreations
$(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows	$\frac{G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0}{C_{+}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; C_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} > 0}$	$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\mathrm{x}}-1)} \!\!>\! 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{eta})} \!>\! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{\mathrm{x}}-1)} \!>\! 0$	$G_{\pm}^{(P)=0;G_{\pm}^{-}} \stackrel{p^{-}>0}{\longrightarrow} 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}-1:2k_{eta})} = 0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)}\!\!>\!0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta})}\!<\!0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)}\!<\!0$
$(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2}-1)} = 0, \ G_{+}^{(2k_{\beta})} = 0; G_{+}^{(2k_{\alpha})} < 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)} < 0$	$(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ half-source flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\mathrm{z}}-1)}\!>\!0,G_{+}^{(2k_{eta})}\!>\!0\ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{\mathrm{z}}-1)}\!>\!0$	$G_{\pm}^{(lpha\chi^{-1})} = 0, G_{-}^{(-p)'} = 0; G_{-}^{(lpha\chi^{-1})} > 0, G_{\pm}^{(-p+1)'} > 0$ $L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}:2k_{eta}-1)} = 0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)} \! < \! 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta})} \! < \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)} \! > \! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ tangential flows	$\underbrace{\frac{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{2}-1)}=0,\ G_{+}^{(2k_{2})}<0}{G^{(2k_{2}-1)}=0,G^{(2k_{2})}>0}}$	$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ half-sink flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)} \!\!>\! 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{eta})} \!>\! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)} \!>\! 0$	$L^{(2k_x:2k_eta-1)}_{xeta}=0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)} \!\! < \! 0, G_{-}^{(2k_{eta})} \! > \! 0 \ L_{lphaeta}^{(2k_{lpha}-1:2k_{eta})} \! < \! 0$
$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ half-source flows	$\underbrace{\frac{G_{-}^{(2k_{\beta})}=0;G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}>0}{O_{-}^{(2k_{\beta})}=0;G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}>0}}$	$(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta})$ half-sink flows
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{\mathrm{x}}-1)} < 0, G_{+}^{(2k_{eta})} < 0 \ L_{\mathrm{x}eta}^{(2k_{\mathrm{x}}-1) : 2k_{eta})} > 0$	$egin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{lpha}-1)}\!\!<\!$

Table 2.5 Sufficient and necessary conditions for $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ -switching bifurcations

Table 2.6 Sufficient and necessary conditions for $(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ -switching bifurcations

$\frac{(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1) \text{ double}}{\text{tangential flows}}$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} > 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} < 0$ $\overline{G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)}} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} < 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} > 0$ $T_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} > 0$	$\frac{(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1) \text{ double}}{\text{inaccessible flows}}$
$\frac{L_{ij}^{(2k_i-1:2k_j-1)} < 0}{L_{ij}^{(2k_i-1:2k_j-1)} < 0}$	$L_{ij} = 0$	$L_{ij}^{(2k_i-1:2k_j-1)} < 0$
$\begin{array}{c} (2k_i - 1: 2k_j - 1) \text{double} \\ \text{tangential flows} \end{array}$	$\frac{G_{\pm}^{(2k_j-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_j)} < 0}{C^{(2k_j-1)} - 0, C^{(2k_j)} < 0}$	$\frac{(2k_i - 1: 2k_j - 1) \text{ single}}{\text{tangential flows in } \Omega_i}$
$G^{(2k_i-1)}_{\pm}\!<\!0,G^{(2k_j-1)}_{\pm}\!>\!0\ L^{(2k_i-1:2k_j-1)}_{ij}\!<\!0$	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_i-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_i-1)} > 0 \ L_{ij}^{(2k_i-1):2k_i-1)} = 0$	$G^{(2k_i-1)}_{\pm} {<} 0, G^{(2k_j-1)}_{\pm} {<} 0 \ L^{(2k_i-1:2k_j-1)}_{ij} {>} 0$
$(2k_i - 1: 2k_j - 1) \text{ double}$ tangential flows	$G_{\pm}^{(2k_l-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_l)} > 0$ $\overline{G_{\pm}^{(2k_l-1)}} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_l)} < 0$	$\frac{(2k_i - 1: 2k_j - 1) \text{ single}}{\text{tangential flows in } \Omega_j}$
$G_{\pm}^{(2k_i-1)} \! < \! 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_j-1)} \! > \! 0 \ L_{ij}^{(2k_i-1:2k_j-1)} \! < \! 0$	$L_{ij}^{(2k_i-1:2k_i-1)}=0$	$G^{(2k_i-1)}_{\pm} \!\!>\! 0, G^{(2k_j-1)}_{\pm} \!\!>\! 0 \ L^{(2k_i-1)2k_j-1)}_{ij} \!\!>\! 0$
$(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ single tangential flows in Ω_i	$ \begin{array}{c} G_{\pm}^{(2k_{i}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} > 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} < 0 \\ \hline G_{\pm}^{(2k_{i}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} < 0; G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j}-1)} = 0, G_{\pm}^{(2k_{j})} > 0 \\ I_{ij}^{(2k_{i}-1):2k_{i}-1)} = 0 \end{array} $	$(2k_i - 1 : 2k_j - 1)$ single tangential flows in Ω_j
$egin{aligned} G^{(2k_i-1)}_{\pm}\!<\!0,G^{(2k_j-1)}_{\pm}\!<\!0\ L^{(2k_i-1:2k_j-1)}_{ij}\!>\!0 \end{aligned}$		$\overline{G_{\pm}^{(2k_i-1)}\!\!>\!0,G_{\pm}^{(2k_j-1)}\!\!>\!0}\ L_{ij}^{(2k_i-1)}\!>\!0$

References

$$G_{\pm}^{(m_{\alpha},\alpha)} \equiv G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(m_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m\pm}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$$

$$G_{-}^{(m_{\alpha},\alpha)} \equiv G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(m_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m-}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$$

$$G_{+}^{(m_{\alpha},\alpha)} \equiv G_{\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta}}^{(m_{\alpha},\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{m}, t_{m+}, \mathbf{p}_{\alpha}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$$
(2.133)

Because the concept of the imaginary flow is introduced, the switching bifurcations of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$, $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$, and $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ -flows can follow the discussion on the switching bifurcation of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -flows. The corresponding necessary and sufficient conditions for such flows can be obtained. For $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$, $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$, and $(2k_{\alpha} - 1 : 2k_{\beta})$ -flows, the switching bifurcations between a passable flow and half-non-passable flow, and between a passable flow and single tangential flow are presented. In addition, the switching bifurcations between a half-non-passable flow to a single tangential flow, and between a double tangential flow and a double inaccessible flow are given.

References

- 1. Luo ACJ (2011) Discontinuous dynamical systems. HEP-Springer, Heidelberg
- Luo ACJ (2008) On the differential geometry of flows in nonlinear dynamic systems. ASME J Comput Nonlinear Dyn 3:021104-1–021104-10
- 3. Luo ACJ (2008) Global transversality, resonance and chaotic dynamics. World Scientific, Singapore
- Luo ACJ (2005) Imaginary, sink and source flows in the vicinity of the separatrix of non-smooth dynamical systems. J Sound Vib 285:443–456
- 5. Luo ACJ (2006) Singularity and dynamics on discontinuous vector fields. Elsevier, Amsterdam
- Luo ACJ (2005) A theory for non-smooth dynamic systems on the connectable domains. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 10:1–55
- Luo ACJ (2008) A theory for flow switchability in discontinuous dynamical systems. Nonlinear Anal Hybrid Syst 2(4):1030–1061

Chapter 3 Single Constraint Synchronization

In this chapter, the synchronization of two or more dynamical systems to specific constraints is introduced, which is different from the traditional synchronization of two dynamical systems. For such synchronization, Lyapunov stability method cannot be adopted. The synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration of multiple dynamical systems to a specific constraint are discussed from the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems, and the necessary and sufficient conditions for such synchronicity are presented.

3.1 Introduction to Synchronization

As in Luo [1], consider two dynamic systems as

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(r)} = \mathbf{F}^{(r)}(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}, t, \mathbf{p}^{(r)}) \in \mathscr{R}^{n_r}$$
(3.1)

and

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(s)} = \mathbf{F}^{(s)}(\mathbf{x}^{(s)}, t, \mathbf{p}^{(s)}) \in \mathscr{R}^{n_s}$$
(3.2)

For $\sigma = \{r, s\}$, $\mathbf{F}^{(\sigma)} = (F_1^{(\sigma)}, F_2^{(\sigma)}, \dots, F_{n_{\sigma}}^{(\sigma)})^{\mathrm{T}}$, $\mathbf{x}^{(\sigma)} = (x_1^{(\sigma)}, x_2^{(\sigma)}, \dots, x_{n_{\sigma}}^{(\sigma)})^{\mathrm{T}}$, and parameter vector $\mathbf{p}^{(\sigma)} = (p_1^{(\sigma)}, p_2^{(\sigma)}, \dots, p_{k_{\sigma}}^{(\sigma)})^{\mathrm{T}}$. The vector functions $\mathbf{F}^{(\sigma)}$ can be time-dependent or time-independent. Consider a time interval $I_{12} \equiv (t_1, t_2) \in \mathscr{R}$ and domains $U_{\mathbf{x}^{(\sigma)}} \subseteq \mathscr{R}^{n_{\sigma}}$ ($\sigma = \{\alpha, \beta\}$). $(t_0, \mathbf{x}_0^{(\sigma)}) \in I_{12} \times U_{\mathbf{x}^{(\sigma)}}$ is initial condition, and the corresponding flows of the two systems are $\mathbf{x}^{(\sigma)}(t) = \mathbf{\Phi}(t, \mathbf{x}_0^{(\sigma)}, t_0, \mathbf{p}^{(\sigma)})$ for $(t, \mathbf{x}^{(\sigma)}) \in I_{12} \times U_{\mathbf{x}^{(\sigma)}}$. The semigroup properties of two flows hold. To discuss the synchronization of the two systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2), the concepts of the slave and master systems are introduced herein.

71

Definition 3.1 A system in Eq. (3.2) is called a *master* system if its flow $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ is independent. A system in Eq. (3.1) is called a *slave* system of the master system if its flow $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t)$ is constrained by a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ of the master system.

From the foregoing definition, a *slave* system is constrained by a *master* system via a specific condition, which means that a slave system will be controlled by a master system under a specific constraint. Such a phenomenon is called the synchronization of the slave and master systems under such a specific condition. To make this concept clear, a definition is given as follows.

Definition 3.2 If a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t)$ of a slave system in Eq. (3.1) is constrained by a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ of a *master* system in Eq. (3.2) through

$$\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda) = 0, \quad \lambda \in \mathscr{R}^{n_0}$$
(3.3)

for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, then the slave system is said to be *synchronized* with the master system in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, also called an $(n_r : n_s)$ -dimensional synchronization of the slave and master systems in the sense of Eq. (3.3). Four special cases are given as follows.

- (i) If $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the slave system is said to be absolutely synchronized with the master system in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (ii) If $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the slave system is said to be asymptotically synchronized with the master system in the sense of Eq. (3.3).
- (iii) For $n_r = n_s$, such a synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an *equidimensional* system synchronization in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$.
- (iv) For $n_r = n_s$, such a synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an *absolute*, equidimensional system synchronization in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.

If $n_r \neq n_s$, the $(n_r : n_s)$ -dimensional synchronization is called a nonequidimensional system synchronization. It indicates that the dimension number of a slave system can be less or more than one of the master system. Thus, it is not necessary to require the slave and master systems have the same dimensions for synchronization. Under a certain rule in Eq. (3.3), it is interesting that a slave system can follow another completely different master system to synchronize. From the foregoing definition, it can be seen that a slave system is synchronized with a master system under a constraint condition. In fact, constraints for such a synchronization phenomenon can be more than one. In other words, a slave system is synchronized with a master system under multiple constraints. Thus, the synchronization of a slave system with a master system under multiple constraints is defined.

Definition 3.3 An n_s -dimensional slave system in Eq. (3.1) is called to be synchronized with an n_r -dimensional master system in Eq. (3.2) of the $(n_r : n_s; l)$ -type (or an $(n_r : n_s; l)$ -synchronization) if there are *l*-linearly independent functions

 $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j) \ (j \in \mathscr{L} \text{ and } \mathscr{L} = \{1, 2, \dots, l\}) \text{ to make two flows } \mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t) \text{ and } \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t) \text{ of the master and slave systems satisfy}$

$$\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j) = 0, \quad \lambda_j \in \mathscr{R}^{n_j} \text{ and } j \in \mathscr{L}$$
(3.4)

for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$. Eight special cases are given as follows:

- (i) If $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the slave system is said to be *absolutely* synchronized of the $(n_r: n_s; l)$ -type with the master system (or an $(n_r: n_s; l)$ -absolute synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (ii) If $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the slave system is said to be *asymptotically* synchronized of the $(n_r : n_s; l)$ -type with the master system (or an $(n_r : n_s; l)$ -asymptotic synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4).
- (iii) For $l = n_s$, the slave system is said to be *completely* synchronized of the $(n_r: n_s; n_s)$ -type with the master system (or an $(n_r: n_s; n_s)$ -complete synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$.
- (iv) For $l = n_s$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called *an* $(n_r : n_s; n_s)$ -*absolute, complete synchronization* in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (v) If $n_r = n_s = n > l$, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an equidimensional system synchronization (or an (n : n; l)synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$.
- (vi) If $n_r = n_s = n > l$ and $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an equidimensional, (n : n; l)-absolute synchronization in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (vii) If $n_r = n_s = n = l$, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an equidimensional, complete synchronization (usually called *a synchronization*) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$.
- (viii) If $n_r = n_s = n = l$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an equidimensional, absolute, complete synchronization (or called an *absolute* synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.

In the foregoing definition, if the *l*-nonlinear equations are linearly independent, then there is a set of constants k_j and only $k_j = 0$ for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$ exists to make the following equation hold for all the domains and time,

$$\sum_{j=1}^{l} k_{j} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0.$$
(3.5)

In addition, the independence of functions $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j)$ (for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$) is checked through the corresponding normal vectors. The normal vector of $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j)$ is computed by

$$\mathbf{n}_{\varphi_j} = \nabla \varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = \left(\frac{\partial \varphi_j}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(r)}}, \frac{\partial \varphi_j}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(s)}}\right)^{\mathrm{T}}.$$
(3.6)

For all domains and time, if all the normal vectors \mathbf{n}_{φ_j} $(j \in \mathscr{L})$ are linearly independent, i.e.,

$$\sum_{j=1}^{l} k_j \mathbf{n}_{\varphi_j} = 0 \quad \text{only if } k_j = 0 \text{ for all } j \in \mathscr{L}.$$
(3.7)

then the functions $\varphi_i(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j)$ are linearly independent.

The foregoing definition tells that the slave and master systems are synchronized under *l*-constraints whatever the state-space dimension of the slave system is higher or lower than the master system. For $l < n_s$, the *l*-variables of the *n*-state variables of the slave system can be expressed by the *n*-state variables of the master system via the *l*-constraints. Select any *l*-variables $x_{[j]}$ and the rest $(n_s - l)$ variables $x_{[k]}$ of the n_s -state variables, i.e.,

$$\begin{aligned} x_{[j]}^{(s)} &\in \{x_i, i = 1, 2, \cdots, n_s\} \quad \text{for } j = 1, 2, \cdots, l \\ x_{(k)} &\in \{x_i, i = 1, 2, \cdots, n_s\} \quad \text{for } k = l + 1, l + 2, \cdots, n_s \end{aligned}$$
 (3.8)

From Eq. (3.4), due to the linear independence of functions $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j)$ ($j = 1, 2, \dots, l$), the constraint conditions give

$$x_{[j]} = f_{[j]}(\mathbf{x}^{(s)}, x_{(l+1)}, x_{(l+2)}, \cdots, x_{(n_s)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_1, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_2 \cdots, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_l) \quad \text{for } j \in \mathscr{L}.$$
(3.9)

In this case, the state variables $x_{[i]}$ for $j \in \mathcal{L}$ can be said to be synchronized with the master system in the conditions of Eq. (3.4). The subscripts $[\cdot]$ and (\cdot) of the state variables of the slave systems stand for the synchronizable and non-synchronizable variables to the master systems, respectively. If l = 1, this definition is reduced to Definition 3.2 and $(n_r : n_s; 1) \equiv (n_r : n_s)$, the $(n_r : n_s; l)$ -synchronization reduces to the $(n_r : n_s)$ -synchronization. However, for $l = n_s$, the n_s -linearly independent conditions constrain the responses of the master and slave flows in the n_r -dimensional systems. Thus, the n_s -components of the slave flow can be completely determined by the n_r -components of a flow in the master system. Therefore, for the complete synchronization of the slave and master systems, a flow of the slave system is completely controlled by the master system through the constraint conditions in Eq. (3.4). For $l > n_s$, the slave system is overconstrained by the master system. Such a case will be discussed later. For $n_r = n_s = n = l$, an equidimensional, complete synchronization of the slave and master systems is obtained. For this case, n-components of a flow in the slave system are controlled by the *n*-components of a flow in the master system through the *n*-constraint equations in Eq. (3.4). Because the *n*-constraint equations in Eq. (3.4) are linearly independent, the determinant of the Jacobian matrix of functions in Eq. (3.4) in neighborhood of the master flow $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}$ is nonzero. Therefore, there is a one-to-one relation between the slave and master flows $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}$. It implies that the slave flow is completely controlled by the master flow. From the above discussion, one obtains

$$\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t) = \mathbf{h}(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \quad \text{or} x_i^{(s)}(t) = h_i(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \quad \text{for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, n.$$
(3.10)

Introduce a set of new variables with *n*-linear, independent relations between the slave and master systems. So one has

$$\mathbf{z}(t) = \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t) - \mathbf{B}\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t) = \mathbf{h}(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}) - \mathbf{B}\mathbf{x}^{(r)} \text{ or}$$

$$z_i(t) = x_i^{(s)}(t) - b_i x_i^{(r)}(t) = h_i(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}) - b_i x_i^{(r)}(t) \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, n$$
(3.11)

where a constant diagonal matrix $\mathbf{B} = diag(b_1, b_2, \dots, b_n)$. In recent researches on the synchronization of two systems, one likes to make $z_i(t) \to 0$ for $t \to t_{m_1}$ and $z_i(t) = 0$ for $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, from which the slave and master system are synchronized. To achieve such synchronization, the fixed points of $b_i x_i^{(r)}(t) = h_i(\mathbf{x}^{(r)})$ for $i = 1, 2, \dots, n$ can be determined and independent of time. Such a concept can be extended to such linear synchronization, i.e., for $z_i(t) \to c_i$ (constant) for $t \to t_m$ and $z_i(t) = c_i$ for $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$. The definition is given as follows:

Definition 3.4 For the slave and master in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with $n_r = n_s = n$, if the slave and master flows satisfy

$$\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t) - \mathbf{B}\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t) = \mathbf{c}$$
(3.12)

with a constant diagonal matrix $\mathbf{B} = diag(b_1, b_2, \dots, b_n)$ and a constant vector $\mathbf{c} = (c_1, c_2, \dots, c_n)^T$ for $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, then the slave and master systems are equidimensionally synchronized in such a linear sense. If $t_{m+1} \to \infty$, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is absolutely and equidimensionally synchronized in the linear sense for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$. Three important synchronizations are also given as follows.

- (i) If $\mathbf{c} = \mathbf{0}$ and $b_i = 1$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n$), the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an identical synchronization.
- (ii) If $\mathbf{c} = \mathbf{0}$ and $b_i = -1$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n$), the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called an antisymmetric synchronization.
- (iii) If $\mathbf{c} = \mathbf{0}$ and $b_i \in \{1, -1\}$ $(i = 1, 2, \dots, n)$, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is called a mixed, identical and antisymmetric synchronization.

To extend the above idea, new variables are introduced as

$$z_{j} = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}), \quad j \in \mathscr{L}$$
$$\mathbf{z} = \mathbf{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$$
(3.13)

If $z_j = c_j$ (const) or $z_j = 0$, Eq. (3.13) can be used as the constraint condition in Eq. (3.4). If the slave and master systems are not synchronized, the new variables

 $(z_j \neq c_j, j = 1, 2, \dots, l)$ will change with time *t*. The corresponding time-change rate is given by

$$\dot{z}_{j} = D\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_{j}) = \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(r)}} \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\alpha)} + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(s)}} \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(\beta)} + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial t}$$

$$= \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(r)}} \mathbf{F}^{(r)} + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(s)}} \mathbf{F}^{(s)} + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial t},$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{z}} = D\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda) = \frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(r)}} \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(r)} + \frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(s)}} \dot{\mathbf{x}}^{(s)} + \frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial t}$$

$$= \frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(r)}} \mathbf{F}^{(r)} + \frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial \mathbf{x}^{(s)}} \mathbf{F}^{(s)} + \frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial t}.$$
(3.14)

For simplicity, $D\varphi_j = \varphi_j^{(1)}$ and $D^r \varphi_j = \varphi_j^{(r)}$ are adopted from now on. If the slave and master systems are continuous, the time-change rate of the new variables for the constraint conditions in Eq. (3.4) should be zero, i.e., $\dot{z}_j = 0$ ($j \in \mathscr{L}$) or $\dot{z} = \mathbf{0} \in \mathscr{R}^l$. However, if the slave and master systems are discontinuous to the constraint conditions, the time-change rate of the new variables for the constraint conditions in Eq. (3.4) may not be zero. To investigate the synchronization, the constraints are considered as boundaries in discontinuous dynamical systems.

The slave and master flows $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ are determined by differential equations in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2). Suppose at least there is a point \mathbf{x}_m at time t_m to satisfy the constraint condition in Eq. (3.3), i.e.,

$$z_m = \varphi(\mathbf{x}_m^{(r)}, \mathbf{x}_m^{(s)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$
(3.15)

For $t > t_m$, the synchronization between the slave and master systems requires the slave and master flows to satisfy the constraint condition in Eq. (3.3). Because the master flow is independent, only the slave flow can be changed for the condition in Eq. (3.3). If the constraint condition in Eq. (3.3) is treated as a super-surface, the slave system should be switched at the super-surface. If the slave and master systems are C^r -continuous and differentiable $(r \ge 1)$ to the super-surface, the slave and master flows will pass through the super-surface instead of staying on the super-surface because of the continuity and differentiation of the slave and master flows. Otherwise, on the super-surface, one obtains $\dot{z} = \varphi^{(1)} = 0$ for all time $t > t_m$ and $\varphi^{(k)} = 0$ for $k = 1, 2, \cdots$. From a theory of discontinuous dynamical systems in Luo [2, 3], at least the slave system possesses discontinuous vector fields to make the slave and master flows stay on the super-surface, which means that the slave and master systems to the constraint can keep the synchronization on the super-surface. Therefore, the constraints can be used as super-surfaces to investigate the synchronization of slave and master systems.

3.1.1 Generalized Synchronization

As discussed in the previous section, if the number of constraints for slave and master systems is over the dimension of the slave state space (i.e., $l > n_s$), the slave system is overconstrained under the constraint conditions by the master system. In other words, if all the constraint conditions are satisfied, the master system should be partially constrained also for $n_s < l \le n_r + n_s$. Otherwise, the constraint conditions cannot be satisfied for the synchronization of the slave and master systems. The overconstrained synchronization for slave and master systems can be defined from Definition 3.3, i.e.,

Definition 3.5 If $l > n_s$, an $(n_r : n_s; l)$ -synchronization of the slave and master systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) in sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ is said to be an $(n_r : n_s; l)$ -overconstrained synchronization.

To make an overconstrained slave system be synchronized with a master system, the flow of the master system should be controlled by the constraints. Generally speaking, the slave system can be partially controlled by some constraints in Eq. (3.4), and the master system can be partially controlled by the rest constraints in Eq. (3.4) as well. For some time intervals, the slave system can be controlled by the master system under the constraints. With time varying, for some time intervals, the master system can also be controlled by the slave system. For this case, it is very difficult to know which one of two systems is a slave or master system. In fact, it is not necessary to distinguish slave and master systems, Definition 3.2 can be generalized as follows.

Definition 3.6 If a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t)$ of a system in Eq. (3.1) with a flow $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ of a system in Eq. (3.2) is constrained by a single constraint in Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, then the two systems are said to be *synchronized* in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$. Five special cases are given as follows.

- (i) If $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the two systems are said to be *absolutely* synchronized in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (ii) If $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the two systems are said to be *asymptotically* synchronized in the sense of Eq. (3.3).
- (iii) For $n_s = n_r = n$, the two *equidimensional* systems are said to be synchronized in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$.
- (iv) For $n_s = n_r = n$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the two *equidimensional* systems are said to be *absolutely* synchronized in the sense of Eq. (3.3) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (v) For $n_s = n_r = n$ and $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the two *equidimensional* systems are said to be *asymptotically* synchronized in the sense of Eq. (3.3).

In an alike fashion, the synchronization of slave and master systems in Definition 3.3 should be generalized for the synchronization of slave and master systems with or without overconstraints.

Definition 3.7 An n_r -dimensional system in Eq. (3.1) with an n_s -dimensional system in Eq. (3.2) is said to be synchronized with *l*-constraints (or an *l*-constraint *synchronization*) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if there are *l*-linearly independent functions $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ ($j \in \mathcal{L}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1, 2, \dots, l\}$ with $l < n_r + n_s$) to make two flows $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t)$ of the two systems satisfy the constraints in Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$. Five special cases are given as follows:

- (i) If t_{m2} → ∞, the two systems are said to be *absolutely* synchronized with *l*-constraints (or an absolute, *l*-constraint synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time t ∈ [t_{m1}, ∞).
- (ii) If $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the two systems are said to be *asymptotically* synchronized with *l*-constraints (*or* an *asymptotic l*-constraint synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4).
- (iii) If $n_s = n_r = n$, the two equidimensional systems are said to be synchronized with *l*-constraints in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$.
- (iv) If $n_s = n_r = n$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the two equidimensional systems are said to be *absolutely* synchronized with *l*-constraints in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (v) If $n_s = n_r = n$ and $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the two equidimensional systems are said to be *asymptotically* synchronized with *l*-constraints in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.

From the above definition, the number of constraints in Eq. (3.4) can be greater than the dimension number of state space for any one of the two systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) (i.e., $l > n_s$ or $l > n_r$). For such case, one cannot control only one of the two systems to make them be synchronized through the constraints. In other words, one must control both of two systems to make the corresponding synchronization occur. Of course, if $l \le n_s$ or $l \le n_r$, one can control only one of two systems to make them be synchronized through the constraints in Eq. (3.4). If the constraint functions $\varphi_i(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_i)$ (for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$) is time independent for $l = n_r + n_s$, Eq. (3.4) will give a set of fixed values of $\mathbf{x}^{(r)*}$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(s)*}$, which are independent of time. The constraints yield the values-fixed, static points in the resultant sate space. To make the two systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) be synchronized at the static points in phase space, such a synchronization can be called a static synchronization of two systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2). For $l > n_s + n_r$, the time-independent constraints in Eq. (3.4) will give the statically overconstrained synchronization, which may not be meaningful for practical problems. Such a case will not be discussed any more. If the constraint functions of $\varphi_i(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_i)$ (for all $i \in \mathscr{L}$) are time dependent for $l = n_r + n_s$, Eq. (3.4) will give a flow of $\mathbf{x}^{(r)*}$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(s)*}$ relative to time. To eliminate time, the constraints in Eq. (3.4) give a one-dimensional flow in the resultant phase space. If the time-dependent constraint functions of $\varphi_i(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_i)$ (for all $j \in \mathcal{L}$) are *of l*-dimensions with $l = n_s + n_r + 1$, Eq. (3.4) will give a set of fixed values of $\mathbf{x}^{(r)*}$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(s)*}$ at a specific time t^* in the resultant phase space, which is an instantaneous fixed point only at time t^* . For this case, it is very difficult for the two systems to be synchronized for such an instantaneous point. Such a case may not be too meaningful, which will not be discussed. Therefore, the following two definitions are given to describe the above-discussed cases.

Definition 3.8 An n_r -dimensional system in Eq. (3.1) with an n_s -dimensional system in Eq. (3.2) is said to be statically synchronized with *l*-constraints (or *a static synchronization*) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if there are *l*-linearly independent and *time-independent* functions $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j)$ $(j \in \mathcal{L} \text{ and } \mathcal{L} = \{1, 2, \dots, l\}$ with $l = n_r + n_s$) to make two flows $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t)$ of the two systems satisfy the constraints in Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$. Two special cases are:

- (i) If $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the two systems are said to be *absolutely* and *statically* synchronized with *l*-constraints (or an *absolute* and *static* synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, \infty)$.
- (ii) If $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the two systems are said to be *asymptotically* and *statically* synchronized with *l*-constraints (*or* an *asymptotic and static* synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4).

Definition 3.9 An n_r -dimensional system in Eq. (3.1) with an n_s -dimensional system in Eq. (3.2) is said to be synchronized with a one-dimensional constraint flow (or a *ID constraint-flow synchronization*) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if there are *l* linearly independent and *time-dependent* function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t), t, \lambda_j)$ ($j \in \mathcal{L}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1, 2, \dots, l\}$ with $l = n_r + n_s$) to make two flows $\mathbf{x}^{(r)}(t)$ and $\mathbf{x}^{(s)}(t)$ of the two systems satisfy constraints in Eq. (3.4) for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$. Two special cases are given as follows:

- (i) If t_{m2} → ∞, the two systems are said to be *absolutely* synchronized with a one-dimensional constraint flow (or an *absolute*, 1D constraint-flow synchronization) in the sense of Eq. (3.4) for time t ∈ [t_{m1}, ∞).
- (ii) If $t_{m_1} \to \infty$, the two systems are said to be *asymptotically* synchronized with a one-dimensional constraint flow (an *asymptotic*, *1D constraint-flow synchronization*) in the sense of Eq. (3.4).

3.1.2 Resultant Dynamical Systems

From the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems in Luo [2, 3], the synchronization of two or more dynamical systems with specific constraints can be discussed through a resultant dynamical system. The constraint conditions can be considered as a set of hypersurfaces. If the resultant system to the constraints is discontinuous, the resultant discontinuous dynamical system can be adjusted on both sides of each super-surface for such synchronization. For doing so, a set of new state variables for the resultant discontinuous system will be introduced, and the subdomains and boundaries relative to the constraints will be presented. For synchronization of slave and master systems on the constraint surfaces, only the slave system can be adjusted, and the master system cannot be adjusted. In other words, the slave system can be controlled in order to make it be synchronized with the master system through the constraints. That is, the slave system can be expressed by discontinuous vector fields to all the constraint surfaces for such synchronization, but the master system should keep a continuous vector field to such constraint surfaces. However, for a resultant system formed by two systems with constraints, one can adjust two dynamical systems to make them be synchronized on the constraint conditions in general.

A new vector of state variables of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) is introduced as

$$\mathbf{y} = (\mathbf{x}^{(r)}; \mathbf{x}^{(s)})^{\mathrm{T}} = (x_1^{(r)}, x_2^{(r)}, \cdots, x_{n_r}^{(r)}; x_1^{(s)}, x_2^{(s)}, \cdots, x_{n_s}^{(s)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s}$$
(3.16)

The notation $(\bullet; \bullet) \equiv (\bullet, \bullet)$ is just for a combined vector of state vectors of two dynamical systems. From the constraint condition in Eq. (3.3), a constraint boundary for the discontinuous description of the synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) can be defined, and the corresponding domains separated by such a constraint boundary can be obtained.

Definition 3.10 A constraint boundary in an $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional phase space for the synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint condition in Eq. (3.3) is defined as

$$\partial \Omega_{12} = \bar{\Omega}_1 \cap \bar{\Omega}_2$$

= $\left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \equiv \varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r;0)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s;0)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ \varphi \text{ is } C^{r_1} \text{-continuous } (r_1 \ge 1) \end{array} \right\} \subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s - 1};$
(3.17)

and two corresponding domains for a resultant system of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) are defined as

$$\Omega_{1} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(1)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \equiv \varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r;1)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s;1)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0, \\ \varphi \text{ is } C^{r_{1}} \text{-continuous } (r_{1} \geq 1) \end{array} \right\} \subset \mathscr{R}^{n_{r}+n_{s}} \\
\Omega_{2} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(2)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \equiv \varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r;2)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s;2)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0, \\ \varphi \text{ is } C^{r_{1}} \text{-continuous } (r_{1} \geq 1) \end{array} \right\} \subset \mathscr{R}^{n_{r}+n_{s}};$$
(3.18)

On the two domains, the resultant system of two dynamical systems is discontinuous to the constraint boundary, defined by

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \text{ in } \boldsymbol{\Omega}_{\alpha} \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$
(3.19)

where $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)} = (\mathbf{F}^{(r;\alpha)}, \mathbf{F}^{(s;\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}}$ and $\boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)} = (\mathbf{p}^{(r;\alpha)}, \mathbf{p}^{(s;\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}}$. Suppose there is a vector field $\mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ on the constraint boundary with $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda) = 0$, and the corresponding dynamical system on such a boundary is expressed by



Fig. 3.1 Constraint boundary and domains in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(0)} = \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda) \text{ on } \partial\Omega_{12}.$$
 (3.20)

The domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$) are separated by the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$, as shown in Fig. 3.1. For a point $(\mathbf{x}^{(r,1)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,1)}) \in \Omega_1$ at time t, $\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r,1)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,1)}, t, \lambda) > 0$. For a point $(\mathbf{x}^{(r,2)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,2)}) \in \Omega_2$ at time t, $\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r,2)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,2)}, t, \lambda) < 0$. However, on the boundary $(\mathbf{x}^{(r,0)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,0)}) \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t, the constraint condition for synchronization should be satisfied (i.e., $\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r,0)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,0)}, t, \lambda) = 0$). If the constraint condition is time independent, the constraint boundary determined by the constraint condition is invariant. The above definition is extended.

Definition 3.11 The *j*th-constraint boundary in an $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional phase space for the synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2), relative to the *j*th-constraint of the constraint conditions in Eq. (3.4), is defined as

$$\partial \Omega_{(12,j)} = \Omega_{(1,j)} \cap \Omega_{(2,j)}$$

$$= \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(0;j)} \middle| \begin{array}{c} \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(0;j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) \equiv \varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r,0;j)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s,0;j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0, \\ \varphi_j \text{ is } C^{r_j} \text{-continuous } (r_j \ge 1) \end{array} \right\} \quad (3.21)$$

$$\subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s - 1};$$

and two domains pertaining to the *j*th-boundary for a resultant system of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) are defined as

$$\Omega_{(1;j)} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(1;j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \equiv \varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r,1;j)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s,1;j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) > 0, \\ \varphi_j \text{ is } C^{r_j}\text{-continuous } (r_j \ge 1) \end{array} \right\} \\
\subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s} \\
\Omega_{(2;j)} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(2;j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \equiv \varphi_j(\mathbf{x}^{(r,2;j)}(t), \mathbf{x}^{(s,2;j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) < 0, \\ \varphi_j \text{ is } C^{r_j}\text{-continuous } (r_j \ge 1) \end{array} \right\} \\
\subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s};$$
(3.22)



Fig. 3.2 An intersection of two boundaries with $\varphi_i = 0$ and $\varphi_k = 0$ for $j, k \in \mathcal{L}$ and $j \neq k$

On the two domains relative to the *j*th-constraint boundary, a discontinuous resultant system of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th-constraint in Eq. (3.4) is defined by

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}_j^{(\alpha_j)}) \text{ in } \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)} \quad \text{for } \alpha_j = 1,2$$
(3.23)

where $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = (\mathbf{F}^{(r,\alpha_j,j)}; \mathbf{F}^{(s,\alpha_j,j)})^{\mathrm{T}}$ and $\boldsymbol{\pi}_j^{(\alpha_j)} = (\mathbf{p}_j^{(r,\alpha_j)}, \mathbf{p}_j^{(s,\alpha_j)})^{\mathrm{T}}$. Suppose there is a vector field of $\mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ on the *j*th-constraint boundary with $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0$, and the corresponding dynamical system on the *j*th-boundary is

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(0,j)} = \mathbb{F}^{(0;j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) \text{ in } \Omega_{(12,j)} \text{ for } \alpha_j = 1, 2$$
 (3.24)

Since *l*-constraint conditions are linearly independent, any two boundaries are intersected each other. Consider two constraint boundaries of $\partial \Omega_{12(j)}$ and $\partial \Omega_{12(k)}$ for synchronization. From Luo [4], the intersection edge of the two constraint boundaries is given by

$$\partial\Omega_{(12,ik)} = \partial\Omega_{(12,i)} \cap \partial\Omega_{(12,k)} \subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s - 2}$$
(3.25)

and the corresponding domain in phase space is separated into four subdomains

$$\Omega_{(\alpha_j \alpha_k, jk)} = \Omega_{(\alpha_j, j)} \cap \Omega_{(\alpha_k, k)} \subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s} \quad \text{for } j, k \in \mathscr{L} \text{ and } \alpha_j, \alpha_k = 1, 2.$$
(3.26)

Such a partition of the domain in state space for a resultant system of two dynamical systems is sketched in Fig. 3.2. The intersection of the two constraint boundaries in state space for a resultant system of two dynamical systems is depicted by an $(n_r + n_s - 2)$ -manifold, depicted by a dark curve. For the *l*-linearly independent constraints, the state space partition can be completed via such *l*-linearly

independent constraint boundaries. Based on the *l*-constraint conditions, the corresponding intersection of boundaries is

$$\partial \Omega_{(12,\mathbf{J})} = \bigcap_{j=1}^{l} \partial \Omega_{(12,j)} \subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s - l}.$$
(3.27)

which gives an $(n_r + n_s - l)$ -dimensional edge manifold. Consider the synchronization of the slave and master systems for discussion. If n = l, the intersection manifold of the constraints is an n_s -dimensional state space. Thus, the slave system can be completely controlled through the n_s -constraints to be synchronized with the master system. From the *l*-constraint conditions in Eq. (3.4), the domain in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space is partitioned into many subdomains for the resultant system of two dynamical systems, i.e.,

$$\Omega_{\alpha} = \Omega_{(\alpha_1 \alpha_2 \cdots \alpha_l)} = \bigcap_{j=1}^l \Omega_{(\alpha_j, j)} \subset \mathscr{R}^{n_r + n_s} \text{ for } \alpha_j = 1, 2 \text{ and } j \in \mathscr{L}.$$
(3.28)

The total domain $\mathfrak{T} = \bigcup_{j=1}^{l} \bigcup_{\alpha_j=1}^{2} (\bigcap_{j=1}^{l} \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}) \subset \mathbb{R}^{n_r+n_s}$ is a union of all the subdomains. From the foregoing description of a resultant dynamical system, the synchronization of two systems under constraints can be investigated through such a resultant dynamical system with the constraint boundaries as in Luo [2, 3]. The constraint boundaries can be either of one side or of two sides. If the resultant system for the synchronization of two systems can be defined in one of the two subdomains only, such a constraint boundary is called one-side boundary. Otherwise, the constraint boundary is called two-side constraint boundaries as $t \to \infty$, for such a case, the synchronization of two systems to the constraint boundaries is asymptotic.

3.2 Synchronization with a Single Constraint

In this section, the synchronicity of two systems to a single constraint will be presented, and the corresponding conditions for such synchronicity will be discussed.

3.2.1 Synchronicity

Before discussing the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to the constraint boundary, the neighborhood of the constraint boundary should be introduced through a typical point on such a constraint boundary for time t_m . For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, the neighborhood of a constraint boundary is defined as follows.



Fig. 3.3 A neighborhood of the constraint boundary and the attractivity of a resultant flow to the constraint boundary in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space

Definition 3.12 For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The ε -neighborhood of the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ is defined as

$$\Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \middle| ||\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}(t) - \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}|| \leq \delta, \delta > 0, t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m}) \right\},$$

$$\Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \middle| ||\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}(t) - \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}|| \leq \delta, \delta > 0, t \in (t_{m}, t_{m+\varepsilon}] \right\}.$$
(3.29)

For a point $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = (\mathbf{x}_m^{(r,0)}, \mathbf{x}_m^{(s,0)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , a surface of the constraint boundary $\partial\Omega_{12}$ at the instantaneous time t_m is governed by $\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r,0)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,0)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{x}_m^{(r,0)}, \mathbf{x}_m^{(s,0)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$. If the constraint function φ is time independent, such a constraint surface for the synchronization of two dynamical systems is invariant with respect to time. Otherwise, this constraint surface changes with the instantaneous time t_m . In addition to the constraint surface, two boundaries of domain $\Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$) are determined by $\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r,\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(r,\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(s,\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ = const, as shown in Fig. 3.3. In the ε -neighborhood of a constraint boundary, if the resultant system of two dynamical systems is attractive to such a constraint boundary, any flows in the two ε -domains will approach the constraint boundary. Further, the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to the constraint boundary can be discussed. In other words, the attractivity of the resultant system to the constraint boundary requires that any flow in the two ε -domains of Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$) approach the constraint boundary $\partial\Omega_{12}$ as $t \to t_m$. From Luo [2, 3], the synchronization of two dynamical systems to the constraint needs that any flows of the resultant system in the two ε -domains of Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$) are attractive to the boundary.

Definition 3.13 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with a constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$. The two systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) are called to be *synchronized* for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if



Fig. 3.4 The repulsion of a resultant flow to the constraint boundary in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0;$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha = 1, 2.$$

$$(3.30)$$

In addition to the attractivity of a flow of the resultant system to the constraint boundary, the repulsion of a flow of the resultant system to the constraint boundary can be defined. Because of such a repulsion, any flows of the resultant system in the two ε -domains of Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$) can never approach the constraint boundary. In other words, two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) cannot make the constraint condition in Eq. (3.3) be satisfied. Thus, the repulsion of a flow of the resultant system to the constraint boundary should be introduced. Such a repulsion phenomenon is sketched in Fig. 3.4. The constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ is governed by $\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r,0)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,0)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$. The boundaries of the ε -neighborhood of the constraint boundary are obtained by $\varphi(\mathbf{x}^{(r,\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}^{(s,\alpha)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(r,\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(s,\alpha)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \text{const.}$ Two flows of the resultant system on both sides of the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ move away in two domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$), which means that no any flows of the resultant system can arrive to the constraint boundary. So the synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) cannot be achieved. Such a repulsion of a resultant system to the constraint boundary gives the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to the constraint in Eq. (3.3). The desynchronization of two systems to a constraint is defined.

Definition 3.14 Consider two systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) are said to be repelled (or desynchronized) for $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0;$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha = 1, 2.$$

$$(3.31)$$



Fig. 3.5 A penetration of a resultant flow to the constraint boundary in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space

From the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems in Luo [2, 3], a resultant system of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) may pass through the constraint boundary from a domain to another. For this case, the penetration synchronicity of two dynamical systems can occur, as sketched in Fig. 3.5. Such synchronization can be called *an instantaneous synchronization*. A flow of a resultant system to the constraint boundary for time $t < t_m$ and $t > t_m$ lies in the two domains Ω_1 and Ω_2 . In sense of Eq. (3.3), a definition of such penetration synchronicity is given as follows.

Definition 3.15 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. A resultant flow of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) is said to be *penetrated* to the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ from Ω_{α} to Ω_{β} at time t_m if for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1,2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$

$$\left.\begin{array}{l} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \left[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})\right] < 0; \\ (-1)^{\beta} \left[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})\right] < 0. \end{array}\right\}$$

$$(3.32)$$

In Definition 3.15, the incoming flow with "–" and outcome flow with "+" to the boundary are prescribed. From the foregoing definition, a penetration flow of the resultant system of two dynamical systems to the constraint boundary can be considered to be formed by the semi-synchronization and semi-desynchronization. Such a penetration flow of the resultant system to the constraint boundary can also be called *an instantaneous synchronization* of two dynamical systems in Eqs (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3). Such an instantaneous synchronization will disappear because the semi-desynchronization exists. From the definition of a penetration flow, a flow of the resultant system in domain Ω_{α} approaches the constraint boundary. However, in domain Ω_{β} , such a flow will leave from the constraint boundary. To investigate the



Fig. 3.6 Tangential synchronization to the constraint in an $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space

relations among three types of synchronicity of two dynamical systems to the constraint in Eq. (3.3), the switchability of the synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration is very important, which can be discussed through the singularity of the resultant system to the constraint boundary.

3.2.2 Singularity to Constraint

From a theory of discontinuous dynamical systems in Luo [2–4], a flow of a resultant system of two dynamical systems may be tangential to the constraint boundary governed by the constraint condition in Eq. (3.3). For this case, the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to the constraint occurs only at one point and then returns back to the same domain. Such an *instantaneous* synchronization is different from a penetration flow of the resultant system to the constraint boundary. The tangential synchronization of two dynamical systems to the constraint is sketched in Fig. 3.6. In domain Ω_1 , the tangential synchronization of the two systems to the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ is presented. The two boundaries at time $t_{m-\varepsilon}$ and $t_{m+\varepsilon}$ are given by the two different surfaces. For such synchronicity, the following definition is given.

Definition 3.16 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \geq 2$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. A flow of a resultant system of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) is said to be *tangential* (or grazing) to the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.33)

In Definition 3.16, the incoming flow with "-" and outcome flow with "+" to the boundary are prescribed. Such a tangency of a resultant flow to the constraint boundary will cause the synchronicity to be changed. The onset and vanishing singularity for synchronizations can be discussed, and the corresponding definition is given as follows.

Definition 3.17 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$

(i) The *synchronization* of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *vanishing* to form a penetration from domain Ω_α to Ω_β at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for α, β ∈ {1,2} and α ≠ β

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &\neq 0, \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0; \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.34)

(ii) The synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *onset* from a penetration from domain Ω_{α} to Ω_{β} at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &\neq 0, \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0; \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \end{split}$$
(3.35)

In Eq. (3.34), the notation " \mp " represents the synchronization first with "-" and the penetration secondly with "+". This condition is called either the *vanishing* condition of synchronization to form a new penetration or the *onset* condition of *penetration* from the synchronization at the boundary of constraint in Eq. (3.3). However, in Eq. (3.35), the notation " \pm " represents the penetration first with "+"

and the synchronization secondly with "-." This condition is called the *onset* condition of *synchronization* from a state of penetration to the boundary, which can also be called the *vanishing* condition of *penetration* to form a synchronization at the constraint boundary at time t_m . The switching conditions between the synchronization and desynchronization are presented as follows.

Definition 3.18 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha} (\alpha \in \{1,2\})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$.

(i) The synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *onset* from a desynchronization at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha = 1, 2$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.36)

(ii) The synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *vanishing* to form a desynchronization at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha = 1, 2$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.37)

In Eq. (3.36), the notation " \pm " represents the desynchronization first with "+" and the synchronization with "-" second. This condition is called either *the onset condition of synchronization* from the desynchronization on the boundary or *the vanishing condition of desynchronization* to form a new synchronization on the boundary. In Eq. (3.37), the notation " \mp " represents the synchronization first with "-" and the desynchronization second with "+". This condition is called *the vanishing condition of synchronization* to form a new desynchronization, which can also be called *the onset condition of desynchronization* from the synchronization. Similarly, the onset and vanishing conditions of the desynchronization from the penetration can be discussed as for the synchronization. The following definition will give the onset and vanishing conditions of desynchronization.

Definition 3.19 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m ,

 $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$.

(i) The desynchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *vanishing* to form a penetration from Ω_{α} to Ω_{β} at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0, \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.38)

(ii) The desynchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *onset* from a penetration from Ω_{α} to Ω_{β} at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0, \ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0; \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] > 0. \end{split}$$
(3.39)

Notice that in Eq. (3.38), the notation " \pm " represents the desynchronization first with "+" and the penetration second with "-". This condition is called the *vanishing* condition of *desynchronization* to form a new penetration on the boundary and can also be called the *onset* condition of penetration from a synchronization state. However, in Eq. (3.39), the notation " \mp " represents the penetration first with "-" and the synchronization second with "+". This condition is called *the onset* condition of desynchronization from a penetration is called *the onset* condition of desynchronization from a penetration and also can be called *the vanishing condition of the penetration* to form a desynchronization state. From the previous three definitions, the switching between synchronization and penetration, between desynchronization and penetration, and between desynchronization and synchronization were presented. However, another switching between two penetrations should be discussed.

Definition 3.20 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}(\alpha \in \{1,2\})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})| < \infty$. The penetration of the two dynamical systems in

Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *switched* at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.40)

Based on the definitions of the tangential (or grazing) and switching singularity, there is a critical parameter λ_{cr} from which $\partial \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \lambda) / \partial \lambda|_{\lambda_{cr}} \neq 0$, such a singularity is called the corresponding bifurcation at λ_{cr} for parameter λ .

3.3 Synchronicity with Singularity

As similar to discontinuous dynamical systems in Luo [2–4], the above synchronicity of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) can be extended to the case of higher order singularity. The corresponding definitions can be presented. The definition for the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) at the corresponding constraint boundary for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ is presented first.

Definition 3.21 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be synchronized with the $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -type to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $\alpha = 1, 2$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.41)

As in the definition for the $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -synchronization, the definition for the $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -desynchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) on the corresponding constraint boundary for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ is also presented.

Definition 3.22 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ for time

 $t \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\epsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})| < \infty$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is said to be desynchronized (or repelled) with the $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -type to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) for $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $\alpha = 1, 2$

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0,
\varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha},
(-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0.$$
(3.42)

As discussed before, the penetration on the boundary of constraint is composed of the semi-synchronization and semi-desynchronization. From the foregoing two definitions, the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) at time t_m is described.

Definition 3.23 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha}$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. A flow of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is said to be *penetrated with the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -type from domain Ω_{α} to domain Ω_{β} at the constraint boundary at time t_m if

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}; \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta}; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0 \text{ for } \alpha \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and} \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0 \text{ for } \alpha \neq \beta \in \{1, 2\}. \end{split}$$

$$(3.43)$$

From the three definitions, the higher singularity is used for description of the synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration at the constraint boundary, and the switching among the three synchronous states can be discussed through the higher order singularity as well.

3.4 Higher Order Singularity

From the previous descriptions of the synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration with the higher order singularity for two dynamical systems to the constraint, the higher order singularity of the two dynamical systems to the constraint boundary is discussed as follows. **Definition 3.24** Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha})$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. A resultant flow of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is said to be tangential to the constraint boundary with the $(2k_{\alpha} - 1)$ th-order at time t_m if for $\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \ s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} - 1; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.44)

The foregoing definition gives the definition of the $(2k_{\alpha} - 1)$ th tangential condition to the constraint boundary. Based on the similar ideas, the switchability of the synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration of two dynamical systems to the constraint boundary can be described.

Definition 3.25 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$.

(i) The (2k_α: 2k_β)-synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is said to be *vanishing* to form a (2k_α: 2k_β)-penetration from domain Ω_α to domain Ω_β at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for α, β ∈ {1,2} and α ≠ β

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-e}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-e}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+e}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+e}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+e}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.45)

(ii) The (2k_α : 2k_β)-synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is said to be *onset* from the (2k_α : 2k_β)-penetration from Ω_α to Ω_β at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for α, β ∈ {1,2} and α ≠ β

$$\begin{aligned} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0; \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{aligned}$$
(3.46)

From this definition, the condition in Eq. (3.45) for *the onset of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization from the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration on the constraint boundary can also be called *the vanishing condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration to form a new $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization on the constraint boundary. In Eq. (3.46), the *vanishing condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration contains boundary. In Eq. (3.46), the *vanishing condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration can also be called *the onset condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration from the synchronization. The onset and vanishing conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization from the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration can be discussed. The following definition will give the onset and vanishing conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization.

Definition 3.26 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$.

(i) The (2k_α : 2k_β)-synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *vanishing* to form a (2k_α : 2k_β)-desynchronization at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for α, β ∈ {1,2} and α ≠ β

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.47)

(ii) The $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is said to be *onset* from the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.48)

3.4 Higher Order Singularity

The conditions in Eqs. (3.47) and (3.48) are inversely switched. The condition in Eq. (3.47) for *the onset condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ *-synchronization* from the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization on the constraint boundary can be called *the vanishing condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization to form a new $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization on such a constraint boundary. However, the condition in Eq. (3.48) for *the vanishing condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization to form a new $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ penetration can be called *the onset condition of the* $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization from the synchronization. The switching of desynchronization and penetration on the boundary will be discussed as follows.

Definition 3.27 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$.

(i) The (2k_α: 2k_β)-desynchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *vanishing* to form a (2k_α: 2k_β)-penetration from domain Ω_α to domain Ω_β at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for α, β ∈ {1,2} and α ≠ β

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.49)

(ii) The (2k_α : 2k_β)-desynchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is said to be *onset* from the (2k_α : 2k_β) -penetration from domain Ω_α to domain Ω_β at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for α, β ∈ {1,2} and α ≠ β

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.50)

In Eq. (3.49), the onset condition of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization from the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration on the constraint boundary can be called *the vanishing* condition of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration to form a new $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization

on the constraint boundary. However, in Eq. (3.50), the vanishing condition of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization to form a new $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration can be called the onset condition of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration from the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization.

Definition 3.28 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha} (\alpha \in \{1,2\})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\pm}^{\alpha}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. The $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3) is called to be *switched* to a new $(2k_{\beta} : 2k_{\alpha})$ -penetration at the constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}((\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1, \\ (-1)^{\alpha}[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta}[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0. \end{split}$$
(3.51)

In the foregoing definition, the condition for the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration switching to the $(2k_{\beta} : 2k_{\alpha})$ -penetration at the boundary is presented.

3.5 Synchronization to Constraint

In the previous section, the definitions for the synchronicity and the corresponding singularity of two dynamical systems to the constraint were discussed. What conditions can guarantee such synchronicity of the two dynamical systems to the constraint exists? In this section, necessary and sufficient conditions for the synchronization of two dynamical systems to the specific constraint will be presented. The synchronicity switching is discussed through the singularity of a flow of the resultant system to the constraint boundary.

Theorem 3.1 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 3)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ ($s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$) for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) are synchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if (i) for $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, \, \boldsymbol{\varphi}^{(r_\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$

for $\alpha = 1, 2$ and $r_\alpha = 0, 1, 2, \cdots;$ (3.52)

(ii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0,$$
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2;$$
(3.53)

(iii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,$$
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2;$$
(3.54)

(iv) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0,$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2; \qquad (3.55)$$

Proof (i) Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with a constraint condition in Eq. (3.3). From Definition 3.10, one has for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$,

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0.$$

Because $D^{s_{\alpha}}\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = D^{s_{\alpha}}\mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ ($s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$) on the constraint boundary $\partial\Omega_{12}$, one obtains $d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}} = d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(0)}(t)/dt^{r_{\alpha}}$ ($r_{\alpha} = 1, 2, 3, \cdots$). The foregoing equation gives

$$\varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}(t),t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}(t),t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0.$$

(ii) and (iii) For $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$,

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(1)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ and } \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(2)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0.$$

Introduce $0 < \varepsilon_1 = |t_{m\pm\varepsilon} - t_{\kappa}^{\pm}| < |t_{m\pm\varepsilon} - t_m| = \varepsilon$ for $t_m > t_{\kappa}^-$ and $t_m < t_{\kappa}^+$. Because of

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})(\pm\varepsilon_{1}) + o(\varepsilon_{1})$$

and once higher order terms drop, the foregoing equation leads to

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})(\pm\varepsilon_{1})$$

From Definition 2.13 for $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ with t_{κ}^- , we have

$$\begin{split} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m^{-}}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0, \\ &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0. \end{split}$$

However, using Eq. (3.53), the condition in Definition 3.13 is obtained. From Definition 3.14 for $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ with t_{κ}^+ , we have

$$\begin{split} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m+}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0, \\ &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0. \end{split}$$

However, using Eq. (3.54), the condition in Definition 3.14 is obtained. (iv) For $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$,

$$\begin{split} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \left[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \right] \\ &= \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})(\pm\varepsilon_{1}) \\ &+ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \frac{1}{2!} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})(\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{2} + o(\varepsilon_{1}^{2}) \end{split}$$

Ignoring the third-order term and the higher order terms of ε_1 , we have

$$egin{aligned} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} o t_{m\pm}} \left[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pmarepsilon_1}^{(lpha)},t_{m\pmarepsilon_1},t_{m\pmarepsilon_1},oldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(lpha)},t_{\kappa}^{\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda})
ight] \ &= \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} o t_{m\pm}} arphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(lpha)},t_{\kappa}^{\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda})(\pmarepsilon_1) \ &+ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} o t_{m\pm}} rac{1}{2!}arphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(lpha)},t_{\kappa}^{\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda})(\pmarepsilon_1)^2 \end{aligned}$$

Using $\lim_{\kappa_i \to m_i \pm} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$, the foregoing equation gives

$$egin{aligned} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} o t_{m\pm}} \left[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pmarepsilon_{1}}^{(lpha)},t_{m\pmarepsilon_{1}},oldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(lpha)},t_{\kappa}^{\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda})
ight] \ &= \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} o t_{m\pm}} rac{1}{2!} arphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(lpha)},t_{\kappa}^{\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda})(\pmarepsilon_{1})^{2} \end{aligned}$$

If
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0$$
, we have
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0$$

From Definition 3.18, the point $(\mathbf{x}_{m,\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m,\pm})$ (i = 1, 2) is tangential point to the constraint. The synchronization at such a point appears or disappears. However, from the conditions in Definition 3.18, Eq. (3.55) can be obtained. This theorem is proved.

For the point $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_1})$, the synchronization will be onset. However, for the point $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_2})$, the synchronization will vanish. For $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, the synchronization at point $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(\alpha)}, t_m)$ on the constraint boundary can be formed. For $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, the desynchronization at point $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)}, t_m)$ on the constraint boundary can be formed. If $t_{m_1} \to -\infty$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, the synchronization is absolute. The synchronization of two dynamical systems to the constraint boundary, such synchronization on the constraint boundary will not disappear. If the higher order singularity on the boundary exists, the corresponding theorem is presented in a similar fashion.

Theorem 3.2 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ ($s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$) for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) are synchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \, \varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$

for $\alpha = 1, 2$ and $r_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots;$ (3.56)

(ii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \rightarrow t_{m^{-}}} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \rightarrow t_{m^{-}}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \rightarrow t_{m}} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2; \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(3.57)$$

(iii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m+}} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m+}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2; \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(3.58)$$

(iv) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1,$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2.$$

$$(3.59)$$

Proof (i) Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with a constraint condition in Eq. (3.3). From Definition 3.10, one has for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$,

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0.$$

Because $D^{s_{\alpha}}\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = D^{s_{\alpha}}\mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})(s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots)$ on the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$, one obtains $d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}} = d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(0)}(t)/dt^{r_{\alpha}}$ $(r_{\alpha} = 1, 2, 3, \cdots)$. The foregoing equation gives

$$\varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}(t),t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}(t),t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0.$$

(ii) and (iii) For $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ at $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$,

$$(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0.$$

Introduce $0 < \varepsilon_1 = |t_{m\pm\varepsilon} - t_{\kappa}^{\pm}| < |t_{m\pm\varepsilon} - t_m| = \varepsilon$ for $t_m > t_{\kappa}^-$ and $t_m < t_{\kappa}^+$. Because of

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &- \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &= \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{s_{\alpha}} \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+1)!} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{\alpha}+1} + o((\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{\alpha}+1}), \end{split}$$

and once the $(2k_{\alpha} + 2)$ and higher order terms drop, one obtains

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &- \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &= \sum_{s_{x}=1}^{2k_{x}} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \varphi^{(s_{x})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{s_{x}} \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+1)!} \varphi^{(2k_{x}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{x}+1}, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \left[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \right] \\ &= \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{x}} \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{s_{\alpha}} \\ &+ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+1)!} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{\alpha}+1}. \end{split}$$

Definition 2.21 for $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ with t_{κ}^- gives

$$egin{aligned} &\lim_{t_\kappa^- o t_{m^-}} (-1)^lpha arphi^{(2k_lpha+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(lpha)}_\kappa,t_\kappa^-,oldsymbol\lambda)>0, \ &\lim_{t_\kappa^- o t_m} arphi^{(2k_lpha+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(lpha)}_\kappa,t_\kappa^-,oldsymbol\lambda)=arphi^{(2k_lpha+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(lpha)}_m,t_m,oldsymbol\lambda)=0. \end{aligned}$$

However, using Eq. (3.57), the condition in Definition 3.13 is obtained. Definition 3.22 for $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ with t_{κ}^+ leads to

$$\begin{split} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m+}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0, \\ &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0. \end{split}$$

However, using Eq. (3.58), the condition in Definition 3.14 is obtained.

(iv) Similarly, for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$,

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &- \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \\ &= \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}+1} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{s_{\alpha}} \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+2)!} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{\alpha}+2} + o((\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{\alpha}+2}) \end{split}$$

Ignoring the $(2k_{\alpha} + 3)$ term or higher order terms, one obtains

$$\begin{split} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \left[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \right] \\ &= \sum_{s_{x}}^{2k_{x}+1} \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \frac{1}{(s_{\alpha})!} \varphi^{(s_{x})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{s_{x}} \\ &+ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+2)!} \varphi^{(2k_{x}+2)} \varphi^{(2k_{x}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{x}+2} \end{split}$$
Using $\lim_{\kappa_i \to m_i \pm} \varphi^{(s_\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$ $(s_\alpha = 1, 2, \dots 2k_\alpha + 1)$, the foregoing equation

$$\begin{split} &\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \left[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \right] \\ &= \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+2)!} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon_{1})^{2k_{\alpha}+2} \end{split}$$

If $\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0$, one obtains

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \left[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon_{1}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \right] \! < \! 0$$

From Definition 2.24, the point $(\mathbf{x}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm})$ (i = 1, 2) is tangential point to the constraint. The synchronization at such a point appears or disappears. However, from the conditions in Definition 2.24, Eq. (3.59) can be obtained. This theorem is proved.

Consider the foregoing two theorems with $t_{m_1} \to -\infty$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$. For this case, once the two dynamical systems to the constraint are synchronized, such synchronization can keep forever. To explain the two theorems, the synchronization of the flows of two dynamical systems on the boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ is in Fig. 3.7. Any point of a constraint flow on the constraint boundary is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$ for synchronization. In the two domains, the resultant flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The onset point is denoted by $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$. For $t_m > t_{m_1}$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, all the flows of the resultant system of two dynamical systems will be on the constraint boundary. Thus, the synchronization of the two dynamical systems to the constraint is an absolute synchronization. The starting point of a resultant flow for the synchronization can occur at any time $t_m > t_{m_1}$. However, if t_{m_2} is finite, the two dynamical systems to the constraint can be synchronized only in a finite time interval of $t \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$. To the point on the boundary at time $t = t_{m_2}$, such synchronization will disappear. Further, the resultant flow on the constraint boundary for synchronization vanishing will enter into the domain, which cannot be synchronized any more in sense of Eq. (3.3). Such synchronization is very easily realized through the discontinuous vector fields to the two dynamical systems to the constraint boundary. For the synchronization of slave and master systems to the constraint, a slave system is controlled by discontinuous, external vector fields in order to make it synchronize with the master system.

For $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ at $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$), the synchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint requires $D^k \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = D^k \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$. If a resultant system of two different dynamical systems is continuous to the constraint boundary, it is very difficult to make the two different dynamical systems be synchronized with a specific constraint. Most of such synchronization is *asymptotic* as $t \to \infty$. To make the synchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint possible, one often considers control



Fig. 3.7 (a) A cross-section view and (b) a three-dimensional view for an absolute synchronization of two dynamical systems to the constraint in vicinity of the constraint boundary $\partial\Omega_{12}$ in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space. Any point for synchronization on the constraint boundary is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In two domains, the resultant flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary is undary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m-e}^{(a)}, t_{m-e})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The onset point on the constraint boundary is $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(a)}, t_m)$, depicted by a *red circular symbol*

schemes to realize the synchronization via adjusting vector fields. Next, consider the resultant system of two different dynamical systems to be discontinuous to the constraint boundary.

For $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ at $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \ (\alpha \in \{1, 2\})$, the synchronization of two dynamical systems with a specific constraint satisfies

$$\frac{d^k}{dt^k}\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \neq \frac{d^k}{dt^k}\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad \text{for } k = 1, 2, \cdots.$$
(3.60)

To distinguish $\mathbf{y}_{s-}^{(\alpha)}$ from $\mathbf{y}_{s}^{(0)}$ at time $t_s \in [t_m, t_{m+1}]$, a point $\mathbf{y}_{s-}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ in the domain infinitesimally approaches a point $\mathbf{y}_{s}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ on the constraint boundary at time *t*. For $\mathbf{y}_{s-}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ (or $\mathbf{y}_{s-}^{(\alpha)} \notin \partial \Omega_{12}$), the corresponding differentiation of vector fields with respect to state variables can be carried out. For $\mathbf{y}_{s}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ on the constraint boundary, such differentiation cannot be done for $t' \in (t_s - \varepsilon, t_s)$ (any small $\varepsilon > 0$) because the vector fields $(\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}), \alpha \in \{1, 2\})$ to the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ are discontinuous (i.e., $\mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}_{s-1}^{(0)}, t_s, \lambda) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}_{s-1}^{(\alpha)}, t_{s-1}, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)})$ for $\mathbf{y}_{s-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{s}^{(0)}$ at time $t_s = t_{s-}$). Therefore, the time t_s will be replaced by $t_{s-} = t_s - 0$ for a point $\mathbf{y}_{s-}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$. Under the constraint condition in Eq. (3.3), the corresponding theorem is presented for the synchronization of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) as follows.

Theorem 3.3 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \geq 3$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) are synchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$
(3.61)

(ii) for time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$,

$$\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$
(3.62)

(iii) with penetration at time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2)

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i-}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_i-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha$$
(3.63)

or with desynchronization at time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2)

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,
\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0
\text{ for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha.$$
(3.64)

Proof (i) Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with a constraint condition in Eq. (3.3). From Definition 3.10, the constraint functions for the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ and domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$) are given by

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad \text{for } \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \quad \text{for } \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}, \quad \alpha = 1,2. \end{split}$$

For $t = t_{m-}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha} \ (\alpha \in \{1, 2\})$, we have $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$. Further,

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0.$$

Equation (3.61) is obtained, vice versa. Because $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ on the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$, one obtains $d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}} \neq d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(0)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}}$ for all time *t*. Thus, the following equation cannot always hold for all $r_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots$

$$\varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda})\neq\varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0.$$

(ii) For time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$. Consider a point $\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\varepsilon}$ for $t_{m-\varepsilon} = t_m - \varepsilon$ in the neighborhood of $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ and $\varepsilon > 0$. We have

$$arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-arepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m-arepsilon},\lambda) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(lpha)},t_{m-},oldsymbol{\lambda}) = -arphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(lpha)},t_{m-},oldsymbol{\lambda})arepsilon + o(arepsilon).$$

Because of any selection of $\varepsilon > 0$, if

$$(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$

then

$$(-1)^{\alpha}[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda})-\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda})]<0.$$

From Definition 3.15, the two dynamical systems to a specific constraint are synchronized for time interval of $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$. However, if the foregoing equation is satisfied, Eq. (3.62) is achieved.

(iii) At time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$. Consider a point $\mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm \varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$) for $t_{m_i \pm \varepsilon} = t_{m_i} \pm \varepsilon$ in the neighborhood of $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ and $\varepsilon > 0$. The Taylor series expansion gives

$$egin{aligned} &arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_2\pmarepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m_2\pmarepsilon},t_{m_2\pmarepsilon},\mathbf{\lambda}) & -arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},\mathbf{\lambda})arepsilon+rac{1}{2!}arphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},\mathbf{\lambda})arepsilon^2 & +o(arepsilon^2) \end{aligned}$$

If the third and higher order terms are dropped in the foregoing equation in Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$), with the condition

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0$$

the following equation is achieved.

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_{2}\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)},t_{m_{2}\pm\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda})-\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=\frac{1}{2!}\varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda})\varepsilon^{2}.$$

If $\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm}, \lambda) \neq 0$ and only the first-order term in the Taylor series expansion is considered, one gets

$$arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_2\pmarepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m_2\pmarepsilon},oldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda}) = \pm arphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda}) \epsilon$$

For $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$, from Definition 3.19, the disappearance and appearance of synchronization with the penetration require

$$egin{aligned} &(-1)^lpha[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_2\pmarepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m_2\pmarepsilon},\mathbf{\lambda})-arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},\mathbf{\lambda})]\!<\!0,\ &(-1)^eta[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_0-arepsilon}^{(eta)},t_{m_2-arepsilon},\mathbf{\lambda})-arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i-}^{(eta)},t_{m_i-},\mathbf{\lambda})]\!<\!0, \end{aligned}$$

from which Eq. (3.63) is obtained, vice versa.

(iv) For $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$, from Definition 18, the disappearance and onset of synchronization with the desynchronization require

$$\begin{aligned} &(-1)^{\alpha} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_{2}\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{2}\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \\ &(-1)^{\beta} [\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_{2}\pm\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{2}\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \end{aligned}$$

from which Eq. (3.64) is obtained, vice versa. Therefore, this theorem is proved. \Box

From the foregoing theorem, the synchronization of two dynamical systems to a special constraint requires that the first-order derivative of the constraint function be less than zero. The *onset and vanishing* conditions of the synchronization in Eqs. (3.61) and (3.62) are the *vanishing and onset* conditions relative to the penetration and desynchronization, respectively. If the first-order derivative is zero, under what conditions can two dynamical systems to a special constraint be synchronization of two dynamical systems to a special constraint the synchronization of two dynamical systems to a special constraint with higher order singularity.

Theorem 3.4 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha} + 1)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) are synchronized of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -type for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}(t) \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$
(3.65)

(ii) for time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$,

$$\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \text{ and } \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad \text{for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha},$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha = 1, 2.$$

$$(3.66)$$

(iii) with the $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration for time $t = t_{m_i}, \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1),
(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{-}}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,
\varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\beta}),
(-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha.$$
(3.67)

or with the $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization for time $t = t_{m_i}, \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\begin{split} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\beta} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha. \end{split}$$
(3.68)

Proof Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with a constraint condition in Eq. (3.3).

(i) From Definition 3.10, the constraint functions for the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ and domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2$) are given by

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}, \, \alpha = 1, 2. \end{split}$$

For $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha} \ (\alpha \in \{1, 2\})$, we have $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$. Further,

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0,$$

Equation (3.65) is obtained, vice versa. Because $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ on the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$, one obtains $d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}} \neq d^{r_{\alpha}}\mathbf{y}^{(0)}/dt^{r_{\alpha}}$ for all time *t*. Thus, the following equation cannot always hold for all $r_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots$

$$\varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda})\neq\varphi^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0.$$

(ii) For time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$. Consider a point $\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\varepsilon}$ for $t_{m-\varepsilon} = t_m - \varepsilon$ in the neighborhood of $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ and $\varepsilon > 0$. The following Taylor series expansion is achieved.

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &- \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (-\varepsilon)^{s_{\alpha}} \\ &- \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+1)!} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}+1} + o(\varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}+1}). \end{split}$$

Due to the higher order singularity, i.e.,

$$\varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(lpha)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0 \quad ext{for } s_{lpha}=1,2,\cdots,2k_{lpha}$$

and by ignoring of the $(2k_{\alpha} + 2)$ -order and higher order terms, the Taylor series expansion gives

$$arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-arepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m-arepsilon},\lambda) = -rac{1}{(2k_{lpha}+1)!}arphi^{(2k_{lpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(lpha)},t_{m-},\lambda)arepsilon^{2k_{lpha}+1}.$$

From Definition 3.22, the synchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint for time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ requires

$$(-1)^{\alpha}[\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda})-\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda})]<0.$$

Thus,

$$(-1)^{\alpha}\varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda})>0.$$

However, if $(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0$,

$$(-1)^{lpha}[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-arepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m-arepsilon},oldsymbol{\lambda})-arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(lpha)},t_{m-},oldsymbol{\lambda})]\!<\!0.$$

is achieved, which implies the two dynamical systems to the specific constraint are synchronized for time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$.

(iii) At time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$. Consider a point $\mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm \varepsilon}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ for $t_{m_i \pm \varepsilon} = t_{m_i} \pm \varepsilon$ in the neighborhood of $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ and $\varepsilon > 0$. The Taylor series expansion gives

$$\begin{split} \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &- \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \sum_{s_{\alpha}=1}^{2k_{\alpha}+1} \frac{1}{s_{\alpha}!} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) (\pm\varepsilon)^{s_{\alpha}} \\ &+ \frac{1}{(2k_{\alpha}+2)!} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}+2} + o(\varepsilon^{2k_{\alpha}+2}) \end{split}$$

Because of the higher order singularity of the constraint function in domain Ω_{α} , i.e.,

$$\varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0 \quad ext{for } s_{\alpha}=1,2,\cdot\cdot\cdot,2k_{\alpha}$$

and once the higher order terms of ε^{2k_x+1} are dropped, one obtains

$$arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pmarepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pmarepsilon},oldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda}) = \pm rac{1}{(2k_lpha+1)!}arphi^{(2k_lpha+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},oldsymbol{\lambda})arepsilon^{2k_lpha+1},$$

If the following equation exists

$$arphi^{(s_{lpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda})=0 \quad ext{for } s_{lpha}=1,2,\cdots,2k_{lpha}+1$$

and the higher order term of ε^{2k_z+2} will not be considered, the Taylor series expansion gives

$$arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pmarepsilon}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pmarepsilon},\mathbf{\lambda}) = rac{1}{(2k_lpha+2)!}arphi^{(2k_lpha+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(lpha)},t_{m_i\pm},\mathbf{\lambda})arepsilon^{2k_lpha+2}.$$

From Definition 2.25, the onset and vanishing conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization of the two dynamical systems with a corresponding penetration on the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ are

$$egin{aligned} &(-1)^lpha[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i \mp arepsilon}^{(lpha)}, t_{m_i \mp arepsilon}, oldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i \mp arepsilon}^{(lpha)}, t_{m_i \mp arepsilon}, oldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i - arepsilon}^{(eta)}, t_{m_i - arepsilon}, oldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \ &(-1)^eta[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i - arepsilon}^{(eta)}, t_{m_i - arepsilon}, oldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i - arepsilon}^{(eta)}, t_{m_i - arepsilon}, oldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \end{aligned}$$

with

$$\begin{split} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_i\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\alpha} + 1), \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_i-}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_i-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\beta}). \end{split}$$

Thus, one gets

$$(-1)^{\alpha}\varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)},t_{m_{i}\mp\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda})<0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta}\varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta)},t_{m_{i}-},\boldsymbol{\lambda})>0.$$

In other words, Eq. (3.67) is obtained. If Eq. (3.67) holds, the conditions in Definition 3.25 can be obtained for the onset and vanishing condition for synchronization from the penetration.

If the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint vanishes and appears with a $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization, the following conditions are required

$$(-1)^{lpha}[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\mparepsilon}^{(lpha)}, t_{m_i\mparepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\mp}^{(lpha)}, t_{m_i\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0, \ (-1)^{eta}[arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\mparepsilon}^{(eta)}, t_{m_i\mparepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) - arphi(\mathbf{y}_{m_i\mparepsilon}^{(eta)}, t_{m_i\mparepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})] < 0,$$

with the singularity conditions

$$\begin{split} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha)},t_{m_{i}\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\alpha}=1,2,\cdots 2k_{\alpha}+1), \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\beta)},t_{m_{i}\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\beta}=1,2,\cdots 2k_{\beta}+1). \end{split}$$



Fig. 3.8 (a) A cross-section view and (b) a three-dimensional view of the synchronization of resultant flows in vicinity of the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ in $(n_s + n_r)$ -dimensional state space. On the constraint boundary, any point for synchronization is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In two domains, the resultant flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The onset and vanishing points are $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$ with *red* and *blue circular symbols*

So one obtains

$$(-1)^{\alpha}\varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)},t_{m_{i}\mp\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta}\varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta)},t_{m_{i}-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0.$$

i.e., Eq. (3.68) is obtained, vice versa. Therefore, this theorem is proved.

In the foregoing theorem, the *onset and vanishing* conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization in Eqs. (3.67) and (3.68) for time $t = t_{m_i}$ (i = 1, 2) are also the *vanishing and onset* conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration and the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization, respectively. To explain the synchronization of the two dynamical systems under the condition in Eq. (3.3) in the previous two theorems, such synchronization is sketched in Fig. 3.8. On the constraint boundary, any point for synchronization is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In the two domains, any flows in the vicinity of the boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon})$ $(\alpha = 1, 2)$. The onset and vanishing points are $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$ with red and blue circular symbols. Both of the two points belong to a submanifold on the boundary in the $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional phase space. Once a flow of the resultant system of

two dynamical systems from domain Ω_1 comes to any point of the subregion on the constraint boundary, the synchronization of the two dynamical systems to the constraint occurs until the point $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$ is reached. If $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, such synchronization will not disappear forever. For $t_m > t_{m_1}$, once the resultant flows are on the constraint boundary, the synchronization of the two dynamical systems to the constraint will keep forever.

3.6 Desynchronization to Constraint

The synchronization for two dynamical systems to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) is discussed. The desynchronization of two dynamical systems is opposite to the synchronization. Similarly, for a case of $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ on the constraint boundary, the desynchronization will be discussed, and the desynchronization for $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ on the constraint boundary will be addressed. The desynchronization with $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ is stated.

Theorem 3.5 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous $(r_{\alpha} \geq 3)$ and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ ($s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$) for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) are desynchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \boldsymbol{\varphi}^{(r_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$

for $\alpha = 1, 2$ and $r_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$ (3.69)

(ii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, (-1)^{\alpha} \boldsymbol{\varphi}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,$$
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \boldsymbol{\varphi}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$
(3.70)

(iii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0,$$
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$
(3.71)

(iv) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0,$$
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$
(3.72)

Proof Once Definitions 3.13, 3.14, 3.17, and 3.18 are used, the proof of this theorem is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.1. \Box

Theorem 3.6 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha} + 1$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}| (\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha}}\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = D^{s_{\alpha}}\mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ ($s_{\alpha} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$) for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) are desynchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, \varphi^{(r_\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$

for $\alpha = 1, 2$ and $r_\alpha = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$ (3.73)

(ii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m+}} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha};$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ and}$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$

$$(3.74)$$

(iii) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} &\neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m^{-}}} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}; \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2 \end{aligned}$$

$$(3.75)$$

(iv) for $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ or $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$



Fig. 3.9 (a) Cross-section view and (b) three-dimensional view for the desynchronization of slave and master flows in vicinity of the boundary $\partial\Omega_{12}$ in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space. On the boundary, any point for desynchronization is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In the two domains, the flows in the vicinity of the boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(a)}, t_{m+\varepsilon})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The onset point is $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$, depicted by a *red circular symbol*

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1;$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$
(3.76)

Proof Once Definitions 3.21, 3.22, 3.25, and 3.26 are used, the proof of this theorem is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.2. \Box

If $t_{m_1} \to -\infty$ and $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, such a desynchronization of two dynamical systems to constraint in Eq. (3.3) is absolute. Once the resultant flows on the constraint boundary are repelled, such a desynchronization can keep forever. To explain the two foregoing theorems, the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint is sketched in Fig. 3.9 through the resultant flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary $\partial\Omega_{12}$. Any point for desynchronization on the constraint boundary is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In the two domains, the resultant flows in the vicinity of the boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+\varepsilon})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The onset point for the desynchronization is denoted by $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_m)$. For $t_m > t_{m_1}$ and $t_m \to \infty$, all the resultant flows leave from the constraint boundary. However, if $t_{m_2} > t_{m_1}$ is finite, such desynchronization to the constraint will disappear at a point $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$. For $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$, the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint is different from those for $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$. Thus, the conditions for the desynchronization of two dynamical systems with discontinuous vector fields are discussed as follows.

Theorem 3.7 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \geq 3$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$, suppose $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)})$ $\neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) are desynchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for
$$\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$$
 and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$
(3.77)

(ii) for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$,

$$\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \lambda) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2$$
(3.78)

(iii) with an penetration for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i+}^{(\beta)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,
(-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha,$$
(3.79)

or with a synchronization for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\beta)}$,

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,
\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0
\text{ for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha.$$
(3.80)

Proof By using Definitions 3.13, 3.17–3.19, the proof of this theorem is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.3. \Box

From the foregoing theorem, the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint requires that the first-order derivative of the constraint function be greater than zero. In addition, the *onset and vanishing* conditions of desynchronization in Eqs. (3.79) and (3.80) are the *vanishing and onset* conditions for onset of the penetration and synchronization with the desynchronization, respectively. The following theorem will give the corresponding conditions for the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint with the higher order singularity.

Theorem 3.8 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \ge 2k_{\alpha} + 1$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)})$ $\neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) are desynchronized of the $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -type for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$
(3.81)

(ii) for time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}$

$$\varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}),
(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,
\varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta}),
(-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \quad \text{for } \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta$$
(3.82)

(iii) with a $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration flow for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm}^{(\beta)}$

$$\varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1),
(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,
\varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta}),
(-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta$$
(3.83)

or with a $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -synchronization for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\beta)}$

$$\begin{split} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta. \end{split}$$
(3.84)

Proof Using Definitions 3.23, 3.25–3.27, the proof of this theorem is similar to Theorem 3.4. \Box

The onset and vanishing conditions of the $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -desynchronization in Eqs. (3.83) and (3.84) are the vanishing and onset conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$



Fig. 3.10 (a) A cross-section view and (b) a three-dimensional view of the desynchronization of resultant flows in vicinity of the constraint boundary $\partial\Omega_{12}$ in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space. On the constant boundary, any point for desynchronization is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)}, t_m)$. In two domains, the resultant flows in the vicinity of the constant boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The onset and vanishing points are $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_1})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_2})$ with *red* and *green circular symbols*

penetration and the $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -synchronization, respectively. The $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -desynchronization requires that all the $(2k_1 + 1 : 2k_2 + 1)$ -order derivative of the constraint function should be greater than zero. The desynchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint is presented in the previous two theorems, as sketched in Fig. 3.10 through the resultant flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary. On the constraint boundary, any point relative to desynchronization is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In the two domains, the flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m+\varepsilon})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The *onset and vanishing* points are $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$ with red and green circular symbols, which are generated by the two penetrations. The points $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$ are starting and vanishing points of the resultant flow relative to desynchronization.

If $t_{m_2} \to \infty$, once the desynchronization exists, no any synchronization of two systems to a specific constraint can be achieved. For a case of $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ and $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\beta)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\beta)})$, the desynchronization can be determined through the two foregoing theorems.

3.7 Penetration to Constraint

The synchronization and desynchronization of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint have been discussed. The penetration of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint is also very important for the onset and vanishing of synchronization and desynchronization. For $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ with $\alpha = 1, 2$, the penetration of two dynamical systems to a specific constraint cannot exist. However, if two dynamical systems to a specific constraint possess discontinuous vector fields, the penetration can occur at the constraint boundary. The corresponding theorems are presented as follows.

Theorem 3.9 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \geq 3$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \lambda)| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial\Omega_{12}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq D^{s_{\alpha}} \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \lambda)$ s_{α} (= 0, 1, 2, ...) for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to the constraint in Eq. (3.3) is penetrated at time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for
$$\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$$
 and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$
 $\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$ (3.85)

(ii) at time $t = t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}), \mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+1}^{(\beta)}$

$$(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0$$

for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$. (3.86)

(iii) with a synchronization at time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\beta)}$ $(i \in \{1, 2\})$,

$$(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0,$$

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0$$

for $\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta,$ (3.87)

or with a desynchronization at time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i \mp}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)}$ $(i \in \{1, 2\})$,

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0$$

$$(-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta,$$
(3.88)

or with a switching penetration at time $t = t_{m_i}, \mathbf{y}_{m_i \mp}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i \pm}^{(\beta)}$ $(i \in \{1, 2\})$

$$\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{l}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{l}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{l}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{l}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0,
\varphi^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{l}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{l}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{l}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{l}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0
\text{ for } \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta.$$
(3.89)

Proof By using Definitions 3.15, 3.17, 3.18, and 3.20, the proof of this theorem is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.3. \Box

Theorem 3.10 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraint in Eq. (3.3). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1,2\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ is $C^{r_{\alpha}}$ -continuous ($r_{\alpha} \geq 2k_{\alpha} + 1$) and $|\varphi^{(r_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})| < \infty$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{12}$, suppose $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda})$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraint in Eq. (3.3) are penetrated of the $(2k_1: 2k_2)$ -type for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha \in \{1, 2\}$) at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\varphi(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \varphi(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$$
(3.90)

(ii) at time
$$t = t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}), \mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+1}^{(\beta)}$$

$$\varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}),
(-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0;
\varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta}),
(-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta;$$
(3.91)

(iii) with $a(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ -synchronization at time $t = t_{m_i}, \mathbf{y}_{m_i-}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i\pm}^{(\beta)}$ $(i \in \{1, 2\})$

$$\begin{split} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha}), \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) > 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) < 0 \text{ for } \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta, \end{split}$$
(3.92)

or with a $(2k_1 : 2k_2)$ desynchronization at time $t = t_{m_i}, \mathbf{y}_{m_i \mp}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i + (i \in \{1, 2\})}^{(\beta)}$



Fig. 3.11 (a) A cross-section view and (b) a three-dimensional view of the penetration of resultant flows in vicinity of the constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{12}$ in $(n_r + n_s)$ -dimensional state space. On the constraint boundary, any point for penetration is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In two domains, the resultant flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon})$ ($\alpha = 1, 2$). The onset and vanishing points are $(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$ with *red* and *blue circular symbols*

$$\begin{split} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta}), \\ (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0 \text{ for } \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta, \end{split}$$
(3.93)

or with a $(2k_{\beta}: 2k_{\alpha})$ -penetration at time $t = t_{m_i}, \mathbf{y}_{m_i \mp}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\beta)} (i \in \{1, 2\}),$

$$\begin{split} \varphi^{(s_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\alpha} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\alpha} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0, \\ \varphi^{(s_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= 0 \quad (s_{\beta} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta} + 1), \\ (-1)^{\beta} \varphi^{(2k_{\beta}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &< 0 \text{ for } \beta \in \{1, 2\} \text{ and } \alpha \neq \beta. \end{split}$$
(3.94)

Proof Using Definitions 3.21, 3.23, 3.24, and 3.26, the proof of this theorem is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.4. \Box

The penetration of the two dynamical systems to a specific constraint is sketched in Fig. 3.11. The *onset and vanishing* conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration of the $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ to a specific constraint are the *vanishing and onset* conditions of the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization, the $(2k_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta})$ -desynchronization, and the $(2k_{\beta} : 2k_{\alpha})$ penetration, respectively. On the constraint boundary, any point for penetration is expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}, t_m)$. In two domains, the incoming and output resultant flows in the vicinity of the constraint boundary are expressed by $(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha)}, t_{m-\varepsilon})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta)}, t_{m+\varepsilon})$ $(\alpha, \beta \in \{1, 2\}$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$). The *onset and vanishing* points are $(\mathbf{y}_{m_1}^{(0)}, t_{m_1})$ and $(\mathbf{y}_{m_2}^{(0)}, t_{m_2})$ with red and blue circular symbols.

References

- Luo ACJ (2009) A theory for synchronization of dynamical systems. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:1901–1951
- Luo ACJ (2008) A theory for flow switchability in discontinuous dynamical systems. Nonlinear Anal Hybrid Syst 2(4):1030–1061
- 3. Luo ACJ (2009) Discontinuous dynamical systems on time-varying domains. HEP-Springer, Heidelberg
- 4. Luo ACJ (2011) Discontinuous dynamical systems. HEP-Springer, Heidelberg

Chapter 4 Multiple Constraints Synchronization

In this chapter, the synchronization of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints will be discussed. As in Luo [1], the synchronicity of two dynamical systems with multiple constraints can be presented. The mathematical description of the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints will be given, and the corresponding necessary and sufficient conditions for the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to the constraints are presented.

4.1 Synchronicity to Multiple Constraints

The ε -domain in the vicinity of the intersected, constraint boundary will be defined through the ε -domain of the *j*th constraint boundary. Based on such ε -domain and the intersected constraint boundary, the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints will be discussed.

Definition 4.1 For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ $(\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I} \text{ and } j \in \mathscr{L} \text{ with } \mathscr{I} = \{1,2\} \text{ and } \mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The neighborhood of the *j*th constraint edge is defined as

$$\Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{-\varepsilon} = \{ \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \Big| ||\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(t) - \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}|| \leq \delta_{(\alpha_{j},j)}, \delta_{(\alpha_{j},j)} > 0, t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m}) \},
\Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{+\varepsilon} = \{ \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \Big| ||\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(t) - \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}|| \leq \delta_{(\alpha_{j},j)}, \delta_{(\alpha_{j},j)} > 0, t \in (t_{m}, t_{m+\varepsilon}] \}.$$
(4.1)

The subdomains and the intersected edge are defined as

$$\Omega_{\alpha} \equiv \Omega_{\alpha_1 \alpha_2 \cdots \alpha_l} = \bigcap_{j=1}^{l} \Omega_{(\alpha_j, j)} \text{ and } \partial \Omega_{(12, \mathbf{j})} \equiv \partial \Omega_{(12, 12 \cdots l)} = \bigcap_{j=1}^{l} \partial \Omega_{(\alpha_j \beta_j, j)}$$
(4.2)

A.C.J. Luo, *Dynamical System Synchronization*, Nonlinear Systems and Complexity 3, DOI 10.1007/978-1-4614-5097-9_4, © Springer Science+Business Media, LLC 2013

For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha)} \in \Omega_{\alpha}$ ($\alpha = (\alpha_1 \alpha_2 \cdots \alpha_l)$, $\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,\mathbf{j})}$ ($\mathbf{j} = (12 \cdots l)$) at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The neighborhood of the intersected constraint boundary $\partial \Omega_{(12,\mathbf{j})}$ is defined as

$$\Omega_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}}^{-\varepsilon} = \{ \mathbf{y}^{(\boldsymbol{\alpha})} \Big| || \mathbf{y}^{(\boldsymbol{\alpha})}(t) - \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} || \leq \delta, \delta > 0, t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m}) \},$$

$$\Omega_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}}^{+\varepsilon} = \{ \mathbf{y}^{(\boldsymbol{\alpha})} \Big| || \mathbf{y}^{(\boldsymbol{\alpha})}(t) - \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)} || \leq \delta, \delta > 0, t \in (t_{m}, t_{m+\varepsilon}] \}.$$

$$(4.3)$$

where $\delta = \min_{j \in \mathscr{L}, \alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}} (\delta_{(\alpha_j, j)})$ with $\mathscr{L} = \{1, 2, \cdots, l\}$ and $\mathscr{I} = \{1, 2\}$.

Definition 4.2 Three index sets are defined as

$$\mathscr{L} = \bigcup_{i=1}^{3} \mathscr{L}_{i} \quad \text{and} \quad \mathscr{L}_{i} \cap \mathscr{L}_{j} = \{\emptyset\} \ (i, j \in \{1, 2, 3\})$$
(4.4)

$$\mathscr{L}_{i} = \{ \varnothing, k_{1}^{(i)}, k_{2}^{(i)}, \cdots, k_{l_{i}}^{(i)} \} \subseteq \mathscr{L} \cup \{ \varnothing \} \quad \text{and} \quad l_{1} + l_{2} + l_{3} = l$$
(4.5)

Definition 4.3 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The two systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an l_1 -dimensional synchronization, l_2 -dimensional desynchronization, and l_3 -dimensional penetration for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

(i) if for $\alpha_{j_1} = 1,2$ and $j_1 \in \mathcal{L}_1$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = \varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{1})},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}}[\varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) - \varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}})] < 0, \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(4.6)$$

(ii) if for $\alpha_{j_2} = 1,2$ and $j_2 \in \mathcal{L}_2$

$$\varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) = \varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{2})},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) = 0, (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{2}}}[\varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+\epsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) - \varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}})] < 0,$$

$$(4.7)$$

(iii) if for $\alpha_{j_3}, \beta_{j_3} \in \{1,2\}, \alpha_{j_3} \neq \beta_{j_3}; j_3 \in \mathscr{L}_3$

$$\varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{3})}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = 0, (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{3}}}[\varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) - \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}})] < 0,$$

$$(4.8)$$

4.1 Synchronicity to Multiple Constraints

$$\varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{3})},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = 0, (-1)^{\beta_{j_{3}}}[\varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+\epsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) - \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}})] < 0.$$

$$(4.9)$$

From the previous definition, among the l-constraints in Eq. (3.4), (i) there are l_1 -constraints to make the two dynamical systems be synchronized at the corresponding constraints; (ii) there are l_2 -constraints to make the two dynamical systems be desynchronized at the corresponding constraints; and (iii) there are l_3 -constraints to make the two dynamical systems be penetrated at the corresponding constraints. If $l_2 = l_3 = 0$ and $l_1 = l$, the two dynamical systems to all the *l*-constraints are synchronized. If $l_3 = 0$ and $l_1 + l_2 = l$, the two dynamical systems to all the *l*-constraints are to be synchronized with l_1 -constraints and desynchronized with l_2 -constraints. If $l_1 = 0$ and $l_2 + l_3 = l$, the two dynamical systems to all the *l*-constraints are to be desynchronized with *l*₂-constraints and to be penetrated with l_3 -constraints. If $l_2 = 0$ and $l_1 + l_3 = l$, the two dynamical systems to all the *l*-constraints are to be synchronized with l_1 -constraints and to be penetrated with l_3 -constraints. For the two cases, the two dynamical systems cannot be synchronized any more for all the *l*-constraints. If one of three types of synchronicity has changed the current state, the synchronicity of the two dynamical systems will be changed. The three special cases are useful. Therefore, three definitions for the three special cases will be given as follows:

Definition 4.4 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m^{-}}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}$ ($\alpha_{j} \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_{m}, \mathbf{y}_{m^{-}}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m})$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an *l*-dimensional synchronization for time $t_{m} \in [t_{m_{1}}, t_{m_{2}}]$ if for $\alpha_{j} = 1, 2$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.10)$$

Definition 4.5 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval ($t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}$]. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an *l*-dimensional desynchronization for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $\alpha_j = 1, 2$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.11)$$

Definition 4.6 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an *l*-dimensional penetration for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$, $j \in \mathscr{L}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0, \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(4.12)$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m+\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(4.13)$$

4.2 Singularity to Constraints

As discussed in the synchronization of two dynamical systems to the single constraint, the singularity for a flow of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to one of the constraints in Eq. (3.4) can be described. The tangency of a resultant flow to one of *l*-constraint boundaries is presented first, and then the vanishing and onset of the synchronization of two dynamical systems to the *j*th constraint boundary of the *l*-constraint boundaries will be presented.

Definition 4.7 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2)$. A flow of the resultant system for two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) is called *to be tangential to* the *j*th constraint boundary for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $j \in \mathcal{L}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.14)$$

Definition 4.8 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 2)$.

(i) The synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *vanishing* to form a penetration from Ω_(αj,j) to Ω_(βj,j) on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for α_j, β_j ∈ 𝒴 and α_i ≠ β_i with j ∈ 𝒴

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.15)$$

(ii) The synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *onset* from the penetration on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for α_j , $\beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\alpha_j \neq \beta_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.16)$$

Definition 4.9 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty (r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2)$.

(i) The synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *onset* from the desynchronization on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for α_j , $\beta_i \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\alpha_i \neq \beta_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.17)$$

(ii) The synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *vanishing* to form the desynchronization on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\alpha_j \neq \beta_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.18)$$

Definition 4.10 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 2)$.

(i) The desynchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *vanishing* to form a penetration on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for α_j , $\beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\alpha_j \neq \beta_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.19)$$

(ii) The desynchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *onset* from the *j*th penetration flow on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\alpha_j \neq \beta_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.20)$$

Definition 4.11 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 2)$. The penetration of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *switching* to form a new penetration on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\alpha_j \neq \beta_j$ with $j \in \mathcal{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.21)$$

4.3 Synchronicity with Singularity to Constraints

As discussed in Chap. 3, the synchronicity of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints with higher-order singularity can be presented through the following definitions.

Definition 4.12 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$ and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an l_1 -dimensional synchronization with the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha_1} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta_1})$ -order singularity, l_2 -dimensional desynchronization with the

 $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha 2} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta 2})$ -order singularity, and l_3 -dimensional penetration with the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha 3} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta 3})$ -order singularity for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

(i) if for $\alpha_{j_1} = 1,2$ and $j_1 \in \mathcal{L}_1$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = \varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{1})},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0, \\ \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0, \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{1}}}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}}[\varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) - \varphi_{j_{1}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}})] < 0, \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(4.22)$$

(ii) if for $\alpha_{j_2} = 1,2$ and $j_2 \in \mathscr{L}_2$

$$\varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) = \varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{2})},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) = 0, \\ \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{2}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j_{2}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{2}}}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{2}}}[\varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+\epsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) - \varphi_{j_{2}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}})] < 0,$$

$$\left. \right\}$$

$$(4.23)$$

(iii) if for $\alpha_{j_3}, \beta_{j_3} \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j_3 \in \mathscr{L}_3$ with $\alpha_{j_3} \neq \beta_{j_3}$

$$\begin{split} \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) &= \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{3})},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = 0, \\ \varphi_{j_{3}}^{(s_{z_{j_{3}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) &= 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j_{3}}} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{3}}}), \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{3}}}[\varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) - \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}})] < 0, \end{split}$$

$$\varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{3})},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = 0, \varphi_{j_{3}}^{(s_{\beta_{j_{3}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = 0, \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j_{3}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j_{3}}}, (-1)^{\beta_{j_{3}}}[\varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+\epsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) - \varphi_{j_{3}}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}})] < 0.$$

$$(4.25)$$

Notice that $2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha i} = (2k_{\alpha_1}, 2k_{\alpha_2}, \dots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_i}}, \dots 2k_{\alpha_{j_i}})^{\mathrm{T}}$ (i = 1, 2, 3). Consider two dynamical systems with *l*-constraints to be synchronized, or desynchronized or penetrated with higher-order singularity. The corresponding descriptions for such synchronicity will be given as follows.

Definition 4.13 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an l-dimensional

synchronization with the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -order singularity for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $\alpha_j = 1,2$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1,2,\cdots,2k_{\alpha_{j}}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0. \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(4.26)$$

Definition 4.14 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an *l*-dimensional desynchronization with the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -order singularity for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $\alpha_j = 1, 2$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\left.\begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1,2,\cdots,2k_{\alpha_{j}}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m+\epsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0. \end{array}\right\}$$

$$(4.27)$$

Definition 4.15 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1$). The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4) are called an *l*-dimensional penetration with the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -order singularity for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\alpha_j \neq \beta_j$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1,2,\cdots,2k_{\alpha_{j}}, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-\varepsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0, \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(4.28)$$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}},$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.29)$$

4.4 Higher-Order Singularity to Constraints

Since a resultant flow of two dynamical systems to one of *l*-constraints possesses the higher-order singularity, the synchronicity of the two dynamical systems to the *l*-constraints will be changed. In this section, the higher-order singularity of a resultant flow of two dynamical systems to the *j*th constraint boundary from the *l*-constraints will be presented herein.

Definition 4.16 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j})$. A flow of the resultant system of two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *tangential* to the *j*th constraint boundary with *the* $(2k_{\alpha_j} - 1)$ th-order for time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if for $j \in \mathscr{L}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$

$$\left.\begin{array}{l} \left.\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})=\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)},t_{m},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})=0,\\ \left.\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})=0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}}=1,2,\cdots,2k_{\alpha_{j}}-1,\\ \left.(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp\epsilon},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})-\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})]{<}0.\end{array}\right\}$$

$$(4.30)$$

Definition 4.17 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$.

(i) The synchronization of the (2k_{αj} : 2k_{βj})-order of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is said to *be vanishing* to form the penetration from domain Ω_(αjj) to Ω_(βjj) on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for α_j, β_j ∈ I and β_j ≠ α_j with j ∈ I

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}},$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.31)$$

(ii) The synchronization of the $(2k_{\alpha_j} : 2k_{\beta_j})$ -order of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is said to be onset from the penetration on the *j*th constraint boundary from domain $\Omega_{(\alpha_j j)}$ to $\Omega_{(\beta_j j)}$ at time t_m if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}},$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.32)$$

Definition 4.18 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$.

(i) The $(2k_{\alpha_j} : 2k_{\beta_j})$ -synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be onset from the desynchronization on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0, \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1, \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.33)$$

(ii) The $(2k_{\alpha_j} : 2k_{\beta_j})$ -synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is said to be *vanishing* to form the desynchronization on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1,$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j,j})}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j,j})}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j,j})}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\beta_{j,j})}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.34)$$

Definition 4.19 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\chi_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\chi_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$.

(i) The (2k_{αj} : 2k_{βj})-desynchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called *to be vanishing* to form the penetration on the *j*th constraint boundary from domain Ω_(αj,j) to Ω_(βj,j) at time t_m if for α_j, β_j ∈ I and β_j ≠ α_j with j ∈ I

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0;$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1;$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}};$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\varepsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+\varepsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\varepsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.35)$$

(ii) The $(2k_{\alpha_j} : 2k_{\beta_j})$ -synchronization of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is said to be onset from the penetration on the *j*th constraint boundary from domain $\Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ to $\Omega_{(\beta_j,j)}$ at time t_m if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0;$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1;$$

$$(4.36a)$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}};
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$

$$(4.36b)$$

Definition 4.20 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial\Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. At $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ for time $t \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, the constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$. The $(2k_{\alpha_j} : 2k_{\beta_j})$ -penetration of the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with the *j*th constraint in Eq. (3.4) is called to be *switching* from the $(2k_{\beta_j} : 2k_{\alpha_j})$ -penetration on the *j*th constraint boundary at time t_m if for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$ with $j \in \mathscr{L}$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0;
\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1;
\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1;
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp\epsilon}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0,
(-1)^{\beta_{j}}[\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm\epsilon}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) - \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j})] < 0.$$
(4.37)

4.5 Synchronization to All Constraints

In this section, the necessary and sufficient conditions for such synchronicity of the two dynamical systems to multi-constraints will be discussed. Because of many constraints for two dynamical systems, the synchronicity for each constraint should be discussed.

Theorem 4.1 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 3)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) = D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) (s_{\alpha_j} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots)$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$. The two dynamical systems

in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are synchronized with 1-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (3.4) if and only if

(i) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ for any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m}, \lambda_{j}) = 0$$

for $\alpha_{j} = 1, 2$ and $s_{\alpha_{j}} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$ (4.38)

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ with $t_{m} \in (t_{m_{1}}, t_{m_{2}})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0 \text{ and}$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2$$

$$(4.39)$$

(iii) for the *j*th constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L})$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^+ \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12,j)}$ with $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} &\neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0 \text{ and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1,2 \end{aligned}$$

$$(4.40)$$

(iv) for the jth constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L})$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^- \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$, $t_{\kappa}^+ \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$ with $t_m = t_{m_1}$ and t_{m_2}

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &= 0, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &< 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1,2 \end{aligned}$$

$$(4.41)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.1 for each $j \in \mathscr{L}$. If the conditions in Eqs. (4.38) and (4.39) are satisfied, from Definition 4.4, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) are synchronized for time $t \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ in the sense of Eq. (3.4), vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.40) and (4.41) hold, from Definition 4.7, the synchronization of two dynamical systems will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

Theorem 4.2 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$.

For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) = D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ ($s_{\alpha_j} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$) for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are synchronized with 1-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (3.4) if and only if

(i) for all
$$j \in \mathscr{L}$$
, $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12,j)}$ with $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0$$

for $\alpha_{j} = 1, 2$ and $s_{\alpha_{j}} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$ (4.42)

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ with $t_{m} \in (t_{m_{1}}, t_{m_{2}})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa} \to t_{m-}} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}};$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0 \text{ and}$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2;$$

$$(4.43)$$

(iii) for the *j*th constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L})$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12,j)}$ with $t_{m} \notin [t_{m_{1}}, t_{m_{2}}]$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} &\neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m^{-}}} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}}; \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0 \text{ and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2; \end{aligned}$$

$$(4.44)$$

(iv) for the jth constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L})$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{\pm \varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$ and $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$, and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1;$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2$$

$$(4.45)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.2 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions in Eqs. (4.42) and (4.43) are satisfied, from Definition 4.10, the slave and master systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) are synchronized for time $t \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ in the sense of Eq. (3.4), vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.44) and (4.45) hold, from Definition 4.13, the synchronization will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. The proof is completed.

Theorem 4.3 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha_j} \geq 3$). For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$, $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \mathbf{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in I$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to l-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are synchronized with l-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all
$$j \in \mathscr{L}$$
, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ at time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ $(\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I})$

$$\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0$$
(4.46)

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j)}$ with $\alpha_j = 1, 2$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_j} \varphi_j^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) > 0$$

$$(4.47)$$

(iii) with the *j*th-penetration for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2) for α_j , $\beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0;$$

$$(4.48)$$

or with the jth-desynchronization for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2) for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0.$$

$$\left. \right\}$$

$$(4.49)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.3 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions in Eqs. (4.46) and (4.47) are satisfied, from Definition 4.4, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are synchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.48) and (4.49) hold, from Definition 4.8 or 4.9, the synchronization of the two dynamical systems to *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. The proof is completed.

In the foregoing theorem, the synchronization of the slave and master systems is without any singularity except for the onset and vanishing conditions on the boundaries of the constraints. If the synchronization of two dynamical systems with higher-order singularity, the corresponding theorems can be presented as follows. **Theorem 4.4** Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2, \dots, l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1$). For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}, \ \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} =$ $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are synchronized of the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -type with 1-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all
$$j \in \mathscr{L}$$
, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$, and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ at time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ $(\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I})$

$$\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0$$
(4.50)

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j)}$ with $\alpha_j = 1, 2$

$$(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}};$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)} (\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0.$$

$$(4.51)$$

(iii) with the *j*th penetration of the $(2k_{\alpha_j}: 2k_{\beta_j})$ -type at time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}(i=1,2)$ for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\left.\begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1,2,\cdots,2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1) \\ \text{and} \ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0; \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1,2,\cdots,2k_{\beta_{j}}) \\ (-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}-}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0; \end{array}\right\}$$

$$(4.52)$$

or with the jth-desynchronization of the $(2k_{\alpha_j}: 2k_{\beta_j})$ -type at time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$ (i = 1, 2) for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\left.\begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1,2,\cdots 2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1), \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0; \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1,2,\cdots 2k_{\beta_{j}}+1), \\ (-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0. \end{array}\right\}$$

$$(4.53)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.4 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$, For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions in Eqs. (4.50) and (4.51) are satisfied, from Definition 4.8, the slave and
master systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) are synchronized with the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -type for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (3.4), vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.52) and (4.53) hold, from Definition 4.12 or 4.13, the synchronization will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. The proof is completed.

4.6 Desynchronization to All Constraints

In this section, from the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints, the necessary and sufficient conditions for such desynchronicity will be discussed. Because of many constraints for two dynamical systems, the synchronicity for each single one of constraints should be discussed.

Theorem 4.5 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha_j} \geq 3$). For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) = D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ ($s_{\alpha_j} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$) for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to l-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are desynchronized with l-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (3.4) if and only if

(i) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha_j, j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j, j)}$, and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12, j)}$ for any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \, \boldsymbol{\varphi}_{j}^{(s_{z_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0$$

for $\alpha_{j} = 1, 2$ and $s_{\alpha_{j}} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$ (4.54)

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ with $t_{m} \in (t_{m_{1}}, t_{m_{2}})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0 \text{ and}$$
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2$$
(4.55)

(iii) for the *j*th constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L})$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^- \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12,j)}$ with $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$.

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0 \text{ and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2$$

$$(4.56)$$

(iv) for the *j*th constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L}), \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_j, j)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_j, j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^- \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-}), t_{\kappa}^+ \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12, j)}$ with $t_m = t_{m_1}$ and t_{m_2}

4.6 Desynchronization to All Constraints

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and}$$
$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m}} (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2.$$
(4.57)

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.1 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions in Eqs. (4.54) and (4.55) are satisfied, from Definition 4.5, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraints in Eq. (3.4) are desynchronized for time $t \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.56) and (4.57) hold, from Definition 4.7, the desynchronization will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

Theorem 4.6 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2, \dots, l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) = D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ $(s_{\alpha_j} = 0, 1, 2, \dots)$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are desynchronized with 1-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (3.4) if and only if

(i) for all
$$j \in \mathscr{L}$$
, $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$, and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ for any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0$$

for $\alpha_{j} = 1, 2$ and $s_{\alpha_{i}} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$ (4.58)

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ with $t_{m} \in (t_{m_{1}}, t_{m_{2}})$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}});
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0,
\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ \text{for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2;$$
(4.59)

(iii) for the *j*th constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L})$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^- \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ with $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m^{-}}} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}});
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0 \text{ and}
\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2;$$
(4.60)

(iv) for the jth constraint $(j \in \mathscr{L})$, $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-})$, $t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ with $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1); \\
\lim_{t_{\pm} \to t_{m}} (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0 \ \text{for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2.$$
(4.61)

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.2 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions in Eqs. (4.58) and (4.59) are satisfied, from Definition 4.14, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraints in Eq. (3.4) are synchronized for time $t \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.60) and (4.61) hold, from Definition 4.18, the synchronization will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. The proof is completed.

From the foregoing theorem, the desynchronization requires all the higher order derivatives of the constraint functions in Eq. (3.4) should be zero on the constraint surfaces and the highest order derivative of the constraint functions in domain should be greater than zero. In practical applications, such a condition is too strong for one to control the desynchronization of the two dynamical systems. Therefore, such a condition can be relaxed through a discontinuous vector field to the slave and master systems. Therefore, the following theorem for the desynchronization will be stated.

Theorem 4.7 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$ and $j \in \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathscr{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathscr{L} = \{1,2, \cdots, l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time t_m , $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}} - continuous$ and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 3)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$, $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to l-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are desynchronized with l-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all
$$j \in \mathscr{L}$$
, $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$, and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ at time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ $(\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I})$

$$\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0$$
(4.62)

4.6 Desynchronization to All Constraints

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j)}$ with $\alpha_j = 1, 2$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_j} \varphi_j^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) < 0$$
(4.63)

(iii) with the *j*th penetration for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2) for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;$$

$$(4.64)$$

or with the jth synchronization for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2) for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0,$$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0.$$

$$\left. \right\}$$

$$(4.65)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.3 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions in Eqs. (4.62) and (4.63) are satisfied, from Definition 4.5, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraints in Eq. (3.4) are desynchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.64) and (4.65) hold, from Definition 4.9 or 4.10, the desynchronization will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. The proof is completed.

In the foregoing theorem, the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints is without any singularity except for the onset and vanishing condition. If the desynchronization of two dynamical systems to multiple constraints possesses higher-order singularity, the following theorem is presented.

Theorem 4.8 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1$). For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$, $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are desynchronized of the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -type with *l*-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all
$$j \in \mathscr{L}$$
, $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$, and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ at time $t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ $(\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I})$

$$\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0$$
(4.66)

(ii) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j)}$ with $\alpha_j = 1, 2$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}}),
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0$$
(4.67)

(iii) with the *j*th penetration of the $(2k_{\alpha_j}: 2k_{\beta_j})$ -type for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2) for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1) (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0; \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\beta_{j}}) (-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;$$

$$(4.68)$$

or with the jth synchronization of the $(2k_{\alpha_j}: 2k_{\beta_j})$ -type for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0)}$ (i = 1, 2) for $\alpha_j, \beta_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $\beta_j \neq \alpha_j$

$$\begin{split} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &= 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}}=1,2,\cdots 2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1), \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &< 0; \\ \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &= 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}}=1,2,\cdots 2k_{\beta_{j}}+1), \\ (-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &< 0. \end{split}$$
(4.69)

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.4 for each $j \in \mathscr{L}$. For all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, if the conditions in Eqs. (4.66) and (4.67) are satisfied, from Definition 4.14, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraints in Eq. (3.4) are synchronized with the $(2k_{\alpha_j} : 2k_{\beta_j})$ -type for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.68) and (4.69) hold, from Definition 4.17 or 4.18, the desynchronization will start to form and to vanish, vice versa. The proof is completed.

4.7 Penetration to All Constraints

If $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) = \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in \{1, 2\}$ with all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, the two dynamical systems to multiple constraints do not have any penetration. For such a penetration, $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ should exist. Thus, the corresponding conditions for the *l*-dimensional penetration of two dynamical systems with *l*-constraints are presented through the following theorems.

Theorem 4.9 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 3)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$, $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are penetrated with 1-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, time $t = t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+1}^{(\beta_j, j)}$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_j} \varphi_j^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) > 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta_j} \varphi_j^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_j,j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) < 0$$
(4.70)

(ii) with the synchronization to the *j*th constraint for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_i,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_j,j)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0;$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0.$$

$$(4.71)$$

or with the desynchronization to the jth constraint only for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_j,j)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0,
(-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;$$
(4.72)

or with the switching penetration to the jth constraint only for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_j,j)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0,
(-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ and } (-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0.$$
(4.73)

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.3 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions in Eq. (4.70) are satisfied, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraints in Eq. (3.4) are penetrated with *l*-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, vice versa. If the onset and vanishing conditions in Eqs. (4.71)–(4.73) are satisfied, the penetration of the two dynamical systems with *l*- constraints will start to be formed or to vanish, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

Theorem 4.10 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ ($r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1$). For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$, $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are penetrated of the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -type with 1-dimensions for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, time $t = t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(\beta_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(\beta_j, j)}$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}}),
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0;
\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}}),
(-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;$$
(4.74)

(ii) with the synchronization of the $(2k_{\alpha_j}: 2k_{\beta_j})$ -type to the jth constraint for time $t = t_{m_i}, \mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_j,j)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}}),
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0;
\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1),
(-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;$$
(4.75a)
$$(4.75b)$$

or with the desynchronization of the $(2k_{\alpha_j}: 2k_{\beta_j})$ -type to the jth constraint only for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_j,j)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1),
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;
\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}}),
(-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;$$
(4.76)

or with the switching penetration of the $(2k_{\beta_j}: 2k_{\alpha_j})$ -type to the jth constraint only for time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0)} = \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_j,j)}$ (i = 1, 2),

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{z_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1),
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{z_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\mp}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;
\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1),
(-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0.$$
(4.77)

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.4 for each $j \in \mathscr{L}$. For all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, if the conditions are satisfied in Eq. (4.74), the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraints in Eq. (3.4) are penetrated of the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -type with *l*-dimensions for $t \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$, vice versa. If the switching conditions for the synchronization– penetration, desynchronization–penetration, and penetration–penetration in Eqs. (4.75)–(4.77) are satisfied, the onset and vanishing of the $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ -penetration with *l*-dimensions occur, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

4.8 Synchronization–Desynchronization–Penetration

As in Luo [2], from the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems, in this section, the mixture of the synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration to multiple constraints is discussed.

Theorem 4.11 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 3)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) = D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ $(s_{\alpha_j} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots)$ for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are of the (l_1, l_2) -synchronization and desynchronization for time $[t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ for any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m}, \lambda_{j}) = 0$$

for $\alpha_{j} = 1, 2$ and $s_{\alpha_{j}} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$ (4.78)

(ii) for all $j_1 \in \mathscr{L}_1$ and $\alpha_{j_1} = 1, 2$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{1})}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) > 0 \text{ and}$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2$$
(4.79)

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa_1}^{(\alpha_{j_1},j_1)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j_1},j_1)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^- \in [t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j_1)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j_1)}$ for $t_m \in (t_{m_1},t_{m_2});$ (iii) for all $j_2 \in \mathcal{L}_2$ and $\alpha_{j_2} = 1,2$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_2)}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j_2}} \varphi_{j_2}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}, t_{\kappa}^+, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_2}) < 0 \text{ and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^+ \to t_m} \varphi_{j_2}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}, t_{\kappa}^+, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_2}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j_2} = 1,2 \end{aligned}$$

$$(4.80)$$

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^+ \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j_2)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12,j_2)}$ for $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2});$

(iv) for some $j_1 \in \mathscr{L}_1$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{1})}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) < 0 \text{ and}$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2$$
(4.81)

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_1},j_1)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_{j_1},j_1)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j_1)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12,j_1)}$ for $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$; or for some $j_2 \in \mathscr{L}_2$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{2})}, (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{2}}} \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) > 0 \text{ and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(1)} (\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) = 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j_{2}} = 1, 2$$

$$(4.82)$$

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j_2)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j_2)}$ for $t_m \notin [t_{m_1},t_{m_2}];$ (v) for $j \in \{j_1, j_2\}$ in (iv) and $\alpha_j = 1, 2$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0,$$

$$\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j} = 1, 2$$

$$(4.83)$$

with
$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j},j)}^{\pm\varepsilon}$$
 at time $t_{\kappa}^{-} \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-}), t_{\kappa}^{+} \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$
for $t_{m} = t_{m_{1}}$ and $t_{m_{2}}$.

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.1 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions are satisfied, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are of the (l_1, l_2) -synchronization and desynchronization for time $[t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

Theorem 4.12 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \ge 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$, suppose $D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) = D^{s_{\alpha_j}} \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ $(s_{\alpha_j} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots)$ for the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are of an $(l_1, l_2) - (2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha_1} + 1)$ th synchronization and $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha_2} + 1)$ th-desynchronization for time $[t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, $\mathbf{y}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ for any time t_m

$$\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, \boldsymbol{\varphi}_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = D^{s_{\alpha_{j}}} \boldsymbol{\varphi}_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0$$
(4.84)
for $\alpha_{j} = 1, 2$ and $s_{\alpha_{j}} = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$

(ii) for all $j_1 \in \mathcal{L}_1$ and $\alpha_{j_1} = 1, 2$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})} &\neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{1})}, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}^{-}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{\kappa}^{-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) &= 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{1}}}); \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(2k_{z_{j_{1}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{\kappa}^{-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) > 0 \ \text{and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(2k_{z_{j_{1}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{\kappa}^{-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) &= 0 \ \text{for} \ \alpha_{j} = 1, 2; \end{aligned}$$

$$(4.85)$$

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa_1}^{(\alpha_{j_1},j_1)} \in \mathbf{\Omega}_{(\alpha_{j_1},j_1)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^- \in [t_{m-\varepsilon},t_m)$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j_1)} \in \partial \mathbf{\Omega}_{(12,j_1)}$ for $t_m \in (t_{m_1},t_{m_2})$; (iii) for all $j_2 \in \mathcal{L}_2$ and $\alpha_{j_2} = 1,2$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})} &\neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{2})}, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{2}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) &= 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j_{2}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{2}}}); \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j_{2}}} \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_{2}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) &< 0 \ \text{and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_{2}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) &= 0; \end{aligned}$$

$$(4.86)$$

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^+ \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j_2)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j_2)}$ for $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2});$ (iv) for some $j_1 \in \mathcal{L}_1$ and $\alpha_{j_1} = 1, 2$

147

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_{1})}, \\
\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{1}}}); \\
(-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_{1}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) < 0 \text{ and} \\
\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{+} \to t_{m}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_{1}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{\kappa}^{+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0;$$
(4.87)

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_1}, j_1)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j_1}, j_1)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ for $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$; or for some $j_2 \in \mathcal{L}_2$ and $\alpha_{j_2} = 1, 2$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)} &\neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j_2)}, \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_{m}^{+}} \varphi_{j_2}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_2}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_2}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j_2}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_2}}); \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j_2}} \varphi_{j_2}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_2}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_2}) > 0 \ \text{and} \\ \lim_{t_{\kappa}^{-} \to t_m} \varphi_{j_2}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_2}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2},j_2)}, t_{\kappa}^{-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_2}) = 0; \end{aligned}$$

$$(4.88)$$

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j_2}, j_2)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_{j_2}, j_2)}^{-\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa} \in (t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ for $t_m \notin [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$; (v) for $j \in \{j_1, j_2\}$ in (iv) and $\alpha_j = 1, 2$

$$\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha)} \neq \mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0)}, \\
\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} \varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1); \\
\lim_{t_{\kappa}^{\pm} \to t_{m\pm}} (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{\kappa}^{\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0.$$
(4.89)

with $\mathbf{y}_{\kappa}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}^{+\varepsilon}$ at time $t_{\kappa}^- \in [t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_{m-}), t_{\kappa}^+ \in (t_{m+}, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$ and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ for $t_m = t_{m_1}$ and t_{m_2} .

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.2 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions are satisfied, the two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to constraints in Eq. (3.4) are of an (l_1, l_2) - $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha 1} + 1)$ th -synchronization and $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha 2} + 1)$ th-desynchronization, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

Theorem 4.13 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ -continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \lambda_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 3)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}, \mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \lambda_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$.

and $\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to 1-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are of the (l_1, l_2, l_3) -synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for
$$\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$$
 and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ $(\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I})$ at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$
 $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = \varphi_j(\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}, t_m, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0$
for all $j \in \mathscr{L} = \mathscr{L}_1 \cup \mathscr{L}_2 \cup \mathscr{L}_3$

$$(4.90)$$

(ii) for all $j_1 \in \mathcal{L}_1$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_1}, j_1)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j_1)} = \mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\beta_{j_1}, j_1)}$ with $\alpha_{j_1}, \beta_{j_1} \in \mathcal{I}$ at time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) > 0, (-1)^{\beta_{j_{1}}} \varphi_{j_{1}}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\beta_{j_{1}},j_{1})}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) > 0;$$
(4.91)

(iii) for all $j_2 \in \mathscr{L}_2$, $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_2}, j_2)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j_2)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_2}, j_2)}$ at time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j_{2}}} \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j_{2}}} \varphi_{j_{2}}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{2}},j_{2})}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{2}}) < 0$$
for $\alpha_{j_{2}}, \beta_{j_{2}} \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\alpha_{j_{2}} \neq \beta_{j_{2}};$

$$(4.92)$$

(iv) for all $j_3 \in \mathscr{L}_3$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_3}, j_3)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j_3)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_3}, j_3)}$ at time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j_3}} \varphi_{j_3}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_3},j_3)}, t_{m-}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_3}) < 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j_3}} \varphi_{j_3}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_3},j_3)}, t_{m+}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_3}) < 0$$
for $\alpha_{j_3}, \beta_{j_3} \in \mathscr{I}$ and $\alpha_{j_3} \neq \beta_{j_3};$

$$(4.93)$$

(v) for one of $j \in \{j_1, j_2, j_3\}$ with time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0, j)}$ (i = 1, 2), $\alpha_j \in \{1, 2\}$

$$\begin{split} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &= 0, \\ (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &< 0, \end{split}$$
(4.94)

and/or for $\beta_i \in \{1,2\}$

$$\begin{aligned} \varphi_{j}^{(1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &= 0, \\ (-1)^{\beta_{j}}\varphi_{j}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m_{i}\pm},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) &< 0. \end{aligned} \tag{4.95}$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.3 for each $j \in \mathscr{L}$. For all $j \in \mathscr{L}$, if the conditions are satisfied, of the (l_1, l_2, l_3) -synchronization,

desynchronization, and penetration for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

Theorem 4.14 Consider two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) with constraints in Eq. (3.4). For $\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$ and $j \in \mathcal{L}$ with $\mathcal{I} = \{1,2\}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1,2, \dots, l\}$) and $\mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{(12,j)}$ at time $t_m, \mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$. For any small $\varepsilon > 0$, there is a time interval $[t_{m-\varepsilon}, t_m)$ or $(t_m, t_{m+\varepsilon}]$. The constraint function $\varphi_j(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is $C^{r_{\alpha_j}}$ continuous and $|\varphi_j^{(r_{\alpha_j}+1)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)| < \infty$ $(r_{\alpha_j} \geq 2k_{\alpha_j} + 1)$. For $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ and $\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \in \partial \Omega_{12(j)}$, $\mathbb{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\pi}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \neq \mathbb{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j)$ is assumed for $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}$ and $\alpha_j \in \mathcal{I}$. The two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are of the (l_1, l_2, l_3) -synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration of the $\bigcup_{i=1}^3 (2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha_i} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta_i})$ -type for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ if and only if

(i) for
$$\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0,j)}$$
 and $\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \in \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ $(\alpha_j \in \mathscr{I})$ at time $t = t_m \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$

$$\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(0,j)}, t_{m}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0$$

for all $j \in \mathscr{L} = \mathscr{L}_{1} \cup \mathscr{L}_{2} \cup \mathscr{L}_{3}$ (4.96)

(ii) for all $j_1 \in \mathscr{L}_1$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_1}, j_1)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j_1)}$ and $\alpha_{j_1} = 1, 2$ at time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\varphi_{j_{1}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j_{1}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{1}}}
(-1)^{\alpha_{j_{1}}}\varphi_{j_{1}}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_{1}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{1}},j_{1})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) > 0,$$
(4.97)

(iii) for all $j_2 \in \mathscr{L}_2$, $\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_2}, j_2)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j_2)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_2}, j_2)}$ at time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\varphi_{j_{2}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{2}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j_{2}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{2}}}
(-1)^{\alpha_{j_{2}}}\varphi_{j_{2}}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_{2}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\alpha_{j_{2}},j_{2})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{1}}) < 0 \text{ for } \alpha_{j_{2}} = 1, 2;$$
(4.98)

(iv) for all $j_3 \in \mathscr{L}_3$, $\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_3}, j_3)} = \mathbf{y}_m^{(0, j_3)} = \mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_3}, j_3)}$ at time $t_m \in (t_{m_1}, t_{m_2})$

$$\varphi_{j_{3}}^{(s_{\alpha_{j_{3}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\alpha_{j_{3}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\alpha_{j_{3}}},
(-1)^{\alpha_{j_{3}}}\varphi_{j_{3}}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j_{3}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m-}^{(\alpha_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m-},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) > 0;
\varphi_{j_{3}}^{(s_{\beta_{j_{3}}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) = 0 \text{ for } s_{\beta_{j_{3}}} = 1, 2, \cdots, 2k_{\beta_{j_{3}}},
(-1)^{\beta_{j_{1}}}\varphi_{j_{3}}^{(2k_{\beta_{j_{3}}}+1)}(\mathbf{y}_{m+}^{(\beta_{j_{3}},j_{3})},t_{m+},\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j_{3}}) < 0
\text{ for } \alpha_{j_{3}}, \beta_{j_{3}} \in \mathscr{I} \text{ and } \alpha_{j_{3}} \neq \beta_{j_{3}};$$
(4.99)

(v) for one of $j \in \{j_1, j_2, j_3\}$ with the $(2k_{\alpha_j} : 2k_{\beta_j})$ -singularity with time $t = t_{m_i}$, $\mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(\alpha_j, j)} = \mathbf{y}_{m_i}^{(0, j)}$ (i = 1, 2) and $\alpha_j \in \{1, 2\}$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\alpha_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\alpha_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\alpha_{j}} + 1),$$

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\alpha_{j}}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0;$$

$$(4.100)$$

and/or for $\beta_i \in \{1, 2\}$

$$\varphi_{j}^{(s_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \ (s_{\beta_{j}} = 1, 2, \cdots 2k_{\beta_{j}} + 1),$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} \varphi_{j}^{(2k_{\beta}+2)}(\mathbf{y}_{m_{i}\pm}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m_{i}\pm}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0.$$

$$(4.101)$$

Proof The proof is similar to the proof of Theorem 3.4 for each $j \in \mathcal{L}$. For all $j \in \mathcal{L}$, if the conditions are satisfied, two dynamical systems in Eqs. (3.1) and (3.2) to *l*-constraints in Eq. (3.4) are of the (l_1, l_2, l_3) -synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration of the $\bigcup_{i=1}^{3} (2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha i} : 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta i})$ -type for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, vice versa. This theorem is proved.

4.9 Complexity by System Synchronization

To discuss the synchronization complexity, consider many master systems and many slave systems. A few master and slave systems with constraints can be synchronized.

Definition 4.21 A S-set of slave systems is defined as

$$\boldsymbol{\mathcal{S}} \equiv \left\{ {}^{(I_s)} \mathbf{x} = {}^{(I_s)} \mathbf{F} ({}^{(I_s)} \mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_s)} \mathbf{p}) \left| I_s = 1, 2, \cdots; {}^{(I_s)} \mathbf{x} \in \mathscr{R}^{n_{(I_s)}}; {}^{(I_s)} \mathbf{p} \in \mathscr{R}^{k_{(I_s)}} \right\}$$
(4.102)

and an *M*-set of master systems is defined as

$$\mathcal{M} \equiv \left\{ {}^{(I_r)} \dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_r)} \mathbf{F}({}^{(I_r)} \mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_r)} \mathbf{p}) \big| I_r = 1, 2, \cdots; {}^{(I_r)} \mathbf{x} \in \mathscr{R}^{n_{(I_r)}}; {}^{(I_r)} \mathbf{p} \in \mathscr{R}^{k_{(I_r)}} \right\}$$

$$(4.103)$$

This definition gives a cluster of slave systems and a cluster of master systems. To investigate the synchronization of the slave and master systems, the slave and master systems can be selected from such \mathcal{S} -set of slave systems and \mathcal{W} -set of master systems. For a slave system in the \mathcal{S} -set of slave systems, it can be synchronized with many master systems in the \mathcal{W} -set of master systems with the corresponding constraints. The constraints for such synchronization can be either single or

multiple constraints, and the synchronized components for such constraints can be either full or partial components from those slave and master systems. Based on this reason, the subspace set in state space should be defined.

Definition 4.22 A subspace set of the I_s th-slave system is defined as

$$\boldsymbol{\Omega}_{\boldsymbol{\mathcal{S}}} \equiv \Big\{^{(I_s,\mu_s)} \boldsymbol{\Omega}_{\boldsymbol{\mathcal{S}}} \big| \mu_s = 1, 2, \cdots; I_s = 1, 2, \cdots \Big\},$$
(4.104)

where

$$\Omega_{s} \equiv \left\{ {}^{(I_{s},\mu_{s})} \mathbf{\Omega}_{s} \equiv \left\{ {}^{(I_{s},\mu_{s})} \mathbf{x} \right| {}^{(I_{s},\mu_{s})} \mathbf{x} = ({}^{(I_{s},\mu_{s})} x_{1}, {}^{(I_{s},\mu_{s})} x_{2}, \cdots, {}^{(I_{s},\mu_{s})} x_{\Gamma_{\mu}})^{\mathrm{T}}, \\ \mu_{s} = 1, 2, \cdots, \text{ and } \Gamma_{\mu_{s}} \le n_{(I_{s})}, \\ {}^{(I_{s},\mu_{s})} x_{i} \in \{{}^{(I_{s})} x_{1}, {}^{(I_{s})} x_{2}, \cdots, {}^{(I_{s})} x_{n_{(I_{s})}}\}, i = 1, 2, \cdots, \Gamma_{\mu_{s}} \right\}$$

$$(4.105)$$

and a subspace set of the I_r th-master system is defined as

$$\Omega_{\mathcal{M}} \equiv \left\{ {}^{(I_r,\mu_r)} \Omega_{\mathcal{M}} \middle| \mu_r = 1, 2, \cdots; I_r = 1, 2, \cdots \right\}$$
(4.106)

where

$${}^{(I_r,\mu_r)}\Omega_{\mathcal{H}} \equiv \begin{cases} {}^{(I_r,\mu_r)} \mathbf{x} | {}^{(I_r,\mu_r)} \mathbf{x} = ({}^{(I_r,\mu_r)} x_1, {}^{(I_r,\mu_r)} x_2, \cdots, {}^{(I_r,\mu_r)} x_{\Gamma_{\mu_r}})^T, \\ \mu_r = 1, 2, \cdots, \text{ and } \Gamma_{\mu_r} \le n_{(I_r)}, \\ {}^{(I_r,\mu_r)} x_i \in \{{}^{(I_r)} x_1, {}^{(I_r)} X_2, \cdots, {}^{(I_r)} X_{n_{(I_r)}}\}, i = 1, 2, \cdots, \Gamma_{\mu_r} \end{cases}$$
(4.107)

From the foregoing definitions of the two subspace sets for slave and master systems, each subspace for the I_s th-slave system (or the I_r th-master system) is arbitrarily selected from $n_{(I_s)}$ -components (or $n_{(I_r)}$ -components). Based on such phase subspaces for the I_s th-slave system and the I_r th-master system, the corresponding constraint can be defined for the synchronization of such slave and master systems on the two subspaces. Thus, the corresponding \mathcal{C} -set of the constraints for the slave and master systems is defined as follows.

Definition 4.23 For two subspaces ${}^{(I_s,\mu_s)}\Omega_{\mathcal{S}}$ and ${}^{(I_r,\mu_r)}\Omega_{\mathcal{M}}$, a \mathcal{C} -set of constraints is defined as

$$\boldsymbol{\mathscr{C}} \equiv \left\{ {}^{(I_r, I_s)} \boldsymbol{\mathscr{C}} \middle| I_r = 1, 2, \cdots; I_s = 1, 2, \cdots \right\}$$
(4.108)

where

$${}^{(I_r,I_s)}\mathscr{C} \equiv \left\{ {}^{(I_r,I_s)}\varphi_j ({}^{(I_r,\mu_s)}\mathbf{x}, {}^{(I_s,\mu_s)}\mathbf{x}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0 \big| j = 1, 2, \cdots; \\ \mu_r, \mu_s = 1, 2, \cdots; \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j \in \mathscr{R}^{n_j} \right\}.$$

$$(4.109)$$

Definition 4.24 Consider M_s -slave systems from the S-set of slave systems and M_r -master systems from the \mathcal{W} -set of master systems

$${}^{(I_s)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for all } I_s \in \{1, 2, \cdots, M_s\}$$
(4.110)

$${}^{(I_r)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for all } I_r \in \{1, 2, \cdots, M_r\}$$
(4.111)

There are *l*-constraints on two subspaces sets Ω_{5} and Ω_{m} ,

$${}^{(l_r,l_s)}\varphi_j({}^{(l_r,\mu_r)}\mathbf{x},{}^{(l_s,\mu_s)}\mathbf{x},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0 \text{ for all } j \in \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$$

$$(4.112)$$

with $l \leq \sum_{l=1}^{M} n_{(l)}$. If all the *l*-constraints in Eq. (4.112) hold for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, then M_s -slave systems with M_r -master systems are called to be synchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (4.112).

The foregoing definition gives the synchronization between two clusters of slave and master systems are discussed. For $I_r = I_s = 1$, the foregoing definition implies the slave and master systems are one to one. If the two subspace sets of the slave and master systems take all components in state space, and the corresponding constraints in Eq. (4.112) becomes Eq. (3.3) or Eq. (3.4). The synchronicity for such slave and master systems was discussed as before. To further explain the above definition, one slave system with multiple master systems or one master system with multiple slave systems can be discussed.

Definition 4.25 Consider M_s -slave systems from the S-set of slave systems and a master system from the \mathcal{W} -set of master systems

$${}^{(I_s)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for all } I_s \in \{1, 2, \cdots, M_s\}$$

$$(4.113)$$

$${}^{(I_r)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for } I_r = 1$$

$$(4.114)$$

There are *l*-constraints on two subspace sets Ω_s and Ω_m ,

$${}^{(1,l_s)}\varphi_j({}^{(1)}\mathbf{x},{}^{(l_s)}\mathbf{x},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0 \text{ for all } j \in \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$$
(4.115)

with $l \leq \sum_{I=1}^{M} n_{(I)}$. If all the *l*-constraints in Eq. (4.115) hold for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, then the M_s -slave systems with the master system are called to be synchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (4.115).

This definition tells that M_s -slave systems are synchronized with one master system with different constraints. For each $I_s \in \{1, 2, \dots, M_s\}$, the corresponding slave system synchronized with the master system can be discussed. Consider two master systems for M_s -slave systems under different constraints.

Definition 4.26 Consider M_s -slave systems from the S-set of slave systems and two master systems from the \mathcal{M} -set of master systems

$${}^{(I_s)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for all } I_s \in \{1, 2, \cdots, M_s\}$$
(4.116)

$${}^{(I_r)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_r)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for } I_r = 1,2$$
(4.117)

There are *l*-constraints on two subspaces sets $\Omega_{\mathcal{S}}$ and $\Omega_{\mathcal{M}}$,

$${}^{(l_r, I_s)}\varphi_j({}^{(l_r)}\mathbf{x}, {}^{(l_s)}\mathbf{x}, t, \lambda_j) = 0 \text{ for all } j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, l\} \text{ and } I_r = 1, 2$$
 (4.118)

with $l \leq \sum_{l=1}^{M} n_{(l)}$. If all the *l*-constraints in Eq. (4.118) hold for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, then the *M*-slave systems with two master systems are called *to be synchronized* for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (4.118).

The foregoing definition gives that the M_s -slave systems can be synchronized with two master systems through different constraints. If the two master systems are considered to be two parent systems, the M_s -slave systems are treated as M_s -children systems. Further, the synchronicity of the parent and child systems can be called *the similarity of the parent and child systems*. For each child (or slave) system, under specific constraints in Eq. (4.118), the similarity of the child system with the two parent systems can be investigated as the synchronicity of the slave and master systems as discussed before. The synchronization of a slave system with multiple master systems under certain constraints can be also discussed.

Definition 4.27 Consider a slave system from the S-set of slave systems and M_r -master system from the \mathcal{W} -set of master systems

$${}^{(I_s)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(I_s)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for } I_s = 1,$$

$$(4.119)$$

$${}^{(l_r)}\dot{\mathbf{x}} = {}^{(l_r)}\mathbf{F}({}^{(l_r)}\mathbf{x}, t, {}^{(l_r)}\mathbf{p}) \text{ for all } I_r \in \{1, 2, \cdots, M_r\}.$$
(4.120)

There are *l*-constraints on two subspaces sets Ω_{S} and Ω_{m} ,

$${}^{(l_r,1)}\varphi_j({}^{(l_r)}\mathbf{x},{}^{(1)}\mathbf{x},t,\boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0 \text{ for all } j \in \{1,2,\cdots,l\}$$
(4.121)

with $l \le n_{(1)}$. If all the *l*-constraints in Eq. (4.121) hold for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$, then the slave system with the M_r -master systems are called to be synchronized for time $t \in [t_{m_1}, t_{m_2}]$ in the sense of Eq. (4.121).

The definition gives the slave system controlled by the M_r -master systems under the *l*-constraints. Similarly, the synchronization, desynchronization, and penetration on the boundary determined by the constraints can be defined through constraint functions of constraints, and the necessary and sufficient conditions for the synchronicity of complicated synchronizations of multiple systems can be developed in an alike fashion. To extend our discussion, the afore-discussed slave and master systems are considered as two classes of general systems. In other words, the vector fields for two classes of systems can be varied to the corresponding constraints. In addition, it is admissible that any a dynamical system from two classes of dynamical systems can be overconstrained. For this case, Definition 4.27 can be extended and applied for the number of constraints with $1 < l \le \sum_{l_s=1}^{M_s} n_{(l_s)}$ $+ \sum_{l_s=1}^{M_r} n_{(l_s)}$ as discussed in Chap. 3.

References

- 1. Luo ACJ (2009) A theory for synchronization of dynamical systems. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:1901–1951
- 2. Luo ACJ (2011) Discontinuous dynamical systems. HEP-Springer, Heidelberg

Chapter 5 Function Synchronizations

In this chapter, the theory of dynamical system synchronization will be applied to the function synchronization of two distinct dynamical systems. Periodic and chaotic synchronizations between two distinct dynamical systems under specific constraints will be investigated. The analytical conditions for the sinusoidal synchronization of the pendulum and Duffing oscillator will be presented, and the invariant domain of sinusoidal synchronization will be discussed. From analytical conditions, the control parameter map will be developed. The function synchronization identification of two distinct dynamical systems with specific constraints must be carried out only by G-functions. The significance of the function synchronnization of distinct dynamical systems is to make the synchronicity behaviors hidden, which can be very useful for telecommunication synchronization and network security.

5.1 Synchronization Constraints

In this section, basic concepts of the dynamical system synchronizations will be presented. The discontinuous description of the synchronization of two dynamical systems will be presented.

Definition 5.1 Two dynamical systems are defined by

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}} = \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{y}, t, \mathbf{p}) \in \mathscr{R}^n \text{ and } \dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}, t, \mathbf{q}) \in \mathscr{R}^{\underline{n}}$$
 (5.1)

If two flows $\mathbf{x}(t)$ and $\mathbf{y}(t)$ of the two systems in Eq. (5.1) satisfy

$$\varphi(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0, \ \boldsymbol{\lambda} \in \mathscr{R}^{n_0},$$
(5.2)

then the two systems are called to be synchronized (or constrained) under such a condition at time t.



Fig. 5.1 Synchronization surface for the two dynamical systems in Eq. (5.1)

From the foregoing definition, the synchronization (or constraint) of two dynamical systems in Eq. (5.1) occurs through $\varphi(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}(t), t, \lambda) = 0$ in Eq. (5.2). Such a condition may cause the discontinuity for two dynamical systems. If the synchronization condition is the separation boundary, then the domain and boundary for the first dynamical system in Eq. (5.1) will be time-varying, which is controlled by a flow of the second dynamical system in Eq. (5.1) (i.e., $\mathbf{x}(t)$), vice versa. Suppose the synchronization of two systems occurs at time *t*. For time $t \pm \varepsilon$ ($\varepsilon > 0$), there are two constants with

$$\varphi(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}, t \pm \varepsilon, \lambda) = C_{\pm} \neq 0. \tag{5.3}$$

If the flows of two systems in Eq. (5.1) satisfy Eq. (5.3), then the two systems will not be interacted, as shown in Fig. 5.1. In fact, the synchronization of two dynamical systems can occur under many constraints instead of Eq. (5.2), i.e.,

Definition 5.2 Consider *l*-non-identical functions of $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}(t), t, \lambda_j)$ ($j \in \mathcal{L}$ and $\mathcal{L} = \{1, 2, \dots, l\}$). If two flows $\mathbf{x}(t)$ and $\mathbf{y}(t)$ of two systems in Eq. (5.1) satisfy for time *t*

$$\varphi_i(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_i) = 0 \quad \text{for } \boldsymbol{\lambda}_i \in \mathscr{R}^{n_i} \text{ and } j \in \mathscr{L},$$
(5.4)

then two systems in Eq. (5.1) are called to be synchronized (or constrained) under the *j*th-condition at time *t*.

5.2 Synchronization Mechanism

For the foregoing definition, two dynamical systems in Eq. (5.1) possess *l*-conditions for synchronizations (or constraints). Thus, the *l*-separation boundaries relative to the synchronization divide the corresponding phase space into many sub-domains for the two dynamical systems, and these sub-domains change with time.

The synchronization between two dynamical systems can be discussed in the vicinity of synchronization boundary. Since the master system is independent of the synchronization constraint, only the slave system should be controlled to satisfy the synchronization constraints. Thus, the controlled slave system is discontinuous under the *j*th-synchronization constraint. The corresponding domains and boundary for the controlled slave system can be defined by

$$\Omega_{(1,j)} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(1,j)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}^{(1,j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) > 0, \\ \varphi_{j} \text{ is } C^{r_{j}} \text{-continuous } (r_{j} \ge 1) \end{array} \right\}, \\
\Omega_{(2,j)} = \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(2,j)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi_{j}(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}^{(2,j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) < 0, \\ \varphi_{j} \text{ is } C^{r_{j}} \text{-continuous } (r_{j} \ge 1) \end{array} \right\}, \\
\partial\Omega_{(12,j)} = \bar{\Omega}_{(1,j)} \cap \bar{\Omega}_{(2,j)}$$
(5.5)

$$= \left\{ \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)} \middle| \begin{array}{l} \varphi_j(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0\\ \varphi_j \text{ is } C^{r_j} \text{-continuous } (r_j \ge 1) \end{array} \right\}.$$
(5.6)

From the domains and boundary, the corresponding equations for the controlled slaved system become for $j \in \mathcal{L}$

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) \quad \text{on } \Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$$
(5.7)

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(0,j)} = \mathbf{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) \quad \text{on } \partial\Omega_{(12,j)}$$
(5.8)

5.2 Synchronization Mechanism

In this section, the synchronization behaviors between two dynamical systems will be discussed in the vicinity of synchronization boundary. For simplicity, a new variable is introduced in domain $\Omega_{(\alpha_i,j)}$

$$z^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \varphi_j(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) \quad \text{for } j \in \mathscr{L}.$$
(5.9)

On the boundary $\partial \Omega_{(\alpha_i \beta_i, j)}$,

$$z^{(0,j)} = \varphi_j(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0 \quad \text{for } j \in \mathscr{L}.$$
(5.10)

5 Function Synchronizations

If the two systems do not synchronize each other, the new variables $(z_j \neq 0, j = 1, 2, \dots, l)$ will change with time *t*. The corresponding time-change rate is given by

$$\dot{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = D\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}} \dot{\mathbf{x}} + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}} \dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial t}$$

$$= \sum_{p=1}^{n} \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial x_{p}} \dot{x}_{p} + \sum_{q=1}^{n} \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial y_{q}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}} \dot{y}_{q}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial t}.$$
(5.11)

Substitution of Eqs. (5.1) and (5.7) into Eq. (5.11) yields

$$\dot{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \sum_{p=1}^{\underline{n}} \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial x_{p}} \mathscr{F}_{p}(\mathbf{x}, t, \mathbf{q}) + \sum_{q=1}^{\underline{n}} \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial y_{q}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}} F_{q}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}t, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}) + \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial t}.$$
(5.12)

Two new normal vectors are defined as

$$\underline{\mathbf{n}}_{\varphi_{j}} = \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}} = \left(\frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial x_{1}}, \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial x_{2}}, \cdots, \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial x_{n}}\right)^{\mathrm{T}},
\mathbf{n}_{\varphi_{j}} = \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial \mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}} = \left(\frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial y_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}}, \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial y_{2}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}}, \cdots, \frac{\partial \varphi_{j}}{\partial y_{n}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}}\right)^{\mathrm{T}}.$$
(5.13)

Using Eq. (5.13), Eq. (5.12) becomes

$$\dot{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \underline{\mathbf{n}}_{\varphi_j} \cdot \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}, t, \mathbf{q}) + \mathbf{n}_{\varphi_j} \cdot \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) + \frac{\partial \varphi_j}{\partial t}.$$
(5.14)

If the vector fields in different domains $\Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$ ($\alpha_j = 1, 2$) are distinguishing, $\dot{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)}$ is discontinuous. Similarly, for each domain $\Omega_{(\alpha_j,j)}$, one obtains

$$\ddot{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = D[\underline{\mathbf{n}}_{\varphi_j} \cdot \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x},t,\mathbf{q}) + \mathbf{n}_{\varphi_j} \cdot \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_j,j)},t,\mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_j,j)}) + \frac{\partial \varphi_j}{\partial t}].$$
(5.15)

The combination of Eqs. (5.14) and (5.15) gives a dynamical system in phase space of (z, \dot{z}) , i.e., for $j \in \mathcal{L}$

$$\dot{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t)
\equiv \underline{\mathbf{n}}_{\varphi_{j}} \cdot \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x},t,\mathbf{p}) + \mathbf{n}_{\varphi_{j}} \cdot \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t,\mathbf{q}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}) + \frac{\partial\varphi_{j}}{\partial t},
\ddot{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = g_{2}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t) \equiv Dg_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t)
= D[\underline{\mathbf{n}}_{\varphi_{j}} \cdot \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x},t,\mathbf{p}) + \mathbf{n}_{\varphi_{j}} \cdot \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t,\mathbf{q}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}) + \frac{\partial\varphi_{j}}{\partial t}],$$
(5.16)

where $\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = (z^{(\alpha_j,j)}, \dot{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)})^{\mathrm{T}}$. Letting $\mathbf{g}^{(\alpha_j,j)} = (g_1^{(\alpha_j,j)}, g_2^{(\alpha_j,j)})^{\mathrm{T}}$, one obtains

$$\dot{\mathbf{z}}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{g}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t) \text{ for } j \in \mathscr{L}; \dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x},t,\mathbf{q}) \in \mathscr{R}^{\underline{n}}, \dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\alpha_{j},j)} = \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t,\mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}) \in \mathscr{R}^{n}.$$

$$(5.17)$$

For a better understanding of such a discontinuous dynamical system, the boundary and domains in phase space are defined as

$$\partial \Xi_{(12,j)} = \overline{\Xi}_{(1,j)} \cap \overline{\Xi}_{(2,j)} = \left\{ (z^{(0,j)}, \dot{z}^{(0,j)}) \middle| \Psi_j \left(z^{(0,j)}, \dot{z}^{(0,j)} \right) = z^{(0,j)} = 0 \right\} \subset \mathscr{R};$$
(5.18)

and

$$\begin{split} \Xi_{(1,j)} &= \left\{ (z^{(1,j)}, \dot{z}^{(1,j)}) \big| z^{(1,j)} > 0 \right\} \subset \mathscr{R}^2; \\ \Xi_{(2,j)} &= \left\{ (z^{(1,j)}, \dot{z}^{(1,j)}) \big| z^{(2,j)} < 0 \right\} \subset \mathscr{R}^2. \end{split}$$
(5.19)

 $\varphi_j(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) = 0$ on the synchronization boundary gives

$$\frac{d^{s}z^{(0,j)}}{dt^{s}} = D^{s}\varphi_{j}(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}(t), t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}) = 0 \text{ for } s = 1, 2, \cdots$$
(5.20)

Thus, the synchronization boundary is determined by

$$z^{(0,j)} = 0, \ \dot{z}^{(0,j)} = 0 \quad \text{for } j \in \mathscr{L};$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}, t, \mathbf{q}) \in \mathscr{R}^{\underline{n}}, \text{ and } \ \dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(0,j)} = \mathbf{F}^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{y}^{(0,j)}, t, \boldsymbol{\lambda}_j) \in \mathscr{R}^{n}.$$
(5.21)

The domains and boundary in phase space of $(z^{(j)}, \dot{z}^{(j)})$ are sketched in Fig. 5.2 and the location for switching may not be continuous (i.e., $\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \neq \mathbf{z}^{(\beta_j,j)} \neq \mathbf{z}^{(0,j)} = 0$) because the vector fields of the resultant system are discontinuous (or $\dot{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)} \neq \dot{z}^{(\beta_j,j)} \neq \dot{z}^{(0,j)} = 0$), but the boundary in such phase space is independent of time. However, the boundaries and domains in phase space of the controlled slave system in Eqs. (5.8) and (5.9) are shown in Fig. 5.2. The boundary varying with time is presented, but switching points for a flow are continuous. However, such flows will be controlled by the vector fields $\mathbf{g}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(1,j)}, t)$ and $\mathbf{g}^{(2,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(2,j)}, t)$. The dynamical systems in phase space $(z^{(j)}, \dot{z}^{(j)})$ are:

$$\dot{\mathbf{z}}^{(\Lambda_{j,j})} = \mathbf{g}^{(\Lambda_{j,j})}(\mathbf{z}^{(\Lambda_{j,j})}, t) \text{ for } j \in \mathscr{L}, \Lambda_{j} = 0, \alpha_{j}$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}, t, \mathbf{q}) \in \mathscr{R}^{\underline{n}},$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\Lambda_{j,j})} = \mathbf{F}^{(\Lambda_{j,j})}(\mathbf{y}^{(\Lambda_{j,j})}, t, \mathbf{p}^{(\Lambda_{j,j})}) \in \mathscr{R}^{n},$$

$$(5.22)$$



Fig. 5.2 A partition of phase space: (a) (z, \dot{z}) for the *j*th-synchronization boundary and (b) the controlled slave system. Two *dashed lines* (curves) are infinitesimally close to the boundary with the *dotted line* (curve)

where

$$g^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t) = (g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t), g_{2}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t))^{\mathrm{T}}
 in \Xi_{\alpha_{j}}(\alpha_{j} \in \{1,2\});
 g^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t) \in [\mathbf{g}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t), \mathbf{g}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t)]
 on \partial \Xi_{(12,j)} \text{ for non-stick,}
 g^{(0,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t) = (0,0)^{\mathrm{T}} \text{ on } \partial \Xi_{(12,j)} \text{ for stick.}
 \end{cases}$$
(5.23)

The normal vector of $\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}$ is computed from Eq. (5.17), i.e.,

$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}} = (1,0)^{\mathrm{T}} \text{ and } D\mathbf{n}_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}} = (0,0)^{\mathrm{T}},$$
 (5.24)

where $D(\cdot) = D(\cdot)/Dt$. From Chap. 2, the corresponding two *G*-functions are computed by

$$G_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,\alpha_j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)},t) = \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}} \cdot \mathbf{g}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)},t) = g_1^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)},t), G_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(1,\alpha_j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)},t) = \mathbf{n}_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}} \cdot D\mathbf{g}^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)},t) = g_2^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha_j,j)},t).$$
(5.25)

With G-functions, the sufficient and necessary conditions for a passable flow at $(\mathbf{z}_m^{(0,j)}, t_m)$ with $\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)} = \mathbf{z}_m^{(0,j)}$ for the boundary $\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}$ are given from Chap. 2

$$\left. \begin{array}{l}
 G^{(0,1)}_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}(\mathbf{z}^{(1,j)}_{m}, t_{m-}) = g^{(1,j)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}^{(1,j)}_{m}, t_{m-}) < 0, \\
 G^{(0,2)}_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}(\mathbf{z}^{(2,j)}_{m}, t_{m+}) = g^{(2,j)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}^{(2,j)}_{m}, t_{m+}) < 0, \\
 G^{(0,1)}_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}(\mathbf{z}^{(1,j)}_{m}, t_{m+}) = g^{(1,j)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}^{(1,j)}_{m}, t_{m+}) > 0, \\
 G^{(0,2)}_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}(\mathbf{z}^{(2,j)}_{m}, t_{m-}) = g^{(2,j)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}^{(2,j)}_{m}, t_{m-}) > 0, \\
 G^{(0,2)}_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}(\mathbf{z}^{(2,j)}_{m}, t_{m-}) = g^{(2,j)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}^{(2,j)}_{m}, t_{m-}) > 0, \\
 \end{array} \right\} \quad \text{for } \Xi_{(2,j)} \to \Xi_{(1,j)}$$
(5.26)

where

$$g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\pm}) = \underline{\mathbf{n}}_{\varphi_{j}} \cdot \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}_{m},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{q}) + \mathbf{n}_{\varphi_{j}} \cdot \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{y}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\pm},\mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}) + \frac{\partial\varphi_{j}}{\partial t}.$$
(5.27)

The foregoing conditions give the sufficient and necessary conditions for the controlled slave system synchronizing with the master system under the *j*th-synchronization condition, and the current states of the controlled slave system will be switched from one domain to the other through such a synchronization condition. From Chap. 3, such a flow to the synchronization boundary is called a *penetration synchronization* between two dynamical systems.

The sufficient and necessary conditions for a stick flow (or sink flow or sliding flow) on the synchronization boundary $\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}$ are obtained from Chap. 2,

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Xi_{(12j)}}^{(0,1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(1,j)},t_{m-}) = g_{1}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(1,j)},t_{m-}) < 0, \\ G_{\partial\Xi_{(12j)}}^{(0,2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(2,j)},t_{m-}) = g_{1}^{(2,j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(2,j)},t_{m-}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \quad \text{on } \partial\Xi_{(12j)} \tag{5.28}$$

From the foregoing condition, the controlled slave systems will stick with the master system under the *j*th-synchronization condition. From Chap. 3, this phenomenon is called the synchronization of the controlled slave system with the master system under the *j*th-synchronization condition.

Similarly, the sufficient and necessary conditions for a source flow on the boundary $\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}$ are given in Chaps. 2–4, i.e.,

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(1,j)},t_{m+}) = g_{1}^{(1,j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(1,j)},t_{m+}) > 0, \\ G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(2,j)},t_{m+}) = g_{1}^{(2,j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(2,j)},t_{m+}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \quad \text{on } \partial\Xi_{(12,j)} \tag{5.29}$$

For this case, the controlled slave system will not synchronize with the master system at $(\mathbf{z}_m^{(0,j)}, t_m)$ for the synchronization boundary $\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}$ relative to the *j*th-synchronization condition. From Chap. 3, this phenomenon is called the desynchronization of the controlled slave system with the master system under the *j*th-synchronization condition.

The appearance and disappearance of three synchronization states of the two dynamical systems to the *j*th-synchronization condition in Eq. (5.4) can be determined from Chaps. 2 to 4 (e.g., [1, 2]) for the switching bifurcation of three states of synchronizations between the two dynamical systems.

(i) The sufficient and necessary conditions of synchronization appearance from the instantaneous penetration synchronization are

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,\alpha_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}) = (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}) > 0;$$

$$G_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(1,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) = (-1)^{\beta_{j}} g_{2}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) < 0.$$
(5.30)

The sufficient and necessary conditions for synchronization vanishing from the *j*th-synchronization boundary are

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j}j)}}^{(0,\alpha_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}) = (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m-}) > 0;$$

$$G_{\partial \Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(0,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) = g_{1}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(1,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) = (-1)^{\beta_{j}} g_{2}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) < 0.$$
(5.31)

The *appearance* and *vanishing* conditions for the synchronization relative to the instantaneous synchronization in Eq. (5.30) are the *vanishing* and *appearance* conditions for the instantaneous penetration synchronization relative to the synchronization, respectively.

(ii) From Chaps. 2 to 4, the sufficient and necessary conditions are

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(0,\alpha_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}) = (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}) < 0;$$

$$G_{\partial \Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(0,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) = g_{1}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(1,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) = (-1)^{\beta_{j}} g_{2}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\mp}) < 0$$

$$(5.32)$$

for desynchronization appearance pertaining to the instantaneous penetration synchronization and,

$$(-1)^{\alpha_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(x_{i}\beta_{j}j)}}^{(0,\alpha_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}) = (-1)^{\alpha_{j}} g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}, t_{m+}) < 0;$$

$$G_{\partial \Xi_{(x_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(0,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) = 0,$$

$$(-1)^{\beta_{j}} G_{\partial \Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(1,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) = (-1)^{\beta_{j}} g_{2}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)}, t_{m\pm}) < 0.$$
(5.33)

for the vanishing of the desynchronization pertaining to the instantaneous synchronization.

(iii) From Chaps. 2 to 4, the sufficient and necessary switching conditions between the synchronization and desynchronization of the controlled slave and master systems on the *j*th-synchronization boundary are

$$\begin{aligned}
G_{\partial\Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(0,\alpha_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) &= g_{1}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) = 0 \\
(-1)^{\alpha_{j}}G_{\partial\Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(1,\alpha_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) &= (-1)^{\alpha_{j}}g_{2}^{(\alpha_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) < 0; \\
G_{\partial\Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(0,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) &= g_{1}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) = 0, \\
(-1)^{\beta_{j}}G_{\partial\Xi_{(\alpha_{i}\beta_{j},j)}}^{(1,\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) &= (-1)^{\beta_{j}}g_{2}^{(\beta_{j},j)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta_{j},j)},t_{m\mp}) < 0.
\end{aligned}$$
(5.34)

Similarly, the sufficient and necessary switching conditions between two instantaneous penetration synchronizations at the *j*th-synchronization boundary for $\alpha_i \neq \beta_i$ are

$$\begin{aligned}
G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,\alpha_j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\mp}) &= g_1^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\mp}) = 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha_j \in \{1,2\}, \\
(-1)^{\alpha_j} G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(1,\alpha_j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\mp}) &= (-1)^{\alpha_j} g_2^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\mp}) < 0; \\
G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,\beta_j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\beta_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) &= g_1^{(\beta_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\beta_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) = 0 \quad \text{for } \beta_j \in \{1,2\}, \\
(-1)^{\beta_j} G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(1,\beta_j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\beta_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) &= (-1)^{\beta_j} g_2^{(\beta_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\beta_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) < 0.
\end{aligned}$$
(5.35)

A flow of the controlled slave system, tangential to the synchronization boundary $\partial \Xi_{(12,j)}$ is another instantaneous synchronization (or tangential synchronization), and the corresponding sufficient and necessary conditions are

$$G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(0,\alpha_j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) = g_1^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) = 0 \quad \text{for } \alpha_j \in \{1, 2\}, (-1)^{\alpha_j} G_{\partial\Xi_{(12,j)}}^{(1,\alpha_j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) = (-1)^{\alpha_j} g_2^{(\alpha_j,j)}(\mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha_j,j)}, t_{m\pm}) < 0.$$
(5.36)

5.3 Sinusoidal Synchronization

To demonstrate the function synchronization under specific constraints, the periodically forced, damped Duffing oscillator is considered herein as a master system as in Luo [3], i.e.,

$$\ddot{x} + d\dot{x} - a_1 x + a_2 x^3 = A_0 \cos \omega t, \tag{5.37}$$

where x is the displacement, d is the damping coefficient, and A_0 and ω are the excitation amplitude and frequency for the Duffing oscillator. A parametrically excited chaotic pendulum is considered as a slave system in Luo and Han [4], i.e.,

$$\ddot{y} + a_0 \sin y = Q_0 \cos \Omega t, \tag{5.38}$$

where y is the displacement for pendulum, and Q_0 and Ω are excitation amplitude and frequency, respectively. Consider a sinusoidal constraint of two displacements as

$$\varphi_1 = y - \sin x = 0. \tag{5.39}$$

Due to the velocity $\dot{x} = dx/dt$ and $\dot{y} = dy/dt$, the velocity synchronization constraint for dynamical systems is given by

$$\varphi_2 = \dot{y} - \dot{x}\cos x = 0. \tag{5.40}$$

The state variables for the master and slave systems are

$$\mathbf{x} = (x_1, x_2)^{\mathrm{T}} \equiv (x, \dot{x})^{\mathrm{T}} \text{ and } \mathbf{y} = (y_1, y_2)^{\mathrm{T}} \equiv (y, \dot{y})^{\mathrm{T}}.$$
 (5.41)

and the vector fields for master and slave systems are

$$\mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x},t) = (\mathscr{F}_1(\mathbf{x},t), \mathscr{F}_2(\mathbf{x},t))^{\mathrm{T}} \text{ and } \overline{\mathbf{F}}(\mathbf{y},t) = (\overline{F}_1(\mathbf{y},t), \overline{F}_2(\mathbf{y},t))^{\mathrm{T}},$$
 (5.42)

where

$$x_2 = \dot{x}_1 \text{ and } \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}, t) = -d_1 x_2 + a_1 x_1 - a_2 x_1^3 + A_0 \cos \omega t.$$
 (5.43)

$$\bar{F}_1(\mathbf{y},t) = y_2$$
 and $\bar{F}_2(\mathbf{y},t) = -a_0 \sin y_1 + Q_0 \cos \Omega t.$ (5.44)

To make the chaotic pendulum system synchronizing with the Duffing oscillator with the sinusoidal constraints in Eqs. (5.39) and (5.40), a feedback controller is designed as

$$\mathbf{u}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}, t, \mathbf{k}) = (u_1, u_2)^{\mathrm{T}}$$

$$u_1 = -k_1 \operatorname{sgn}(y_1 - \sin x_1) \text{ and } u_2 = -k_2 \operatorname{sgn}(y_2 - x_2 \cos x_1),$$
(5.45)

where k_1 and k_2 are controller parameters. Thus the controlled pendulum becomes

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}} = \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{y}, t) \equiv \overline{\mathbf{F}}(\mathbf{y}, t) + \mathbf{u}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}, t), \tag{5.46}$$

where the vector fields are defined by $\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{y},t) = (F_1(\mathbf{y},t), F_2(\mathbf{y},t))^{\mathrm{T}}$. With the control laws, there are four regions

(i) For $y_1 > \sin x_1$ and $y_2 > x_2 \cos x_1$,

$$F_1(\mathbf{y}, t) = y_2 - k_1,$$

$$F_2(\mathbf{y}, t) = -a_0 \sin y_1 + Q_0 \cos \Omega t - k_2.$$
(5.47)

(ii) For $y_1 > \sin x_1$ and $y_2 < x_2 \cos x_1$,

$$F_1(\mathbf{y}, t) = y_2 - k_1,$$

$$F_2(\mathbf{y}, t) = -a_0 \sin y_1 + Q_0 \cos \Omega t + k_2.$$
(5.48)

(iii) For $y_1 < \sin x_1$ and $y_2 < x_2 \cos x_1$,

$$F_1(\mathbf{y}, t) = y_2 - k_1,$$

$$F_2(\mathbf{y}, t) = -a_0 \sin y_1 + Q_0 \cos \Omega t + k_2.$$
(5.49)

(iv) For $y_1 < \sin x_1$ and $y_2 > x_2 \cos x_1$,

$$F_1(\mathbf{y}, t) = y_2 + k_1,$$

$$F_2(\mathbf{y}, t) = -a_0 \sin y_1 + Q_0 \cos \Omega t - k_2.$$
(5.50)

Under the control laws, the controlled pendulum system has four regions, four boundaries, plus an intersection point with different dynamical systems. The intersection point is the synchronization of the controlled pendulum synchronizing with the Duffing oscillator. In phase space, four domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha = 1, 2, 3, 4$) of the controlled pendulum are

$$\Omega_{1} = \{(y_{1}, y_{2}) | y_{1} - \sin x_{1} > 0, y_{2} - x_{2} \cos x_{1} > 0\},
\Omega_{2} = \{(y_{1}, y_{2}) | y_{1} - \sin x_{1} > 0, y_{2} - x_{2} \cos x_{1} < 0\},
\Omega_{3} = \{(y_{1}, y_{2}) | y_{1} - \sin x_{1} < 0, y_{2} - x_{2} \cos x_{1} < 0\},
\Omega_{4} = \{(y_{1}, y_{2}) | y_{1} - \sin x_{1} < 0, y_{2} - x_{2} \cos x_{1} > 0\}.$$
(5.51)



Fig. 5.3 Phase plane partitions and boundaries in the absolute frame

The boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ ($\alpha, \beta = 1, 2, 3, 4; \alpha \neq \beta$) of the four domains are

$$\partial \Omega_{12} = \{ (y_1, y_2) | y_2 - x_2 \cos x_1 = 0, y_1 - \sin x_1 > 0 \},
\partial \Omega_{23} = \{ (y_1, y_2) | y_1 - \sin x_1 = 0, y_2 - x_2 \cos x_1 < 0 \},
\partial \Omega_{34} = \{ (y_1, y_2) | y_2 - x_2 \cos x_1 = 0, y_1 - \sin x_1 < 0 \},
\partial \Omega_{14} = \{ (y_1, y_2) | y_1 - \sin x_1 = 0, y_2 - x_2 \cos x_1 > 0 \}.$$
(5.52)

The intersection point (vertex) of the boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ ($\alpha, \beta = 1, 2, 3, 4; \alpha \neq \beta$) is

$$\mathcal{L}\partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta} = \bigcap_{\alpha=1}^{4} \bigcap_{\beta=1}^{4} \partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta} = \{(y_1, y_2) | y_2 - x_2 \cos x_1 = 0, y_1 - \sin x_1 = 0 \}.$$
 (5.53)

The domains, boundaries, and vertex for the controlled pendulum are sketched in Fig. 5.3 for dynamical system synchronization under specific constraints through the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems. The domains of the controlled slave system are shaded, and the corresponding displacement and velocity boundaries are dashed curves, controlled by the master system (i.e., the Duffing oscillator). The intersected point of two boundaries is the corner for synchronization, which is labeled by a filled circular symbol.

The dynamical system of the controlled pendulum in the α -domain is

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)}, t), \tag{5.54}$$

where

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t) &= (F_1^{(\alpha)},F_2^{(\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}}, \\ F_1^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t) &= y_2^{(\alpha)} - k_1 \text{ for } \alpha = 1,2, \\ F_1^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t) &= y_2^{(\alpha)} + k_1 \text{ for } \alpha = 3,4, \\ F_2^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t) &= -a_0 \sin y_1^{(\alpha)} + Q_0 \cos \Omega t - k_2 \text{ for } \alpha = 1,4, \\ F_2^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha)},t) &= -a_0 \sin y_1^{(\alpha)} + Q_0 \cos \Omega t + k_2 \text{ for } \alpha = 2,3. \end{aligned}$$
(5.55)

The dynamical system on boundary $\partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta}$ is

$$\dot{\mathbf{y}}^{(\alpha\beta)} = \mathbf{F}^{(\alpha\beta)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha\beta)}, \mathbf{x}(t), t), \dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}, t),$$
(5.56)

where

$$\mathbf{F}^{(\alpha\beta)} = (F_1^{(\alpha\beta)}, F_2^{(\alpha\beta)})^{\mathrm{T}},$$

$$F_1^{(\alpha\beta)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha\beta)}, t) = y_2^{(\alpha\beta)} = x_2 \cos x_1 \text{ and } F_2^{(\alpha\beta)}(\mathbf{y}^{(\alpha\beta)}, t) = \dot{y}_2^{(\alpha\beta)}$$
(5.57)

with

$$y_1^{(\alpha\beta)} = \sin x_1 \text{ and } y_2^{(\alpha\beta)} = x_2 \cos x_1 \text{ on } \partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta} \text{ for } (\alpha, \beta) = (2, 3), (1, 4);$$

$$y_1^{(\alpha\beta)} = \sin x_1 + C \text{ and } y_2^{(\alpha\beta)} = x_2 \cos x_1 \text{ on } \partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta} \text{ for } (\alpha, \beta) = (1, 2), (3, 4).$$
(5.58)

Based on the absolute coordinates, the boundaries, and corner of the controlled pendulum are dependent on time. However, it is very difficult to develop analytical conditions for synchronization. Without loss of generality, the relative coordinates are defined as

$$z_1 = y_1 - \sin x_1$$
 and $\dot{z}_1 \equiv z_2 = y_2 - x_2 \cos x_1$. (5.59)

The domains, displacement and velocity boundaries, and synchronization corner in the relative coordinates are expressed by

$$\Omega_{1} = \{(z_{1}, z_{2}) | z_{1} > 0, z_{2} > 0\},
\Omega_{2} = \{(z_{1}, z_{2}) | z_{1} > 0, z_{2} < 0\},
\Omega_{3} = \{(z_{1}, z_{2}) | z_{1} < 0, z_{2} < 0\},
\Omega_{4} = \{(z_{1}, z_{2}) | z_{1} < 0, z_{2} > 0\}.$$
(5.60)



Fig. 5.4 Phase plane partitions and boundaries in the relative frame

$$\partial \Omega_{12} = \{(z_1, z_2) | z_2 = 0, z_1 > 0\},
\partial \Omega_{23} = \{(z_1, z_2) | z_1 = 0, z_2 < 0\},
\partial \Omega_{34} = \{(z_1, z_2) | z_2 = 0, z_1 < 0\},
\partial \Omega_{14} = \{(z_1, z_2) | z_1 = 0, z_2 > 0\}.$$

$$\angle \partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta} = \bigcap_{q=1}^4 \bigcap_{\beta=1}^4 \partial \Omega_{\alpha\beta} = \{(z_1, z_2) | z_2 = 0, z_1 = 0\}.$$
(5.62)

The boundaries in the relative coordinates are independent of time. From such domains, boundaries, and vertex, the analytical conditions for the synchronization of the controlled slave systems and master systems can be developed using the theory of discontinuous dynamical systems. The domains, displacement and velocity boundaries, and vertex in relative phase space are also sketched in Fig. 5.4.

The controlled pendulum in domain Ω_{α} is in the relative coordinates

$$\dot{\mathbf{z}}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{g}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) \text{ with } \dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{x}, t),$$
(5.63)

where

$$g^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = (g_1^{(\alpha)}, g_2^{(\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}},
 g_1^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = z_2^{(\alpha)} - k_1 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2,
 g_1^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = z_2^{(\alpha)} + k_1 \text{ for } \alpha = 3, 4,
 g_2^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) - k_2 \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 4,
 g_2^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) + k_2 \text{ for } \alpha = 2, 3$$
(5.64)

with

$$G(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = \dot{y}_2 - \dot{x}_2 \cos x_1 + x_2^2 \sin x_1$$

= $-a_0 \sin(z_1^{(\alpha)} + \sin x_1) + Q_0 \cos \Omega t$
+ $(d_1 x_2 - a_1 x_1 + a_2 x_1^3 - A_0 \cos \omega t) \cos x_1 + x_2^2 \sin x_1.$ (5.65)

The equation of motion on the boundary in the relative coordinates is

$$\dot{\mathbf{z}}^{(\alpha\beta)} = \mathbf{g}^{(\alpha\beta)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t) \text{ with } \dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{x}, t),$$
(5.66)

where

$$\mathbf{g}^{(\alpha\beta)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = (g_1^{(\alpha\beta)}, g_2^{(\alpha\beta)})^{\mathrm{T}},
g_1^{(\alpha\beta)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = z_2 = 0 \text{ and } g_2^{(\alpha\beta)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = 0$$
(5.67)

with

$$z_1^{(\alpha\beta)} = 0 \text{ and } z_2^{(\alpha\beta)} = 0 \text{ on } \partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta} \text{ for } (\alpha, \beta) = (2, 3), (1, 4),$$

$$z_1^{(\alpha\beta)} = C \text{ and } z_2^{(\alpha\beta)} = 0 \text{ on } \partial\Omega_{\alpha\beta} \text{ for } (\alpha, \beta) = (1, 2), (3, 4).$$
(5.68)

5.3.1 Synchronization Dynamics

From the theory of the discontinuous dynamical system in Chap. 2 (e.g., [1, 2]), the synchronization dynamics of the controlled pendulum to the Duffing oscillator can be discussed. Thus, the G-functions in the relative coordinates for $\mathbf{z}_m \in \partial \Omega_{ij}$ at $t = t_m$ are given by

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathsf{T}} \cdot [\mathbf{g}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) - \mathbf{g}^{(ij)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm})],$$
(5.69)

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot [D\mathbf{g}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) - D\mathbf{g}^{(ij)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm})],$$
(5.70)

where $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm})$ and $G_{\partial\Omega_{ij}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm})$ are the zero-order and first-order G-functions of the flow in the domain Ω_{α} ($\alpha \in \{i, j\}$) at the boundary $\partial\Omega_{ij}$ (i, j = 1, 2, 3, 4). The normal vectors of the relative boundaries from Eq. (5.61) are

$$\mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{12}} = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{34}} = (0,1)^{\mathrm{T}} \text{ and } \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{23}} = \mathbf{n}_{\partial\Omega_{14}} = (1,0)^{\mathrm{T}}.$$
 (5.71)

The corresponding G-functions at the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (i, j = 1, 2, 3, 4) from Eqs. (6.63) to (6.67) are for domain Ω_{α} ($\alpha \in \{1, 2, 3, 4\}$),

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = g_2^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}),$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = g_1^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_m, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}),$$
(5.72)

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}),$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}),$$
(5.73)

where

$$Dg_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = g_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t);$$

$$Dg_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = D\mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t)$$

$$= -a_{0}(z_{2}^{(\alpha)} + x_{2}\cos x_{1})\cos(z_{1}^{(\alpha)} + \sin x_{1}) - Q_{0}\Omega\sin\Omega t \qquad (5.74)$$

$$+ (d_{1}F_{2}(\mathbf{x}, t) - a_{1}x_{2} + 3a_{2}x_{1}^{2}x_{2} + \omega A_{0}\sin\omega t)\cos x_{1}$$

$$+ (d_{1}x_{2} - a_{1}x_{1} + a_{2}x_{1}^{3} - A_{0}\cos\omega t)x_{2}\sin x_{1} + x_{2}^{3}\sin x_{1}.$$

The G-functions in domains Ω_{α} ($\alpha \in \{1, 2, 3, 4\}$) at the boundary $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (i, j = 1, 2, 3, 4) are

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = g_2^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t),$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = g_1^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t);$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = Dg_2^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t),$$

$$G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t) = Dg_1^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x},t).$$
(5.75)

(A) Flow Switchability on the Separation Boundary. From Chaps. 2–4, the analytical conditions of a flow sliding on the boundaries of $\partial\Omega_{12}$, $\partial\Omega_{34}$, $\partial\Omega_{23}$ and $\partial\Omega_{14}$ for the controlled pendulum are

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = g_{2}^{(1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) < 0, \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = g_{2}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) > 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{12}; \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(3)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = g_{2}^{(3)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) > 0, \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(4)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = g_{2}^{(3)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{34}.$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{c} (5.76) \\ \text{for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{34}. \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = g_{1}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) < 0 \end{array} \right\} \text{ for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{23}; \\ \end{array} \right\}$$

The analytical conditions of a flow passing through the boundaries $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ $(i, j = 1, 2, 3, 4; j \neq i)$ for the controlled pendulum are

$$\begin{aligned}
 G^{(1)}_{\partial\Omega_{12}}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) &= g^{(1)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) < 0, \\
 G^{(2)}_{\partial\Omega_{12}}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) &= g^{(2)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) < 0
 \end{aligned}
 for $\mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{12}; \\
 G^{(3)}_{\partial\Omega_{34}}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) &= g^{(3)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) > 0, \\
 G^{(4)}_{\partial\Omega_{34}}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) &= g^{(4)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) > 0
 \end{aligned}
 for $\mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{34}.$
(5.78)$$$

$$\begin{aligned}
 G^{(2)}_{\partial\Omega_{23}}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) &= g^{(2)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) < 0, \\
 G^{(3)}_{\partial\Omega_{23}}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) &= g^{(3)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) < 0
 \end{aligned}
 \left. \begin{cases}
 for \ \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{23}; \\
 d_{2}\Omega_{14}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) &= g^{(1)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) > 0, \\
 d_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(4)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) &= g^{(4)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m+}) > 0
 \end{cases}$$
 for $\mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{14}.$

The analytical conditions of a flow grazing to the boundaries $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ $(i, j = 1, 2, 3, 4; j \neq i)$ for the controlled pendulum are

$$\left\{
 G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = 0 \\
 (-1)^{\alpha}G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = (-1)^{\alpha}Dg_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) > 0 \\
 for \, \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{23} \text{ in } \Omega_{\alpha}(\alpha \in \{2,3\}); \\
 G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = 0 \\
 (-1)^{\alpha}G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = (-1)^{\alpha}Dg_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) < 0 \\
 for \, \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{14} \text{ in } \Omega_{\alpha}(\alpha \in \{1,4\}).$$
(5.81)

The analytical conditions for onset of a sliding flow on the boundaries $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ (i, j = 1, 2, 3, 4; j \neq i) for the controlled pendulum are

$$\begin{array}{l}
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = g_{2}^{(1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) < 0, \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{2}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = 0, \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(1,2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{2}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) < 0 \right\} \\
\left. from \ \Omega_{1} \rightarrow \partial\Omega_{12}; \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(1,2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{2}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) < 0 \right\} \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(1,2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{2}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) < 0, \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(1,4)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{2}^{(4)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = 0, \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(1,4)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{2}^{(4)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) > 0 \right\} \\
\left. from \ \Omega_{3} \rightarrow \partial\Omega_{34}. \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) > 0 \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(2)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) < 0 \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{23}}^{(1,3)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{1}^{(3)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) < 0 \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(1,4)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) > 0 \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(1,1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = g_{1}^{(1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) > 0 \\
\right. \\
\left. from \ \Omega_{4} \rightarrow \partial\Omega_{14}. \\
\left. G_{\partial\Omega_{14}}^{(1,1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) = Dg_{1}^{(1)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\pm}) > 0 \\
\right. \\$$

$$(5.83)$$

The analytical conditions for vanishing of a sliding flow on the boundaries $\partial \Omega_{ij}$ $(i, j = 1, 2, 3, 4; j \neq i)$ to a domain for the controlled pendulum are

$$\begin{array}{l} (-1)^{\beta} G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = (-1)^{\beta} g_{2}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) > 0 \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) = g_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) = 0 \\ (-1)^{\alpha} G_{\partial\Omega_{12}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) = (-1)^{\alpha} D g_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) < 0, \\ \text{for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{12}; \alpha, \beta \in \{1,2\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha \\ (-1)^{\beta} G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) = (-1)^{\beta} g_{2}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m-}) < 0, \\ G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) = g_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) = 0, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} G_{\partial\Omega_{34}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) = (-1)^{\alpha} D g_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m},\mathbf{x},t_{m\mp}) > 0 \\ \text{for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{34}; \alpha, \beta \in \{3,4\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha \end{array} \right\} \text{ from } \partial\Omega_{34} \to \Omega_{\alpha}; \quad (5.85)$$

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} (-1)^{\mu} G_{\partial \Omega_{23}}^{(p)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = (-1)^{\rho} g_{1}^{(p)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) < 0, \\ G_{\partial \Omega_{23}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = 0, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} G_{\partial \Omega_{23}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = (-1)^{\alpha} D g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) > 0 \\ \text{for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial \Omega_{23}; \alpha, \beta \in \{2, 3\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha \end{array} \right\}$$
from $\partial \Omega_{23} \rightarrow \Omega_{\alpha}; \quad (5.86)$
$$\begin{array}{l} (-1)^{\beta} G_{\partial \Omega_{23}}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = (-1)^{\beta} g_{1}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) > 0, \\ G_{\partial \Omega_{23}}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = 0, \\ (-1)^{\alpha} G_{\partial \Omega_{23}}^{(1,\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = (-1)^{\alpha} D g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) < 0 \\ \text{for } \mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial \Omega_{14}; \alpha, \beta \in \{1, 4\} \text{ and } \beta \neq \alpha \end{array} \right\} \text{ from } \partial \Omega_{14} \to \Omega_{\alpha}.$$
(5.87)

(B) Synchronization Conditions. The analytical conditions for the complete synchronization of the controlled pendulum with the Duffing oscillator at the intersection of the two boundaries $(\mathbf{z}_m = \mathbf{0})$ are given by

$$\begin{aligned}
 G^{(1)}_{\partial\Omega_{14}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(1)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) < 0, \\
 G^{(1)}_{\partial\Omega_{12}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(1)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) < 0
 \end{aligned}
 \end{aligned}
 for $\mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{12} \cap \partial\Omega_{14}$ on Ω_{1} ;
 $G^{(2)}_{\partial\Omega_{12}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(2)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) > 0, \\
 G^{(2)}_{\partial\Omega_{23}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(2)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) > 0, \\
 G^{(3)}_{\partial\Omega_{23}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(3)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) < 0
 \end{aligned}
 for $\mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{12} \cap \partial\Omega_{23}$ on Ω_{2} ;
 $G^{(3)}_{\partial\Omega_{23}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(3)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) > 0, \\
 G^{(3)}_{\partial\Omega_{23}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(3)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) > 0
 \end{aligned}
 for $\mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{23} \cap \partial\Omega_{34}$ on Ω_{3} ;
 $G^{(4)}_{\partial\Omega_{34}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(4)}_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) < 0, \\
 G^{(4)}_{\partial\Omega_{14}}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) &= g^{(4)}_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) < 0
 \end{cases}$
 for $\mathbf{z}_{m} \in \partial\Omega_{34} \cap \partial\Omega_{14}$ on Ω_{4} .$$$$

Four basic functions from Eq. (5.63) are defined as

$$g_{1}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) \equiv g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = z_{2}^{(\alpha)} - k_{1} \text{ in } \Omega_{\alpha} \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2;$$

$$g_{2}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) \equiv g_{1}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = z_{2}^{(\alpha)} + k_{1} \text{ in } \Omega_{\alpha} \text{ for } \alpha = 3, 4;$$

$$g_{3}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) \equiv g_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) - k_{2} \text{ in } \Omega_{\alpha} \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 4;$$

$$g_{4}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) \equiv g_{2}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t) + k_{2} \text{ in } \Omega_{\alpha} \text{ for } \alpha = 2, 3.$$
(5.89)

The synchronization conditions in Eq. (5.88) become

$$g_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = z_{2m} - k_{1} < 0,$$

$$g_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = z_{2m} + k_{1} > 0,$$

$$g_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) - k_{2} < 0,$$

$$g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) + k_{2} > 0.$$

(5.90)

For $\mathbf{z}_m = \mathbf{0}$, the synchronization conditions of the controlled pendulum with the Duffing oscillator with sinusoidal constraint in Eq. (5.38) are

$$g_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = -k_{1} < 0,$$

$$g_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = +k_{1} > 0,$$

$$g_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) - k_{2} < 0,$$

$$g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) + k_{2} > 0,$$

(5.91)

where

$$\mathcal{G}(\mathbf{x},t) = -a_0 \sin(\sin x_1) + Q_0 \cos \Omega t + (d_1 x_2 - a_1 x_1 + a_2 x_1^3 - A_0 \cos \omega t) \cos x_1 + x_2^2 \sin x_1.$$
(5.92)

The first two equations of Eq. (5.90) are satisfied if $k_1 > 0$ and $k_2 > 0$. The synchronization invariant set is given by the third and fourth equations, i.e.,

$$-k_2 < \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) < k_2. \tag{5.93}$$

In the small neighborhood of the synchronization of $\mathbf{z}_m = \mathbf{0}$, the attractivity conditions can be obtained for $||\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{z}_m|| < \varepsilon$, i.e.,

$$0 \leq z_{2} < k_{1} \text{ and } \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{x}, t) < k_{2} \quad \text{for } z_{1} \in [0, \infty) \text{ in } \Omega_{1},$$

$$0 \leq z_{2} < k_{1} \text{ and } -k_{2} < \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{x}, t) \quad \text{for } z_{1} \in [0, \infty) \text{ in } \Omega_{2},$$

$$-k_{1} < z_{2} \leq 0 \text{ and } -k_{2} < \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{x}, t) \quad \text{for } z_{1} \in (-\infty, 0] \text{ in } \Omega_{3},$$

$$-k_{1} < z_{2} \leq 0 \text{ and } \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{x}, t) < k_{2} \quad \text{for } z_{1} \in (-\infty, 0] \text{ in } \Omega_{4}$$
(5.94)

from which z_1^* and z_2^* are obtained. The initial conditions for the controlled pendulum synchronizing with the Duffing oscillator are determined by

$$y_1 = z_1^* + \sin x_1$$
 and $y_2 = z_2^* + x_2 \cos x_1$. (5.95)

From a sliding flow vanishing on the boundary, the synchronization vanishing conditions at $\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\mp}) = \mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{z}_m$ are

$$g_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = z_{2m}^{(\alpha)} - k_{1} = 0,$$

$$Dg_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) > 0,$$

$$g_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = z_{2m}^{(\beta)} + k_{1} > 0$$

$$\begin{cases} \text{for } (\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 4), (2, 3)\} \\ (5.96) \end{cases}$$

from $z_{m+\epsilon} = y_1 - x_1 > 0$, and

$$g_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = z_{2m}^{(\alpha)} - k_{1} < 0;$$

$$g_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = z_{2m}^{(\beta)} + k_{1} = 0,$$

$$Dg_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) < 0$$
for $(\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 4), (2, 3)\}$ (5.97)

from $z_{m+\varepsilon} = y_1 - x_1 < 0$.

The vanishing conditions of synchronization are for $\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\mp}) = \mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{z}_m$

$$g_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) - k_{2} = 0, Dg_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = D\mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) > 0; g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) + k_{2} > 0 \end{cases}$$
for $(\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 2), (4, 3)\}$ (5.98)

from $\dot{z}_{m+\epsilon} = y_2 - x_2 > 0$, and

$$g_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) - k_{2} < 0; g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) + k_{2} = 0, g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) = D\mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\mp}) < 0 \end{cases}$$
for $(\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 2), (4, 3)\}$ (5.99)

from $\dot{z}_{m+\epsilon} = y_2 - x_2 < 0$.

From the sliding flow appearance on the boundary, the synchronization onset conditions at $\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\mp}) = \mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{z}_m$ are

$$g_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = z_{2m}^{(\alpha)} - k_{1} = 0,$$

$$Dg_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) > 0,$$

$$g_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = z_{2m}^{(\beta)} + k_{1} > 0;$$

$$for (\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 4), (2, 3)\} \quad (5.100)$$

from $z_{m-\epsilon} = y_1 - x_1 > 0$, and

$$g_{1}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = z_{2m}^{(\alpha)} - k_{1} < 0;$$

$$g_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = z_{2m}^{(\beta)} + k_{1} = 0,$$

$$Dg_{2}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) < 0$$
for $(\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 4), (2, 3)\}$ (5.101)

from $z_{m+\varepsilon} = y_1 - x_1 < 0$.

The synchronization onset conditions for $\mathbf{z}^{(\alpha)}(t_{m\pm}) = \mathbf{z}_m^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{z}_m$ are

$$g_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) - k_{2} = 0, Dg_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = D\mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) > 0; g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) + k_{2} > 0 \end{cases}$$
for $(\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 2), (4, 3)\}$ (5.102)

from $\dot{z}_{m-\varepsilon} = y_2 - x_2 > 0$, and

$$g_{3}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m-}) - k_{2} < 0;$$

$$g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = \mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) + k_{2} = 0,$$

$$g_{4}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) = D\mathcal{G}(\mathbf{z}_{m}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}, t_{m\pm}) < 0$$
for $(\alpha, \beta) \in \{(1, 2), (4, 3)\}$ (5.103)

from $\dot{z}_{m-\varepsilon} = y_2 - x_2 < 0$.

5.3.2 Sinusoidal Synchronization of Chaotic Motions

As in Min and Luo [5, 6], numerical simulations are presented for a better understanding of the function synchronization of pendulum and Duffing oscillator. For illustration, consider the following system parameters:

$$a_1 = a_2 = 1.0, d_1 = 0.25, A_0 = 0.4, \omega = 1.0$$

$$a_0 = 1.0, Q_0 = 0.275, \Omega = 2.18519$$
(5.104)

Consider the initial conditions $(x_1, x_2) = (-1.31892, 0.10879)$ and $(y_1, y_2) =$ (-0.96845, 0.02711), the Duffing oscillator exhibits chaotic motion, and the pendulum system has the chaotic motion. The constraint conditions $(y_1 = \sin x_1)$ and $y_2 = x_2 \cos x_1$) are adopted. The sinusoidal chaotic synchronization scenario for the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator is presented in Fig. 5.5 with $k_1 = 1$ via switching points versus control parameters. $y_{1k} = \sin x_{1k}$ and $y_{2k} = x_{2k}$ $\cos x_{1k}$. The acronyms "FS", "PS", and "NS" represent "full synchronization", "partial synchronization", and "non-synchronization", respectively. "A" and "V" denote synchronization appearance and vanishing. The switching displacement, switching velocity, and switching phases for synchronization of the controlled pendulum with the Duffing oscillator are illustrated in Fig. 5.5a-e, respectively. From such synchronization scenario, the partial, sinusoidal, chaotic synchronization of the controlled pendulum with the Duffing oscillator is in the range of k_2 $\in (0.017, 1.330)$. If $k_2 \in (0, 0.017)$, no sinusoidal, chaotic synchronization between the two systems can be obtained. If $k_2 \in (1.330, \infty)$, the full, sinusoidal, chaotic synchronization of such two systems is achieved. For a global view of synchronization, a control parameter map (k_1, k_2) is presented in Fig. 5.6. The shaded area is a partial sinusoidal synchronization zone. For $k_2 > 1.330$ and $k_1 \neq 0$, the sinusoidal synchronization of the two systems exists. For small k_2 , the non-synchronization area is observed. The bottom boundary of the partial synchronization in the control parameter map is zigzagged because chaotic motions in the Duffing oscillator are synchronized by the controlled chaotic pendulum.

From the parameter map, for $(k_1, k_2) = (1.0, 0.8)$, the partial sinusoidal synchronization of the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator can be observed. The time-histories of displacements, velocities, and G-functions plus trajectories in phase planes are illustrated in Fig. 5.7a-d, respectively. The responses of the controlled pendulum as the controlled slave system are given by dashed curves, and the responses of the Duffing oscillator as a master system are presented by solid curves. The hollow and solid circular symbols are for synchronization appearance and vanishing, respectively. The sinusoidal synchronization and nonsynchronization of the displacements and velocities for the two oscillators are presented in Fig. 5.7a, b. The shaded portions are for synchronization, and the rest portions are for non-synchronization. Compared to identical synchronization,

the aforementioned two plots, it is very difficult to see the sinusoidal chaotic synchronization like the identical synchronization because the synchronization is based on a sinusoidal function. This is because the sinusoidal synchronization is inserted between the Duffing oscillator and the pendulum. Thus, the time-histories of G-functions should be presented to determine the synchronization, and the G-functions for non-synchronization are presented by dashed curves. The G-function tells synchronicity between the two oscillators under the sinusoidal



Fig. 5.5 Sinusoidal chaotic synchronization scenario of switching points versus control parameter k_2 : (a) switching displacement and (b) switching velocity of master system; (c) switching displacement and (d) switching velocity of slave system; (e) switching phase. (Control parameter: $k_1 = 1$. Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $A_0 = 0.4$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18519$) (*FS* Full synchronization, *PS* Partial synchronization, *NS* Non-synchronization)



Fig. 5.5 (continued)



Fig. 5.6 Control parameter map of (k_1, k_2) for the sinusoidal synchronicity of the Duffing oscillator and the controlled pendulum (Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $A_0 = 0.4$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18519$) (*FS* Full synchronization, *PS* Partial synchronization, *NS* Non-synchronization)

constraints. To view sinusoidal synchronization between the two distinct oscillators, the corresponding trajectories in phase plane are plotted in Fig. 5.7d. In phase plane, synchronization invariant domain is superimposed on phase plane. The synchronization invariant domains are shaded, and the rest region in phase space is the non-synchronization domain. To observe the existence of the synchronization for long time, the switching points of the two systems are presented for 10,000 periods of the master system in Fig. 5.7e, f. The black and red points are for appearance and vanishing of the synchronization.

From the parameter map, at $(k_1, k_2) = (1.0, 3.0)$, the fully sinusoidal chaotic synchronization between the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator can be illustrated. As in Fig. 5.7, the time-histories of displacements, velocities, and G-functions plus trajectories in phase planes are illustrated in Fig. 5.8a–d. From the G-functions, the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillators are fully synchronized under the sinusoidal constraint. In Fig. 5.8d, the synchronization invariant domain with trajectories is also superimposed on phase space. The trajectories for the full sinusoidal synchronization of the pendulum and Duffing oscillators are in the synchronization invariant domain. The function synchronization cannot be observed intuitively. To determine whether two distinct dynamical systems are synchronized under specific function constraints or not, the G-function should be used. Otherwise, it is very difficult to determine the synchronization of two distinct dynamical systems. The synchronization theory presented in this book can provide a unique way to determine the synchronizations of the two distinct dynamical systems.

5.3.3 Sinusoidal Synchronizations of Periodic Motions

For period-1 motion synchronization, consider the following system parameters.

$$a_1 = a_2 = 1.0, d_1 = 0.25, A_0 = 0.48, \omega = 1.0$$

$$a_0 = 1.0, Q_0 = 0.275, \Omega = 2.18519$$
(5.105)



Fig. 5.7 Partial synchronization of the Duffing oscillator and the controlled pendulum: (a) displacement, (b) velocity, (c) G-function, (d) phase plane, (e) switching point for master, (f) switching points for slave. (Control parameters: $k_1 = 1$ and $k_2 = 0.8$. Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25, A_0 = 0.4, \omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0, Q_0 = 0.275, \Omega = 2.18517$) (Initial conditions: $(x_1, x_2) = (-1.31892, 0.10879)$ and $(y_1, y_2) = (-0.96845, 0.02711)$) (S Synchronization, N Non-synchronization). *Hollow* and *filled circular symbols* are synchronization appearance (<u>A</u>) and vanishing (V), respectively



Fig. 5.7 (continued)



Fig. 5.7 (continued)

Consider the initial conditions $(x_1, x_2) = (0.510198, 1.32058)$ and $(y_1, y_2) =$ (0.48835, 1.15240), the Duffing oscillator exhibits period-1 motion, and the pendulum without control still possesses the chaotic motion. The constraint conditions $(y_1 = \sin x_1 \text{ and } y_2 = x_2 \cos x_1)$ are applied, the corresponding period-1 motion synchronization of the controlled pendulum with the Duffing oscillator will be presented herein. The sinusoidal period-1 motion synchronization scenario for the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator is presented in Fig. 5.9 with $k_1 = 1$ through switching points versus control parameter k_2 . $y_{1k} = \sin x_{1k}$ and $y_{2k} = x_{2k} \cos x_{1k}$. The switching displacement, switching velocity, and switching phases for synchronization of the controlled pendulum with the Duffing oscillator are illustrated in Fig. 5.9a-e, respectively. Compared to chaotic motion synchronization, the periodic motion synchronization between the two systems are very smooth and regular. From such period-1 motion synchronization scenario, the partial, sinusoidal, chaotic synchronization of the controlled pendulum with the Duffing oscillator is in the range of $k_2 \in (0.123, 1.798)$. If $k_2 \in (0, 0.123)$, no sinusoidal synchronization between the two systems can be obtained. If $k_2 \in (1.978, \infty)$, the full, sinusoidal synchronization of such two systems is achieved.

Consider the period-3 motion synchronization with the following parameters

$$a_1 = a_2 = 1.0, d_1 = 0.25, A_0 = 0.33, \omega = 1.0$$

$$a_0 = 1.0, Q_0 = 0.275, \Omega = 2.18519.$$
(5.106)



Fig. 5.8 Full synchronization of the Duffing oscillator and the controlled pendulum: (**a**) displacement, (**b**) velocity, (**c**) G-functions, (**d**) phase plane. (Control parameters: $k_1 = 1$ and $k_2 = 3$. Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $A_0 = 0.4$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18519$) (Initial conditions: $(x_1, x_2) = (-1.31892, 0.10879)$ and $(y_1, y_2) = (-0.96845, 0.02711)$) (*FS* Full synchronization)

For $(x_1, x_2) = (0.472975, 0.440897)$ and $(y_1, y_2) = (0.455537, 0.392494)$, the Duffing oscillator exhibits period-3 motion, and the pendulum without control still possesses the chaotic motion. The sinusoidal period-3 motion synchronization scenario for the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator will not be presented. However, the control parameter map (k_1, k_2) is obtained and presented in Fig. 5.10a for the period-3 motion synchronization. For $k_2 > 1.182$ and $k_1 \neq 0$, the full sinusoidal synchronization of the two systems exists. For $k_1 < 1.76$, the bottom



Fig. 5.8 (continued)

boundary of parameter map is zigzagged because the instantaneous synchronization exists. In addition, the control parameter map (k_1, k_2) for period-1 motion synchronicity is obtained and presented in Fig. 5.10b. The shaded area is a partial sinusoidal synchronization zone. For $k_2 > 1.978$ and $k_1 \neq 0$, the sinusoidal synchronization of the two systems exists. The non-synchronization area is observed for small k_2 . The bottom boundary of the partial synchronization in the control parameter map is much smooth.

For $(k_1, k_2) = (1.0, 1.2)$ in the parameter map, the partial sinusoidal, period-1 motion synchronization of the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator is illustrated in Fig. 5.11. The time-histories of displacements, velocities, and



Fig. 5.9 Sinusoidal period-1 synchronization scenario of switching points versus control parameter k_2 : (a) switching displacement and (b) switching velocity of master system; (c) switching displacement and (d) switching velocity of slave system; (e) switching phase (Control parameter: $k_1 = 1$. Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $A_0 = 0.48$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18519$) (*FS* Full synchronization, *PS* Partial synchronization, *NS* Non-synchronization)

G-functions plus trajectories in phase planes are illustrated in Fig. 5.11a–d, respectively. The sinusoidal, period-1 motion synchronization and non-synchronization of the displacements and velocities for the two oscillators are presented in Fig. 5.11a, b. The shaded portions are also for synchronization, and the rest portions are for nonsynchronization. In the two plots, the sinusoidal periodic motion synchronization



Fig. 5.9 (continued)



Fig. 5.10 Control parameter map of (k_1, k_2) for the sinusoidal periodic synchronicity of the Duffing oscillator and the controlled pendulum: (**a**) period-3 ($A_0 = 0.33$) and (**b**) period-1 ($A_0 = 0.48$) (Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18519$) (*FS* Full synchronization, *PS* Partial synchronization, *NS* Non-synchronization)

cannot be intuitively observed. Thus, the time-histories of G-functions should be used to determine the synchronicity, as shown in Fig. 5.11c. The G-functions give the sinusoidal, period-1 motion synchronicity between the two oscillators under the sinusoidal constraint. The trajectories of the master and slave systems in phase plane are plotted in Fig. 5.11d. In phase plane, synchronization invariant domain is superimposed on phase plane. The synchronization invariant domains are shaded,



Fig. 5.11 Partial synchronization of the Duffing oscillator and the controlled pendulum: (a) displacement, (b) velocity, (c) G-function, and (d) phase plane. (Control parameters: $k_1 = 1$ and $k_2 = 1.2$. Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $A_0 = 0.48$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $aa_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18517$). (Initial conditions: $(x_1, x_2) = (0.510198, 1.32058)$ and $(y_1, y_2) = (0.48835, 1.1524)$) (S Synchronization; N Non-synchronization). *Hollow* and *filled circular symbols* are synchronization appearance (<u>A</u>) and vanishing (<u>V</u>), respectively. The *shaded area* in phase plane is the synchronization invariant domain

and the rest region is the non-synchronization domain. The vanishing and appearing points of the master system are near the boundary.

For $(k_1, k_2) = (1.0, 3.0)$ in the parameter map, the fully sinusoidal period-1 motion synchronization between the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator is illustrated in Fig. 5.12. The time-histories of displacements, velocities, and G-functions plus trajectories in phase planes are shown in Fig. 5.12a–d. From the G-functions, the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillators



Fig. 5.11 (continued)

are fully synchronized for period-1 motion under the sinusoidal constraint. In Fig. 5.12d, the synchronization invariant domain with trajectories is superimposed on phase space. The trajectories for the full sinusoidal period-1 motion synchronization of the controlled pendulum and Duffing oscillators are in such an invariant domain.

For period-3 motion synchronization between the controlled pendulum and the Duffing oscillator, only trajectories in phase plane are presented in Fig. 5.13a, b at $k_1 = 1.0$ for partial ($k_2 = 0.6$) and full ($k_2 = 2.0$) synchronizations with the corresponding synchronization invariant domains, respectively. Such illustrations can help one understand the synchronization dynamics of the controlled pendulum



Fig. 5.12 Full sinusoidal periodic synchronization of the Duffing oscillator and the controlled pendulum: (a) displacement, (b) velocity, (c) G-function, (d) phase plane. (Control parameters: $k_1 = 1$ and $k_2 = 3$. Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $A_0 = 0.48$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18517$). (Initial conditions: $(x_1, x_2) = (0.510198, 1.32058)$ and $(y_1, y_2) = (0.48835, 1.1524)$). The *shaded area* in phase plane is the synchronization invariant domain

and the Duffing oscillator. Similarly, other periodic motions synchronization can be investigated under such sinusoidal constraints. If the chaotic pendulum is as a master system, the controlled Duffing oscillator synchronizing with the pendulum under sinusoidal constraints was presented in Min and Luo [7]. The methodology presented herein can be used for secure communications and cryptography.

Luo and Min [8-11] used the synchronization theory of two dynamical systems in Luo [2] to discuss the identical synchronizations of the different dynamical



Fig. 5.12 (continued)

systems. The synchronization of two distinct dynamical systems was determined without the Lyapunov method. The periodic and chaotic synchronizations of two distinct dynamical systems were presented. The invariant domain of synchronization was discovered, which can help one easily determine the two dynamical systems synchronization. In addition, Min and Luo [12] used the new theory of dynamical system synchronization to investigate the noised gyroscope systems synchronizing with the expected gyroscope systems. The partial synchronization is an important phenomenon to be observed. Such results on gyroscope systems provide a very good example for engineering application. This synchronization theory can be easily applied for maneuvering targets tracking and space vehicles tracking and connections.



Fig. 5.13 Phase planes for sinusoidal period-3 synchronization of the Duffing oscillator and the controlled pendulum: (a) partial synchronization ($k_2 = 0.6$), (b) full synchronization ($k_2 = 2.0$). (Control parameter: $k_1 = 1$, Duffing: $a_1 = a_2 = 1.0$, $d_1 = 0.25$, $A_0 = 0.33$, $\omega = 1.0$. Pendulum: $a_0 = 1.0$, $Q_0 = 0.275$, $\Omega = 2.18517$). (Initial conditions: (x_1, x_2) = (0.472975, 0.440897) and (y_1, y_2) = (0.455537, 0.392494)). The *shaded area* is the synchronization invariant domain

References

- Luo ACJ (2008) A theory for flow switchability in discontinuous dynamical systems. Nonlinear Anal Hybrid Syst 2(4):1030–1061
- Luo ACJ (2009) A theory for synchronization of dynamical systems. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 14:1901–1951
- 3. Luo ACJ (2008) Global tangency and transversality of periodic flows and chaos in a periodically forced, damped Duffing oscillator. Int J Bifurcat Chaos 18:1–40

- 4. Luo ACJ, Han PS (2000) The dynamics of resonant and stochastic layers in a periodicallydriven pendulum. Chaos Solitons Fractals 11:2349–2359
- 5. Min FH, Luo ACJ (2012) Periodic and chaotic synchronizations of two distinct dynamical systems under sinusoidal constraints. Chaos Solitons Fractals 45:998–1011
- 6. Min FH, Luo ACJ (2012) Synchronization of a controlled, noised, gyroscope system with an expected gyroscope system. J Nonlinear Syst Appl 3:1–9
- 7. Min FH, Luo ACJ (2011) Sinusoidal synchronizations of the Duffing oscillator with a chaotic pendulum. Phys Lett A 375:3080–3089
- Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) Synchronization of a periodically forced Duffing oscillator with a periodically excited pendulum. Nonlinear Anal Real World Appl 12:1810–1827
- 9. Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) The mechanism of a controlled pendulum synchronizing with periodic motions in a periodically forced, damped Duffing oscillator. Int J Bifurcat Chaos 21:1813–1829
- Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) The chaotic synchronization of a controlled pendulum with a periodically forced, damped Duffing oscillator. Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simul 16:4704–4717
- Luo ACJ, Min FH (2011) Synchronization dynamics of two different dynamical systems. Chaos Solitons Fractals 44:362–380
- Min FH, Luo ACJ (2012) On parameter characteristics of chaotic synchronization in two nonlinear gyroscope systems. Nonlinear Dyn 69:1203–1223

Chapter 6 Discrete Systems Synchronization

As in Luo [1, 2], a set of concepts on "Ying" and "Yang" in discrete dynamical systems will be presented. Based on the Ying-Yang theory, the complete dynamics of discrete dynamical systems will be presented for an understanding of dynamical behaviors. From the ideas of the Ying-Yang theory of discrete dynamical systems, the companion and synchronization of discrete dynamical systems will be presented herein, and the corresponding conditions will be presented as an integrity part of dynamical system synchronization. The synchronization dynamics of Duffing and Henon maps will be discussed.

6.1 Discrete Systems with a Single Nonlinear Map

Definition 6.1 Consider an implicit vector function $\mathbf{f} : D \to D$ on an open set $D \subset \mathscr{R}^n$ in an *n*-dimensional discrete dynamical system. For $\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \in D$, there is a discrete relation as

$$\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0},\tag{6.1}$$

where the vector function is $\mathbf{f} = (f_1, f_2, \dots, f_n)^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^n$ and discrete variable vector is $\mathbf{x}_k = (x_{k1}, x_{k2}, \dots, x_{kn})^{\mathrm{T}} \in D$ with a parameter vector $\mathbf{p} = (p_1, p_2, \dots, p_m)^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^m$.

Definition 6.2 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1), the positive and negative discrete sets are defined by

$$\Sigma_{+} = \left\{ \mathbf{x}_{k+i} | \mathbf{x}_{k+i} \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, i \in \mathbb{Z}_{+} \right\} \subset D \text{ and}$$

$$\Sigma_{-} = \left\{ \mathbf{x}_{k-i} | \mathbf{x}_{k-i} \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, i \in \mathbb{Z}_{+} \right\} \subset D,$$
(6.2)

respectively. The discrete set is

$$\Sigma = \Sigma_+ \cup \Sigma_-. \tag{6.3}$$

A positive mapping is defined as

$$P_{+}: \Sigma \to \Sigma_{+} \Rightarrow P_{+}: \mathbf{x}_{k} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1}$$
(6.4)

and a negative mapping is defined by

$$P_{-}: \Sigma \to \Sigma_{-} \Rightarrow P_{-}: \mathbf{x}_{k} \to \mathbf{x}_{k-1}.$$
(6.5)

Definition 6.3 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1), consider two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+1} \in D$, and there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\mathbf{g} \in \mathscr{R}^n$ to make $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$.

- (i) The stable solution based on $\mathbf{x}_{k+1} = P_+\mathbf{x}_k$ for the positive mapping P_+ is called the "Yang" of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ if $\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}$ with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ have the P_+ -1 solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*)$.
- (ii) The stable solution based on $\mathbf{x}_k = P_-\mathbf{x}_{k+1}$ for the negative mapping P_- is called the "Ying" of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ if $\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}$ with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ have the P_- -1 solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*)$.
- (iii) The solution based on $\mathbf{x}_{k+1} = P_+\mathbf{x}_k$ is called the "Ying-Yang" for the positive mapping P_+ of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ if $\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}$ with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ have the P_+ -1 solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*)$ and the eigenvalues of $DP_+(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are distributed inside and outside the unit cycle.
- (iv) The solution based on $\mathbf{x}_k = P_-\mathbf{x}_{k+1}$ is called the "Ying-Yang" for the negative mapping P_- of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ if $\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}$ with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ have the P_- -1 solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*)$ and the eigenvalues of $DP_-(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*)$ are distributed inside and outside unit cycle.

Consider the positive and negative mappings are

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+1} = P_+ \mathbf{x}_k$$
 and $\mathbf{x}_k = P_- \mathbf{x}_{k+1}$. (6.6)

For the simplest case, consider the constraint condition of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \lambda) = \mathbf{x}_{k+1} - \mathbf{x}_k = \mathbf{0}$. Thus, the positive and negative mappings have, respectively, the constraints

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+1} = \mathbf{x}_k \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_k = \mathbf{x}_{k+1}. \tag{6.7}$$

Both positive and negative mappings are governed by the discrete relation in Eq. (6.1). In other words, Eq. (6.6) gives

$$f(x_k, x_{k+1}, p) = 0$$
 and $f(x_k, x_{k+1}, p) = 0.$ (6.8)

Setting the period-1 solution \mathbf{x}_{k}^{*} and substitution of Eq. (6.7) into Eq. (6.8) gives

$$\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}, \mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ and } \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}, \mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.9)

From the foregoing equation, the period-1 solutions for the positive and negative mappings are identical. The two relations for positive and negative mappings are illustrated in Fig. 6.1a, b, respectively. To determine the period-1 solution, the fixed points of Eq. (6.7) exist under constraints in Eq. (6.8), as also shown in Fig. 6.1. The two thick lines on the axis are two sets for the mappings from the starting to final states. The relation in Eq. (6.7) is presented by a solid curve. The intersection points of the curves and straight lines for relations in Eqs. (6.7) and (6.8) give the fixed points of Eq. (6.9), which are period-1 solutions, labeled by the circular symbols. However, their stability and bifurcation for the period-1 solutions are different. To determine the stability and bifurcation of the period-1 solution of the positive and negative mappings, the following theorem is stated.

Theorem 6.1 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1), there are two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+1} \in D$, and two positive and negative mappings are

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+1} = P_+ \mathbf{x}_k$$
 and $\mathbf{x}_k = P_- \mathbf{x}_{k+1}$ (6.10)

with

$$f(x_k, x_{k+1}, p) = 0$$
 and $f(x_k, x_{k+1}, p) = 0.$ (6.11)

Suppose a specific, differentiable, vector function $\mathbf{g} \in \mathscr{R}^n$ makes $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ hold. If the solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*)$ of both $\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}$ and $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ exist, then the following conclusions in the sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ hold.

- (i) The stable P₊-1 solutions are the unstable P₋-1 solutions with all eigenvalues of DP₋(**x**^{*}_k) outside the unit cycle, vice versa.
- (ii) The unstable P_+ -1 solutions with all eigenvalues of $DP_+(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ outside the unit cycle are the stable P_- -1 solutions, vice versa.
- (iii) For the unstable P_+ -1 solutions with eigenvalue distribution of $DP_+(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ inside and outside the unit cycle, the corresponding P_- -1 solution is also unstable with switching the eigenvalue distribution of $DP_-(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ inside and outside the unit cycle, vice versa.
- (iv) All the bifurcations of the stable and unstable P_+-1 solutions are all the bifurcations of the unstable and stable P_--1 solutions, respectively.

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2] (Fig. 6.1).

 \Box



Fig. 6.1 Period-1 solution for (**a**) positive mapping and (**b**) negative mapping. The two *thick lines* on the axis are two sets for the mappings from the starting to final states. The mapping relation is presented by a *solid curve*. The *circular symbols* give period-1 solutions for the positive and negative mappings

From the foregoing theorem, the *Ying*, *Yang* and *Ying-Yang* states in discrete dynamical systems exist. To generate the above ideas to $P_+^{(N)}$ -1 and $P_-^{(N)}$ -1 solutions in discrete dynamical systems in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$, the mapping structure consisting of *N*-positive or negative mappings is considered.

Definition 6.4 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1), the mapping structures of *N*-mappings for the positive and negative mappings are defined as

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N} = \underbrace{P_+ \circ P_+ \circ \cdots \circ P_+}_{N} \mathbf{x}_k = P_+^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_k, \tag{6.12}$$

$$\mathbf{x}_{k} = \underbrace{P_{-} \circ P_{-} \circ \cdots \circ P_{-}}_{N} \mathbf{x}_{k+N} = P_{-}^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+N}$$
(6.13)

with

$$\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, N$$
 (6.14)

where $P_{+}^{(0)} = 1$ and $P_{-}^{(0)} = 1$ for N = 0.

Definition 6.5 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1), consider two points $\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1} \in D$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, N$) and $\mathbf{x}_{k+N} \in D$, and there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\mathbf{g} \in \mathcal{R}^n$ to make $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$.

(i) The stable solution based on $\mathbf{x}_{k+N} = P_+^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_k$ for the positive mapping P_+ is called the "Yang" of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of

 $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ if the solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*, \cdots, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}^*)$ of Eq. (6.14) with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ exist.

- (ii) The stable solution based on $\mathbf{x}_k = P_-^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+N}$ for the negative mapping P_- is called the "Ying" of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ if the solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*, \cdots, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}^*)$ of Eq. (6.14) with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ exist.
- (iii) The solution based on $\mathbf{x}_{k+N} = P_+^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_k$ is called the "Ying-Yang" for the positive mapping P_+ of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ if the solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*, \dots, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}^*)$ of Eq. (6.14) with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ exist and the eigenvalues of $DP_+^{(N)}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are distributed inside and outside the unit cycle.
- (iv) The solution based on $\mathbf{x}_k = P_-^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+N}$ is called the "Ying-Yang" for the negative mapping P_- of the discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1) in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ if the solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^*, \dots, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}^*)$ of Eq. (6.14) with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}$ exist and the eigenvalues of $DP_-^{(N)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N}^*)$ are distributed inside and outside unit cycle.

To determine the Ying-Yang properties of $P_{+}^{(N)}$ -1 and $P_{-}^{(N)}$ -1 in the discrete mapping system in Eq. (6.1), the corresponding theorem is presented as follows.

Theorem 6.2 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1), there are two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+N} \in D$, and two positive and negative mappings are

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N} = P_{+}^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{-}^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+N},$$
 (6.15)

and $\mathbf{x}_{k+i} = P_+ \mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1} = P_- \mathbf{x}_{k+i}$ can be governed by

$$\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, N.$$
 (6.16)

Suppose a specific, differentiable, vector function of $\mathbf{g} \in \mathbb{R}^n$ makes $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = 0$ hold. If the solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \dots, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}^*)$ of Eq. (6.16) with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ exist, then the following conclusions in the sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ hold.

- (i) The stable P^(N)₊-1 solution is the unstable P^(N)₋-1 solution with all eigenvalues of DP^(N)₋(x^{*}_{k+N}) outside the unit cycle, vice versa.
- (ii) The unstable $P_{+}^{(N)}$ -1 solution with all eigenvalues of $DP_{+}^{(N)}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*})$ outside the unit cycle is the stable $P_{-}^{(N)}$ -1 solution, vice versa.
- (iii) For the unstable $P_{+}^{(N)}$ -1 solution with eigenvalue distribution of $DP_{+}^{(N)}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*})$ inside and outside the unit cycle, the corresponding $P_{-}^{(N)}$ -1 solution is also unstable with switching eigenvalue distribution of $DP_{-}^{(N)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N}^{*})$ inside and outside the unit cycle, vice versa.
- (iv) All the bifurcations of the stable and unstable $P_+^{(N)}$ -1 solution are all the bifurcations of the unstable and stable $P_-^{(N)}$ -1 solution, respectively.

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2].

Theorem 6.3 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.1), there are two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+N} \in D$. If the period-doubling cascade of the $P_+^{(N)}$ -1 and $P_-^{(N)}$ -1 solution occurs, the corresponding mapping structures are given by

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{k+2N} &= P_{+}^{(N)} \circ P_{+}^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{+}^{(2N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}N} &= P_{+}^{(2N)} \circ P_{+}^{(2N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{+}^{(2^{2}N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \vdots \\ \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}N} &= P_{+}^{(2^{l-1}N)} \circ P_{+}^{(2^{l-1}N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{+}^{(2^{l}N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \end{aligned}$$
(6.17)

for positive mappings and

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{k} &= P_{-}^{(N)} \circ P_{-}^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+2N} = P_{-}^{(2N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+2N} \text{ and } \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \mathbf{x}_{k} &= P_{-}^{(2N)} \circ P_{-}^{(2N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}N} = P_{-}^{(2^{2}N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}N} \text{ and } \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \vdots \\ \mathbf{x}_{k} &= P_{-}^{(2^{l-1}N)} \circ P_{-}^{(2^{l-1}N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}N} = P_{-}^{(2^{l}N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}N} \text{ and } \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}N}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0} \end{aligned}$$
(6.18)

for negative mapping, then the following statements hold, i.e.,

- (i) The stable chaos generated by the limit state of the stable P^(2'N)₊-1 solutions (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x_{k+2'N}, λ) = 0 is the unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable stable P^(2'N)₋-1 solution (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x_{k+2'N}, λ) = 0 with all eigenvalue distribution of DP^(2'N)₋ outside unit cycle, vice versa. Such a chaos is the "Yang" chaos in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems.
- (ii) The unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable $P_+^{(2^lN)}$ -1 solutions $(l \to \infty)$ in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^lN}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ with all eigenvalue distribution of $DP_+^{(2^lN)}$ outside the unit cycle is the stable chaos generated by the limit state of the stable $P_-^{(2^lN)}$ -1 solution $(l \to \infty)$ in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^lN}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$, vice versa. Such a chaos is the "Ying" chaos in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems.
- (iii) The unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable $P_+^{(2^lN)}$ -1 solutions $(l \to \infty)$ in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^lN}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ with all eigenvalue distribution of $DP_+^{(2^lN)}$ inside and outside the unit cycle is the unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable $P_-^{(2^lN)}$ -1 solution $(l \to \infty)$ in sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^lN}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ with switching all eigenvalue distribution of $DP_+^{(2^lN)}$ inside and outside the unit cycle, vice versa. Such a chaos is the "Ying-Yang" chaos in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems.

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2].

6.2 Discrete Systems with Multiple Maps

Definition 6.6 Consider a set of implicit vector functions $\mathbf{f}^{(j)}: D \to D(j=1, 2, ...)$ on an open set $D \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ in an *n*-dimensional discrete dynamical system. For \mathbf{x}_k , $\mathbf{x}_{k+1} \in D$, there is a discrete relation as

$$\mathbf{f}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(j)}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } j = 1, 2, \cdots$$
(6.19)

where the vector function is $\mathbf{f}^{(j)} = (f_1^{(j)}, f_2^{(j)}, \cdots, f_n^{(j)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^n$ and discrete variable vector is $\mathbf{x}_k = (x_{k1}, x_{k2}, \cdots, x_{kn})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \Omega$ with a parameter vector $\mathbf{p}^{(j)} = (p_1^{(j)}, p_2^{(j)}, \cdots, p_{m_i}^{(j)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^{m_j}$.

Definition 6.7 Consider a set of implicit vector functions $\mathbf{f}^{(j)}: D \to D(j = 1, 2, ...)$ on an open set $D \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ in an *n*-dimensional discrete dynamical system.

(i) A set for discrete relations is defined as

$$\Phi = \{ \mathbf{f}^{(j)} | \mathbf{f}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(j)}) = \mathbf{0}, j \in \mathbb{Z}_+; k \in \mathbb{Z} \}.$$
 (6.20)

(ii) The positive and negative discrete sets are defined as

$$\Sigma_{+} = \left\{ \mathbf{x}_{k+i} | \mathbf{x}_{k+i} \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, i \in \mathbb{Z}_{+} \right\} \subset D, \text{ and}$$

$$\Sigma_{-} = \left\{ \mathbf{x}_{k-i} | \mathbf{x}_{k-i} \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, i \in \mathbb{Z}_{+} \right\} \subset D,$$
(6.21)

respectively, and the total set of the discrete states is

$$\Sigma = \Sigma_+ \cup \Sigma_-. \tag{6.22}$$

(iii) A positive mapping for $\mathbf{f}^{(j)} \in \Phi$ is defined as

$$P_j^+: \Sigma \to \Sigma_+ \Rightarrow P_j^+: \mathbf{x}_k \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \tag{6.23}$$

and a negative mapping is defined by

$$P_j^-: \Sigma \to \Sigma_- \Rightarrow P_j^-: \mathbf{x}_k \to \mathbf{x}_{k-1.}$$
(6.24)

(iv) Two sets for positive and negative mappings are defined as

$$\Theta_{+} = \{P_{j}^{+}|P_{j}^{+}: \mathbf{x}_{k} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \text{ with } \mathbf{f}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(j)}) = \mathbf{0}, \quad j \in \mathbb{Z}_{+}; k \in \mathbb{Z}\}$$

$$\Theta_{-} = \{P_{j}^{-}|P_{j}^{-}: \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ with } \mathbf{f}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(j)}) = \mathbf{0}, \quad j \in \mathbb{Z}_{+}; k \in \mathbb{Z}\}$$

(6.25)

with the total mapping sets are

$$\Theta = \Theta_+ \cup \Theta_-. \tag{6.26}$$

Definition 6.8 Consider a discrete dynamical system with a set of implicit vector functions $\mathbf{f}^{(j)}: D \to D$ $(j = 1, 2, \cdots)$. For a mapping $P_j^+ \in \Theta_+$ with *N*-actions and $P_j^- \in \Theta_-$ with *N*-actions. The resultant mapping is defined as

$$P_{j^{N}}^{+} = \underbrace{P_{j}^{+} \circ P_{j}^{+} \circ \cdots \circ P_{j}^{+}}_{N} \text{ and } P_{j^{N}}^{-} = \underbrace{P_{j}^{-} \circ P_{j}^{-} \circ \cdots \circ P_{j}^{-}}_{N}.$$
(6.27)

Definition 6.9 Consider a discrete dynamical system with a set of implicit vector functions $\mathbf{f}^{(j)}: D \to D$ $(j = 1, 2, \cdots)$. For the *m*-positive mappings of $P_{j_i}^+ \in \Theta_+ (i = 1, 2, \cdots, m)$ with N_{j_i} -actions $(N_{j_i} \in \{0, \mathbb{Z}_+\})$ and the corresponding *m*-negative mappings of $P_{j_i}^- \in \Theta_ (i = 1, 2, \cdots, m)$ with N_{j_i} -actions, the resultant nonlinear mapping cluster with pure positive or negative mappings is defined as

$$P^{+}_{(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})} = \underbrace{P^{+}_{j_{m}} \circ \cdots \circ P^{+}_{N_{j_{2}}} \circ P^{+}_{N_{j_{1}}}}_{m-terms}; \\ P^{-}_{(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})} = \underbrace{P^{-}_{N_{j_{1}}} \circ P^{-}_{N_{j_{2}}} \circ \cdots \circ P^{-}_{N_{j_{m}}}}_{j_{1}} \circ \underbrace{P^{-}_{j_{2}} \circ \cdots \circ P^{-}_{N_{j_{m}}}}_{m-terms} \right\}$$
(6.28)

in which at least one of mappings $(P_{j_i}^+ \text{ and } P_{j_i}^-)$ with $N_{j_i} \in \mathbb{Z}_+$ possesses a nonlinear iterative relation.

Theorem 6.4 Consider a discrete dynamical system with a set of implicit vector functions $\mathbf{f}^{(j)}: D \to D$ $(j = 1, 2, \cdots)$. For the m-positive mappings of $P_{j_i}^+ \in \Theta_+$ $(i = 1, 2, \cdots, m)$ with N_{j_i} -actions $(N_{j_i} \in \{0, \mathbb{Z}_+\})$ and the corresponding m-negative mappings of $P_{j_i}^- \in \Theta_ (i = 1, 2, \cdots, m)$ with N_{j_i} -actions, the resultant nonlinear mapping with pure positive and negative mappings

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} = P^{+}_{(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}\mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k} = P^{-}_{(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}},$$
(6.29)

and $\mathbf{x}_{k+i} = P_{j_s}^+ \mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1} = P_{j_s}^- \mathbf{x}_{k+i}$ can be governed by

$$\mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, \Sigma_{s=1}^{m} N_{j_t}.$$
 (6.30)

Suppose a differentiable, vector function $\mathbf{g} \in \mathscr{R}^n$ possesses $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+\sum_{s=1}^m N_{j_s}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) \boldsymbol{\varphi} = \mathbf{0}$. If the solutions $(\mathbf{x}_k^*, \dots, \mathbf{x}_{k+\sum_{s=1}^m N_{j_s}})$ of Eq. (6.29) with $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+\sum_{s=1}^m N_{j_s}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ exist, then the following conclusions in the sense of $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+\sum_{s=1}^m N_{j_s}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$ hold.

- (i) The stable $P^+_{(N_{j_1}\cdots N_{j_2}N_{j_1})}$ -1 solution is the unstable $P^-_{(N_{j_1}N_{j_2}\cdots N_{j_m})}$ -1 solutions with all eigenvalues of $DP^-_{(N_{j_1}N_{j_2}\cdots N_{j_m})}(\mathbf{x}^*_{k+\sum_{s=1}^m N_{j_s}})$ outside the unit cycle, vice versa.
- (ii) The unstable $P^+_{(N_{jm}\cdots N_{j_2}N_{j_1})}$ -1 solution with eigenvalues of $DP^+_{(N_{jm}\cdots N_{j_2}N_{j_1})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ outside the unit cycle is the stable $P^-_{(N_i, N_i, \cdots N_{j_m})}$ -1 solutions, vice versa.

- (iii) For the unstable P⁺_(N_{jm}···N_{j2}N_{j1})-1 solution with eigenvalue distribution of DP⁺_(N_{jm}···N_{j2}N_{j1})(**x**^{*}_k) inside and outside the unit cycle, the corresponding P⁻_(N_{j1}N_{j2}···N_{jm})-1 solution is also unstable with switching eigenvalue distribution of DP⁻_(N_{jm}···N_{j2}N_{j1})(**x**^{*}<sub>k+Σ^m_{s=1}N_{js}) inside and outside the unit cycle, vice versa.
 </sub>
- (iv) All the bifurcations of the stable and unstable $P^+_{(N_{j_m} \cdots N_{j_2}N_{j_1})}$ -1 solution are all the bifurcations of the unstable and stable $P^-_{(N_{j_1}N_{j_2}\cdots N_{j_m})}$ -1 solution, respectively.

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2].

The chaos generated by the period-doubling of the $P^+_{(N_{j_m}\cdots N_{j_2}N_{j_1})}$ -1 and $P^-_{(N_{j_1}N_{j_2}\cdots N_{j_m})}$ -1 solutions can be described through the following theorem.

Theorem 6.5 Consider a discrete dynamical system with a set of implicit vector functions $\mathbf{f}^{(j)}: D \to D$ $(j = 1, 2, \cdots)$. For the m-positive mappings of $P_{j_i}^+ \in \Theta_+$ $(i = 1, 2, \cdots, m)$ with N_{j_i} -actions $(N_{j_i} \in \{0, \mathbb{Z}_+\})$ and the corresponding m-negative mappings of $P_{j_i}^- \in \Theta_ (i = 1, 2, \cdots, m)$ with N_{j_i} -actions, the resultant nonlinear mapping with pure positive and negative mappings

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} = P^{+}_{(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}\mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k} = P^{-}_{(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}};$$
(6.31)

and $\mathbf{x}_{k+i} = P_{j_s}^+ \mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1} = P_{j_s}^- \mathbf{x}_{k+i}$ can be governed by

$$\mathbf{f}^{(j)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}^{(j)}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, \Sigma_{s=1}^{m} N_{j_{i}}.$$
(6.32)

Suppose a differentiable, vector function $\mathbf{g} \in \mathcal{R}^n$ possesses $\mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+\sum_{s=1}^m N_{j_s}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$. If the period-doubling cascade of the $P^+_{(N_{j_m} \cdots N_{j_2} N_{j_1})} - 1$ and $P^-_{(N_{j_m} \cdots N_{j_2} N_{j_1})} - 1$ solution occurs, the corresponding mapping structures are given by

$$\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{x}_{k+2\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} = P_{(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \circ P_{(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \mathbf{x}_{k} \\ \\ = P_{2(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \mathbf{x}_{k} \\ \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}}, \mathbf{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} = P_{2(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \circ P_{2(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \mathbf{x}_{k} \\ \\ = P_{2^{2}(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \mathbf{x}_{k} \\ \\ \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}}, \mathbf{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \end{array} \right\}$$
(6.33)

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{j}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} &= P_{2^{l-1}(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \circ P_{2^{l-1}(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \mathbf{x}_{k} \\ &= P_{2^{l}(N_{j_{m}}\cdots N_{j_{2}}N_{j_{1}})}^{+} \mathbf{x}_{k} \\ \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{j}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \end{aligned}$$

for positive mappings and

$$\begin{array}{l} \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \circ P_{(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \mathbf{x}_{k+2\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} \\ = P_{2(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \mathbf{x}_{k+2\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} \\ \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{2(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \circ P_{2(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} \\ = P_{2^{2}(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} \\ \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \vdots \\ \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{2^{l-1}(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \circ P_{2^{l-1}(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} \\ = P_{2^{l}(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} \\ = P_{2^{l}(N_{j_{1}}N_{j_{2}}\cdots N_{j_{m}})}^{-} \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{l}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}} \\ \mathbf{g}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2^{2}\Sigma_{s=1}^{m}N_{j_{s}}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \end{array} \right\}$$

$$(6.34)$$

for negative mapping, then the following statements hold, i.e.,

- (i) The stable chaos generated by the limit state of the stable P⁺_{2^l(N_{jm}···N_{j2}N_{j1})}-1 solutions (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x<sub>k+2^lΣ^m_{s=1}N_{js}, λ) = 0 is the unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable stable P⁻_{2^l(N_{j1}N_{j2}···N_{jm})}-1 solution (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x<sub>k+2^lΣ^m_{s=1}N_{js}, λ) = 0 with all eigenvalue distribution of DP⁻<sub>2^l(N_{j1}N_{j2}···N_{jm}) outside unit cycle, vice versa. Such a chaos is the "Yang" chaos in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems.
 </sub></sub></sub>
- (ii) The unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable P⁺_{2'(Njm}...N_{j2}N_{j1})-1 solutions (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x_{k+2'Σm=1}^mN_{js}, λ) = 0 with all eigenvalue distribution of P⁺_{2'(Njm}...N_{j2}N_{j1})-1 outside the unit cycle is the stable chaos generated by the limit state of the stable P⁻_{2'(Njm}N_{j2}...N_{jm})-1 solution (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x_{k+2'Σm=1}^mN_{js}, λ) = 0, vice versa. Such a chaos is the "Ying" chaos in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems.
- (iii) The unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable P⁺<sub>2'(N_{jm} ··· N_{j2}N_{j1})-1 solutions (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x<sub>k+2'Σ_{s=1}^mN_{js}, λ) = 0 with all eigenvalue distribution of DP⁺_{2'(N_{jm} ···N_{j2}N_{j1})} inside and outside the unit cycle is the unstable chaos generated by the limit state of the unstable P⁻_{2'(Nj1Nj2}···N_{jm})-1 solution (l→∞) in sense of g(x_k, x<sub>k+2'Σ_{s=1}^mN_{js}, λ) = 0 with switching all eigenvalue distribution of DP⁻_{2'(Nj1Nj2}···N_{jm}) inside and outside the unit cycle, vice versa. Such a chaos is the "Ying-Yang" chaos in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems.
 </sub></sub></sub>

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2].

6.3 Complete Dynamics of a Henon Map System

As in Luo and Guo [3], consider the Henon map system as

$$f_1(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = x_{k+1} - y_k - 1 + ax_k^2 = 0, f_2(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = y_{k+1} - bx_k = 0,$$
 (6.35)

where $\mathbf{x}_k = (x_k, y_k)^{\mathrm{T}}$, $\mathbf{f} = (f_1, f_2)^{\mathrm{T}}$ and $\mathbf{p} = (a, b)^{\mathrm{T}}$. Consider two positive and negative mapping structures as

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N} = P_{+}^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k} = \underbrace{P_{+} \circ \cdots \circ P_{+} \circ P_{+}}_{N-\text{terms}} \mathbf{x}_{k},$$

$$\mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{-}^{(N)} \mathbf{x}_{k+N} = \underbrace{P_{-} \circ \cdots \circ P_{-} \circ P_{-}}_{N-\text{terms}} \mathbf{x}_{k+N}.$$
 (6.36)

Equations (6.35) and (6.36) give

$$\begin{cases} \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+2}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \vdots \\ \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0} \end{cases}$$
(6.37)

and

$$\left. \begin{array}{l} \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N-2}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N-1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \vdots \\ \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}) = \mathbf{0}. \end{array} \right\}$$
(6.38)

The switching of equation order in Eq. (6.38) shows Eqs. (6.37) and (6.38) are identical. For periodic solutions of the positive and negative maps, the periodicity of the positive and negative mapping structures of the Henon map requires

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N} = \mathbf{x}_k \text{ or } \mathbf{x}_k = \mathbf{x}_{k+N}. \tag{6.39}$$

So the periodic solutions \mathbf{x}_{k+j}^* $(j = 0, 1, \dots, N)$ for the negative and positive mapping structures are the same, which are given by solving Eqs. (6.37) and (6.38) with Eq. (6.39). However, the stability and bifurcation are different because \mathbf{x}_{k+j} varies with \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1} for the *j*th positive mapping and \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1} varies with \mathbf{x}_{k+j} for the

*j*th negative mapping. For a small perturbation, Eq. (6.37) for the positive mapping gives

$$\left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}\right] + \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}\right] \cdot \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}\right]|_{(\mathbf{x}^*_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{x}^*_{k+j})} = \mathbf{0}, \tag{6.40}$$

where

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}} \end{bmatrix}_{(\mathbf{x}^*_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{x}^*_{k+j})} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial f_1}{\partial x_{k+j-1}} & \frac{\partial f_1}{\partial y_{k+j-1}} \\ \frac{\partial f_2}{\partial x_{k+j-1}} & \frac{\partial f_2}{\partial y_{k+j-1}} \end{bmatrix}_{(\mathbf{x}^*_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{x}^*_{k+j})}$$
(6.41)
$$= \begin{bmatrix} 2ax^*_{k+j-1} & -1 \\ -b & 0 \end{bmatrix},$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}} \end{bmatrix}_{(\mathbf{x}^*_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{x}^*_{k+j})} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial f_1}{\partial x_{k+j}} & \frac{\partial f_1}{\partial y_{k+j}} \\ \frac{\partial f_2}{\partial x_{k+j}} & \frac{\partial f_2}{\partial y_{k+j}} \end{bmatrix}_{(\mathbf{x}^*_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{x}^*_{k+j})}$$
(6.42)
$$= \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 \\ 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix}.$$

So

$$DP_{+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}^{*}} = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}\right]^{-1} \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}^{*}} = \begin{bmatrix}2ax_{k+j-1}^{*} & -1\\ -b & 0\end{bmatrix}.$$
(6.43)

Similarly, for the negative mapping,

$$\left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}\right] + \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}\right] \cdot \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}\right]|_{(\mathbf{x}^*_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{x}^*_{k+j})} = \mathbf{0}.$$
(6.44)

With Eqs. (6.41) and (6.42), the foregoing equation gives

$$DP_{-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{*}} = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}\right]^{-1} \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{f}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{*}}$$
$$= -\frac{1}{b} \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1\\ b & 2ax_{k+j-1}^{*} \end{bmatrix}.$$
(6.45)



Fig. 6.2 Numerical predictions of periodic solutions of the Henon mapping with negative and positive mappings (a = 0.2)

Thus, the resultant perturbation of the mapping structure in Eq. (6.36) gives

$$\delta \mathbf{x}_{k+N} = DP_{+}^{(N)} \delta \mathbf{x}_{k} = \underbrace{DP_{+} \cdot \dots \cdot DP_{+} \cdot DP_{+}}_{N-\text{terms}} \delta \mathbf{x}_{k},$$

$$\delta \mathbf{x}_{k} = DP_{-}^{(N)} \delta \mathbf{x}_{k+N} = \underbrace{DP_{-} \cdot \dots \cdot DP_{-} \cdot DP_{-}}_{N-\text{terms}} \delta \mathbf{x}_{k+N}, \quad (6.46)$$

where

$$DP_{+}^{(N)} = \prod_{j=1}^{N} DP_{+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N-j}^{*}),$$

$$DP_{-}^{(N)} = \prod_{j=1}^{N} DP_{-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N-j+1}^{*}).$$
(6.47)

From the resultant Jacobian matrix, the eigenvalue analysis can be completed. Before analytical prediction of periodic solution, a numerical prediction of the periodic solutions of the Henon map is presented with varying parameter b for a = 0.2, as shown in Fig. 6.2. The dashed vertical lines give the bifurcation points. The acronyms "PD," "SN," and "NB" represented the period-doubling bifurcation, saddle-stable node bifurcation, and Neimark bifurcation, respectively.

From the numerical prediction, the stable periodic solutions of the Henon map are obtained. Herein, through the corresponding mapping structures, the stable and unstable periodic solutions for positive and negative mappings of the Henon maps are presented in Fig. 6.3. The acronyms "PD", "SN", and "NB" represented the period-doubling bifurcation, saddle-stable node bifurcation, and Neimark



Fig. 6.3 Analytical predictions of *stable* and *unstable* periodic solutions of the Henon map: (a) positive mapping (P_+) and (b) positive mapping (P_-) $(a = 0.2 \text{ and } b \in (-\infty, +\infty))$

bifurcation, respectively. The acronyms "UPD" and "USN" represented the period-doubling bifurcation relative to unstable nodes and saddle-unstable node bifurcation, respectively. From the eigenvalue analysis, the stable periodic solutions for positive mapping P_+ lie in $b \in (-1.0, 1.0)$, which is the same as the numerical prediction. In other words, the stable period-1 solution of P_+ is in $b \in (-1, 0.4805)$. For $b \in (0.4805, +\infty)$, the unstable period-1 solution of P_+ is saddle. For $b \in (-\infty, -1.0)$, the unstable period-1 solution of P_+ is unstable focus. The corresponding bifurcations are Neimark bifurcation (NB) and period-doubling bifurcation (PD). However, another unstable period-1 solution of P_+ exists.

For $b \in (1.5215, +\infty)$, the unstable periodic solution of P_+ is unstable node. However, for $b \in (-\infty, 1.5215)$, the unstable periodic solution of P_+ is saddle. Thus, the unstable period-doubling bifurcation (UPD) of the period-1 solution of P_+ occurs at $b \approx 1.5215$. At this point, the unstable periodic solution is from an unstable node to saddle. Because of the unstable period-doubling bifurcation, the unstable periodic solution of $P_+^{(2)}$ is obtained for $b \in (1.0, 1.5215)$. This unstable periodic solution is from unstable focus to unstable node during the parameter of $b \in (1.0, 1.5215)$. At $b \approx 1.5215$, the bifurcation of the unstable periodic solution of $P_+^{(2)}$ occurs between the saddle and unstable node. This bifurcation is called the unstable saddle-node bifurcation. At b = 1.0, the Neimark bifurcation (NB) between the periodic solutions of $P_+^{(2)}$ pertaining to the unstable and stable focuses occurs. The stable periodic solution of $P_+^{(2)}$ is from the stable node to the stable focus for $b \in (0.4805, 1.0)$.

Again, from the eigenvalue analysis, the stable periodic solutions for positive mapping P_{-} lie in $b \in (-\infty, -1.0)$ and $b \in (1.0, +\infty)$, which is the same as in numerical prediction. The stable period-1 solution of P_{-} is stable focuses in $b \in (-\infty, -1.0)$ and stable nodes in $b \in (1.5215, +\infty)$. For $b \in (-1.0, 0.4805)$, the unstable period-1 solution of P_{-} is from the unstable focus to unstable node. At b = -1, the bifurcation between the stable and unstable period-1 solution of P_{-} is the Neimark bifurcation (NB). For $b \in (0.4805, +\infty)$, the unstable period-1 solution of P_{-} is saddle. Thus, the bifurcation between the period-1 solution of P_{-} between the unstable node and saddle occurs at b = 0.4805, which is called the unstable period-doubling bifurcation (UPD). For $b \in (0.4805, +1)$, the unstable period-2 solution of P_{-} (i.e., $P^{(2)}$) is from the unstable node to the unstable focus. For $b \in (1.0, 1.5215)$, the stable period-2 solution of P_{-} (i.e., $P^{(2)}$) is from the stable focus to the stable nodes. Thus, the point at $b \approx 0.4805$ is the bifurcation of the unstable periodic solution of $P^{(2)}$ which is the unstable saddle-node bifurcation between the unstable node and saddle (i.e., USN). For the point at b = 1, the Neimark bifurcation between the periodic solutions of $P^{(2)}_{-}$ relative to the unstable and stable focuses occurs. The point at $b \approx 1.5215$ is the bifurcation of the stable periodic solution of $P^{(2)}$ which is the saddle bifurcation between the stable node and saddle (SN). For $b \in (-\infty, 1.5215)$, the unstable period-1 solution of P_{-} is saddle. At $b \approx 1.5215$, the period-doubling bifurcation (PD) of the period-1 solution of P_{-} takes place.

The strange attractors caused by the period-doubling bifurcation cascade were presented by many researchers. Herein, the strange attractors relative to the Neimark bifurcation between the periodic solutions relative to the unstable and stable focuses are presented. The Poincare mapping relative to the Neimark bifurcation of the period-1 and period-2 solutions of positive mapping (or negative mapping) at a = 0.2 and $b = \pm 1$ is presented in Fig. 6.4. In Fig. 6.4a, the most inside point $(x_k^*, y_k^*) \approx (0.4772, -0.4772)$ is the point for the period-1 solution of P_+ or P_- relative to the Neimark bifurcation. With the initial condition $(x_k^*, y_k^*) \approx (1.7188, 0.0)$, the most outside curve is the biggest boundary for the strange attractors around the period-1 solutions with the Neimark bifurcation. The skew symmetry of the strange attractors in the Poincare mapping section is observed. In Fig. 6.4b, the two points $(x_k^*, y_k^*) \approx (2.2361, -2.2361)$


Fig. 6.4 Poincare mappings of the Henon map for the Neimark bifurcation: (a) period-1 solution (i.e., P_+ -1 or P_- -1) (a = 0.2 and b = -1), and (b) period-2 solution (i.e., $P_+^{(2)}$ -1 or $P_-^{(2)}$ -1) (a = 0.2 and b = 1)

and (-2.2361, 2.2361) are the points for the period-2 solution of P_+ or P_- relative to the Neimark bifurcation. With the outer chaotic layer, the strange attractor near the periodic solutions of $P_+^{(2)}$ -1 (or $P_+^{(2)}$ -1) disappears. This chaotic layer possesses eight islands inside the barrier and nine islands outside the barrier. For $(x_k, y_k) \approx (2.9397, -2.2361)$, the seven islands are observed. The skew symmetry of the strange attractors in the Poincare mapping section is observed.

6.4 Companion and Synchronization

This section will extend the concepts presented in the previous section. The companion and synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems will be presented.

Definition 6.10 Consider the α th implicit vector function $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)} : D \to D$ ($\alpha = 1, 2, \ldots, N$) on an open set $D \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ in an *n*-dimensional discrete dynamical system. For $\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \in D$, there is a discrete relation as

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0}, \tag{6.48}$$

where the vector function is $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)} = (f_1^{(\alpha)}, f_2^{(\alpha)}, \cdots, f_n^{(\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^n$ and discrete variable vector is $\mathbf{x}_k = (x_{k1}, x_{k2}, \cdots, x_{kn})^{\mathrm{T}} \in D$ with the corresponding parameter vector $\mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)} = (p_1^{(\alpha)}, p_2^{(\alpha)}, \cdots, p_{m_\alpha}^{(\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^{m_\alpha}$.

Similarly, the discrete sets, positive and negative mappings for discrete dynamical system of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0}$ in Eq. (6.48) are defined.

Definition 6.11 For a discrete dynamical system in Eq. (6.48), the positive and negative discrete sets are defined by

$$\Sigma_{+}^{(\alpha)} = \left\{ \mathbf{x}_{k+i}^{(\alpha)} | \mathbf{x}_{k+i}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, i \in \mathbb{Z}_{+} \right\} \subset D \text{ and}$$

$$\Sigma_{-}^{(\alpha)} = \left\{ \mathbf{x}_{k-i}^{(\alpha)} | \mathbf{x}_{k-i}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathscr{R}^{n}, i \in \mathbb{Z}_{+} \right\} \subset D,$$
(6.49)

respectively. The corresponding discrete set is

$$\Sigma^{(\alpha)} = \Sigma^{(\alpha)}_+ \cup \Sigma^{(\alpha)}_-. \tag{6.50}$$

A positive mapping for discrete dynamical system is defined as

$$P_{\alpha+}: \Sigma^{(\alpha)} \to \Sigma^{(\alpha)}_+ \Rightarrow P_{\alpha+}: \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}_k \to \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}_{k+1}, \tag{6.51}$$

and a negative mapping is defined by

$$P_{\alpha-}: \Sigma^{(\alpha)} \to \Sigma^{(\alpha)}_{-} \Rightarrow P_{\alpha-}: \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}_{k} \to \mathbf{x}^{(\alpha)}_{k-1}.$$
(6.52)

Definition 6.12 For two discrete dynamical systems in Eq. (6.48), consider two points $\mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)} \in D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\beta)} \in D$, and there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\boldsymbol{\varphi} = (\varphi_{1}, \varphi_{2}, \cdots, \varphi_{l})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^{l}$. For a small number $\varepsilon_{k} > 0$, there is a small number $\varepsilon_{k+1} > 0$. Suppose there are two sub-domains $\mathbf{U}_{k}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $\mathbf{U}_{k}^{(\beta)} \subset D$, then for $\mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k}^{(\beta)}$,

$$||\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})|| \leq \varepsilon_{k}.$$
(6.53)

(i) For $\varepsilon_{k+1} > 0$, there are two sub-domains $U_{k+1}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $U_{k+1}^{(\beta)} \subset D$. If for $\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\alpha)} \in U_{k+1}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\beta)} \in U_{k+1}^{(\beta)}$

$$||\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})|| \le \varepsilon_{k+1}, \tag{6.54}$$

then, the discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ are called the companion in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$ during the *k*th and (k + 1)th iteration.

(i.a) The discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ is called the finite companion if for $\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+j}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+j}^{(\beta)} \subset D$

$$||\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})|| \le \varepsilon_{k+j} \quad \text{for } j = 1, 2, \cdots, N.$$
(6.55)

(i.b) The discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ is called the absolute permanent companion if $\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+j}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+j}^{(\beta)} \subset D$

$$||\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})|| \le \varepsilon_{k+j} \quad \text{for } j = 1, 2, \cdots.$$
(6.56)

(i.c) The discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ is called the repeatable finite companion if $\mathbf{x}_{k+jN(-)}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+jN(-)}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+j(-)}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+j(-)}^{(\beta)} \subset D$

$$\Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(-)}^{(\alpha)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(+)}^{(\alpha)}, \text{ and } \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(-)}^{(\beta)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(+)}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(+)}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(-)}^{(\alpha)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}_{jN}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(+)}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{x}_{k+jN(-)}^{(\beta)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}_{jN}^{(\beta)}; || \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+j(+)}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+j(+)}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) || \leq \varepsilon_{k+\mathrm{mod}(j,N)} \text{ for } j = 1, 2, \cdots, \text{with } \mathbf{x}_{k+j(+)}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+\mathrm{mod}(j,N)}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+j(+)}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+\mathrm{mod}(j,N)}^{(\beta)}.$$
(6.57)

(ii) For $\varepsilon_k > 0$, $\varepsilon_{k+(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})} > 0$ there are there are two sub-domains $U_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $U_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \subset D$. For $\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \in U_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \in U_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)}$ if

$$||\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})|| \leq \varepsilon_{k+(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})},$$
(6.58)

then the discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ from the *k*th to $(k + N_{\alpha})$ th iteration and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ from the *k*th to $(k + N_{\beta})$ th iteration are called the $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -companion in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$.

(ii.a) The discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ is called the finite $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ companion if for $\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \subset D$

$$\|\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})\| \le \varepsilon_{k+j(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})} \text{ for } j = 1, 2, \cdots, N$$
(6.59)

(ii.b) The discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ is called the absolute permanent $(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})$ companion if $\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \subset D$

$$||\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda})|| \le \varepsilon_{k+j(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})} \text{ for } j = 1, 2, \cdots,$$
(6.60)

(ii.c) The discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ is called the repeatable finite $(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})$ companion if $\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \subset D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \subset D$

$$\Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}(-)}^{(\alpha)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}(+)}^{(\alpha)}, \text{ and } \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}(-)}^{(\beta)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta)}$$

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}(+)}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}(-)}^{(\alpha)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}_{jN_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}(-)}^{(\beta)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}_{jN_{\beta}}^{(\beta)}$$

$$||\mathbf{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}(+)}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta)}, \mathbf{\lambda})|| \leq \varepsilon_{k+\mathrm{mod}(j,N)(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})} \text{ for } j = 1, 2, \cdots,$$

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\alpha}(+)}^{(\alpha)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+\mathrm{mod}(j,N)N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+jN_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta)} \in \mathbf{U}_{k+\mathrm{mod}(j,N)N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)}.$$
(6.61)

Definition 6.13 For two discrete dynamical systems in Eq. (6.48), consider two points $\mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)} \in D$ and $\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\beta)} \in D$, and there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\boldsymbol{\varphi} = (\varphi_{1}, \varphi_{2}, \cdots, \varphi_{l})^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^{l}$. For

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}, \tag{6.62}$$

(i) If

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}, \tag{6.63}$$

then, discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ are called the (1:1) synchronization in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$;

(ii) If

$$\begin{split} & \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ with} \\ & \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+1(-)}^{(\alpha)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1(+)}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+1(-)}^{(\beta)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1(+)}^{(\beta)}, \\ & \mathbf{x}_{k+1(+)}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_{k+1(-)}^{(\alpha)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+1(+)}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{x}_{k+1(-)}^{(\beta)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta)}, \\ & \mathbf{x}_{k+1(+)}^{(\alpha)} = \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+1(+)}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)}; \end{split}$$
(6.64)

then, discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ are called the repeatable (1:1) synchronization in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$;



Fig. 6.5 Companion of two discrete dynamical systems

(iii) If

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)},\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}$$
(6.65)

then the discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ are called the $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$;

(iv) If

$$\begin{split} \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \mathbf{0} \text{ with} \\ \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta)} : \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta)} \to \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)}, \\ \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}(+)}^{(\alpha)} &= \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}(-)}^{(\alpha)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(-)}^{(\beta)} + \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta)}, \\ \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(+)}^{(\alpha)} &= \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha)} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta)} = \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta)}. \end{split}$$
(6.66)

then the discrete dynamical systems of $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ are called the repeatable $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$.

From the definition, the companions of two discrete dynamical systems are presented in Figs. 6.5 and 6.6. For each step, if the corresponding relation satisfies Eq. (6.62), the companion is called the (1 : 1) companion, which is presented in Fig. 6.5. The shaded areas are the companion domain which is controlled by ε_k and φ . For the repeated companion, for each step, the companion with specific impulses will have the same control domains. Such shaded areas can be overlapped or separated. The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ state for $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ with N_{α} -iterations and $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ with N_{β} -iterations satisfy Eq. (6.65) is called the $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -companion, which is sketched in Fig. 6.6a. This companion does not require each iteration step to do so. The companion states are shaded. For the repeated companion, the companion state with specific impulses will have the same control domains. The companion for negative maps can be similarly defined, as shown in Fig. 6.6b.

Consider synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems, as shown in Fig. 6.7, with

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ and } \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.67)



Fig. 6.6 Companion of two discrete nonlinear systems: (a) positive companion, (b) negative companion

For the initial state, there is a relation as

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{y}_k, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}. \tag{6.68}$$

For the positive synchronization, there are N_{α} -actions with function $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and mapping $P_{\alpha+}$ and N_{β} -actions with function $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ and mapping $P_{\beta+}$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, N_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+i}, \mathbf{y}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } j = 1, 2, \cdots, N_{\beta};$$
(6.69)

and the synchronization is based on

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
(6.70)



Fig. 6.7 Synchronization of two discrete nonlinear systems: (a) positive synchronization, (b) negative synchronization

For the negative synchronization, there are N_{α} -actions with function $\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}$ and mapping $P_{\alpha-}$ and N_{β} -actions with function $\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}$ and mapping $P_{\beta-}$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{k-i+1}, \mathbf{x}_{k-i-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, N_{\alpha},$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_{k-j}, \mathbf{y}_{k-j-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ for } j = 1, 2, \cdots, N_{\beta}$$
(6.71)

and the synchronization is based on

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k-N_{\alpha}},\mathbf{y}_{k-N_{\beta}},\boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}. \tag{6.72}$$

Thus there is a relation

$$\mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}^{-}} \circ P_{\beta^{-}}^{(N_{\beta})} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}^{+}} \circ P_{\alpha^{+}}^{(N_{\alpha})} \mathbf{x}_{k}, \qquad (6.73)$$





where

$$P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\beta}-}^{(N_{\boldsymbol{\beta}})} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}+}^{(N_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}})}$$

$$= P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ \underbrace{P_{\boldsymbol{\beta}-} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\beta}-} \circ \cdots \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\beta}-}}_{N_{\boldsymbol{\beta}}-actions} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \circ \underbrace{P_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}+} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}+} \circ \cdots \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}+}}_{N_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}}-actions}.$$
(6.74)

From Eq. (6.73), we have

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}} = P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}},$$

$$\mathbf{y}_{k} = P_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta})} \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \mathbf{y}_{k}$$
(6.75)

and

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}} = P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}},$$

$$P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \mathbf{x}_{k} = \mathbf{y}_{k} \text{ and } P_{\beta+}^{(N_{\beta})} \mathbf{y}_{k} = \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}.$$
(6.76)

The corresponding commutative diagram is given in Fig. 6.8. The solid and dashed arrows give the positive and negative mappings, respectively.

From the above discussion on synchronization of $P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})}$ and $P_{\beta+}^{(N_{\beta})}$ under the constraint $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$, the following relations should exist

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ P_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta})} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \circ P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})} \mathbf{x}_{k}, \text{ or}$$
$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = P_{\alpha-}^{(N_{\alpha})} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ P_{\beta+}^{(N_{\beta})} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \mathbf{x}_{k};$$
(6.77)

The above equation forms an iterative mapping. If the fixed point exits, i.e.,

$$\mathbf{x}'_k = \mathbf{x}_k,\tag{6.78}$$

then the synchronization of $P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})}$ and $P_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta})}$ under the constraint φ exists

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}} = P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})} \mathbf{x}_{k}, \text{ and } \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}} = P_{\beta+}^{(N_{\beta})} \mathbf{y}_{k};$$

$$\mathbf{y}_{k} = P_{\mathbf{\phi}+} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ and } \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}} = P_{\mathbf{\phi}+} \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}.$$
 (6.79)

Theorem 6.6 Consider two discrete dynamical systems $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ as in Eq. (6.48) with

$$P_{\alpha+}: \mathbf{x}_k \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\alpha-}: \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{x}_k,$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0}; \tag{6.80}$$

and

$$P_{\beta+}: \mathbf{y}_k \to \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\alpha-}: \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{y}_k,$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.81)

For two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}_k \in D_{\beta}$, there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\boldsymbol{\phi} = (\varphi_1, \varphi_2, \dots, \varphi_l)^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^l$. The synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is under the following constraints

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{y}_k, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ and } \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.82)

Consider a resultant hybrid mapping relation as

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = P\mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ P_{\beta-} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \circ P_{\alpha+}\mathbf{x}_{k}$$
(6.83)

with

$$P_{\alpha+} : \mathbf{x}_{k} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \text{ with } \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$P_{\mathbf{\phi}+} : \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \text{ with } \mathbf{\phi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$P_{\beta-} : \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{y}_{k} \text{ with } \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{y}_{k}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$P_{\mathbf{\phi}-} : \mathbf{y}_{k} \to \mathbf{x}'_{k} \text{ with } \mathbf{\phi}(\mathbf{x}'_{k}, \mathbf{y}_{k}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0};$$

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = \mathbf{x}_{k}$$
(6.84)

and

$$DP(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-}(\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\beta-}(\mathbf{y}_{k+1}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\alpha+}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}), \qquad (6.85)$$

where

$$DP(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}'}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}}, DP_{\alpha+}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+1}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}}, DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+1}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+1}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{*}}, DP_{\boldsymbol{\beta}-}(\mathbf{y}_{k+1}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k}}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+1}}\right]_{\mathbf{y}_{k+1}^{*}}, DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-}(\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}'}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k}}\right]_{\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}}.$$

$$(6.86)$$

(i) The (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of (P_α, f^(α)) and (P_β, f^(β)) is persistent if and only if all the eigenvalues λ_i (i = 1, 2, ..., n) of DP(x_k^{*}) lie in the unit circles, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| < 1 \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, n.$$
 (6.87)

(ii) The (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is a saddle-node vanishing if and only if at least one of the real eigenvalues λ_i $(i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \leq n$) of $DP(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ is positive one (+1) and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\lambda_i = 1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
 (6.88)

(iii) The (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is a period-doubling vanishing if and only if at least one of the real eigenvalues λ_i ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \leq n$) of $DP(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ is negative one (-1) and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\lambda_i = -1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
(6.89)

(iv) The (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is a Naimark vanishing if and only if one pair of all the complex eigenvalues $\lambda_i = \alpha_i \pm \beta_i \mathbf{i}$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \le n/2$) of $DP(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are on the unit circle and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| = \sqrt{\alpha_i^2 + \beta_i^2} = 1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \dots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
 (6.90)

(v) The (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is an $(l_1:l_2:l_3)$ vanishing if and only if l_1 and l_2 real eigenvalues λ_i of $DP(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are (-1) and (+1), respectively, and l_3 -pairs of complex eigenvalues $\lambda_i = \alpha_i \pm \beta_i \mathbf{i}$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \le n/2$) of $DP(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are on the unit circle and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\begin{aligned} \lambda_{i} &= -1 \text{ for } i = i_{1}, i_{2}, \cdots, i_{l_{1}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \\ \lambda_{j} &= +1 \text{ for } j = j_{1}, j_{2}, \cdots, j_{l_{2}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \\ |\lambda_{r}| &= \sqrt{\alpha_{r}^{2} + \beta_{r}^{2}} = 1 \text{ for } r = r_{1}, r_{2}, \cdots, r_{l_{3}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \\ |\lambda_{s}| &< 1 \text{ for } s \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } s \notin \{i, j, r\}. \end{aligned}$$

$$(6.91)$$

(vi) The (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is instantaneous if and only if at least one of the eigenvalues $\lambda_i (i = 1, 2, ..., n)$ of $DP(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ lies out of the unit circle, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| > 1 \text{ for } i \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\}.$$
 (6.92)

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2].

Theorem 6.7 Consider two discrete dynamical systems $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ as in Eq. (6.48) with

$$P_{\alpha+}: \mathbf{x}_k \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\alpha-}: \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{x}_k$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0},$$
 (6.93)

and

$$P_{\beta+}: \mathbf{y}_k \to \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\beta-}: \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{y}_k,$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.94)

For two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D_{\alpha}$ and $\mathbf{y}_k \in D_{\beta}$, there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\mathbf{\phi} = (\varphi_1, \varphi_2, \cdots, \varphi_l)^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^l$. The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is under the following constraints

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{y}_k, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ and } \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.95)

Consider a resultant hybrid mapping relation as

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = P^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}\mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ P^{(N_{\beta})}_{\beta-} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \circ P^{(N_{\alpha})}_{\alpha+}\mathbf{x}_{k}$$
(6.96)

with

$$P_{\alpha^{+}}^{(N_{\alpha})} : \mathbf{x}_{k} \rightarrow \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}} \text{ with}$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+2}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$\vdots$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$P_{\mathbf{\phi}^{+}} : \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \rightarrow \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \text{ with } \mathbf{\phi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0};$$

$$P_{\beta^{-}}^{(N_{\beta})} : \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}} \rightarrow \mathbf{y}_{k} \text{ with}$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$\vdots$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+2}, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{y}_{k}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta)}) = \mathbf{0},$$

$$P_{\mathbf{\phi}^{-}} : \mathbf{y}_{k} \rightarrow \mathbf{x}'_{k} \text{ with } \mathbf{\phi}(\mathbf{x}'_{k}, \mathbf{y}_{k}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0};$$

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = \mathbf{x}_{k} \qquad (6.97)$$

and

$$DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-}(\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}), \quad (6.98)$$

where

$$DP_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = DP_{\alpha+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}-1}^{*}) \cdot \dots \cdot DP_{\alpha+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\alpha+}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}),$$

$$DP_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{*}) = DP_{\beta-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+1}^{*}) \cdot \dots \cdot DP_{\beta-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}-1}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\beta-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{*}), \qquad (6.99)$$

$$DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}'_{k}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}},$$

$$DP^{(N_{\alpha})}_{\alpha+}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = \prod_{j=N_{\alpha}}^{1} \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}^{*}}, DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}},$$

$$DP^{(N_{\beta})}_{\beta-}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{*}) = \prod_{j=1}^{N_{\beta}} \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-j}}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-j+1}}\right]_{\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-j+1}^{*}}, DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-}(\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}'}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k}}\right]_{\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}}.$$
(6.100)

(i) The (N_α : N_β)-synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of (P_α, f^(α)) and (P_β, f^(β)) is persistent if and only if all the eigenvalues λ_i (i = 1, 2, ..., n) of DP^(N_z:N_β)(x^{*}_k) lie in the unit circles, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| < 1 \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, n.$$
 (6.101)

(ii) The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is a saddle-node vanishing if and only if at least one of the real eigenvalues λ_i ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \leq n$) of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ is positive one (+1) and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\lambda_i = 1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
 (6.102)

(iii) The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is a period-doubling vanishing if and only if at least one of the real eigenvalues λ_i ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \leq n$) of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ is negative one (-1) and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\lambda_i = -1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
(6.103)

(iv) The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is a Naimark vanishing if and only if at least one pair of all the complex eigenvalues $\lambda_i = \alpha_i \pm \beta_i \mathbf{i}$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \leq n/2$) of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are on the unit circle and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| = \sqrt{\alpha_i^2 + \beta_i^2} = 1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
 (6.104)

(v) The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is an $(l_1 : l_2 : l_3)$ vanishing if and only if l_1 and l_2 real eigenvalues λ_i of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are (-1) and (+1), respectively, and l_3 -pairs of complex eigenvalues $\lambda_i = \alpha_i \pm \beta_i \mathbf{i}$ $(i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $n_1 \le n/2)$ of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are on the unit circle and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\begin{aligned} \lambda_{i} &= -1 \text{ for } i = i_{1}, i_{2}, \cdots, i_{l_{1}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\}, \\ \lambda_{j} &= +1 \text{ for } j = j_{1}, j_{2}, \cdots, j_{l_{2}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\}, \\ |\lambda_{r}| &= \sqrt{\alpha_{r}^{2} + \beta_{r}^{2}} = 1 \text{ for } r = r_{1}, r_{2}, \cdots, r_{l_{3}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\}, \\ |\lambda_{s}| &< 1 \text{ for } s \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } s \notin \{i, j, r\}. \end{aligned}$$

$$(6.105)$$

(vi) The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems of $(P_{\alpha}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)})$ and $(P_{\beta}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta)})$ is instantaneous if and only if at least one of the eigenvalues λ_i $(i = 1, 2, \dots, n)$ of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ lies out of the unit circle, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| > 1 \text{ for } i \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\}.$$
 (6.106)

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2].

Fixed points in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems possess many types of unstable states from eigenvalue analysis. From the similar ideas, the instantaneous $(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems can be classified. Therefore, such instantaneous synchronization classification will not be presented herein. If $N_{\alpha} \rightarrow \infty$ and $N_{\beta} \rightarrow \infty$, the $(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems should be chaotic. Consider two hybrid maps

$$P_{+}^{(\Sigma_{j=1}^{n}N_{\beta}^{i}\oplus N_{\alpha}^{i})} = \underbrace{P_{\beta+}^{(M_{\beta}^{m})} \circ P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha}^{m})} \circ \cdots \circ P_{\beta+}^{(N_{\beta+}^{1})} \circ P_{\alpha+}^{(N_{\alpha}^{1})}}_{n-terms}, \qquad (6.107)$$

$$P_{+}^{(\Sigma_{j=1}^{1}M_{\beta}^{i}\oplus M_{\alpha}^{j})} = \underbrace{P_{\beta+}^{(M_{\beta}^{m})} \circ P_{\alpha+}^{(M_{\alpha}^{m})} \circ \cdots \circ P_{\beta+}^{(M_{\beta+}^{1})} \circ P_{\alpha+}^{(M_{\alpha}^{1})}}_{n-terms}, \qquad (6.107)$$

$$P_{-}^{(\Sigma_{j=m}^{1}M_{\alpha}^{i}\oplus N_{\beta}^{j})} = \underbrace{P_{\alpha-}^{(N_{\alpha}^{1})} \circ P_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta}^{1})} \circ \cdots \circ P_{\alpha-}^{(N_{\alpha-}^{m})} \circ P_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta+}^{m})}}_{n-terms}, \qquad (6.108)$$

The $(N_{\beta} \oplus N_{\alpha} : M_{\beta} \oplus M_{\alpha})$ -hybrid synchronization of two discrete systems with two maps $P_{+}^{(\sum_{i=1}^{n} N_{\beta}^{i} \oplus N_{\alpha}^{i})}$ and $P_{+}^{(\sum_{j=1}^{m} M_{\beta}^{j} \oplus M_{\alpha}^{j})}$ can be investigated via the following map

$$P^{(N_{\beta}\oplus N_{\alpha}:M_{\beta}\oplus M_{\alpha})}\mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ P^{(\Sigma_{j=m}^{1}M_{\beta}^{j}\oplus M_{\beta}^{j})}_{-} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \circ P^{(\Sigma_{i=1}^{n}N_{\beta}^{i}\oplus N_{\alpha}^{j})}_{+} \mathbf{x}_{k}, \text{ or }$$

$$P^{(N_{\beta}\oplus N_{\alpha}:M_{\beta}\oplus M_{\alpha})}\mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-} \circ P^{(\Sigma_{i=n}^{1}N_{\alpha}^{i}\oplus N_{\beta}^{i})}_{-} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+} \circ P^{(\Sigma_{j=1}^{m}M_{\beta}^{j}\oplus M_{\alpha}^{j})}_{+} \mathbf{x}_{k}.$$
(6.109)

Thus,

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = P^{(N_{\beta} \oplus N_{\alpha}: M_{\beta} \oplus M_{\alpha})} \mathbf{x}_{k}.$$
(6.110)

Similar to the $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization in Theorem 6.7, the corresponding fixed point and the stability conditions of Eq. (6.110) gives the $(N_{\beta} \oplus N_{\alpha} : M_{\beta} \oplus M_{\alpha})$ -hybrid synchronization of two discrete systems. This concept can be extended to the discrete dynamical systems with multiple maps.

As in discrete dynamical systems with multiple maps in Section 6.2, the synchronization for the resultant mappings in multiple different maps can be developed.

Definition 6.14 Consider two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ as in Eq. (6.48) for each discrete system with

$$P_{\alpha_{i+}}: \mathbf{x}_{k} \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\alpha_{i-}}: \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{x}_{k},$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_{i})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_{i})}) = \mathbf{0},$$
 (6.111)

and

$$P_{\beta_{j+}}: \mathbf{y}_{k} \to \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\beta_{j-}}: \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{y}_{k},$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{y}_{k}, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta_{j})}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.112)

For the two sets of discrete dynamical systems, the resultant mappings are

$$P^{+}_{(N_{z_{m}}\cdots N_{z_{2}}N_{z_{1}})} = \underbrace{P^{+}_{\substack{N_{z_{m}} \\ \alpha_{m}}} \circ \cdots \circ P^{+}_{\substack{N_{z_{2}} \\ \alpha_{2}}} \circ P^{+}_{\substack{N_{z_{1}} \\ \alpha_{1}}},}_{m-terms},\\P^{-}_{(N_{z_{1}}N_{z_{2}}\cdots N_{z_{m}})} = \underbrace{P^{-}_{\substack{N_{z_{1}} \\ \alpha_{1}}} \circ P^{-}_{\substack{N_{z_{2}} \\ \alpha_{2}}} \circ \cdots \circ P^{-}_{\substack{N_{z_{m}} \\ \alpha_{m}}};}_{m-terms},$$
(6.113)

and

$$P^{+}_{(N_{\beta_{n}}\cdots N_{\beta_{2}}N_{\beta_{1}})} = \underbrace{P^{+}_{\beta_{n}\beta_{n}} \circ \cdots \circ P^{+}_{\beta_{2}\beta_{2}} \circ P^{+}_{\beta_{1}}}_{n-terms}, \\ P^{-}_{(N_{\beta_{1}}N_{\beta_{2}}\cdots N_{\beta_{m}})} = \underbrace{P^{-}_{\beta_{1}\beta_{1}} \circ P^{-}_{\beta_{2}\beta_{2}} \circ \cdots \circ P^{-}_{\beta_{n}}}_{n-terms},$$
(6.114)

where

$$N_{\alpha} = \sum_{i=1}^{m} N_{\alpha_i} \text{ and } N_{\beta} = \sum_{j=1}^{n} N_{\beta_j}.$$
 (6.115)

For two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D_{\alpha_1}$ and $\mathbf{y}_k \in D_{\beta_1}$, there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\boldsymbol{\varphi} = (\varphi_1, \varphi_2, \cdots, \varphi_l)^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^l$.

(i) If

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha_{m})}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta_{n})}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}, \tag{6.116}$$

then the two discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1} (P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1} (P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ are called the $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$. (ii) If

$$\begin{split} \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{(\alpha_{m})}, \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}}^{(\beta_{n})}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) &= \mathbf{0} \text{ with} \\ \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha_{m}\alpha_{1})} : \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}(-)}^{(\alpha_{m})} \rightarrow \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}(+)}^{(\alpha_{m})} \text{ and } \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta_{n}\beta_{1})} : \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(-)}^{(\beta_{n})} \rightarrow \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta_{n})}, \\ \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}(+)}^{(\alpha_{m})} &= \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}(-)}^{(\alpha_{m})} + \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\alpha_{m}\alpha_{1})} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta_{n})} = \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(-)}^{(\beta_{n})} + \Delta \mathbf{I}^{(\beta_{n}\beta_{1})}, \\ \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(+)}^{(\alpha_{m})} &= \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\alpha_{1})} \text{ and } \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}(+)}^{(\beta_{n})} = \mathbf{x}_{k}^{(\beta_{1})}. \end{split}$$

$$(6.117)$$

then the two discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ are called the repeatable $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization in sense of $\boldsymbol{\varphi}$.

The corresponding theorem can be presented as in Theorem 6.7. For convenience, the statement is given as follows.

Theorem 6.8 Consider two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\beta_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ as in Eq. (6.48) for each discrete system with

$$P_{\alpha_i+}: \mathbf{x}_k \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\alpha_i-}: \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{x}_k,$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_i)}) = \mathbf{0}$$
(6.118)

and

$$P_{\beta_{j+}} : \mathbf{y}_k \to \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \text{ and } P_{\beta_{j-}} : \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \to \mathbf{y}_k,$$

$$\mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)}(\mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta_j)}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.119)

For two points $\mathbf{x}_k \in D_{\alpha_1}$ and $\mathbf{y}_k \in D_{\beta_1}$, there is a specific, differentiable, vector function $\mathbf{\phi} = (\varphi_1, \varphi_2, \dots, \varphi_l)^{\mathrm{T}} \in \mathscr{R}^l$. The $(N_{\alpha} : N_{\beta})$ -synchronization of two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ is under the following constraints

$$\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{y}_k, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0} \text{ and } \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{0}.$$
 (6.120)

Consider a resultant hybrid mapping relation as

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = P^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}\mathbf{x}_{k} = P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}^{-}} \circ P_{N_{\beta}^{-}} \circ P_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}^{+}} \circ P_{N_{\alpha}^{+}}\mathbf{x}_{k}$$
(6.121)

with

$$P_{N_{\alpha}+} = P^{+}_{(N_{\alpha_{m}}\cdots N_{\alpha_{2}}N_{\alpha_{1}})} \text{ and } P_{N_{\beta}-} = P^{-}_{(N_{\beta_{1}}N_{\beta_{2}}\cdots N_{\beta_{n}})}, \tag{6.122}$$

$$P_{N_{x_{i}+}}: \mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{x_{r}}} \rightarrow \mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i}N_{x_{r}}} \text{ with } \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_{i})}(\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{x_{r}}+1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{x_{r}}}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_{i})}(\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{x_{r}}+2}, \mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{x_{r}}+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha)}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \vdots \\ \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_{i})}(\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{x_{r}}, \mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{x_{r}}-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\alpha_{i})}) = \mathbf{0} \\ \text{for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, m \\ P_{\mathbf{\phi}^{+}}: \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}} \rightarrow \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}} \text{ with } \mathbf{\phi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}; \\ P_{N_{\beta_{j}}}: \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j}^{n}N_{\beta_{r}}} \rightarrow \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j-1}^{j}N_{\beta_{r}}} \text{ with } \\ \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j-1}^{n}N_{\beta_{r}}+2}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j-1}^{n}N_{\beta_{r}}+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta_{j})}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \vdots \\ \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j-1}^{j}N_{\beta_{r}}+2}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j-1}^{j}N_{\beta_{r}}}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta_{j})}) = \mathbf{0}, \\ \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_{j})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j-1}^{j}N_{\beta_{r}}+1}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=j-1}^{j}N_{\beta_{r}}}, \mathbf{p}^{(\beta_{j})}) = \mathbf{0} \\ \text{for } j = n, n - 1, \cdots, 1 \\ P_{\mathbf{\phi}^{-}}: \mathbf{y}_{k} \rightarrow \mathbf{x}'_{k} \text{ with } \mathbf{\phi}(\mathbf{x}'_{k}, \mathbf{y}_{k}, \lambda) = \mathbf{0}; \\ \mathbf{x}'_{k} = \mathbf{x}_{k}$$

$$(6.123)$$

and

$$DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}^{-}}(\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\beta^{-}}^{(N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}^{+}}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\alpha^{+}}^{(N_{\alpha})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) \quad (6.124)$$

where

$$DP_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) = \prod_{i=m}^{1} DP_{\alpha_{i}+}^{(N_{\alpha_{i}})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}),$$

$$DP_{\alpha_{i}+}^{(N_{\alpha_{i}})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = DP_{\alpha_{i}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i}N_{\alpha_{i}}-1}^{*}) \cdot \dots \cdot DP_{\alpha_{i}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}+1}^{*}) \cdot DP_{\alpha_{i}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{*}),$$

(6.125)

$$DP_{\beta-}^{(N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) = \prod_{j=1}^{m} DP_{\beta_{j}+}^{(N_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{*}),$$

$$DP_{\beta_{j}+}^{(N_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{*}) = DP_{\beta-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{*}) \cdot \dots \cdot DP_{\beta-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{*}),$$

$$\cdot DP_{\beta-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{*}),$$
(6.126)

$$DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}'}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}}\right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*}},$$
(6.127)

$$DP_{\alpha_{i}+}^{(N_{\alpha_{i}})}(\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i}N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{*}) = \prod_{s=N_{\alpha_{i}}}^{1} \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}+s}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}+s-1}} \right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+\Sigma_{r=1}^{i-1}N_{\alpha_{i}}+s-1}^{*}},$$

$$DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}} \right]_{\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{\alpha}}^{*}},$$

$$DP_{\beta_{j}-}^{(N_{\beta_{j}})}(\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j-1}N_{\beta_{j}}}^{*}) = \prod_{s=1}^{N_{\beta_{j}}} \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j}N_{\beta_{j}}-s}}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j}N_{\beta_{j}}-s+1}} \right]_{\mathbf{y}_{k+N_{\beta}-\Sigma_{r=1}^{j}N_{\beta_{j}}-s+1}^{*}},$$

$$DP_{\boldsymbol{\varphi}-}(\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}) = \left[\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}'_{k}}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k}} \right]_{\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}}.$$
(6.128)

 (i) The (N_α : N_β) -synchronization of two sets of discrete dynamical systems ∪_{i=1}(P_{αi}, f^(αi)) and ∪_{j=1}(P_{βj}, f^(βj)) is persistent if and only if all the eigenvalues λ_i (i = 1, 2, ..., n) of DP^(N_α:N_β)(**x**^{*}_k) lie in the unit circles, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| < 1 \text{ for } i = 1, 2, \cdots, n.$$
 (6.129)

(ii) The $(N_{\alpha}: N_{\beta})$ -synchronization of two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ is a saddle-node vanishing if and only if at least one of the real eigenvalues λ_i $(i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1 \text{ and } 1 \le n_1 \le n)$ of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ is positive one (+1) and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\lambda_i = 1 \text{ and } |\lambda_i| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
 (6.130)

(iii) The $(N_{\alpha}: N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ is a period-doubling vanishing if and only if at least one of the real eigenvalues λ_i $(i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $1 \le n_1 \le n$) of

 $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_{k}^{*})$ is negative one (-1) and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\lambda_i = -1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
(6.131)

(iv) The $(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})$ -synchronization of two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ is a Naimark vanishing if and only if at least one pair of all the complex eigenvalues $\lambda_i = \alpha_i \pm \beta_i \mathbf{i}$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $1 \le n_1 \le n/2$) of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are on the unit circle and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| = \sqrt{\alpha_i^2 + \beta_i^2} = 1 \text{ and } |\lambda_j| < 1 \text{ for } i, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } j \neq i.$$
 (6.132)

(v) The $(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ is an $(l_1:l_2:l_3)$ vanishing if and only if l_1 and l_2 real eigenvalues λ_i of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are (-1) and (+1), respectively, and l_3 -pairs of complex eigenvalues $\lambda_i = \alpha_i \pm \beta_i \mathbf{i}$ ($i = 1, 2, \dots, n_1$ and $1 \le n_1 \le n/2$) of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ are on the unit circle and the other eigenvalues are in the unit circle, i.e.,

$$\lambda_{i} = -1 \text{ for } i = i_{1}, i_{2}, \cdots, i_{l_{1}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\},$$

$$\lambda_{j} = +1 \text{ for } j = j_{1}, j_{2}, \cdots, j_{l_{2}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\},$$

$$|\lambda_{r}| = \sqrt{\alpha_{r}^{2} + \beta_{r}^{2}} = 1 \text{ for } r = r_{1}, r_{2}, \cdots, r_{l_{3}} \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\},$$

$$|\lambda_{s}| < 1 \text{ for } s \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\} \text{ and } s \notin \{i, j, r\}.$$
(6.133)

(vi) The $(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})$ synchronization of two sets of discrete dynamical systems $\cup_{i=1}(P_{\alpha_i}, \mathbf{f}^{(\alpha_i)})$ and $\cup_{j=1}(P_{\beta_j}, \mathbf{f}^{(\beta_j)})$ is instantaneous if and only if at least one of the eigenvalues λ_i $(i = 1, 2, \dots, n)$ of $DP^{(N_{\alpha}:N_{\beta})}(\mathbf{x}_k^*)$ lies out of the unit circle, i.e.,

$$|\lambda_i| > 1 \text{ for } i \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\}.$$
 (6.134)

Proof The proof can be referred to Luo [2].

6.5 An Application of Discrete Systems Synchronization

As in Luo and Guo [4], consider an identical synchronization of the Duffing and Henon maps as an example. The Duffing map is

$$x_{1(k+1)} = x_{2(k)}$$
 and $x_{2(k+1)} = -dx_{1(k)} + cx_{2(k)} - x_{2(k)}^{3}$. (6.135)

and the Henon map is

$$y_{1(k+1)} = y_{2(k)} + 1 - ay_{1(k)}^2$$
 and $y_{2(k+1)} = by_{1(k)}$. (6.136)

Introduce the vectors as

$$\mathbf{x}_{k} = (x_{1(k)}, x_{2(k)})^{\mathrm{T}} \text{ and } \mathbf{y}_{k} = (y_{1(k)}, y_{2(k)})^{\mathrm{T}}$$
$$\mathbf{f}^{(\alpha)} = (f_{1}^{(\alpha)}, f_{2}^{(\alpha)})^{\mathrm{T}} \text{ for } \alpha = 1, 2.$$
(6.137)

Herein $\alpha = 1$ for the Duffing map and $\alpha = 2$ for the Henon map. Thus, the Duffing map is described by

$$P_1: \mathbf{x}_k \to \mathbf{x}_{k+1} \text{ and } \mathbf{f}^{(1)}(\mathbf{x}_k, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(1)}) = \mathbf{0},$$
 (6.138)

where

$$f_{1}^{(1)}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(1)}) = x_{1(k+1)} - x_{2(k)},$$

$$f_{2}^{(1)}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{x}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(1)}) = x_{2(k+1)} + dx_{1(k)} - cx_{2(k)} + x_{2(k)}^{3};$$

$$\mathbf{p}^{(1)} = (c, d)^{\mathrm{T}}.$$
(6.139)

The Henon map is described by

$$P_2: \mathbf{y}_k \to \mathbf{y}_{k+1} \text{ and } \mathbf{f}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(2)}) = \mathbf{0},$$
 (6.140)

where

$$f_1^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(2)}) = y_{1(k+1)} - y_{2(k)} - 1 + ay_{1(k)}^2,$$

$$f_2^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(2)}) = y_{2(k+1)} - by_{1(k)};$$

$$\mathbf{p}^{(2)} = (a, b)^{\mathrm{T}}.$$
(6.141)

Consider the $(N_1 : N_2)$ synchronization of the Duffing and Henon maps with

$$\begin{aligned} & \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{y}_{k}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{x}_{k} - \mathbf{y}_{k} = \mathbf{0}, \\ & \boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{2}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}} - \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{2}} = \mathbf{0}, \end{aligned}$$
(6.142)

where

$$\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}} = P_{1}^{(N_{1})} \mathbf{x}_{k} = \underbrace{P_{1} \circ P_{1} \circ \cdots \circ P_{1}}_{N_{1}} \mathbf{x}_{k} \text{ with}$$

$$f_{1}^{(1)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}^{(1)}) = x_{1(k+i)} - x_{2(k+i-1)} = 0,$$

$$f_{2}^{(1)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}^{(1)}) = x_{2(k+i)} + dx_{1(k+i-1)} - cx_{2(k+i-1)} + x_{2(k+i-1)}^{3} = 0$$
for $i = 1, 2, \cdots, N_{1}$; (6.143)

$$\mathbf{y}_{k+N_2} = P_2^{(N_2)} \mathbf{y}_k = \underbrace{P_2 \circ P_2 \circ \cdots \circ P_2}_{N_2} \mathbf{y}_k \text{ with}$$

$$f_1^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+j}, \mathbf{y}_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(2)}) = y_{1(k+j)} - y_{2(k+j-1)} - 1 + ay_{1(k+j-1)}^2 = 0,$$

$$f_2^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_k, \mathbf{y}_{k+1}, \mathbf{p}^{(2)}) = y_{2(k+j)} - by_{1(k+j-1)} = 0$$
for $j = 1, 2, \cdots, N_2$.
(6.144)

For the $(N_1 : N_2)$ synchronization, the equivalent mapping structure is

$$\mathbf{x}'_{k} = P_{\mathbf{\phi}-} \circ P_{2-}^{(N_{2})} \circ P_{\mathbf{\phi}+} \circ P_{1+}^{(N_{1})} \mathbf{x}_{k}.$$
(6.145)

If $\mathbf{x}'_k = \mathbf{x}_k$, we have

$$f_{1}^{(1)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}^{(1)}) = x_{1(k+i)} - x_{2(k+i-1)} = 0 f_{2}^{(1)}(\mathbf{x}_{k+i-1}, \mathbf{x}_{k+i}, \mathbf{p}^{(1)}) = x_{2(k+i)} + dx_{1(k+i-1)} - cx_{2(k+i-1)} + x_{2(k+i-1)}^{3} = 0$$
for $i = 1, 2, \dots, N_{1}$;
 $\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}}, \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{2}}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}} - \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{2}} = \mathbf{0}$;
 $f_{1}^{(2)}(\mathbf{y}_{k+j}, \mathbf{y}_{k+j-1}, \mathbf{p}^{(2)}) = y_{1(k+j)} - y_{2(k+j-1)} - 1 + ay_{1(k+j-1)}^{2} = 0$ for $j = N_{2}, \dots, 2, 1$;
 $\boldsymbol{\varphi}(\mathbf{x}_{k}, \mathbf{y}_{k}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}) = \mathbf{x}_{k} - \mathbf{y}_{k} = \mathbf{0}.$ (6.146)

From which the fixed points of Eq. (6.145) [i.e., \mathbf{x}_{k+i}^* $(i = 1, 2, \dots, N_1)$ and \mathbf{y}_{k+j}^* $(j = 1, 2, \dots, N_2)$] can be obtained. The corresponding stability boundary of such fixed points is given the eigenvalue analysis, i.e.,

$$\Delta \mathbf{x}'_{k} = DP_{\mathbf{\phi}+} \cdot DP_{2-}^{(N_{2})} \cdot DP_{\mathbf{\phi}+} \cdot DP_{1+}^{(N_{1})} \Delta \mathbf{x}_{k}; \qquad (6.147)$$

where

$$DP_{\mathbf{q}-}(\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}) = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k}'_{k}}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k}} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{y}_{k}^{*}} = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0\\ 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix};$$

$$DP_{2-}^{(N_{2})} = \prod_{j=1}^{N_{2}} DP_{2-}(\mathbf{y}_{k+j}^{*}),$$

$$DP_{2-}(\mathbf{y}_{k+j}^{*}) = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+j-1}}{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+j}} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{y}_{k+j}^{*}} = -\frac{1}{b} \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1\\ b & 2ay_{1(k+j-1)}^{*} \end{bmatrix};$$

$$DP_{\mathbf{q}+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}}^{*}) = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial \mathbf{y}_{k+N_{2}}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}}} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{x}_{k+N_{1}}^{*}} = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0\\ 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix};$$

$$DP_{1+}^{(N_{1})} = \prod_{i=N_{1}}^{1} DP_{2-}(\mathbf{x}_{k+j}^{*}),$$

$$DP_{1+}(\mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}^{*}) = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathbf{x}_{k+j-1}^{*}} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1\\ -d & -c + 3(x_{2(k+j-1)}^{*})^{2} \end{bmatrix}.$$
(6.148)

Through the above analysis procedure, the $(N_1 : N_2)$ synchronization domains and boundaries can be determined from Theorem 6.7. In Eq. (6.145), we can form a new map iteration

$$\mathbf{x}_{J+1} = P \mathbf{x}_J \text{ with}$$

$$\mathbf{x}_J \equiv \mathbf{x}_k \text{ and } P \equiv P_{\mathbf{\phi}^-} \circ P_{2^-}^{(N_2)} \circ P_{\mathbf{\phi}^+} \circ P_{1^+}^{(N_1)}.$$
(6.149)

Using Eq. (6.149), numerical iteration can be done to observe the $(N_1 : N_2)$ identical synchronization of the Duffing and Henon maps.

As in Luo and Guo [4], consider parameters of a = 0.8, c = 2.75 and d = 0.2. From the mapping in Eq. (6.149), the (1:1) -identical synchronization of the Duffing and Henon maps is simulated, as shown in Fig. 6.9. The bifurcation scenario alike plots for $x_{1(k)}$ and $x_{2(k)}$ with $y_{1(k)}$ and $y_{2(k)}$. The shaded regions are for the (1:1) synchronization. PD and SN represent period-doubling and saddlenode vanishing of the (1:1) synchronization, respectively. The synchronization range is $b \in (-\infty, -30.84)$ and $b \in (33.88, \infty)$ in Fig. 6.9a, b. In Fig. 6.9c-f, the zoomed view for small parameter ranges are presented. The parameter ranges are given by $b \in (1.2431, 1.3687)$ and $b \in (-1.7667, -1.4216)$, respectively. The analytical predictions of the (1:1)-synchronization is presented in Fig. 6.9. The solid curves are the (1:1) synchronizations. PD and SN represent perioddoubling and saddle-node vanishing of the (1:1) synchronization, respectively. The instantaneous (1:1) synchronizations are represented by dashed curves. For numerical simulations, the instantaneous synchronization state cannot be achieved. The (1:1) synchronization given by the analytical prediction matches with the numerical prediction. The large parameter ranges for the (1:1) synchronization are presented in Fig. 6.10a, b. The small parameter ranges for the (1:1)synchronization are arranged in Fig. 6.10c-f. The corresponding parameter maps for (1:1)-synchronization are presented in Fig. 4.13. The shaded regions are for the (1:1) synchronization. PD and SN represent period-doubling and saddle-node vanishing of the (1:1) synchronization, respectively. The intersected points of the PD and SN vanishing are (1, 1, 0)-critical synchronization vanishing with $\lambda_1 = -1$ and $\lambda_2 = 1$. Figure 6.11a, c, e is for overall parameter maps, and Fig. 6.11b, d, f is for the zoomed views of parameter maps. Figure 6.11a, b shows parameter map (a, b) for c = 2.75 and d = 0.2. Figure 6.11c, d presents the parameter maps (d, b)for a = 0.8 and c = 2.75. Figure 6.11e, f gives the parameter (c, b) for a = 0.8 and d = 0.2. For the parameter maps, the (1:1) synchronizations exist in different regions with many cusp points, and such cusp points will be very difficult to be analyzed by the catastrophe analysis. Other discrete dynamical system synchronization can be carried out from the theory of discrete dynamical system synchronization, which is presented in this chapter.



Fig. 6.9 The numerical iteration for the (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems with the Duffing and Henon maps. Bifurcation scenario alike plots for $x_{1(k)}$ and $x_{2(k)}$ with $y_{1(k)}$ and $y_{2(k)}$: (a) and (b) for $b \in (-\infty, -30.84)$ and $b \in (33.88, \infty)$; (c) and (d) for $b \in (1.2431, 1.3687)$; (e) and (f) for $b \in (-1.7667, -1.4216)$. The *shaded regions* are for the (1:1) synchronization. PD and SN represent period-doubling and saddle-node vanishing of the (1:1) synchronization, respectively (a = 0.8, c = 2.75 and d = 0.2)



Fig. 6.10 The analytical prediction of the (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems with the Duffing and Henon maps. The iterative states $x_{1(k)}$ and $x_{2(k)}$ with $y_{1(k)}$ and $y_{2(k)}$ are presented: (a) and (b) for $b \in (-\infty, -30.84)$ and $b \in (33.88, \infty)$; (c) and (d) for $b \in (1.2431, 1.3687)$; (e) and (f) for $b \in (-1.7667, -1.4216)$. The *shaded regions* are for the (1:1) synchronization. PD and SN represent period-doubling and saddle-node vanishing of the (1:1) synchronization, respectively. The instantaneous (1:1) synchronizations are represented by the *dotted curves* (a = 0.8, c = 2.75, and d = 0.2)



Fig. 6.11 Parameter maps of the (1:1) synchronization of two discrete dynamical systems with the Duffing and Henon maps: (a) and (b) parameter map (a, b) for c = 2.75 and d = 0.2; (c) and (d) parameter maps (d, b) for a = 0.8 and c = 2.75; (e) and (f) parameter (c, b) for a = 0.8 and d = 0.2. The overall views are given on the *left-hand side*, and the zoomed views are given on the *right-hand side*. The *shaded regions* are for the (1:1) synchronization. PD and SN represent period-doubling and saddle-node vanishing of the (1:1) synchronization, respectively

References

- 1. Luo ACJ (2010) A Ying-Yang theory in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems. Int J Bifurcat Chaos 20:1085–1098
- 2. Luo ACJ (2011) Regularity and complexity in dynamical systems. Springer, New York
- 3. Luo ACJ, Guo Y (2010) Parameter characteristics for stable and unstable solutions in nonlinear discrete dynamical systems. Int J Bifurcat Chaos 20:3173–3191
- Luo ACJ, Guo Y (2011) Synchronization dynamics of discrete dynamical systems. In: Paper presented in the third conference on dynamics, vibration and control, Calgary, Canada, 7–13 Aug 2011

Index

A

Accessible domain, 12 Anti-symmetric syncrhonization, 75

B

Boundary, 14

С

Companion, 214 Connectable domain, 12

D

Desynchronization, 94 $(2k_1: 2k_2)$ desynchronization, 91 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ desynchronization, 129 *l*-dimensional desynchronization, 123 Desynchronization onset from penetration, 89, 125 $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ desynchronization onset from penetration, 95 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ desynchronization onset from penetration, 132 Desynchronization vanishing to penetration, 90, 126 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ desynchronization vanishing to penetration, 95 $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ desynchronization vanishing to penetration, 132 Discontinuity, 11 Discrete system synchronization, 190 Duffing oscillator, 166

F

Fragmentation bifurcation of the first kind, 64 $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ fragmentation bifurcation of the first kind, 64 Fragmentation bifurcation of the second kind, 65 $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -fragmentation bifurcation of the second kind, 65 function synchronization, 157

G

Generalized syncrhonization, 77 G-functions, 16, 18 Grazing (tangential) flows, 40 $(2k_x - 1)$ th order grazing (tangential) flow, 41

H

Half-non-passable flow, 34, 38 $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -half-non-passable flow of the first kind, 34 Half-sink flows, 34 $(m_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -half-non-passable flow of the second kind, 38 $(2k_i : 2k_j - 1)$ -half sink flow, 34 Half-source flow, 38 $(m_{\alpha} : 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ -half source flow, 38

I

Identical syncrhonization, 75 Imaginary flow, 15 Inaccessible domain, 12

L

Local singularity, 11

М

Master system, 80

N

Negative discrete sets, 197, 203 Negative mapping, 198–199, 203 Non-passable flow of the first kind, 28 $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -non-passable flow of the first kind, 29 Non-passable flow of the second kind, 30 $(m_i : m_j)$ -non-passable flow of the second kind, 33 Non-passable flows, 26, 30

P

Passable boundary, 54 Passable flows, 19 Pendulum, 166 Penetration, 86 *l*-dimensional penetration, 124 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -penetration, 92, 129 Penetration switching, 90, 127 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ penetration switching, 96 $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ penetration vanishing, 132 Positive discrete sets, 203 Positive mapping, 198, 203 $(m_i: m_i)$ product of the G-functions, 53

R

Repulsion, 85 Resultant dynamical systems, 79

S

Semi-passable flow, 19–20 $(2k_i : m_j)$ -semi-passable flow, 22 Separable domain, 12 Singularity, 87, 124 Singular set, 15 Sink boundary, 54 Sink flow, 28 $(2k_i : 2k_j)$ -sink flow, 28 Sinusoidal synchronization, 167, 178, 182 Slave system, 72 Sliding bifurcation, 57

 $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -sliding bifurcation, 58 Sliding fragmentation bifurcation, 65 $(2k_i: 2k_i)$ sliding fragmentation bifurcation, 65 Source bifurcation, 59 $(2k_i: 2k_i)$ -source bifurcation, 61 Source boundary, 54 Source flow, 30 $(m_i:m_i)$ -source flow, 30 Source fragmentation bifurcation, 65 $(2k_i : 2k_i)$ -source fragmentation bifurcation, 71 Switching bifurcation, 63 $(2k_i: 2k_i)$ -switching bifurcation, 63 Switching bifurcation of non-passable flows, 65 $(2k_i: 2k_i)$ -switching bifurcation of non-passable flows, 65 Switching bifurcation of the first kind, 58 $(2k_i: 2k_i)$ -switching bifurcation of the first kind, 58 Switching bifurcation of the second kind, 59 $(2k_i: 2k_i)$ -switching bifurcation of the second kind, 61 Synchronicity, 83, 121 Synchronicity to multiple constraint, 121 Synchronicity with singularity, 91 Synchronization, 1, 71, 85, 216 $(n_r: n_s)$ -dimensional synchronization, 72 *l*-dimensional synchronization, 123 $(2k_1: 2k_2)$ synchronization, 91 $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ synchronization, 129 $(n_r: n_s; l)$ synchronization, 72 Synchronization dynamics, 171 Synchronization onset from desynchronization, 89, 125 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization onset from desynchronization, 95 Synchronization onset from penetration, 88, 125 $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ synchronization onset from penetration, 130 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization onset from penetration, 94 Synchronization vanishing to desynchronization, 89, 143 $(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ synchronization vanishing to desynchronization, 131 $(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization vanishing to desynchronization, 93 Synchronization vanishing to penetration, 88, 125

Index

$(2\mathbf{k}_{\alpha}: 2\mathbf{k}_{\beta})$ synchronization vanishing
to penetration, 132
$(2k_{\alpha}: 2k_{\beta})$ -synchronization vanishing to
penetration, 93
Synchronization with a single constraint, 83

Т

Tangential (grazing) flows, 40–53 $(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ double inaccessible tangential flow, 53 $(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ double tangential flow, 50 $(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_{\beta} - 1)$ tangential flow, 48 $(2k_{\alpha} - 1: 2k_j)$ tangential flow, 44 $(2k_{\alpha} - 1)$ th-order tangential (grazing) flow, 43

 $(2k_{\alpha}-1)$ th order singularity, 102

Y

Yang theory, 198, 200 Ying theory, 198, 201 Ying-Yang theory, 198, 201